PENSION REVIEW BOARD OF TEXAS
BOARD MEETING
AGENDA

Thursday, February 6, 2020 - 10:00 AM
Capitol Extension, Committee Room E2.026
1100 N. Congress Avenue, Austin, Texas 78701

The Board may deliberate and take action on any of the following items:
1. Meeting called to order
2. Roll call of Board members
3. Board administrative Matters — Chair Leibe
A. TAB 1 November 15, 2019 meeting minutes
B. Introduction of new board member
C. Committee appointments
D. Election of Vice Chair for 2020
4. Legislative Committee Matters — Chair Leibe

A. TAB 2A Public Retirement System Investment Expense Reporting rules recently
published for 40 Texas Administrative Code, new chapter 609, including public
comment, staff recommendations, modifications, and possible adoption

B. TAB 2B 2020 Asset Class Categorization Guide to provide further guidance on the asset
classes to be used for investment expense reporting

C. TAB 2C Template to assist public retirement systems with reporting investment
expenses

D. TAB 2D Adoption of PRB rule review - Texas Administrative Code, Title 40, Part 17,
Chapter 601, General Provisions; Chapter 603, Officers and Meetings; Chapter 604,
Historically Underutilized Business Program; Chapter 605, Standardized Form; and
Chapter 607, Public Retirement System Minimum Educational Training Program

E. TAB 2E Adoption of the amendments to the rules proposed for Texas Administrative
Code, Title 40, Part 17, Sections 601.1, 604.1, 605.3, 607.111 and 607.140

5. Actuarial Committee Matters — Keith Brainard



A. TAB 3A Actuarial Valuation Report, including the distribution of investment return
assumptions among Texas plans

B. TAB 3B Updated Summary of Reporting Requirements for Texas Public Retirement
Systems

C. TAB 3C Public retirement system reporting and compliance, including noncompliant
retirement systems under Section 801.209 of the Texas Government Code

D. TAB 3D Updates on the intensive actuarial reviews of the Odessa Firemen’s Relief &
Retirement Fund and Paris Firefighters’ Relief & Retirement Fund

E. TAB 3E Update on the retirement systems subject to the Funding Soundness Restoration
Plan (FSRP) requirement, including compliance

F. Update on funding policies received from public retirement systems in accordance with
Senate Bill 2224 (86R - 2019)

G. Texas Public Pension Data Center

6. Investment Practices and Performance Evaluations, including the formation of a special
committee

7. Education and Research Committee Matters — Chair Leibe
A. TAB 4 MET compliance reporting
B. PRB online course review
8. TAB 5 2020 TLFFRA Pension Report — Anumeha Kumar
9. Executive Director’s Report — Anumeha Kumar
A. 2021 -2025 Strategic Plan
B. 2020 Customer Service Survey
C. Staff update
D. TAB 6 Updated Fiscal Year 2020 Operating Budget
10. Call for future PRB agenda items
11. Date and location of future PRB meetings — including June 30, 2020
12. Invitation for public comment

13. Adjournment

NOTE: Persons with disabilities who plan to attend this meeting and who may need special assistance are requested to contact Mr. Wes Allen at
(800) 213-9425/ (512) 463-1736 three to five (3-5) working days prior to the meeting date so that appropriate arrangements can be made. The
Board may go into executive/closed session regarding any item on the agenda if permitted under the Open Meetings Act, Texas Government
Code Annotated, Chapter 551.



TAB 1



%)

TEXAS PENSION
REVIEW BOARD

Board Meeting Minutes
November 15, 2019
1. Meeting called to order (0:06)

The fourth meeting of 2019 of the Pension Review Board (PRB) began on Friday, November 15,
2019, at 8:31 am in the Capitol Extension, Committee Room E1.012, 1100 N. Congress Avenue,
Austin, Texas 78701.

2. Roll call of Board members (0:15)

Board Members Present

Chair Stephanie Leibe Ernest Richards
Vice Chair Keith Brainard Rossy Farifia-Strauss
Marcia Dush Shari Shivers

A quorum being present, the meeting was called to order by Chair Leibe.

3. Discuss and consider Board administrative matters, including the following items — Chair Leibe
(0:31)

A. Approval of the October 17, 2019 Board meeting minutes (0:36)

Vice Chair Brainard and Ms. Dush offered amendments to the minutes. Chair Leibe
entertained a motion to suspend the reading of the minutes of the October 17, 2019
meeting and approve them as corrected.

The motion was made by Ms. Dush seconded by Mr. Richards.
The motion passed unanimously.

B. Consider excusing the absence of Board members from the October 17, 2019 Board
meeting (3:18)

Chair Leibe entertained a motion to excuse Mr. Richards from the October 17, 2019
meeting.

The motion was made by Mr. Brainard and seconded by Ms. Dush.
The motion passed unanimously.

C. Recognition of outgoing board member (3:58)

Outgoing board member Judge Andrew Cable was unable to attend the meeting;
however, Chair Leibe noted staff presented him with a plague and she read a resolution
honoring his service to the Board.

4. Legislative Committee — Discuss and consider the following items — Chair Leibe (5:39)

1



Texas Pension Review Board Minutes
November 15, 2019

A. Consider approval to publish the rules proposed in Texas Administrative Code, Title
40, Part 17, Chapter 609, relating to Public Retirement System Investment Expense
Reporting, in the Texas Register for public comment (6:17)

Ashley Rendon provided an update on the proposed rules relating to Public Retirement
System Investment Expense Reporting. She noted that the rules contained an
implementation schedule describing when public retirement systems (systems) would
be required to report investment fee amounts in their annual financial reports, based on
their fiscal year-end dates. She noted that the first annual financial reports containing
the fee disclosures would be received by the PRB in March of 2021.

Ms. Rendon stated that in addition to the rules, staff is developing an Asset Class
Categorization (ACC) Guide to foster reporting consistency between systems, which staff
will bring to the Board at the February 2020 meeting.

Ms. Rendon stated that at the last PRB meeting, a Board member requested staff to
include private debt under fixed income, and staff did so within the rule language.
However, she stated that this change would be better suited for the ACC Guide, and she
requested removing the private debt language from the rules.

Anumeha Kumar clarified that the rules would require investment fee disclosures to be
included in a supplemental, unaudited schedule in the annual financial report.

Mr. Richards inquired about the cost to the systems for including the additional
disclosures. Ms. Rendon stated that while staff was unsure of the exact cost the systems
could incur, systems have indicated they are comfortable including the information in
their financial reports. Ms. Kumar added that if the information is not required to be
audited, the cost to the system would be minimal, and that some systems were already
reporting the information.

Chair Leibe invited the public to comment on the proposed rules. There was no public
comment.

Ms. Farifa-Strauss proposed the use of a reporting template to aid the systems in the
new reporting. Ms. Kumar stated that staff would begin working on a template.

Chair Leibe entertained a motion to authorize the Executive Director to publish the
proposed rules after incorporating change requested by staff, in Texas Administrative
Code, Title 40, Part 17, Chapter 609, relating to Public Retirement System Investment
Expense Reporting, in the Texas Register for public comment pending final approval by
the Assistant Attorney General Counsel, and the Board Chair.

Motion made by Mr. Brainard and seconded by Mr. Richards.

The motion passed unanimously.

B. PRB rule review — Texas Administrative Code, Title 40, Part 17, Chapters 601, 603, 604,
605 and 607 (16:35)

Ms. Rendon stated that the proposed rule review notice notified the public that the PRB
was reviewing all agency rules. She noted the staff intended to post the notice
concurrently with the proposed changes.



Texas Pension Review Board Minutes
November 15, 2019

Chair Leibe entertained a motion to authorize the Executive Director to file the
proposed Notice of Intention to Review PRB rules contained in Chapters 601, 603, 604,
605 and 607 of the Texas Administrative Code, Title 40, Part 17 in the Texas Register for
public comment.

Motion made by Ms. Dush and seconded by Mr. Richards.

The motion passed unanimously.

Ms. Rendon noted that the proposed rule amendments would mostly update statutory
references and technical changes.

Ms. Rendon stated the most substantial change would be altering a Minimum
Educational Training (MET) Program rule to require systems to report trustee training
only once per year on September 1. She stated that the rules had previously required
systems to report training twice per year, and that the change would enhance the
efficiency of training reporting while reducing the reporting load on system
administrators.

Ms. Rendon added that staff recommended the repeal of an expired rule regarding the
implementation of the MET program.

Chair Leibe entertained a motion to authorize the Executive Director to file the Notice of
Proposed Rulemaking concerning the amendments to Chapters 601, 604, 605 and 607 of
the Texas Administrative Code, Title 40, Part 17 in the Texas Register for public
comment.

Motion made by Mr. Richards and seconded by Mr. Brainard.

The motion passed unanimously.

5. Review and discuss report from the Executive Director on the following matters — Anumeha
Kumar (23:39)

A. Staff update (23:42)

Ms. Kumar introduced James King, the agency’s new Actuarial Analyst. She stated that
Mr. King was working towards obtaining his Associate of the Society of Actuaries (ASA)
designation.

She also notified the Board members that Joey Evans left the agency.

6. Call for future PRB agenda items — Chair Leibe (24:39)

Mr. Richards asked to discuss discount rates and requested data on what discount rates
were being used by the systems.

7. Date and location of next PRB meeting — TBD (25:27)

Chair Leibe stated that the next PRB meeting would be tentatively set for February 6, 2020.
8. Invitation for public comment (25:49)

There was no public comment.

9. Adjournment



Chair Leibe adjourned the meeting at 8:56 a.m.

In Attendance:
PRB Staff Present

Anumeha Kumar
Westley Allen

Bryan Burnham

James King

Michelle Downie Kranes

Guests Present

Michael Trainer — San Antonio Fire & Police
Pensioners’ Association

David Stacy — Midland FRRF

Steve Waas — Houston Municipal Employees
Pension System

Eddie Solis — TEXPERS

Ariana Whaley — ERS

Kenneth Oliver — TMRS

Tom Harrison - TCDRS

Dan Wattles — TMRS

Chair Stephanie Leibe

Texas Pension Review Board Minutes
November 15, 2019

Ashley Rendon
Mariah Miller
Benjamin Warden
Kenny Herbold

Ralph Marsh — Houston Fire

Jason McElvaney — MPA, TCDRS, FWERF
Warren Schott — San Antonio Fire & Police
David Keller — Self

Katy Fallon-Brown — LBB

Mallory Sampson — PFM

Angela Hall — Dahab Associates

Art Alfaro — TEXPERS

Kerry Berkstresser — TCDRS

Robert Nathan — CPS Energy



TAB 2A



(f) IfHHSC terminates a contract, HHSC notifies the contrac-
tor and any controlling person of the contractor, in writing, of the ap-
plication denial period set in accordance with §49.702(c) or (d) of this
chapter (relating to Application Denial Period).

§49.535.  Administrative Penalties in the HCS and TxHmL Programs.

(a) HHSC may impose an administrative penalty:

(1) for a contractor that has a contract for the HCS Pro-
gram, in accordance with §9.181 of this title (relating to Administrative

Penalties); or

(2) for a contractor that has a contract for the TxHmL Pro-
gram, in accordance with §9.581 of this title (relating to Administrative

Penalties).

(b) HHSC sends a contractor written notice if HHSC is impos-
ing an administrative penalty. The notice includes:

(1) foraviolation described in §9.181(a)(1) or §9.581(a)(1)
of this title:

(A) the date the administrative penalty begins to accrue,
as described in §9.181(e) or §9.581(e) of this title; and

(B) the amount of the administrative penalty that will
accrue each day; or

(2) for an action described in §9.181(a)(2) or §9.581(a)(2)
of this title:

(A) the amount of the administrative penalty, as de-
scribed in §9.181(b) or §9.581(b) of this title; and

(B) the date HHSC will require the contractor to pay
HHSC the amount of the administrative penalty.

(c) Foraviolation described in §9.181(a)(1) or §9.581(a)(1) of
this title, HHSC gives a contractor written notice after the administra-
tive penalty stops accruing and any informal dispute resolution related
to the violation is completed. The notice includes:

(1) the date the administrative penalty stopped accruing, as
described in §9.181(f) or §9.581(f) of this title;

(2) the total amount of the administrative penalty;

(3) the date HHSC will require the contractor to pay HHSC
the amount of the administrative penalty; and

(4) if the violation is not an immediate threat as defined in
§9.153 or §9.553 of this title (relating to Definitions), a statement that:

(A) the contractor may choose amelioration as de-
scribed in §9.182 or §9.586 of this title (relating to Amelioration);

(B) to choose amelioration, the contractor must notify
HHSC of this choice, in writing, within 10 business days after the date
of HHSC's notice that the administrative penalty has stopped accruing;
and

(C) if'the contractor does not notify HHSC that the con-
tractor is choosing amelioration within the required 10-day period the
contractor forfeits the opportunity to choose amelioration.

(d) If HHSC imposes an administrative penalty and the
contractor chooses amelioration, HHSC requires the contractor to pay
HHSC the amount of the administrative penalty only if:

(1) the contractor does not submit a plan for amelioration
as described in §9.182(d) or §9.586(d) of this title, and the contractor:

(A) does not appeal the administrative penalty; or

(B) appeals the administrative penalty and the final de-
cision from the administrative hearing is favorable to HHSC;

(2) HHSC denies the plan for amelioration as described in
§9.182(h)(2) or §9.586(h)(2) of this title, and the contractor:

(A) does not appeal the administrative penalty; or

(B) appeals the administrative penalty and the final de-
cision from the administrative hearing is favorable to HHSC; or

(3) the contractor does not implement an approved plan for
amelioration as described in §9.182(i) or §9.586(i) of this title and the
contractor:

(A) does not appeal the issue of whether the plan was
implemented; or
(B) appeals the issue of whether the plan was imple-

mented and the final decision from the administrative hearing is favor-
able to HHSC.

(e) If HHSC approves the plan of amelioration and the cost
of the proposed changes is less than the amount of the administrative
penalty, HHSC requires the contractor to pay HHSC the difference be-
tween the cost of the proposed changes and the administrative penalty.

(f) If HHSC imposes an administrative penalty and the con-
tractor does not notify HHSC that the contractor chooses amelioration
within the required 10-day period, HHSC requires the contractor to pay
HHSC the amount of the administrative penalty:

(1) if the contractor does not appeal the administrative
penalty; or

(2) if the contractor appeals the administrative penalty
and the final decision from the administrative hearing is favorable to
HHSC.

The agency certifies that legal counsel has reviewed the pro-
posal and found it to be within the state agency's legal authority
to adopt.

Filed with the Office of the Secretary of State on November 21,
2019.

TRD-201904408

Karen Ray

Chief Counsel

Department of Aging and Disability Services
Earliest possible date of adoption: January 5, 2020
For further information, please call: (512) 438-3161

¢ ¢ ¢

PART 17. STATE PENSION REVIEW

BOARD

CHAPTER 609. PUBLIC RETIREMENT
SYSTEM INVESTMENT EXPENSE REPORTING

40 TAC §§609.101, 609.103, 609.105, 609.107, 609.109,
609.111
The State Pension Review Board (the Board or PRB) proposes

new 40 TAC Chapter 609, concerning Public Retirement System
Investment Expense Reporting.

BACKGROUND AND PURPOSE

PROPOSED RULES December 6, 2019 44 TexReg 7529



The proposed rules would enhance the investment fee dis-
closure requirements for the purpose of financial reporting by
Texas public retirement systems. Texas Government Code
§802.103(a)(3), as added by Senate Bill 322 (86R) requires
Texas public retirement systems to list by asset class, all direct
and indirect commissions and fees paid by the retirement
system during the system's previous fiscal year for the sale,
purchase or management of system assets.

To standardize reporting, the proposed rules would provide
a comprehensive definition of investment expense to include
direct and indirect investment management fees and commis-
sions, broken down by five asset classes, and to include other
investment-related expenses, which would include expenses for
investment consultant(s), custodial, investment-related legal,
and investment research.

Over the past decade, institutional investors, including public
retirement systems, have increased their allocation to alterna-
tive investments. Those investors have raised concerns that ex-
penses for alternative investments are opaque and generated
momentum for greater fee transparency in this asset class. A
2015 report by CEM Benchmarking showed that a substantial
portion of private equity expenses comprised carried interest and
other performance incentives and bonuses.

Many of the large public retirement systems, outside of and
within Texas, already require their managers to disclose per-
formance fees. The 2017 Sunset legislation for the Employees
Retirement System of Texas required the system to report
profit-share expenses for alternative investments, including
investments in private equity, hedge funds, and private real
estate. Therefore, to increase transparency and disclosure
for the alternative/other asset class, the proposed rules would
require a retirement system to report any financial remuneration
related to profit-share arrangements.

Greater investment fee transparency and standardized report-
ing would allow the PRB, policymakers, public retirement sys-
tems, system members, and the public to effectively compare the
investment expenses associated with the operation and man-
agement of a public retirement system's investment activities.
Therefore, the PRB is proposing these rules to implement Texas
Government Code §802.103(a)(3), as added by Senate Bill 322
(86R).

SECTION-BY-SECTION SUMMARY

Proposed new §609.101 establishes the authority for the chap-
ter.

Proposed new §609.103 establishes the purpose of the chapter.

Proposed new §609.105 establishes the definitions specific to
the chapter.

Proposed new §609.107 establishes the applicability of invest-
ment expense reporting and outlines the exceptions as deter-
mined by the Board.

Proposed new §609.109 outlines the information to be reported
by Texas public retirement systems.

Proposed new §609.111 establishes a structure by which Texas
public retirement systems should report investment expenses. It
also adopts the Asset Categorization Document, which provides
guidance to Texas public retirement systems on reporting their
direct and indirect management fees and commissions.

FISCAL NOTE ON STATE AND LOCAL GOVERNMENTS

Westley Allen, Accountant, has determined that for each year
of the first five-year period the proposed new rules would be in
effect, there will be no foreseeable implications relating to cost
or revenues of state or local governments, under Government
Code §2001.024(a)(4), as a result of enforcing or administering
these rules.

PUBLIC BENEFIT/COST NOTE

Mr. Allen has determined, under Government Code
§2001.024(a)(5) that for each year of the first five-year period
the proposed new rules are in effect, the public benefit
anticipated as a result of enforcing the proposed rules would
be that it creates greater investment fee transparency and
that it standardizes reporting, which would allow the board,
policymakers, public retirement systems, system members,
and the public to effectively compare the investment expenses
associated with the operation and management of a public
retirement system's investment activities. Also, the proposed
rules will help with a clearer and consistent implementation of
§802.103(a)(3) of the Texas Government Code.

Potential impact on those public retirement systems that are re-
quired to comply with the rules is unlikely, and related costs, if
any, would be minimal. Systems could use existing resources to
absorb the minor costs associated with adding a note on direct
and indirect fees to the annual reports they already provide to
the Board. The fiscal note prepared by the Legislative Budget
Board in response to SB 322, which requires the reporting that
these rules address, concluded there would be no impact to local
governments or to the systems required to comply. LBB's anal-
ysis reflects, partly, the comments provided by various pension
systems during the legislative session. (LBB Fiscal Note, 86th
Legislative Regular Session, SB 322, Committee Report 2nd
House, Substituted, https://capitol.texas.gov/tlodocs/86R/fiscal-
notes/pdf/SB00322H.pdf#navpanes=0 ).

Agency staff, likewise, shared drafts of the proposed rules con-
tent with stakeholders for their input. After considering any com-
ments received, the agency staff developed the proposed rules.
Several stakeholders commented that the original draft provi-
sions may have been construed by some systems to require that
systems submit audited investment-fee information, resulting in
possible costs to a system. After considering the stakeholders'
comments, staff proposes a rule that does not require systems to
submit audited investment-fee information, and the board hereby
clarifies that intent in this rule proposal. The rules allow a public
retirement system to report the investment-fee information in an
unaudited schedule within the system's annual financial report.

GOVERNMENT GROWTH IMPACT STATEMENT

The Board has determined that during the first five years that the
rules will be in effect:

(1) the proposed rules will not create or eliminate a government
program;

(2) implementation of the proposed rules will not affect the num-
ber of PRB employee positions;

(3) implementation of the proposed rules will result in no as-
sumed change in future legislative appropriations;

(4) the proposed rules will not affect fees paid to PRB;

(5) the proposed rules may create a new regulation to the extent
that it implements a statutorily imposed reporting requirement
(SB 322);

44 TexReg 7530 December 6, 2019 Texas Register


https://capitol.texas.gov/tlodocs/86R/fiscal

(6) the proposed rules will not expand, limit, or repeal existing
regulations;

(7) the proposed rules will not change the number of individuals
subject to the rules; and

(8) the proposed rules will not positively or adversely affect the
state's economy.

ECONOMIC IMPACT STATEMENT AND REGULATORY FLEX-
IBILITY ANALYSIS FOR SMALL BUSINESSES, MICROBUSI-
NESSES, AND RURAL COMMUNITIES.

Mr. Allen has also determined that there will be no impact on
rural communities, small businesses, or micro-businesses as a
result of implementing these amendments because the rules do
not involve those entities and, instead, concern administrative
reporting requirements applicable only to public pension sys-
tems. Therefore, no regulatory flexibility analysis, as specified
in Texas Government Code §2006.002 is required.

IMPACT ON LOCAL EMPLOYMENT OR ECONOMY

Mr. Allen has further determined there is no effect on local econ-
omy for the first five years that the proposed amendments are in
effect because the rules do not involve factors of local economy.
Therefore, no economic impact statement, local employment im-
pact statement, nor regulatory flexibility analysis is required un-
der Texas Government Code §§2001.022 or 2001.024(a)(6).

COST TO REGULATED PERSONS (COST-IN/COST-OUT)

This rule proposal is not subject to Texas Government Code
§2001.0045, concerning increasing costs to regulated persons,
because, as described above in the public benefit and cost note,
the proposed amendments do not impose a cost on regulated
persons under Government Code §2001.024, including another
state agency, a special district, or a local government.

TAKINGS IMPACT ASSESSMENT

The Board has determined that no private real property inter-
ests are affected by this proposal and the proposal does not re-
strict or limit an owner's right to his or her property that would
otherwise exist in the absence of government action and, there-
fore, does not constitute a taking under Texas Government Code
§2007.043.

ENVIRONMENTAL RULE ANALYSIS

The proposed rules are not a "major environmental rule" as de-
fined by Government Code §2001.0225. The proposed rules are
not specifically intended to protect the environment or to reduce
risks to human health from environmental exposure. Therefore,
a regulatory environmental analysis is not required.

PUBLIC COMMENT

Written comments on the proposal may be submitted to Anu-
meha Kumar, Executive Director, State Pension Review Board,
P.O. Box 13498, Austin, Texas 78711-3498 or by electronic mail
to prb@prb.texas.gov. Commenters are encouraged to include
"rule comments" in the subject line of the electronic mail. Com-
ments will be accepted until 5:00 p.m. on January 10, 2020,
which is 35 days after publication in the Texas Register.

STATUTORY AUTHORITY

The proposed rules are authorized by the Texas Government
Code, §802.201(a), which grants specific authority to the Board
to adopt rules for the conduct of its business; and §802.103(e),

which allows the Board to adopt rules to implement requirements
related to a public retirement system's annual financial report.

CROSS REFERENCE TO STATUTES AND CODES AF-
FECTED

The proposed new rules affect and implement Texas Govern-
ment Code, Chapter 802, including §802.103.

$609.101.  Authority.

These rules are promulgated under the authority of Texas Government
Code, §801.201, relating to rulemaking, and §802.103, relating to an
annual financial report and the Board's authority to adopt rules neces-
sary to implement that section.

$609.103.  Purpose.

(a) The governing body of a public retirement system, as man-
dated by §802.103 of the Texas Government Code, is required to pub-
lish an annual financial report showing the financial condition of the
system as of the last day of the fiscal year covered in the report.

(b) Texas Government Code §802.103(a)(3) requires within
the annual financial report, a listing, by asset class, of all direct and
indirect commissions and fees paid by the retirement system during
the system's previous fiscal year for the sale, purchase or management
of system assets.

(c) This chapter implements these reporting requirements to
help ensure consistency in investment expense reporting by public re-
tirement systems, which will benefit those systems, the Board, policy-
makers, and the public, through the ability to make enhanced compar-
isons and allow for the better analysis, policymaking, and understand-
ing of investment expenses paid by public retirement systems.

(d) This chapter is not intended to contradict generally ac-
cepted auditing standards, governmental accounting standards, or
widely recommended best practices for financial reporting by govern-
mental entities. It is also not intended to prevent systems from making
additional disclosures beyond those listed in this chapter.

§609.105.  Definitions.
The following words and terms, for the purposes of this chapter, shall
have the following meanings, unless the rule indicates otherwise.

(1) "Annual financial report" means as defined by §802.103
of the Texas Government Code.

(2) "Asset class" means a group of securities that share sim-
ilar characteristics, perform comparably in the marketplace, and are
generally governed by the same laws and regulations.

(3) "Board" means the State Pension Review Board.

(4) "Direct and indirect fees and commissions" means
amounts paid to investment managers for managing assets; commis-
sions paid to brokers for trading securities on a per share basis; and
profit share as defined by §815.3015(a)(2) of the Texas Government
Code.

(5) "Fees netted from returns" means an amount that an in-
vestment manager collects or retains from earned investment returns
rather than from the pension trust fund.

(6) "Governing body of a public retirement system" means
as provided by Texas Government Code §802.001(2).

(7) "Investment expense" means direct and indirect fees
and commissions and amounts retained or paid for investment services.

(8) "Investment manager" means as defined by §802.204
of the Texas Government Code.

PROPOSED RULES December 6, 2019 44 TexReg 7531


mailto:prb@prb.texas.gov

(9) "Investment service" means a service provided to a

ment services are provided by a single firm. Those expenses should

public retirement system for general purposes of administering its

not be reported by asset class.

investment program such as custodial, investment consulting, invest-
ment-related legal services, and research.

(10) "Public retirement system" means as defined by
§801.001(2) and §802.001(3) of the Texas Government Code, but shall
not include defined contribution plans as defined by Texas Government
Code, §802.001(1-a) or retirement systems consisting exclusively of
volunteers organized under the Texas Local Fire Fighters' Retirement
Act as defined by Texas Government Code, §802.002(d).

$609.107.  Applicability.
This chapter applies to every public retirement system.

$609.109.  Investment Expense Reporting.
For the first reporting period:

(1) A public retirement system with 180 days or more re-

(d) The asset classes are:
(1) Cash;
(2) Public Equity;
(3) Fixed Income;

(4) Real Assets;
(5) Alternative/Other.
(¢) The Board hereby adopts by reference the 2020 Asset Class

Categorization Guide (2020 ACC Guide) to assist in categorizing items
by asset class.

(f) The Asset Class Categorization Guide is available to all
public retirement systems. A public retirement system may obtain

maining in its current fiscal year as of the effective date of this section

the most current version of the Asset Class Categorization Guide from

shall include the required investment expense disclosures per this chap-

the offices of the State Pension Review Board and from its website at

ter in its annual financial report that covers that fiscal year.

(2) A public retirement system with fewer than 180 days
remaining in its current fiscal year as of the effective date of this sec-

http://www.prb.texas.gov.

(g) For an investment product containing investments in more
than one asset class, a public retirement system shall report fees ac-

tion shall include the required investment expense disclosures per this

cording to the corresponding asset class.

chapter during the first fiscal year that begins after the effective date of
this chapter, as part of its regularly scheduled annual financial report.

(3) The provisions of this section shall expire on April 1,

(h) For a fund of funds, reported fees must include the top-
layer management fees charged by the fund-of-fund manager and the
fees charged by all subsidiary fund managers, and all profit share, re-

2022.

§609.111. Investment Expense Reporting Structure.
(a) Public retirement systems shall:

(1) report direct and indirect fees and commissions:

(A) in the fiscal year they are incurred;

(B) by asset class;

(C) inasupplemental schedule in the notes to the finan-
cial statements; and

(2) identify amounts netted from returns separately from
those paid from the trust.

(b) Investment services provided to the system shall be re-
ported in a supplemental schedule contained in the notes to the financial
statements that are part of a public retirement system's annual financial

report.

(c) A retirement system shall report expenses incurred for in-
vestment services by type of service provided, even if multiple invest-

ported as a single amount.

(i) A public retirement system must list the types of investment
included in the "Alternative/Other" asset class as described in the 2020
ACC Guide.

The agency certifies that legal counsel has reviewed the pro-
posal and found it to be within the state agency's legal authority
to adopt.

Filed with the Office of the Secretary of State on November 19,
2019.

TRD-201904360

Anumeha Kumar

Executive Director

State Pension Review Board

Earliest possible date of adoption: January 5, 2020
For further information, please call: (512) 463-1736

¢ ¢ ¢

44 TexReg 7532 December 6, 2019 Texas Register


http://www.prb.texas.gov

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK



Pension Review Board
February 6, 2020

40 Texas Administrative Code Chapter 609

Public Comments Received on Proposed Investment Expense Reporting Rules

Commenter Comment Received Staff Recommendation
General
Employees We currently report hedge funds asset value, management The proposed rules would not

Retirement System
of Texas

fees and profit sharing on a different 12-month period than
our fiscal year due to availability and is noted on the
schedule. We are not interpreting any of the rules to
prevent this from occurring.

prevent systems from reporting
certain expenses, such as profit
share, on a different time period.

No change required.

Investment Expense Reporting Structure

City of Austin
Employees’
Retirement System

609.111(a)(1)(C)

Requiring the proposed Investment Expense Report in the
notes to the financial statements will require additional
work for COAERS’ financial auditors, which will increase
costs to COAERS. It would be more appropriate to require
the disclosure in the annual financial report which could be
done without any additional cost.

Recommended change:
§609.111. Investment Expense Reporting Structure.
(a) Public retirement systems shall:
(1) report direct and indirect fees and commissions:

(A) in the fiscal year they are incurred;

(B) by asset class;

(C) in a supplemental schedule irthe-netesto-the
financialstatements as part of the system’s annual financial

report; and
(2) identify amounts netted from returns separately from

those paid from the trust.

Agree with recommended
change.




Mariah Miller

From: Ariana Whaley <Ariana.Whaley@ers.texas.gov>
Sent: Wednesday, January 8, 2020 9:23 AM

To: PRB

Subject: Investment Expense Reporting rule comments
Categories: Mariah

ERS has reviewed the proposed rules and have a one comment to consider. We currently report hedge funds asset
value, management fees and profit sharing on a different 12 month period than our fiscal year due to availability and is
noted on the schedule. We are not interpreting any of the rules to prevent this from occurring.

Please let me know if you have any questions.

Thanks,
Ariana

Ariana Whaley

Pension Policy Analyst

Governmental Relations

(512) 867-7534

EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM OF TEXAS




P §

cOoders

City of Austin Employees’ Retirement System

January 7, 2020

Ms. Anumeha Kumar
Executive Director

State Pension Review Board
P.O. Box 13498

Austin, TX 78711-3498

Ms. Kumar,

| appreciate the opportunity to provide comment on the State Pension Review Board (PRB)
proposed rules regarding Public Retirement System Investment Expense Reporting. After
review of the proposed rules as published, the City of Austin Employees’ Retirement System
(COAERS) proposes that the PRB make the following change in 609.111(a)(1)(C):

$609.111.Investment Expense Reporting Structure.

(a) Public retirement systems shall:

(1) report direct and indirect fees and commissions:

(A) in the fiscal year they are incurred;

(B) by asset class;

(C) in a supplemental schedule in-the-netesto-thefinancial-statements as part of the
system’s annual financial report; and

COAERS proposes this change because requiring the proposed Investment Expense Report in
the notes to the financial statements will require additional work for COAERS’ financial
auditors, which will increase costs to COAERS. It would be more appropriate to require the
disclosure in the annual financial report which could be done without any additional cost.

Please let me know if you have questions or wish to discuss in any further detail the comment
submitted by COAERS.

Sincerely,

= 4\

Christopher D. Hanson
Executive Director

6850 Austin Center Blvd, Suite 320 Austin, Texas 78731 Phone: 512-458-2551 Fax: 512-458-5650 WWW.COaers.org




TAB 2B



s

TExXAS PENSION
REVIEW BOARD

2020 Asset Class Categorization Guide

The purpose of this document is to further clarify the asset classes for the investment fees and commissions
reporting requirements established by §802.103(a)(3) of the Texas Government Code and 40 TAC Chapter 609.
The examples listed are not exhaustive. For investment products containing investments in more than one asset
class, fees must be reported according to the corresponding asset class (e.g., a balanced fund comprised of 60%
public equities and 40% fixed income).

1. Cash

Cash and cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and near their maturity date. Examples include Treasury bills, commercial paper, and
money market funds.

2. Fixed Income

Fixed income generally comprises debt securities such as municipal or corporate bonds that provide returns
in the form of fixed, periodic payments (e.g. interest or coupon payments) and the return of principal at
maturity. Other examples include private debt, Treasury Inflation-Protected Securities (TIPS), US Treasury
securities, fixed income mutual funds and mortgage-backed securities.

3. Public Equity

Equity securities are shares representing an ownership interest in a corporation. Examples of equities
include domestic, international, and emerging market stocks, as well as equity mutual funds.

4. Real Assets

Real assets are physical assets. They can include natural resources, commodities, and real estate
investments such as real estate investment trusts (REITs), private real estate funds and direct investment in
property.

5. Alternative/Other

Investments that do not fit into any of the categories above may be classified as an alternative or other
investment. Some alternative investments may include private equity, hedge funds, derivatives and venture
capital. All investments in this class must be listed by type in a footnote or table.



TAB 2C



SB 322 Investment Expense Reporting

Instructions: This spreadsheet includes three tables to assist systems with investment expense reporting as required by Texas Government Code §802.103. The first table, Direct and Indirect Fees
and Commissions, is intended to assist systems with reporting management fees, brokerage fees/commissions, and profit share, as defined by 40 TAC, Chapter 609. The blue and grey shaded
columns/rows contain built-in formulas to assist with the calculation of total expenses. The second table, Alternative/Other, provides a sample format systems may use to list investments
categorized as Alternative/Other, as required by rule. The third table, Total Investment Expenses, may be used to report total investment expenses, including investment services, if not already
included elsewhere in the annual financial report.

An example investment expense report may be found on the example tab. Public retirement systems are not required to use this format or template to comply with the requirements of §802.103 or
Chapter 609.

Direct and Indirect Fees and Commissions

TOTAL DIRECT AND
TOTAL INVESTMENT INDIRECT FEES AND
MANAGEMENT FEES COMMISSIONS

(Management Fees Netted (Management Fees +

MANAGEMENT FEES from Returns + Brokerage

MANAGEMENT FEES PAID NETTED FROM Management Fees Paid BROKERAGE PROFIT SHARE/CARRIED Fees/Commissions +

ASSET CLASS FROM TRUST RETURNS From Trust) FEES/COMMISSIONS INTEREST Profit Share)

Cash

Public Equity

Fixed Income

Real Assets

Alternative/Other

o | |n|n|n|n

mmtlnmmm

m@;www

mmtlnmmm

mmtlnmmm

V*mtlnmmm
i

TOTAL

Alternative/Other Total Investment Expenses

Total Direct and Indirect
Alternative/Other Investments Fees and Commissions 3 =

Investment Services

Custodial

Research

Investment Consulting

Legal

w|nlWn|nln
1

Total

Total Investment Expenses
(Total Direct and Indirect
Fees and Commissions +
Investment Services) S -

PENSION REVIEW BOARD



SB 322 Investment Expense Reporting - Example

Instructions: This spreadsheet includes three tables to assist systems with investment expense reporting as required by Texas Government Code §802.103. The first table, Direct and Indirect Fees
and Commissions, is intended to assist systems with reporting management fees, brokerage fees/commissions, and profit share, as defined by 40 TAC, Chapter 609. The blue and grey shaded
columns/rows contain built-in formulas to assist with the calculation of total expenses. The second table, Alternative/Other, provides a sample format systems may use to list investments
categorized as Alternative/Other, as required by rule. The third table, Total Investment Expenses, may be used to report total investment expenses, including investment services, if not already
included elsewhere in the annual financial report.

This is an example of what an investment expense report may look like and is not intended to indicate that the specific investment expenses below are appropriate for any given retirement
system. Public retirement systems are not required to use this format or template to comply with the requirements of §802.103 or Chapter 609.

Direct and Indirect Fees and Commissions

TOTAL INVESTMENT

TOTAL DIRECT AND
INDIRECT FEES AND

MANAGEMENT FEES COMMISSIONS
(Management Fees Netted (Management Fees +
MANAGEMENT FEES from Returns + Brokerage
MANAGEMENT FEES PAID NETTED FROM Management Fees Paid BROKERAGE PROFIT SHARE/CARRIED Fees/Commissions +
ASSET CLASS FROM TRUST RETURNS From Trust) FEES/COMMISSIONS INTEREST Profit Share)
Cash S 1,150 | $ -1s 1,150 | $ - S - $ 1,150
Public Equity S 5,860 | $ 9,830 | S 15,690 | $ 20,100 | S - $ 35,790
Fixed Income S 3,460 | S 6,720 | S 10,180 | $ - S - $ 10,180
Real Assets S - S - S - S - S - S -
Alternative/Other S - S 5,260 | S 5,260 | $ - S 45,100 | $ 50,360
TOTAL S 10,470 | $ 21,810 | $ 32,280 | $ 20,100 | $ 45,100 | $ 97,480
Alternative/Other Total Investment Expenses
Total Direct and Indirect
Alternative/Other Investments Fees and Commissions $ 97,480
Private Equity Investment Services
Hedge Funds Custodial S 8,820
Commodities Research S 5,810
Investment Consulting S 10,330
Legal S 5,640
Total S 30,600
Total Investment Expenses
(Total Direct and Indirect
Fees and Commissions +
Investment Services) $ 128,080

PENSION REVIEW BOARD




TAB 2D



‘Review Of

ULE S This section contains notices of state agency rule review
GENCY as directed by the Texas Government Code, §2001.039.

Included here are proposed rule review notices, which

invite public comment to specified rules under review; and adopted rule review notices, which summarize public comment
received as part of the review. The complete text of an agency’s rule being reviewed is available in the Texas

Administrative Code on the Texas Secretary of State’s website.

For questions about the content and subject matter of rules, please contact the state agency that is reviewing the rules.
Questions about the website and printed copies of these notices may be directed to the Texas Register office.

Proposed Rule Reviews
Finance Commission of Texas
Title 7, Part 1

The Finance Commission of Texas (commission) files this notice of
intention to review and consider for readoption, revision, or repeal,
Texas Administrative Code, Title 7, Part 1, Chapter 2, concerning Res-
idential Mortgage Loan Originators Regulated by the Office of Con-
sumer Credit Commissioner. Chapter 2 contains Subchapter A, con-
cerning Application Procedures; and Subchapter B, concerning Oper-
ational Requirements.

This rule review will be conducted pursuant to Texas Government
Code, §2001.039. The commission will accept written comments
received on or before 5:00 p.m. central time on the 31st day after the
date this notice is published in the Texas Register as to whether the
reasons for adopting these rules continue to exist.

The Office of Consumer Credit Commissioner, which administers these
rules, believes that the reasons for adopting the rules contained in this
chapter continue to exist. Any questions or written comments pertain-
ing to this notice of intention to review should be directed to Matthew
Nance, Deputy General Counsel, Office of Consumer Credit Commis-
sioner, 2601 North Lamar Boulevard, Austin, Texas 78705, or by email
to rule.comments@occc.texas.gov. Any proposed changes to the rules
as aresult of the review will be published in the Proposed Rules Section
of the Texas Register and will be open for an additional 31-day public
comment period prior to final adoption or repeal by the commission.

TRD-201904758

Matthew Nance

Deputy General Counsel

Office of Consumer Credit Commissioner
Filed: December 12, 2019

¢ ¢ ¢
Office of Consumer Credit Commissioner
Title 7, Part 5

The Finance Commission of Texas (commission) files this notice of in-
tention to review and consider for readoption, revision, or repeal, Texas
Administrative Code, Title 7, Part 5, Chapter 86, concerning Retail
Creditors. Chapter 86 contains Subchapter A, concerning Registration
of Retail Creditors; and Subchapter B, concerning Retail Installment
Contract.

This rule review will be conducted pursuant to Texas Government
Code, §2001.039. The commission will accept written comments
received on or before 5:00 p.m. central time on the 31st day after the

date this notice is published in the Texas Register as to whether the
reasons for adopting these rules continue to exist.

The Office of Consumer Credit Commissioner, which administers these
rules, believes that the reasons for adopting the rules contained in this
chapter continue to exist. Any questions or written comments pertain-
ing to this notice of intention to review should be directed to Matthew
Nance, Deputy General Counsel, Office of Consumer Credit Commis-
sioner, 2601 North Lamar Boulevard, Austin, Texas 78705, or by email
to rule.comments@occc.texas.gov. Any proposed changes to the rules
as aresult of the review will be published in the Proposed Rules Section
of the Texas Register and will be open for an additional 31-day public
comment period prior to final adoption or repeal by the commission.

TRD-201904757

Matthew Nance

Deputy General Counsel

Office of Consumer Credit Commissioner
Filed: December 12, 2019

¢ ¢ ¢
Public Utility Commission of Texas
Title 16, Part 2

The Public Utility Commission of Texas (commission) publishes this
notice of intention to review Chapter 27, Rules for Administrative Ser-
vices, under Texas Government Code §2001.039, Agency Review of
Existing Rules. Chapter 27 establishes requirements for commission
employee training, the historically underutilized business program, and
contracting. The text of the rule sections will not be published. The text
of the rules may be found in the Texas Administrative Code, Title 16,
Economic Regulation, Part 2, or through the commission's website at
www.puc.texas.gov. Project Number 49761 is assigned to this rule re-
view project.

Texas Government Code §2001.039 requires that each state agency
review and readopt, readopt with amendments, or repeal the rules
adopted by that agency under Texas Government Code, Chapter 2001,
Subchapter B, Rulemaking. As required by §2001.039(e), this review
is to assess whether the reason for adopting or readopting the rules
continues to exist. The commission requests specific comments from
interested persons on whether the reasons for adopting each section in
Chapter 27 continue to exist. In addition, the commission welcomes
comments on any modifications interested persons believe would
improve the rules.

If it is determined during this review that any section of Chapter 27
needs to be repealed or amended, the repeal or amendment will be ini-
tiated under a separate proceeding. This notice of intention to review
Chapter 27 has no effect on the sections as they currently exist.

RULE REVIEW December 27, 2019 44 TexReg 8343


www.puc.texas.gov
mailto:rule.comments@occc.texas.gov
mailto:rule.comments@occc.texas.gov

Comments on the review of Chapter 27 may be submitted to the Filing
Clerk, Public Utility Commission of Texas, 1701 North Congress Av-
enue, P.O. Box 13326, Austin, Texas 78711-3326, by January 31, 2020.
Sixteen copies of comments on the proposed rule review are required
to be filed under 16 TAC §22.71(c). When filing comments, interested
persons are requested to comment on the sections in the same order
they are found in the chapters and to clearly designate which section is
being commented upon. All comments should refer to Project Number
49761.

The notice of intention to review Chapter 27 is proposed under the
Public Utility Regulatory Act, Texas Utilities Code Annotated §14.002
(West 2007 and Supp. 2017) (PURA), which provides the commission
with the authority to make and enforce rules reasonably required in the
exercise of its powers and jurisdiction; PURA §14.052, which requires
the commission to adopt and enforce rules governing practice and pro-
cedure before the commission, and, as applicable, practice and pro-
cedure before the State Office of Administrative Hearings; and Texas
Government Code §2001.039 (West 2018 and Supp. 2017), which re-
quires each state agency to review its rules every four years.

Cross Reference to Statutes: Public Utility Regulatory Act §14.002 and
14.052; Texas Government Code §2001.039.

TRD-201904788

Andrea Gonzalez

Rules Coordinator

Public Utility Commission of Texas
Filed: December 13, 2019

¢ ¢ ¢
State Pension Review Board
Title 40, Part 17

The State Pension Review Board (PRB) files this notice of intent to
review and consider for readoption, revision, or repeal Texas Admin-

istrative Code, Title 40, Part 17, Chapter 601, concerning General Pro-
visions; Chapter 603, concerning Officers and Meetings; Chapter 604,
concerning Historically Underutilized Business Program; Chapter 605,
concerning Standardized Form; and Chapter 607, concerning Mini-
mum Educational Training Program.

This rule review is being conducted pursuant to Texas Government
Code, §2001.039, which requires state agencies to review and consider
for repeal, readoption, or readoption with amendments their adminis-
trative rules every four years.

As part of the review process, elsewhere in this issue of the Texas Reg-
ister, PRB contemporaneously proposes amendments to the rules con-
tained in Chapters 601, 604, 605 and 607. The PRB also proposes the
repeal of §607.111.

The review will include, at the minimum, whether the reasons for
adopting the rules continue to exist. The PRB will accept comments
regarding the review. The comment period will last for 31 days
following the publication of this notice in the Texas Register.

All comments and/or questions regarding this rule review may be sub-
mitted to Anumeha Kumar, Executive Director, State Pension Review
Board, P.O. Box 13498, Austin, Texas 78711-3498 by electronic mail
to prb@prb.texas.gov. Commenters are encouraged to include "rule
comments" in the subject line of the electronic mail.

TRD-201904771

Anumeha Kumar

Executive Director

State Pension Review Board
Filed: December 12, 2019

¢ ¢ ¢

44 TexReg 8344 December 27, 2019 Texas Register


mailto:prb@prb.texas.gov

TAB 2E



William Hamner

Special Counsel for Tax Administration

Comptroller of Public Accounts

Earliest possible date of adoption: January 26, 2020
For further information, please call: (512) 475-0387

¢ ¢ ¢

TITLE 40. SOCIAL SERVICES AND ASSIS-
TANCE

PART 17. STATE PENSION REVIEW
BOARD
CHAPTER 601. GENERAL PROVISIONS

40 TAC §601.1

The State Pension Review Board (PRB) proposes amendments
to §601.1 (relating to Purpose).

BACKGROUND AND PURPOSE

The rule changes are proposed as a result of the PRB's rule re-
view, which was conducted pursuant to Texas Government Code
§2001.039.

The proposed amendment to §601.1 (relating to Purpose)
changes the agency's reference in the purpose of the rules to
update its authorizing statute from the original Vernon's Texas
Codes Annotated, to its current governing statute, which is in
the Texas Government Code.

FISCAL NOTE ON STATE AND LOCAL GOVERNMENTS

Westley Allen, Accountant, has determined that for each year of
the first five-year period the rule changes as proposed would be
in effect, there will be no foreseeable implications relating to cost
or revenues of state or local governments, under Government
Code §2001.024(a)(4), as a result of enforcing or administering
these rules.

PUBLIC BENEFIT/COST NOTE

Mr. Allen has determined, under Government Code
§2001.024(a)(5) that for each year of the first five-year period
the rule changes as proposed are in effect, the public benefit
anticipated as a result of enforcing the rule changes as
proposed would be updated and clarified rules. Also, the
amendment relating to PRS Reporting would enhance efficiency
in training reporting by public retirement system administrators.

GOVERNMENT GROWTH IMPACT STATEMENT

The Board has determined that during the first five years that the
rule changes as proposed will be in effect:

(1) the rule changes as proposed will not create or eliminate a
government program;

(2) implementation of the rule changes as proposed will not affect
the number of PRB employee positions;

(3) implementation of the rule changes as proposed will result in
no assumed change in future legislative appropriations;

(4) the rule changes as proposed will not affect fees paid to PRB;
(5) the rule changes as proposed will not create a new regulation;

(6) the rule changes as proposed will not expand, limit or repeal
existing regulations.

(7) the rule changes as proposed will not change the number of
individuals subject to the rule; and

(8) the rule changes as proposed will not positively or adversely
affect the state's economy.

ECONOMIC IMPACT STATEMENT AND REGULATORY FLEX-
IBILITY ANALYSIS FOR SMALL BUSINESSES, MICROBUSI-
NESSES, AND RURAL COMMUNITIES.

Mr. Allen has also determined that there will be no impact on
rural communities, small businesses, or microbusinesses as a
result of implementing these rule changes as proposed because
the rules do not involve those entities and, instead, concern ad-
ministrative reporting requirements applicable only to public pen-
sion systems. Therefore, no regulatory flexibility analysis, as
specified in Texas Government Code §2006.002 is required.

IMPACT ON LOCAL EMPLOYMENT OR ECONOMY

Mr. Allen has further determined there is no effect on local
economy for the first five years that the rule changes as pro-
posed are in effect because the rules do not involve factors
of local economy. Therefore, no economic impact statement,
local employment impact statement, nor regulatory flexibility
analysis is required under Texas Government Code §§2001.022
or 2001.024(a)(6).

COST TO REGULATED PERSONS (COST-IN/COST-OUT)

This rule proposal is not subject to Texas Government Code
§2001.0045, concerning increasing costs to regulated persons,
because, as described above in the public benefit and cost note,
the proposed amendments do not impose a cost on regulated
persons under Government Code §2001.024, including another
state agency, a special district, or a local government.

TAKINGS IMPACT ASSESSMENT

The Board has determined that no private real property inter-
ests are affected by this proposal and the proposal does not re-
strict or limit an owner's right to his or her property that would
otherwise exist in the absence of government action and, there-
fore, does not constitute a taking under Texas Government Code
§2007.043.

ENVIRONMENTAL RULE ANALYSIS

The rule changes as proposed are not "major environmental
rules" as defined by Government Code §2001.0225. The rule
changes as proposed are not specifically intended to protect the
environment or to reduce risks to human health from environ-
mental exposure. Therefore, a regulatory environmental analy-
sis is not required.

PUBLIC COMMENT

Written comments on the rule changes as proposed may be sub-
mitted to Anumeha Kumar, Executive Director, State Pension
Review Board, P.O. Box 13498, Austin, Texas 78711-3498 or
by electronic mail to pro@prb.texas.gov. Commenters are en-
couraged to include "rule comments" in the subject line of the
electronic mail. Comments will be accepted until 5:00 p.m. on
January 27, 2020, which is 31 days after publication in the Texas
Register.

STATUTORY AUTHORITY

The rule changes as proposed are authorized by the Texas Gov-
ernment Code, §802.201(a), which grants specific authority to
the Board to adopt rules for the conduct of its business; and

44 TexReg 8212 December 27, 2019 Texas Register


mailto:prb@prb.texas.gov

§801.211(e), which allows the Board to adopt rules to administer
and provide educational training programs under §801.211.

CROSS REFERENCE TO STATUTES AND CODES AF-
FECTED

The rule changes as proposed affect Texas Government Code,
Chapters 801 and 802, specifically §801.201(c), §801.211(b),
§801.202(1) and (2).

§601.1.  Purpose.

The rules and regulations of the State Pension Review Board are set
forth for the purpose of interpreting and implementing Texas [Vernon's
Texas Codes Anneotated;] Government Code, Title 8, Subtitle A, Chap-
ters 801 and 802 [Chapter 801], and to establish general policies.

The agency certifies that legal counsel has reviewed the pro-
posal and found it to be within the state agency's legal authority
to adopt.

Filed with the Office of the Secretary of State on December 12,
2019.

TRD-201904773

Anumeha Kumar

Executive Director

State Pension Review Board

Earliest possible date of adoption: January 26, 2020
For further information, please call: (512) 463-1736

¢ ¢ ¢

CHAPTER 604. HISTORICALLY
UNDERUTILIZED BUSINESS PROGRAM
40 TAC §604.1

The State Pension Review Board (PRB) proposes amendments
to §604.1 (relating to Historically Underutilized Businesses).

BACKGROUND AND PURPOSE

The rule changes are proposed as a result of the PRB's rule re-
view, which was conducted pursuant to Texas Government Code
§2001.039.

The proposed amendment to §604.1 (relating to Historically Un-
derutilized Businesses) changes the reference to the Comptrol-
ler of Public Accounts' updated rules relating to Historically Un-
derutilized Business.

FISCAL NOTE ON STATE AND LOCAL GOVERNMENTS

Westley Allen, Accountant, has determined that for each year of
the first five-year period the rule changes as proposed would be
in effect, there will be no foreseeable implications relating to cost
or revenues of state or local governments, under Government
Code §2001.024(a)(4), as a result of enforcing or administering
these rules.

PUBLIC BENEFIT/COST NOTE

Mr. Allen has determined, under Government Code
§2001.024(a)(5) that for each year of the first five-year period
the rule changes as proposed are in effect, the public benefit
anticipated as a result of enforcing the rule changes as
proposed would be updated and clarified rules. Also, the
amendment relating to PRS Reporting would enhance efficiency
in training reporting by public retirement system administrators.

GOVERNMENT GROWTH IMPACT STATEMENT

The Board has determined that during the first five years that the
rule changes as proposed will be in effect:

(1) the rule changes as proposed will not create or eliminate a
government program;

(2) implementation of the rule changes as proposed will not affect
the number of PRB employee positions;

(3) implementation of the rule changes as proposed will result in
no assumed change in future legislative appropriations;

(4) the rule changes as proposed will not affect fees paid to PRB;
(5) the rule changes as proposed will not create a new regulation;

(6) the rule changes as proposed will not expand, limit or repeal
existing regulations.

(7) the rule changes as proposed will not change the number of
individuals subject to the rule; and

(8) the rule changes as proposed will not positively or adversely
affect the state's economy.

ECONOMIC IMPACT STATEMENT AND REGULATORY FLEX-
IBILITY ANALYSIS FOR SMALL BUSINESSES, MICROBUSI-
NESSES, AND RURAL COMMUNITIES.

Mr. Allen has also determined that there will be no impact on
rural communities, small businesses, or microbusinesses as a
result of implementing these rule changes as proposed because
the rules do not involve those entities and, instead, concern ad-
ministrative reporting requirements applicable only to public pen-
sion systems. Therefore, no regulatory flexibility analysis, as
specified in Texas Government Code §2006.002 is required.

IMPACT ON LOCAL EMPLOYMENT OR ECONOMY

Mr. Allen has further determined there is no effect on local
economy for the first five years that the rule changes as pro-
posed are in effect because the rules do not involve factors
of local economy. Therefore, no economic impact statement,
local employment impact statement, nor regulatory flexibility
analysis is required under Texas Government Code §§2001.022
or 2001.024(a)(6).

COST TO REGULATED PERSONS (COST-IN/COST-OUT)

This rule proposal is not subject to Texas Government Code
§2001.0045, concerning increasing costs to regulated persons,
because, as described above in the public benefit and cost note,
the proposed amendments do not impose a cost on regulated
persons under Government Code §2001.024, including another
state agency, a special district, or a local government.

TAKINGS IMPACT ASSESSMENT

The Board has determined that no private real property inter-
ests are affected by this proposal and the proposal does not re-
strict or limit an owner's right to his or her property that would
otherwise exist in the absence of government action and, there-
fore, does not constitute a taking under Texas Government Code
§2007.043.

ENVIRONMENTAL RULE ANALYSIS

The rule changes as proposed are not "major environmental
rules" as defined by Government Code §2001.0225. The rule
changes as proposed are not specifically intended to protect the
environment or to reduce risks to human health from environ-
mental exposure. Therefore, a regulatory environmental analy-
sis is not required.

PROPOSED RULES December 27, 2019 44 TexReg 8213



PUBLIC COMMENT

Written comments on the rule changes as proposed may be sub-
mitted to Anumeha Kumar, Executive Director, State Pension
Review Board, P.O. Box 13498, Austin, Texas 78711-3498 or
by electronic mail to prb@prb.texas.gov. Commenters are en-
couraged to include "rule comments" in the subject line of the
electronic mail. Comments will be accepted until 5:00 p.m. on
January 27, 2020, which is 31 days after publication in the Texas
Register.

STATUTORY AUTHORITY

The rule changes as proposed are authorized by the Texas Gov-
ernment Code, §802.201(a), which grants specific authority to
the Board to adopt rules for the conduct of its business; and
§801.211(e), which allows the Board to adopt rules to administer
and provide educational training programs under §801.211.

CROSS REFERENCE TO STATUTES AND CODES AF-
FECTED

The rule changes as proposed affect Texas Government Code,
Chapters 801 and 802, specifically §801.201(c), §801.211(b),
§801.202(1) and (2).

§604.1.

In accordance with Texas Government Code §2161.003, the Board
adopts by reference the rules of the Comptroller of Public Accounts
in 34 TAC Part 1, Chapter 20, Subchapter D [B], Division 1, regarding
historically underutilized businesses. A copy of the Comptroller of
Public Accounts rules may be obtained by writing to: Executive Di-
rector, State Pension Review Board, P.O. Box 13498, Austin, Texas
78711-3498, or by accessing the website [Web site] of the Secretary of
State, at www.sos.texas.gov/tac/ [www:ses.state-tx-us/tae/].

The agency certifies that legal counsel has reviewed the pro-
posal and found it to be within the state agency's legal authority
to adopt.

Historically Underutilized Businesses.

Filed with the Office of the Secretary of State on December 12,
2019.

TRD-201904774

Anumeha Kumar

Executive Director

State Pension Review Board

Earliest possible date of adoption: January 26, 2020
For further information, please call: (512) 463-1736

¢ ¢ ¢

CHAPTER 605. STANDARDIZED FORM
40 TAC §605.3

The State Pension Review Board (PRB) proposes amendments
to §605.3 (relating to Submission of Forms).

BACKGROUND AND PURPOSE

The rule changes are proposed as a result of the PRB's rule re-
view, which was conducted pursuant to Texas Government Code
§2001.039.

The proposed amendment to §605.3 (relating to Submission of
Forms) makes technical changes to the language of the rule.

FISCAL NOTE ON STATE AND LOCAL GOVERNMENTS

Westley Allen, Accountant, has determined that for each year of
the first five-year period the rule changes as proposed would be
in effect, there will be no foreseeable implications relating to cost
or revenues of state or local governments, under Government
Code §2001.024(a)(4), as a result of enforcing or administering
these rules.

PUBLIC BENEFIT/COST NOTE

Mr. Allen has determined, under Government Code
§2001.024(a)(5) that for each year of the first five-year period
the rule changes as proposed are in effect, the public benefit
anticipated as a result of enforcing the rule changes as
proposed would be updated and clarified rules. Also, the
amendment relating to PRS Reporting would enhance efficiency
in training reporting by public retirement system administrators.

GOVERNMENT GROWTH IMPACT STATEMENT

The Board has determined that during the first five years that the
rule changes as proposed will be in effect:

(1) the rule changes as proposed will not create or eliminate a
government program;

(2) implementation of the rule changes as proposed will not affect
the number of PRB employee positions;

(3) implementation of the rule changes as proposed will result in
no assumed change in future legislative appropriations;

(4) the rule changes as proposed will not affect fees paid to PRB;
(5) the rule changes as proposed will not create a new regulation;

(6) the rule changes as proposed will not expand, limit or repeal
existing rules.

(7) the rule changes as proposed will not change the number of
individuals subject to the rule; and

(8) the rule changes as proposed will not positively or adversely
affect the state's economy.

ECONOMIC IMPACT STATEMENT AND REGULATORY FLEX-
IBILITY ANALYSIS FOR SMALL BUSINESSES, MICROBUSI-
NESSES, AND RURAL COMMUNITIES.

Mr. Allen has also determined that there will be no impact on
rural communities, small businesses, or microbusinesses as a
result of implementing these rule changes as proposed because
the rules do not involve those entities and, instead, concern ad-
ministrative reporting requirements applicable only to public pen-
sion systems. Therefore, no regulatory flexibility analysis, as
specified in Texas Government Code §2006.002 is required.

IMPACT ON LOCAL EMPLOYMENT OR ECONOMY

Mr. Allen has further determined there is no effect on local
economy for the first five years that the rule changes as pro-
posed are in effect because the rules do not involve factors
of local economy. Therefore, no economic impact statement,
local employment impact statement, nor regulatory flexibility
analysis is required under Texas Government Code §§2001.022
or 2001.024(a)(6).

COST TO REGULATED PERSONS (COST-IN/COST-OUT)

This rule proposal is not subject to Texas Government Code
§2001.0045, concerning increasing costs to regulated persons,
because, as described above in the public benefit and cost note,
the proposed amendments do not impose a cost on regulated

44 TexReg 8214 December 27, 2019 Texas Register


www.sos.state.tx.us/tac
www.sos.texas.gov/tac
mailto:prb@prb.texas.gov

persons under Government Code §2001.024, including another
state agency, a special district, or a local government.

TAKINGS IMPACT ASSESSMENT

The Board has determined that no private real property inter-
ests are affected by this proposal and the proposal does not re-
strict or limit an owner's right to his or her property that would
otherwise exist in the absence of government action and, there-
fore, does not constitute a taking under Texas Government Code
§2007.043.

ENVIRONMENTAL RULE ANALYSIS

The rule changes as proposed are not "major environmental
rules" as defined by Government Code §2001.0225. The rule
changes as proposed are not specifically intended to protect the
environment or to reduce risks to human health from environ-
mental exposure. Therefore, a regulatory environmental analy-
sis is not required.

PUBLIC COMMENT

Written comments on the rule changes as proposed may be sub-
mitted to Anumeha Kumar, Executive Director, State Pension
Review Board, P.O. Box 13498, Austin, Texas 78711-3498 or
by electronic mail to prb@prb.texas.gov. Commenters are en-
couraged to include "rule comments" in the subject line of the
electronic mail. Comments will be accepted until 5:00 p.m. on
January 27, 2020, which is 31 days after publication in the Texas
Register.

STATUTORY AUTHORITY

The rule changes as proposed are authorized by the Texas Gov-
ernment Code, §802.201(a), which grants specific authority to
the Board to adopt rules for the conduct of its business; and
§801.211(e), which allows the Board to adopt rules to administer
and provide educational training programs under §801.211.

CROSS REFERENCE TO STATUTES AND CODES AF-
FECTED

The rule changes as proposed affect Texas Government Code,
Chapters 801 and 802, specifically §801.201(c), §801.211(b),
§801.202(1) and (2).

$§605.3.  Submission of Forms.

(a) A public retirement system must complete and submit to
the Board the standard forms identified as Form numbers PRB-100,
PRB-200, PRB-300, PRB-400, and PRB-1000 in §605.1 of this chapter
relating to Adoption of Standard Forms.

(b) A [The] public retirement system must submit the forms
with the information the system submits to the Board as a result of
reviews and studies conducted by the Board regarding the actuarial
soundness and current financial condition of the fund the system ad-
ministers.

(c) Defined contribution plans as defined by Texas Govern-
ment Code, §802.001(1-a) and retirement systems consisting exclu-
sively of volunteers organized under the Texas Local Fire Fighters’ Re-
tirement Act as defined by Texas Government Code, §802.002(d), are
not required to submit to the Board Form PRB-1000.

The agency certifies that legal counsel has reviewed the pro-
posal and found it to be within the state agency's legal authority
to adopt.

Filed with the Office of the Secretary of State on December 12,
2019.

TRD-201904775

Anumeha Kumar

Executive Director

State Pension Review Board

Earliest possible date of adoption: January 26, 2020
For further information, please call: (512) 463-1736

¢ ¢ ¢

CHAPTER 607. PUBLIC RETIREMENT
SYSTEM MINIMUM EDUCATIONAL
TRAINING PROGRAM

SUBCHAPTER B. MINIMUM EDUCATIONAL
TRAINING REQUIREMENTS FOR TRUSTEES
AND SYSTEM ADMINISTRATORS

40 TAC §607.111

The State Pension Review Board (PRB) proposes the repeal
of §607.111 (relating to Minimum Educational Training Require-
ments for Current Trustees and System Administrators).

BACKGROUND AND PURPOSE

The rule changes are proposed as a result of the PRB's rule re-
view, which was conducted pursuant to Texas Government Code
§2001.039.

The proposed repeal of §607.111 (relating to Minimum Educa-
tional Training Requirements for Current Trustees and System
Administrators) would remove §607.111(a) - (c), as those sec-
tions expired December 31, 2016. Furthermore, this rule origi-
nally applied to public retirement system trustees and adminis-
trators who were already serving as of January 1, 2015. Since
those trustees and administrators have completed their initial
continuing education cycle, §607.111(d) is no longer necessary.
Subsection §607.111(e) is repealed, as the expiration date is no
longer relevant.

FISCAL NOTE ON STATE AND LOCAL GOVERNMENTS

Westley Allen, Accountant, has determined that for each year of
the first five-year period the rule changes as proposed would be
in effect, there will be no foreseeable implications relating to cost
or revenues of state or local governments, under Government
Code §2001.024(a)(4), as a result of enforcing or administering
these rules.

PUBLIC BENEFIT/COST NOTE

Mr. Allen has determined, under Government Code
§2001.024(a)(5) that for each year of the first five-year period
the rule changes as proposed are in effect, the public benefit
anticipated as a result of enforcing the rule changes as
proposed would be updated and clarified rules. Also, the
amendment relating to PRS Reporting would enhance efficiency
in training reporting by public retirement system administrators.

GOVERNMENT GROWTH IMPACT STATEMENT

The Board has determined that during the first five years that the
rule changes as proposed will be in effect:

(1) the rule changes as proposed will not create or eliminate a
government program;

(2) implementation of the rule changes as proposed will not affect
the number of PRB employee positions;

PROPOSED RULES December 27, 2019 44 TexReg 8215


mailto:prb@prb.texas.gov

(3) implementation of the rule changes as proposed will result in
no assumed change in future legislative appropriations;

(4) the rule changes as proposed rule will not affect fees paid to
PRB;

(5) the rule changes as proposed will not create a new regulation;

(6) the rule changes as proposed will not expand or limit ex-
isting regulations. The rule change as proposed would repeal
§607.111 (relating to Minimum Educational Training Require-
ments for Current Trustees and System Administrators) to
remove expired rules;

(7) the rule changes as proposed will not change the number of
individuals subject to the rule; and

(8) the rule changes as proposed will not positively or adversely
affect the state's economy.

ECONOMIC IMPACT STATEMENT AND REGULATORY FLEX-
IBILITY ANALYSIS FOR SMALL BUSINESSES, MICROBUSI-
NESSES, AND RURAL COMMUNITIES.

Mr. Allen has also determined that there will be no impact on
rural communities, small businesses, or micro-businesses as a
result of implementing these rule changes as proposed because
the rules do not involve those entities and, instead, concern ad-
ministrative reporting requirements applicable only to public pen-
sion systems. Therefore, no regulatory flexibility analysis, as
specified in Texas Government Code §2006.002, is required.

IMPACT ON LOCAL EMPLOYMENT OR ECONOMY

Mr. Allen has further determined there is no effect on local
economy for the first five years that the rule changes as pro-
posed are in effect because the rules do not involve factors of
local economy. Therefore, no economic impact statement, local
employment impact statement, nor regulatory flexibility analysis
is required under Texas Government Code §§ 2001.022 or
2001.024(a)(6).

COST TO REGULATED PERSONS (COST-IN/COST-OUT)

This rule proposal is not subject to Texas Government Code
§2001.0045, concerning increasing costs to regulated persons,
because, as described above in the public benefit and cost note,
the proposed amendments do not impose a cost on regulated
persons under Government Code §2001.024, including another
state agency, a special district, or a local government.

TAKINGS IMPACT ASSESSMENT

The Board has determined that no private real property inter-
ests are affected by this proposal and the proposal does not re-
strict or limit an owner's right to his or her property that would
otherwise exist in the absence of government action and, there-
fore, does not constitute a taking under Texas Government Code
§2007.043.

ENVIRONMENTAL RULE ANALYSIS

The rule changes as proposed are not "major environmental
rules" as defined by Government Code §2001.0225. The rule
changes as proposed are not specifically intended to protect the
environment or to reduce risks to human health from environ-
mental exposure. Therefore, a regulatory environmental analy-
sis is not required.

PUBLIC COMMENT

Written comments on the rule changes as proposed may be sub-
mitted to Anumeha Kumar, Executive Director, State Pension

Review Board, P.O. Box 13498, Austin, Texas 78711-3498 or
by electronic mail to pro@prb.texas.gov. Commenters are en-
couraged to include "rule comments" in the subject line of the
electronic mail. Comments will be accepted until 5:00 p.m. on
January 27, 2020, which is 31 days after publication in the Texas
Register.

STATUTORY AUTHORITY

The repeal is proposed under the authority of Texas Government
Code §801.201(a), which grants specific authority to the Board
to adopt rules for the conduct of its business, and §801.211(e),
which allows the Board to adopt rules to administer and provide
educational training programs under §801.211.

STATUTES AND CODES AFFECTED
No other statutes, articles or codes are affected by this proposal.

$607.111.  Minimum Educational Training Requirements for Current
Trustees and System Administrators.

The agency certifies that legal counsel has reviewed the pro-
posal and found it to be within the state agency's legal authority
to adopt.

Filed with the Office of the Secretary of State on December 12,
2019.

TRD-201904772

Anumeha Kumar

Executive Director

State Pension Review Board

Earliest possible date of adoption: January 26, 2020
For further information, please call: (512) 463-1736

¢ ¢ ¢

SUBCHAPTER D. COMPLIANCE WITH THE
MINIMUM TRAINING REQUIREMENTS
40 TAC §607.140

The State Pension Review Board (PRB) proposes amendments
to §607.140 (relating to PRS Reporting).

BACKGROUND AND PURPOSE

The rule changes are proposed as a result of the PRB's rule re-
view, which was conducted pursuant to Texas Government Code
§2001.039.

The proposed amendment to §607.140 (relating to PRS Report-
ing) changes the period and frequency for reporting training re-
ceived by administrators and trustees of public retirement sys-
tems. Currently, public retirement systems report training twice
a year through the submission of a standard form. The Minimum
Educational Training (MET) Program has been established for
several years, and at this time, most public retirement system
administrators and trustees are in a two-year continuing educa-
tion cycle for which they must report four hours of training over
the two-year cycle. Because of these reasons, and to assist
Texas public retirement systems by minimizing required report-
ing, the agency proposes annual rather than semiannual report-
ing of training.

The PRB also proposes to update this section to include informa-
tion currently collected on the standard MET forms concerning
trustee and administrator contact and term information. At the
time that the rules were originally adopted, the MET Program

44 TexReg 8216 December 27, 2019 Texas Register


mailto:prb@prb.texas.gov

was still in development. The update to the rule would reflect
the categories in the standard forms that the public retirement
systems are currently reporting to the PRB.

FISCAL NOTE ON STATE AND LOCAL GOVERNMENTS

Westley Allen, Accountant, has determined that for each year of
the first five-year period the rule changes as proposed would be
in effect, there will be no foreseeable implications relating to cost
or revenues of state or local governments, under Government
Code §2001.024(a)(4), as a result of enforcing or administering
these rules.

PUBLIC BENEFIT/COST NOTE

Mr. Allen has determined, under Government Code
§2001.024(a)(5) that for each year of the first five-year period
the rule changes as proposed are in effect, the public benefit
anticipated as a result of enforcing the rule changes as
proposed would be updated and clarified rules. Also, the
amendment relating to PRS Reporting would enhance efficiency
in training reporting by public retirement system administrators.

GOVERNMENT GROWTH IMPACT STATEMENT

The Board has determined that during the first five years that the
rule changes as proposed will be in effect:

(1) the rule changes as proposed will not create or eliminate a
government program;

(2) implementation of the rule changes as proposed will not affect
the number of PRB employee positions;

(3) implementation of the rule changes as proposed will result in
no assumed change in future legislative appropriations;

(4) the rule changes as proposed will not affect fees paid to PRB;
(5) the rule changes as proposed will not create a new regulation;

(6) the rule changes as proposed will not expand existing regu-
lations. The changes to §607.140 would limit the existing rule,
as it would change the required reporting by public retirement
systems to the PRB from twice a year to once annually.

(7) the rule changes as proposed will not change the number of
individuals subject to the rule; and

(8) the rule changes as proposed will not positively or adversely
affect the state's economy.

ECONOMIC IMPACT STATEMENT AND REGULATORY FLEX-
IBILITY ANALYSIS FOR SMALL BUSINESSES, MICROBUSI-
NESSES, AND RURAL COMMUNITIES.

Mr. Allen has also determined that there will be no impact on
rural communities, small businesses, or microbusinesses as a
result of implementing these rule changes as proposed because
the rules do not involve those entities and, instead, concern ad-
ministrative reporting requirements applicable only to public pen-
sion systems. Therefore, no regulatory flexibility analysis, as
specified in Texas Government Code §2006.002 is required.

IMPACT ON LOCAL EMPLOYMENT OR ECONOMY

Mr. Allen has further determined there is no effect on local
economy for the first five years that the rule changes as pro-
posed are in effect because the rules do not involve factors of
local economy. Therefore, no economic impact statement, local
employment impact statement, nor regulatory flexibility analysis
is required under Texas Government Code §§ 2001.022 or
2001.024(a)(6).

COST TO REGULATED PERSONS (COST-IN/COST-OUT)

This rule proposal is not subject to Texas Government Code
§2001.0045, concerning increasing costs to regulated persons,
because, as described above in the public benefit and cost note,
the proposed amendments do not impose a cost on regulated
persons under Government Code §2001.024, including another
state agency, a special district, or a local government.

TAKINGS IMPACT ASSESSMENT

The Board has determined that no private real property inter-
ests are affected by this proposal and the proposal does not re-
strict or limit an owner's right to his or her property that would
otherwise exist in the absence of government action and, there-
fore, does not constitute a taking under Texas Government Code
§2007.043.

ENVIRONMENTAL RULE ANALYSIS

The rule changes as proposed are not "major environmental
rules" as defined by Government Code §2001.0225. The rule
changes as proposed are not specifically intended to protect the
environment or to reduce risks to human health from environ-
mental exposure. Therefore, a regulatory environmental analy-
sis is not required.

PUBLIC COMMENT

Written comments on the rule changes as proposed may be sub-
mitted to Anumeha Kumar, Executive Director, State Pension
Review Board, P.O. Box 13498, Austin, Texas 78711-3498 or
by electronic mail to pro@prb.texas.gov. Commenters are en-
couraged to include "rule comments" in the subject line of the
electronic mail. Comments will be accepted until 5:00 p.m. on
January 27, 2020, which is 31 days after publication in the Texas
Register.

STATUTORY AUTHORITY

The rule changes as proposed are authorized by the Texas Gov-
ernment Code, §802.201(a), which grants specific authority to
the Board to adopt rules for the conduct of its business; and
§801.211(e), which allows the Board to adopt rules to administer
and provide educational training programs under §801.211.

CROSS REFERENCE TO STATUTES AND CODES AF-
FECTED

The rule changes as proposed affect Texas Government Code,
Chapters 801 and 802, specifically §801.201(c), §801.211(b),
§801.202(1) and (2).

$§607.140.  PRS Reporting.

(a) By September [Mareh 1 and Oeteber |1 of each year, a PRS
shall accurately report to the Board on behalf of its trustees and system
administrator the MET credit hours completed, as required by subchap-
ter B. A PRS shall submit the report [ reperts] on a form provided by
the Board.

(b) In the September [Mareh] 1 report, a PRS shall submit the
MET credit hours completed between August 1 [September 1] of the
previous year and July 31 [January 31] of the current year and any pre-
viously unreported training hours. [Ia the October 1 report; a PRS shall
submit the training hours completed between Eebruary 1 and August
31 of the eurrent year and any previously unreported training hours:|
A PRS shall be responsible for providing the following information
to the Board on an ongoing basis. A PRS shall notify the Board of
any changes in such information within 30 days after the date of the
changes. A PRS shall submit this information on a form provided by
the Board.

PROPOSED RULES December 27, 2019 44 TexReg 8217


mailto:prb@prb.texas.gov

(1) For each trustee: the name, [eceupation;] mailing ad-
dress, phone number, e-mail, position (such as Chair, Vice-Chair, Sec-

retary, etc.), trustee type (such as Active, Retired, Citizen, etc.), term
start date, [date of assuming or re-assuming the trustee's position on the

governing bedy;] the term length, and the term end date [expeeted last
date of service].

(2) Forasystem administrator: the name, title, phone num-
ber, e-mail, and date of hire. [business contact information; hiring date;
and the last date of employment:]

The agency certifies that legal counsel has reviewed the pro-

posal and found it to be within the state agency's legal authority
to adopt.

Filed with the Office of the Secretary of State on December 12,
2019.

TRD-201904776

Anumeha Kumar

Executive Director

State Pension Review Board

Earliest possible date of adoption: January 26, 2020
For further information, please call: (512) 463-1736

¢ ¢ ¢
TITLE 43. TRANSPORTATION

PART 1. TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF
TRANSPORTATION

CHAPTER 7. RAIL FACILITIES

The Texas Department of Transportation (department) proposes
amendments to §§7.30, 7.32 - 7.34, 7.38, and 7.42, concerning
Rail Safety, and §7.105, concerning Railroad Grade Crossings.

EXPLANATION OF PROPOSED AMENDMENTS

The department has transferred the Rail Safety program from
the Traffic Safety Division, formerly known as Traffic Operations
Division, to the Rail Division. The amendments to §§7.30, Defini-
tions, 7.32, Filing Requirements, 7.33, Reports of Accidents/In-
cidents, 7.34, Hazardous Materials - Telephonic Reports of In-
cidents, 7.38, Wayside Detector Map, List, or Chart, and 7.42,
Administrative Review, are needed to change the responsible
division in the rules from the Traffic Safety Division to the Rail
Division.

Amendments to §7.33 and §7.34 also delete the telephone num-
ber used for giving telephonic notice and refer to the telephone
number posted on the department's website. This change allows
for greater ease in locating the proper number.

Amendments to §7.105, Spur Tracks Crossing Existing High-
ways, delete the term "spur" from the phrase "spur tracks" so
that the rule applies to all railroad tracks that cross a highway or
road. This change is made to conform the text of the rule with
actual practice. "Spur" is not a defined term, and §7.105 has
been applied to all railroad crossings. A change is also made
to §7.105 to state that the person requesting the crossing is re-
sponsible for all initial construction costs, but not necessarily all
future costs as implied by the current rule. The initial construction
costs include active warning devices considered appropriate by
the department to assure the crossing meets applicable safety

requirements. The regulation does not address future costs, as
such costs are handled under applicable state and federal law.

FISCAL NOTE

Brian Ragland, Chief Financial Officer, has determined, in accor-
dance with Government Code, §2001.024(a)(4), that for each of
the first five years in which the proposed rules are in effect, there
will be no fiscal implications for state or local governments as a
result of enforcing or administering the rules. The funds at is-
sue are appropriated for a specific purpose and cannot be used
for any other purpose. The proposed amendments do not af-
fect how much the department spends, but rather broaden the
projects that the department can consider for the funding.

LOCAL EMPLOYMENT IMPACT STATEMENT

Peter D. Espy, Rail Division Director, has determined that there
will be no significant impact on local economies or overall em-
ployment as a result of enforcing or administering the proposed
rules and therefore, a local employment impact statement is not
required under Government Code, §2001.022.

PUBLIC BENEFIT

Mr. Espy has determined, as required by Government Code,
§2001.024(a)(5), that for each year of the first five years in which
the proposed rules are in effect, the public benefit anticipated as
a result of enforcing or administering the rules will be the consoli-
dation of the department's oversight of railroads into one division.
The Rail Division is already responsible for statewide rail trans-
portation planning, the oversight of state-owned or state-sub-
sidized rail operations and facilities, and the administration of
state and federal funds appropriated for specific rail projects.
The state will benefit from the consolidation of this expertise, in-
cluding rail safety, into one division. The amendments to §7.105
will benefit the public by permitting the department to better ad-
dress safety concerns by considering a wider range of projects
for available rail crossing improvement funding.

COSTS ON REGULATED PERSONS

Mr. Espy has also determined, as required by Government
Code, §2001.024(a)(5), that for each year of that period there
are no anticipated economic costs for persons, including a state
agency, special district, or local government, required to comply
with the proposed rules and therefore, Government Code,
§2001.0045, does not apply to this rulemaking.

ECONOMIC IMPACT STATEMENT AND REGULATORY FLEX-
IBILITY ANALYSIS

There will be no adverse economic effect on small businesses,
micro-businesses, or rural communities, as defined by Gov-
ernment Code, §2006.001, and therefore, an economic impact
statement and regulatory flexibility analysis are not required
under Government Code §2006.002.

GOVERNMENT GROWTH IMPACT STATEMENT

Mr. Espy has considered the requirements of Government Code,
§2001.0221 and expects that the proposed rules will have no
effect on government growth. He anticipates that during the first
five years that the rule would be in effect:

(1) it would not create or eliminate a government program;

(2) its implementation would not require the creation of new em-
ployee positions or the elimination of existing employee posi-
tions;

44 TexReg 8218 December 27, 2019 Texas Register



TAB 3A



Actuarial Valuation Report
February 6, 2020

Summary of Key Statistics

Assets and Liabilities

Current Actuarial Valuation
2/6/2020 10/17/2019 Prior Actuarial Valuation
Funded Ratio 77.1% 77.3% 77.5%

Market Value of Assets (MVA) | $ 282,168,089,652 | $ 279,036,012,216 | $ 280,464,593,836
Actuarial Value of Assets (AVA) | $ 289,120,557,490 | $ 281,857,082,849 | $ 277,417,689,859
Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL) | $ 375,230,179,844 | $ 364,536,475,092 | $ 358,077,225,022

Unfunded Actuarial Accrued
Liability (UAAL = AAL - AVA) $ 86,109,622,354 | $ 82,679,392,243 | $ 80,659,535,163
Plan Amortization Periods
Current Actuarial Valuation
2/6/2020 10/17/2019 Prior Actuarial Valuation
>= 40 years, but not infinite 13 17 16
> 30 years, < 40 years 10 12 15
> 25 years, <= 30 years 16 15 19
>= 10 years, <= 25 years 35 34 29
> 0 years, < 10 years 7 8 9
0 years 5 5 6
Total Plans Registered 99 99 99
Plan Discount Rates
Current Actuarial Valuation
2/6/2020 10/17/2019 Prior Actuarial Valuation

>= 8%
> 7.50%, < 8.00%

> 7.00%, < 7.50% 19 18 19
7.00% 20 17 12

> 6.50%, < 7.00% 5 6 8
<=6.50% 7 6 4

Total Plans Registered 99 99 99

Current Actuarial Valuation

2/6/2020 10/17/2019 Prior Actuarial Valuation
Mean 7.29% 7.33% 7.41%
Standard Deviation 0.45% 0.46% 0.49%
Median 7.40% 7.50% 7.50%
Liability Weighted Mean 7.30% 7.30% 7.31%
Liability Weighted Median 7.25% 7.25% 7.25%




THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK



Actuarial Valuation Report
February 6, 2020

Current Actuarial Valuation

Prior Actuarial Valuation

Plan Effective Market Value Actuarial Value Unfunded Actuarial UAAL Ef:,er::irve
Status Effective Discount Amort Funded of Assets of Assets Accrued Liability as % of Effective Amort Funded
Plan Name 1) Date Rate Period (2) Ratio % (MVA) (AVA) (UAAL = AAL - AVA) Payroll Date Period (2) Ratio %
Employees Retirement System of Texas Active 8/31/2019 7.50% 70.5 $ 27,351,224157 | $  28,060,120,223 | $ 11,741,238,455 | 168.10% 8/31/2018 70.2
Law Enforcement & Custodial Off Sup. Ret. Fund Active 8/31/2019 7.50% 65.3 $ 943,622,645 | $ 968,129,751 | $ 514,505,451 31.29% 8/31/2018 65.6
Austin Police Retirement System Active | 12/31/2018 7.25% 58.1 $ 718,519,641 | $ 807,978,988 | $ 581,681,628 | 342.08% | 12/31/2017 35.0 65.8
Judicial Retirement System of Texas Plan Two Active 8/31/2019 7.50% 87.5 $ 456,192,249 | $ 467,787,034 | $ 66,776,712 73.36% 8/31/2018 69.0 91.7
Irving Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active | 12/31/2017 7.50% 716 $ 213,960,011 | $ 207,493,775 ( $ 82,260,569 | 252.13% | 12/31/2015 46.5 74.9
Beaumont Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active | 12/31/2018 7.50% 55.8 $ 105,769,426 | $ 111,769,628 | $ 88,543,261 | 457.43% | 12/31/2016 104.0 67.5
IMidland Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active | 12/31/2017 60.9 $ 89,023,115 | $ 91,856,742 | $ 58,952,399 | 362.54% | 12/31/2015 44.7 65.8
Wichita Falls Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active 1/1/2018 57.7 $ 51,317,643 | $ 51,317,643 | $ 37,628,438 | 316.54% 1/1/2017 49.4 62.5
Longview Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active | 12/31/2018 39.9 $ 41,560,527 | $ 41,560,527 | $ 62,740,191 | 469.68% | 12/31/2017 40.2 46.1
Conroe Fire Fighters' Retirement Fund Active | 12/31/2018 58.1 $ 24,501,501 | $ 26,951,651 $ 19,476,502 | 209.84% | 12/31/2017 39.0 62.0
University Park Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Closed | 12/31/2016 44.0 $ 9,448,371 | $ 10,146,879 | $ 12,936,513 | 387.63% 1/1/2015 53.7 45.8
Orange Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active 1/1/2019 46.3 $ 7,961,733 | $ 7,961,733 | $ 9,241,746 | 360.64% 1/1/2017 69.3 49.9
Atlanta Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active | 12/31/2018 80.0 $ 3,801,042 | $ 4,181,146 | $ 1,043,126 | 184.83% | 12/31/2016 284 82.1
Odessa Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active 1/1/2019 39.3 $ 39,242,821 | $ 43,886,792 | $ 67,827,042 | 569.08% 1/1/2018 471 43.1
Harlingen Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active 9/30/2017 66.1 $ 31,224,379 | $ 31,224,379 | $ 16,040,541 | 248.99% | 12/31/2015 63.1
[Marshall Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active | 12/31/2018 36.7 $ 7,278,840 | $ 7,278,840 | $ 12,576,960 | 429.30% | 12/31/2016 56.4 42.0
Lubbock Fire Pension Fund Active | 12/31/2018 69.3 $ 186,484,535 | $ 199,266,188 | $ 88,127,819 | 258.52% | 12/31/2016 B815) 726
Cleburne Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active | 12/31/2018 59.6 $ 19,362,808 | $ 21,731,172 | $ 14,724,082 | 324.13% | 12/31/2016 28.8 66.7
Dallas Employees' Retirement Fund Active | 12/31/2018 80.0 $ 3,265,402,000 | $ 3,620,319,000 | $ 906,677,000 | 213.98% | 12/31/2017 47.0 82.3
Plainview Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active | 12/31/2017 7.50% 44.8 377 $ 6,154,425 | $ 6,219,603 | $ 10,290,086 | 517.48% | 12/31/2015 31.6 37.3
Fort Worth Employees' Retirement Fund Active | 12/31/2018 7.00% 44.0 52.4 $ 2,147,041,319 | $ 2,324,698,216 | $ 2,113,627,945 | 435.50% | 12/31/2017 57.8
Amarillo Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active | 12/31/2017 7.50% 43.5 81.5 $ 171,845,402 | $ 165,443,481 | § 37,625,269 | 185.69% | 12/31/2015 345 81.8
Laredo Firefighters Retirement System Active 9/30/2018 7.50% 43.0 59.9 $ 154,813,837 | $ 155,509,979 | $ 104,273,436 | 282.55% 9/30/2016 28.0 59.3
IMcAllen Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active 10/1/2016 414 69.1 $ 44,759,055 | $ 48,260,416 | $ 21,571,433 | 187.25% 10/1/2014 29.0 70.8
Texas City Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active | 12/31/2018 411 45.9 $ 14,389,108 | $ 15,828,019 | $ 18,643,387 | 348.98% | 12/31/2016 28.0 50.4
Greenville Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active | 12/31/2018 40.7 46.6 $ 12,254,104 | $ 13,479,514 | § 15,438,433 | 368.76% | 12/31/2016 55.0 47.7
Killeen Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active 9/30/2018 7.50% 39.8 69.4 $ 43,947,221 | $ 42,970,465 | $ 18,990,872 | 131.39% 9/30/2016 22.8 69.7
Brownwood Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active | 12/31/2017 7.25% 38.6 45.0 $ 4,158,090 | $ 4,165,427 | $ 5,085,187 | 263.23% | 12/31/2015 36.1 44.6
Big Spring Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active 1/1/2019 38.3 53.2 $ 10,902,959 | $ 11,874,904 | § 10,439,548 | 245.07% 1/1/2017 36.2 54.9

This report is a compilation of pension data reported by retirement systems in their most recent AVs, sorted by amortization period.




Actuarial Valuation Report
February 6, 2020

Current Actuarial Valuation

Prior Actuarial Valuation

Plan Effective Market Value Actuarial Value Unfunded Actuarial UAAL Ef:,er::i:/e
Status Effective Discount Amort Funded of Assets of Assets Accrued Liability as % of Effective Amort Funded
Plan Name 1) Date Rate Period (2) Ratio % (MVA) (AVA) (UAAL = AAL - AVA) Payroll Date Period (2) Ratio %
Dallas Police & Fire Pension System-Combined Plan Active 1/1/2019 7.25% 38.0 48.1 $ 2,041,914,130 | $ 2,161,899,662 | $ 2,332,922,842 | 642.47% 1/1/2018 45.0 47.7
Paris Firefighters' Relief & Retirement Fund Active | 12/31/2018 7.25% 321 30.5 $ 4,152,310 | $ 4,663,640 | $ 10,625,400 | 382.48% | 12/31/2016 41.9 35.6
Austin Employees' Retirement System Active | 12/31/2018 7.50% 32.0 67.6 $ 2,461,383,436 | $ 2,695,388,390 | $ 1,294,171,747 | 194.81% | 12/31/2017 30.0 68.3
Abilene Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active 10/1/2017 31.9 55.7 $ 57,456,309 | $ 59,425,441 | $ 47,286,729 | 341.79% 10/1/2015 315 56.6
San Angelo Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active | 12/31/2017 31.3 64.9 $ 66,618,737 | $ 66,067,685 | $ 35,702,196 | 291.10% | 12/31/2015 38.5 65.7
Lufkin Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active | 12/31/2018 30.7 48.8 $ 15,659,035 | $ 17,334,531 | § 18,178,233 | 349.28% | 12/31/2016 331 46.7
El Paso Police Pension Fund Active 1/1/2018 30.5 78.3 $ 870,658,507 | $ 843,966,894 | $ 233,937,349 | 284.50% 1/1/2016 33.0 81.1
Port of Houston Authority Retirement Plan Closed 8/1/2019 6.50% 30.0 92.9 $ 184,407,686 | $ 184,407,686 | $ 14,001,387 46.05% 8/1/2018 30.0 98.4
Galveston Employees' Retirement Plan for Police (3) Active 1/1/2019 7.00% 30.0 34.0 $ 17,856,397 | $ 19,642,037 | $ 38,211,442 | 315.26% 1/1/2018 8515) 39.3
Fort Worth Employees' Retirement Fund Staff Plan Active | 12/31/2018 7.00% 30.0 68.9 $ 4,916,880 | $ 5,189,502 | $ 2,341,994 | 156.69% | 12/31/2017 32.0 77.2
Corpus Christi Fire Fighters' Retirement System Active | 12/31/2018 7.50% 29.8 60.2 $ 139,811,086 | $ 151,136,552 | $ 99,896,125 | 305.70% | 12/31/2016 23.1 62.1
Teacher Retirement System of Texas Active 8/31/2019 7.25% 29.0 76.4 $ 157,978,199,075 | $ 160,233,295,324 | $ 49,486,391,723 | 104.37% 8/31/2018 87.0 76.9
Houston Firefighters' Relief & Retirement Fund Active 7/1/2018 7.00% 29.0 814 $ 4,170,354,000 | $ 4,027,079,000 | $ 921,054,000 | 337.77% 7/1/12017 30.0 80.5
Houston Municipal Employees Pension System Active 7/1/2018 7.00% 29.0 57.7 $ 2,988,864,000 | $ 2,874,585,000 | $ 2,107,423,000 | 335.41% 71112017 30.0 56.4
CPS Energy Pension Plan Active 1/1/2018 7.25% 29.0 82.6 $ 1,627,840,308 | $ 1,574,817,503 | $ 332,296,648 | 122.42% 1/1/2017 30.0 80.8
Corsicana Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active | 12/31/2016 7.00% 28.9 53.1 $ 8,344,317 | $ 9,225,595 | $ 8,135,345 | 211.44% | 12/31/2014 242 53.5
Temple Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active 9/30/2018 28.6 73.0 $ 44,243,769 | $ 44,233,922 | § 16,392,673 | 181.02% 9/30/2016 28.4 751
Houston Police Officers' Pension System Active 7/1/2019 28.0 81.7 $ 5,674,647,000 | $ 5,434,933,000 | $ 1,220,210,000 | 268.36% 7/1/12018 29.0 79.4
El Paso Firemen's Pension Fund Active 1/1/2018 28.0 77.8 $ 601,790,721 | $ 581,448,450 | $ 166,117,632 | 265.17% 1/1/2016 26.0 79.2
Sweetwater Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active | 12/31/2016 275 70.0 $ 7,826,879 | $ 8,437,694 | $ 3,617,210 | 229.12% | 12/31/2014 58.8 69.0
Galveston Firefighter's Relief & Retirement Fund Active | 12/31/2017 26.8 69.2 $ 44,651,640 | $ 44,330,845 | $ 19,767,545 | 248.42% | 12/31/2016 68.0
University Health System Pension Plan Active 1/1/2018 7.00% 26.0 70.7 $ 363,779,588 | $ 347,115,543 | $ 143,589,317 39.14% 1/11/2017 27.0 67.5
Tyler Firefighters' Relief & Retirement Fund Active | 12/31/2017 7.50% 255 76.2 $ 70,141,881 | $ 69,570,894 | $ 21,757,655 | 188.81% | 12/31/2015 21.6 75.9
Dallas Co. Hospital Dist. Retirement Income Plan Active 1/1/2019 7.00% 25.0 715 $ 948,034,161 | $ 1,026,482,932 | $ 408,636,930 61.92% 1/1/2018 26.0 734
San Antonio Metropolitan Transit Retirement Plan Active 10/1/2016 7.50% 25.0 63.0 $ 246,002,425 | $ 245,943,565 | $ 144,269,692 | 143.75% 10/1/2015 26.0 60.4
Houston MTA Workers Union Pension Plan Closed 1/1/2019 6.50% 24.0 62.5 $ 254,400,189 | $ 273,167,539 | $ 163,748,117 | 173.09% 1/1/2018 25.0 66.3
Houston MTA Non-Union Pension Plan Closed 1/1/2019 6.50% 24.0 61.8 $ 162,565,041 | $ 175,433,638 | $ 108,676,891 | 266.71% 1/1/2018 25.0 65.6
Texas Emergency Services Retirement System Active 8/31/2018 240 83.4 $ 115,863,894 | $ 114,668,709 | $ 22,845,636 N/A 8/31/2016 30.0 80.2
Port Arthur Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active | 12/31/2017 7.50% 237 742 $ 49,890,603 | $ 48,844,714 | § 16,966,441 182.37% | 12/31/2015 18.3 78.0

This report is a compilation of pension data reported by retirement systems in their most recent AVs, sorted by amortization period.




Actuarial Valuation Report
February 6, 2020

Current Actuarial Valuation

Prior Actuarial Valuation

Plan Effective Market Value Actuarial Value Unfunded Actuarial UAAL Ef:,er::i:/e
Status Effective Discount Amort Funded of Assets of Assets Accrued Liability as % of Effective Amort Funded
Plan Name 1) Date Rate Period (2) Ratio % (MVA) (AVA) (UAAL = AAL - AVA) Payroll Date Period (2) Ratio %
Irving Supplemental Benefit Plan Active 1/1/2019 6.75% 23.0 735 $ 58,112,359 | $ 63,087,137 | $ 22,787,104 20.97% 1/1/2018 32.0 725
Galveston Wharves Pension Plan Closed 1/1/2019 7.25% 220 76.1 $ 12,411,631 | $ 12,411,631 | $ 3,906,450 | 255.74% 1/1/2018 23.0 83.8
San Benito Firemen Relief & Retirement Fund Active 9/30/2017 7.50% 21.8 60.7 $ 3,503,753 | $ 3,503,753 | $ 2,270,845 | 152.30% | 12/31/2015 21.7 60.5
Capital MTA Bargaining Frozen 1/1/2019 7.00% 20.0 50.6 $ 29,894,535 | $ 32,489,724 | $ 31,669,611 N/A 1/1/2018 21.0 51.9
Capital MTA Admin Employees (4) Active 1/1/2019 6.75% 20.0 76.9 $ 29,770,966 | $ 31,697,978 | $ 9,500,815 41.75% 1/1/2017 20.0 726
Employees of Brownsville Navigation District Active 1/1/2018 6.15% 20.0 54.3 $ 5,082,503 | $ 4,948,651 | $ 4,164,072 95.32% 1/1/2017 19.8 52.8
Sweeny Community Hospital Closed 1/1/2019 7.00% 19.0 86.4 $ 3,023,456 | $ 3,191,805 | $ 504,209 57.17% 1/1/2018 20.0 85.8
Waxahachie Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active 10/1/2018 7.00% 18.9 731 $ 17,428,039 | $ 17,428,039 | $ 6,419,351 131.82% 10/1/2016 254 66.9
Texas Municipal Retirement System (5) Active | 12/31/2018 6.75% 18.2 87.1 $ 27,683,629439|$  29,385,096,235 | $ 4,346,354,832 65.22% 12/31/2017 18.8 87.4
Lower Colorado River Authority Retirement Plan Closed 1/1/2019 7.25% 18.0 70.3 $ 388,300,639 | $ 432,019,765 | $ 182,885,080 | 171.78% 1/1/2018 19.0 74.0
Austin Fire Fighters Relief & Retirement Fund Active | 12/31/2018 - 17.9 88.0 $ 909,117,796 | $ 954,574,840 | $ 129,958,768 | 141.13% | 12/31/2017 17.0 88.3
Galveston Employees' Retirement Fund Active | 12/31/2018 7.25% 16.8 76.6 $ 48,514,328 | $ 52,374,631 | $ 15,972,792 61.29% 12/31/2017 11.6 79.6
Harris County Hospital District Pension Plan (6) Closed 1/1/2019 7.00% 16.4 74.0 $ 635,273,806 | $ 679,205,807 | $ 239,033,271 145.90% 1/1/2018 16.9 75.5
DFW Airport Board Active 1/1/2019 7.25% 16.0 83.7 $ 493,301,369 | $ 511,070,267 | $ 99,847,700 | 187.49% 1/1/2018 17.0 82.4
DFW Airport Board DPS Active 1/1/2019 7.25% 16.0 78.5 $ 188,058,481 | $ 194,887,387 | $ 53,283,221 167.45% 1/1/2018 17.0 7.7
Denison Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active | 12/31/2017 7.50% 15.8 773 $ 17,725,070 | $ 17,524,049 | $ 5,159,287 | 155.45% | 12/31/2015 271 744
Corpus Christi Regional Transportation Authority Active 1/1/2019 7.40% 15.0 91.8 $ 33,900,179 | $ 37,050,795 | $ 3,318,026 31.10% 1/1/2018 6.0 98.3
Texarkana Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active | 12/31/2017 - 15.0 86.3 $ 34,819,005 | $ 35,250,649 | $ 5,584,452 | 123.72% | 12/31/2015 16.3 87.4
Denton Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active | 12/31/2017 6.75% 14.6 82.1 $ 85,388,283 | $ 84,410,626 | $ 18,435,302 | 104.60% | 12/31/2015 31.6 80.8
Weslaco Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active 9/30/2018 7.25% 14.1 72.0 $ 11,577,179 | $ 11,412,283 | § 4,440,304 | 101.90% 9/30/2016 141 68.5
City of EI Paso Employees Retirement Trust Active 9/1/2018 7.50% 14.0 80.3 $ 820,416,288 | $ 822,926,030 | $ 201,453,137 | 120.47% 9/1/12016 17.0 79.2
San Antonio Fire & Police Pension Fund Active 1/1/2019 7.25% 13.9 87.9 $ 3,015,158,660 | $ 3,297,010,974 | $ 452,239,886 | 134.97% 1/1/2018 9.9 90.3
Brazos River Authority Retirement Plan Frozen 3/1/2019 6.50% 13.0 61.7 $ 19,851,827 | $ 20,372,827 | $ 12,641,846 N/A 3/1/2018 14.0 66.4
DART Employees Closed | 10/1/2018 6.75% 12.8 79.2 $ 186,844,635 | $ 185,524,973 | $ 48,651,130 | 341.24% 10/1/2017 11.8 78.9
Texas County & District Retirement System (5) Active | 12/31/2018 12.6 88.5 $  29,260,546,258 | $  30,553,846,707 | $ 3,987,324,758 57.61% 12/31/2017 12.3 89.1
Guadalupe Regional Medical Center Active 1/1/2019 7.00% 12.0 96.5 $ 67,977,745 | $ 72,252,517 | $ 2,641,934 9.48% 1/1/2018 3.0 98.4
Nacogdoches County Hospital District Active 7/1/2017 7.25% 11.9 82.0 $ 46,841,434 | $ 46,180,125 | $ 10,166,263 31.73% 7/1/12015 9.8 84.3
Dallas Police & Fire Pension System-Supplemental (4) Active 1/1/2019 7.25% 10.0 57.6 $ 18,317,893 | $ 18,317,893 | § 13,506,880 | 2050.36% 1/1/2018 10.0 51.5
Northeast Medical Center Hospital Retirement Plan (4) Frozen 7/1/2018 7.50% 10.0 83.8 $ 9,503,069 | $ 9,503,069 | $ 1,831,425 N/A 71112017 10.0 83.6

This report is a compilation of pension data reported by retirement systems in their most recent AVs, sorted by amortization period.




Actuarial Valuation Report
February 6, 2020

Current Actuarial Valuation

Prior Actuarial Valuation

Plan Effective Market Value Actuarial Value Unfunded Actuarial UAAL Ef:,er::i:/e

Status Effective Discount Amort Funded of Assets of Assets Accrued Liability as % of Effective Amort Funded
Plan Name 1) Date Rate Period (2) Ratio % (MVA) (AVA) (UAAL = AAL - AVA) Payroll Date Period (2) Ratio %
Colorado River Municipal Water Dist. (6) Active 1/1/2019 6.25% 8.5 83.3 $ 9,251,681 | $ 9,251,681 | $ 1,853,616 50.95% 1/1/2018 7.4 93.8
Guadalupe-Blanco River Authority Frozen 1/1/2018 7.00% 7.6 85.6 $ 30,638,650 | $ 30,456,456 | $ 5,140,374 79.69% 1/1/2017 8.7 84.9
Refugio County Memorial Hospital Frozen 11/1/2018 7.00% 7.0 97.8 $ 1,834,666 | $ 1,834,666 | $ 41,529 1.42% 11/1/2017 0.0 1111
JPS - Tarrant County Hospital District Active 10/1/2017 7.25% 3.8 95.1 $ 257,037,806 | $ 246,203,390 | $ 12,785,570 4.99% 10/1/2016 4.8 93.6
The Woodlands Firefighters' Retirement System Active 1/1/2019 7.00% 3.6 97.8 $ 32,836,586 | $ 32,836,586 | $ 726,156 6.08% 1/1/2018 0.0 106.0
Travis County ESD #6 FRRF Active 12/31/2017 7.00% 3.3 87.2 $ 19,688,064 | $ 19,010,963 | $ 2,790,432 48.27% 12/31/2015 5.8 71.6
Northwest Texas Healthcare System Retirement Plan Frozen 10/1/2017 7.50% 3.0 83.9 $ 21,800,110 | $ 21,561,210 | $ 4,130,838 N/A 10/1/2016 5.0 73.0
Plano Retirement Security Plan Active 12/31/2017 7.00% 0.0 100.8 $ 148,516,307 | $ 144,040,464 | $ (1,131,618) -0.77% 12/31/2015 19.0 99.2
Citizens Medical Center Active 3/1/2019 7.00% 0.0 110.4 $ 108,407,575 | $ 108,340,272 | $ (10,217,364)| -17.69% 3/1/2018 0.0 1071
Arlington Employees Deferred Income Plan Active 6/30/2019 5.00% 0.0 107.2 $ 2,999,905 | $ 2,999,905 | $ (200,717) -5.33% 6/30/2018 0.0 106.2
Anson General Hospital Frozen 7/1/2017 7.50% 0.0 123.2 $ 1,930,866 | $ 1,905,642 | $ (359,075)| -161.25% 7/1/2016 0.0 119.9
El Paso Firemen & Policemen's Pension Staff Plan Active 1/1/2018 - 0.0 113.1 $ 419,843 | $ 397,086 | $ (46,068)] -6.31% 1/1/2016 0.0 282.9
Grand Totals: 771% | $ 282,168,089,652 | $ 289,120,557,490 | $  86,109,622,354 77.5%

Notes

(1) Plan status indicates whether a plan is active (admitting new hires), closed to new hires (but still accruing benefits), or frozen (not accruing benefits).

(2) The effective amortization period is the time it would take to theoretically eliminate the UAAL assuming no future gains or losses and taking into account both the plan's stated and historical contribution policy.

(3) Current amortization period reflects an employer contribution increase to 14.83% of payroll as of February 17, 2018.

(4) Reported amortization period is based on an open amortization funding policy.

(5) Amortization period is calculated using system-wide aggregate UAAL and payroll amounts.

(6) Amortization period is calculated by the PRB.

This report is a compilation of pension data reported by retirement systems in their most recent AVs, sorted by amortization period.




THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK



AV Supplemental Report
February 6, 2020

(Dollars in Millions)

(a)

(b)

(a) - (b)

(b)/ (a)

Total Pension Fiduciary Net Pension NPL NPL at Disc. | NPL -1% 10 Year Expected
Fiscal Year | Discount | Liability (TPL) Net Position Liability (NPL) | Funded Rate -1% Funded | Net Return | Depletion
Plan Name End Rate (1) (2) (3) Ratio % (4) Ratio % (5) Date
Abilene Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 9/30/2018 8.00% | $ 109.22 | $ 5713 $ 52.09 52.3 $ 63.92 47.2 6.50% N/A
Amarillo Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 12/31/2018 7.50% | $ 21124 | $ 162.77 | $ 48.47 771 $ 73.90 68.8 9.45% N/A
Anson General Hospital 6/30/2018 7.50% | $ 154 § 195 | $ 041) 1267 | $ (0.28)] 116.6 5.94% N/A
Arlington Employees Deferred Income Plan 6/30/2018 5.00% | $ 266 | $ 282 | % (0.16)] 106.1 $ 0.10 96.6 3.62% N/A
Atlanta Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 12/31/2018 740% | $ 5301| $ 3801 $ 1.50 71.8 $ 2.13 64.1 6.93% N/A
Austin Employees' Retirement System 12/31/2018 750% | $ 3,989.56 | $ 2,461.38 | $ 1,5628.18 61.7 $ 2,011.39 55.0 8.60% N/A
Austin Fire Fighters Relief & Retirement Fund 12/31/2018 7.70% | $ 1,107.22 | $ 909.12 | $ 198.10 82.1 $ 304.09 74.9 8.37% N/A
Austin Police Retirement System 12/31/2018 470% | $ 1,904.95 | $ 71852 | $ 1,186.43 37.7 $ 1,475.73 32.7 5.26% 2041
Beaumont Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 12/31/2018 6.61% | $ 196.88 | $ 105.77 | $ 91.11 53.7 $ 108.45 49.4 7.58% 2058
Big Spring Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 12/31/2018 775% | $ 2238 | $ 1090 | $ 11.49 48.7 $ 14.31 43.2 7.22% N/A
Brazos River Authority Retirement Plan 2/28/2019 6.50% | $ 3283 | $ 19.85| $ 12.98 60.5 $ 16.44 54.7 8.09% N/A
Brownwood Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 12/31/2018 725% | $ 957 | % 3831 $ 5.74 40.1 $ 6.96 35.5 4.31% N/A
CPS Energy Pension Plan 12/31/2018 7.25% | $ 1,982.35| $ 1,522.05 | $ 460.30 76.8 $ 710.60 68.2 9.38% N/A
Capital MTA Admin Employees 12/31/2018 554% | $ 4926 | $ 29.77 | $ 19.49 60.4 $ 27.18 52.3 8.54% 2054
Capital MTA Bargaining 12/31/2018 7.00% | $ 64.16 | $ 2989 | $ 34.26 46.6 $ 40.40 42.5 7.40% N/A
Citizens Medical Center 2/28/2018 7.25% | $ 95.70 | $ 105.54 | $ (9.85) 1103 | $ 3.52 96.8 6.81% N/A
City of El Paso Employees Retirement Trust 8/31/2018 7.50% | $ 1,024.38 | $ 81997 | $ 204.41 80.0 $ 322.64 71.8 8.77% N/A
Cleburne Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 12/31/2018 7.35% | $ 36.46 | $ 19.36 | $ 17.09 53.1 $ 21.26 47.7 7.48% N/A
Colorado River Municipal Water Dist. 12/31/2018 6.25% | $ 1081 | $ 925| $ 1.55 85.6 $ 2.28 80.2 8.57% N/A
Conroe Fire Fighters' Retirement Fund 12/31/2018 551% | $ 64.01| $ 2450 | $ 39.51 38.3 $ 49.83 33.0 4.56% 2054
Corpus Christi Fire Fighters' Retirement System 12/31/2018 7.75% | $ 24393 | $ 139.81 1 $ 104.12 57.3 $ 129.69 51.9 8.26% N/A
Corpus Christi Regional Transportation Authority 12/31/2018 740% | $ 4037 | $ 3390 | $ 6.47 84.0 $ 11.20 75.2 9.09% N/A
Corsicana Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 12/31/2018 7.00% | $ 18.01| $ 856 | $ 9.45 47.5 $ 11.89 41.9 6.49% N/A
DART Employees 9/30/2018 6.75% | $ 23418 | $ 186.85 | $ 47.33 79.8 $ 70.95 72.5 6.58% N/A
DFW Airport Board 12/31/2018 7.25% | $ 61092 | $ 49330 | $ 117.62 80.7 $ 201.34 71.0 8.30% N/A
DFW Airport Board DPS 12/31/2018 7.25% | $ 24817 | $ 188.06 | $ 60.11 75.8 $ 97.43 65.9 8.30% N/A
Dallas Co. Hospital Dist. Retirement Income Plan 12/31/2018 7.00% $ 143512 | $ 94768 | $ 487 .44 66.0 $ 686.03 58.0 4.06% N/A
Dallas Employees' Retirement Fund 12/31/2018 598% | $ 5547.96 | $ 3,28231 | $ 2,265.65 59.2 $ 3,006.85 52.2 9.72% 2048
Dallas Police & Fire Pension System-Combined Plan 12/31/2018 7.25% $ 450167 $ 204191 $ 2,459.76 454 $ 2,953.14 40.9 3.30% N/A
Dallas Police & Fire Pension System-Supplemental 12/31/2018 725% | $ 3183 | $ 18321 $ 13.51 57.5 $ 16.36 52.8 3.30% N/A
Denison Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 12/31/2018 750% | $ 2329 $ 16.59 | $ 6.70 71.2 $ 9.31 64.0 8.38% N/A
Denton Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 12/31/2018 6.75% | $ 109.45 | $ 86.83 | $ 22.62 79.3 $ 36.37 70.5 7.57% N/A
El Paso Firemen & Policemen's Pension Staff Plan (6) 12/31/2018 775% | $ 045] $ 048 | $ (0.03)] 1074 |$ 0.04 92.9 8.19% N/A
El Paso Firemen's Pension Fund 12/31/2018 7.75% | $ 77851 | $ 550.81 | $ 227.71 70.8 $ 336.70 62.1 8.34% N/A
El Paso Police Pension Fund 12/31/2018 7.75% | $ 111992 | $ 79867 | $ 321.25 71.3 $ 478.44 62.5 8.34% N/A
Employees Retirement System of Texas 8/31/2019 4.42% | $ 57,336.38 | § 27,351.22 | $ 29,985.16 47.7 $ 38,393.84 41.6 8.09% 2047
Employees of Brownsville Navigation District (6) 12/31/2018 6.15% | $ 9451 $ 489 | $ 4.56 51.8 $ 5.10 48.9 6.31% N/A
Fort Worth Employees' Retirement Fund 9/30/2018 535% | $ 542261 | $ 2,32434 | $ 3,098.28 42.9 $ 3,919.18 37.2 6.52% 2042
Fort Worth Employees' Retirement Fund Staff Plan 9/30/2018 775% | $ 6.65| $ 517 | $ 1.48 7.7 $ 2.55 67.0 6.52% N/A

This report is a compilation of pension data reported by retirement systems to the PRB in their most recently published Annual Financial Report and PRB-1000.

1




AV Supplemental Report
February 6, 2020

(Dollars in Millions)

(a)

(b)

(a) - (b)

(b)/ (a)

Total Pension Fiduciary Net Pension NPL NPL at Disc. | NPL -1% 10 Year Expected
Fiscal Year | Discount | Liability (TPL) Net Position Liability (NPL) | Funded Rate -1% Funded | Net Return | Depletion
Plan Name End Rate (1) (2) (3) Ratio % (4) Ratio % (5) Date
Galveston Employees' Retirement Fund 12/31/2018 7.25% | $ 68.35| $ 48511 $ 19.83 71.0 $ 27.67 63.7 7.37% N/A
Galveston Employees' Retirement Plan for Police 12/31/2018 7.00% | $ 57.85| $ 1786 | $ 40.00 30.9 $ 47.15 27.5 6.58% N/A
Galveston Firefighter's Relief & Retirement Fund 12/31/2018 775% | $ 67.10 | $ 42491 $ 24.61 63.3 $ 3217 56.9 6.98% N/A
Galveston Wharves Pension Plan 12/31/2018 7.25% | $ 16.32 | $ 1250 | $ 3.82 76.6 $ 5.48 69.5 9.23% N/A
Greenville Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 12/31/2018 8.00% | $ 30.77 | $ 1225 ] $ 18.52 39.8 $ 21.75 36.0 7.37% N/A
Guadalupe Regional Medical Center 12/31/2018 7.00% | $ 73.99 | $ 67.98 | $ 6.01 91.9 $ 16.50 80.5 9.62% N/A
Guadalupe-Blanco River Authority 12/31/2018 7.00% | $ 36.69 | $ 2873 | $ 7.96 78.3 $ 11.83 70.8 7.41% N/A
Harlingen Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 9/30/2018 775% | $ 52.81| $ 3290 | $ 19.91 62.3 $ 26.43 55.5 7.20% N/A
Harris County Hospital District Pension Plan 12/31/2018 7.00% | $ 91462 | $ 63472 | $ 279.90 69.4 $ 386.81 62.1 9.10% N/A
Houston Firefighters' Relief & Retirement Fund 6/30/2018 7.25% | $ 4,815.05| $ 4,17035 | $ 644.70 86.6 $ 1,145.88 78.4 6.11% N/A
Houston MTA Non-Union Pension Plan 12/31/2018 6.50% | $ 280.78 | $ 162.57 | $ 118.21 57.9 $ 144.36 53.0 8.80% N/A
Houston MTA Workers Union Pension Plan 12/31/2018 6.50% | $ 42882 | $ 25440 | $ 174.42 59.3 $ 222.62 53.3 8.40% N/A
Houston Municipal Employees Pension System 6/30/2018 7.00% $ 5113.36 | $ 2,988.86 | $ 2,124.49 58.5 $ 2,686.43 52.7 6.68% N/A
Houston Police Officers' Pension System 6/30/2019 7.00% $ 6,92055 | $ 5,67465| $ 1,245.90 82.0 $ 2,003.25 73.9 9.20% N/A
Irving Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 12/31/2018 7.50% | $ 296.82 | $ 19530 | $ 101.51 65.8 $ 124.00 61.2 8.86% N/A
Irving Supplemental Benefit Plan 12/31/2018 6.75% | $ 85.87 | $ 58.11 | $ 27.76 67.7 $ 39.69 59.4 5.72% N/A
JPS - Tarrant County Hospital District 9/30/2018 7.25% | $ 284.56 | $ 292.60 | $ (8.04)| 1028 | $ 26.09 91.8 8.42% N/A
Judicial Retirement System of Texas Plan Two 8/31/2019 545% | $ 648.30 | $ 456.19 | $ 192.11 70.4 $ 262.67 63.5 8.09% 2045
Killeen Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 9/30/2018 7.75% | $ 60.27 | $ 4395| $ 16.32 72.9 $ 24.55 64.2 6.35% N/A
Laredo Firefighters Retirement System 9/30/2018 7.90% | $ 250.96 | $ 15481 $ 96.15 61.7 $ 127.82 54.8 6.45% N/A
Law Enforcement & Custodial Off Sup. Ret. Fund 8/31/2019 329% | $ 2,609.36 | $ 943.62 | $ 1,665.73 36.2 $ 2,131.72 30.7 8.09% 2037
Longview Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 12/31/2018 545% | $ 136.06 | $ 4156 | $ 94.50 30.5 $ 113.94 26.7 6.88% 2042
Lower Colorado River Authority Retirement Plan 12/31/2018 725% | $ 61491 | $ 382.64 | $ 232.27 62.2 $ 295.62 56.4 3.20% N/A
Lubbock Fire Pension Fund 12/31/2018 7.75% | $ 290.04 | $ 186.48 | $ 103.55 64.3 $ 138.44 57.4 7.01% N/A
Lufkin Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 12/31/2018 7.50% | $ 35.73 | $ 1566 | $ 20.07 43.8 $ 23.91 39.6 6.36% N/A
Marshall Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 12/31/2018 7.50% | $ 2017 | $ 728 % 12.89 36.1 $ 15.52 31.9 7.37% N/A
McAllen Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 9/30/2018 7.50% | $ 78.76 | $ 52.68 | $ 26.09 66.9 $ 40.48 56.5 6.68% N/A
Midland Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 12/31/2018 529% | $ 20863 | $ 80.01 | $ 128.62 38.4 $ 157.43 33.7 5.39% 2043
Nacogdoches County Hospital District 6/30/2016 725% | $ 54.03 | $ 4366 | $ 10.37 80.8 $ 17.08 71.9 5.22% N/A
Northeast Medical Center Hospital Retirement Plan 6/30/2017 740% | $ 1154 | $ 958 | $ 1.96 83.0 $ 2.91 76.7 4.42% 2053
Northwest Texas Healthcare System Retirement Plan 9/30/2018 750% | $ 2511 $ 2337 | $ 1.74 93.1 $ 3.86 85.8 6.38% N/A
Odessa Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 12/31/2018 4.70% | $ 15756 | $ 3924 | $ 118.32 24.9 $ 141.90 21.7 7.02% 2034
Orange Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 12/31/2018 544% | $ 2151 $ 796 | $ 13.55 37.0 $ 15.70 33.7 6.58% 2047
Paris Firefighters' Relief & Retirement Fund 12/31/2018 7.50% | $ 1538 | $ 4151 $ 11.23 27.0 $ 12.82 24.5 5.23% N/A
Plainview Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 12/31/2018 750% | $ 16.80 | $ 544 | $ 11.36 324 $ 13.28 29.0 5.60% N/A
Plano Retirement Security Plan 12/31/2018 7.00% | $ 15212 $ 13993 | $ 12.19 92.0 $ 34.70 80.1 9.07% N/A
Port Arthur Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 12/31/2018 7.50% | $ 67.66 | $ 44771 $ 22.89 66.2 $ 30.09 59.8 7.82% N/A
Port of Houston Authority Retirement Plan 7/31/2018 6.75% | $ 189.63 | $ 18429 | $§ 5.34 97.2 $ 27.32 87.1 7.06% N/A
Refugio County Memorial Hospital 10/31/2017 7.00% | $ 201] $ 2231 % 0.22) 1111 $ 0.04 98.4 4.07% N/A

This report is a compilation of pension data reported by retirement systems to the PRB in their most recently published Annual Financial Report and PRB-1000.

2




AV Supplemental Report
February 6, 2020

(Dollars in Millions)

(a)

(b)

(a) - (b)

(b)/ (a)

Total Pension Fiduciary Net Pension NPL NPL at Disc. | NPL -1% 10 Year Expected

Fiscal Year | Discount | Liability (TPL) Net Position Liability (NPL) | Funded Rate -1% Funded | Net Return | Depletion
Plan Name End Rate (1) (2) (3) Ratio % (4) Ratio % (5) Date
San Angelo Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 12/31/2018 6.50% | $ 12569 | $ 61.21 | $ 64.48 48.7 $ 80.32 43.2 7.61% 2053
San Antonio Fire & Police Pension Fund 12/31/2018 7.25% | $ 3,756.28 | $ 3,015.16 | $ 741.12 80.3 $ 1,273.71 70.3 7.40% N/A
San Antonio Metropolitan Transit Retirement Plan (7) 9/30/2018 725% | $ 44082 | $ 298.39 | $ 142.42 67.7 $ 191.27 60.9 N/A N/A
San Benito Firemen Relief & Retirement Fund 9/30/2018 750% | $ 6.06 | $ 382 % 2.23 63.1 $ 3.03 55.8 1.78% N/A
Sweeny Community Hospital 12/31/2018 7.00% | $ 3.74 | $ 3.02| $ 0.72 80.8 $ 1.07 73.8 9.31% N/A
Sweetwater Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 12/31/2018 8.00% | $ 1321 $ 776 | $ 5.45 58.8 $ 6.97 52.7 7.03% N/A
Teacher Retirement System of Texas 8/31/2018 691% |$ 20961133 $ 154,568.90 | $ 55,042.43 73.7 $ 83,072.22 65.0 7.11% 2069
Temple Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 9/30/2018 775% | $ 60.63 | $ 4424 |1 $ 16.38 73.0 $ 23.36 65.4 6.02% N/A
Texarkana Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 12/31/2018 775% | $ 4210 $ 3136 | $ 10.74 74.5 $ 15.25 67.3 7.61% N/A
Texas City Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 12/31/2017 775% | $ 3255| $ 16.12 | $ 16.43 49.5 $ 20.15 444 4.22% N/A
Texas County & District Retirement System (8) 12/31/2018 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 9.02% N/A
Texas Emergency Services Retirement System 8/31/2018 775% | $ 13751 $ 115.86 | $ 21.65 84.3 $ 43.03 72.9 7.42% N/A
Texas Municipal Retirement System (8) 12/31/2018 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 6.43% N/A
The Woodlands Firefighters' Retirement System (6) 12/31/2018 7.00% | $ 33.56 | $ 3295| $ 0.61 98.2 $ 6.28 84.0 -0.18% N/A
Travis County ESD #6 FRRF 12/31/2018 7.00% | $ 2877 | $ 2089 | $ 7.88 72.6 $ 12.82 62.0 6.20% N/A
Tyler Firefighters' Relief & Retirement Fund 12/31/2018 7.50% | $ 95.70 | $ 64.60 | $ 31.10 67.5 $ 41.20 61.1 7.54% N/A
University Health System Pension Plan 12/31/2018 7.00% | $ 526.50 | $ 360.80 | $ 165.71 68.5 $ 233.34 60.7 8.83% N/A
University Park Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 12/31/2018 750% | $ 2430 | $ 9451 $ 14.85 38.9 $ 17.70 34.8 6.48% N/A
Waxahachie Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 9/30/2018 7.00% | $ 23.85| $ 17431 $ 6.42 73.1 $ 9.57 64.6 7.34% N/A
Weslaco Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 9/30/2018 725% | $ 1585 | $ 1158 | $§ 4.28 73.0 $ 6.74 63.2 5.52% N/A
Wichita Falls Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 12/31/2018 490% | $ 130.68 | $ 46.70 | $ 83.98 35.7 $ 103.53 31.1 6.87% 2040
Grand Totals: $ 328,959.31 $ 221,79240 $ 107,166.91 67.4% §$ 151,383  59.4%

Notes

(1) Total Pension Liability is the actuarial accrued liability calculated in accordance with GASB 67, as reported in the system's Annual Financial Report.
(2) Fiduciary Net Position is the market value of assets as of the Fiscal Year End, as reported in the system's Annual Finaicial Report.
(3) Net Pension Liability is measured as the Total Pension Liability less the amount of the pension plan’s Fiduciary Net Position.
(4) Net Pension Liability measured using a discount rate 1% lower than the stated discount rate.

(5) 10 Year Net Return (gross return net of investment expenses) as reported for the Fiscal Year on the PRB-1000 Investment Returns and Assumptions Report.
(6) The plan is less than 10 years old; return is calculated since date of inception.

(7) A 10 Year Net Return was not available from this plan.

(8) Plan is an Agent Multiple Employer Defined Benefit Plan and is not subject to the majority of GASB 67 reporting requirements.

This report is a compilation of pension data reported by retirement systems to the PRB in their most recently published Annual Financial Report and PRB-1000.

3




THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK



Contribution Report

February 6, 2020

(a) (b) (¢)=(a)-(b) (d) (e)=(c) +(d) ® 1)
ER Normal Actual
Plan Total NC EE Cont Cost Amort Pmt | ER Rec Cont| ER Cont Percent of
Status | Fiscal Year Covered (% of Pay) | (% of Pay) | (% of Pay) (% of Pay) (% of Pay) (% of Pay) | Actual ER | Rec Cont

JPlan Name (1) End Payroll (). @) (©)) (©)} (©)} ©ONC) ®) Cont Type Paid
Abilene Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active 9/30/2018 | $ 13,525,947 16.61% 13.20% 3.41% 16.55% 19.96% 19.25% Fixed 96%
Amarillo Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active | 12/31/2018 | $ 20,282,338 25.60% 13.00% 12.60% 8.89% 21.49% 19.57% Fixed 91%
Anson General Hospital Frozen 6/30/2018 | $ 222,685 4.80% 4.00% 0.80% -0.87% -0.07% 0.00% Actuarial 0%
Arlington Employees Deferred Income Plan Active 6/30/2018 | $ 3,337,767 4.97% 3.00% 1.97% -1.97% 0.00% 1.39% Actuarial N/A
Atlanta Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active | 12/31/2018 | $ 666,400 18.58% 13.00% 5.58% 7.42% 13.00% 14.57% Fixed 112%
Austin Employees' Retirement System Active | 12/31/2018 | $ 647,143,050 17.73% 8.00% 9.73% 9.60% 19.33% 18.00% Fixed 93%
Austin Fire Fighters Relief & Retirement Fund Active | 12/31/2018 | $ 91,086,698 28.49% 18.70% 9.79% 8.92% 18.71% 22.05% Fixed 118%
Austin Police Retirement System Active | 12/31/2018 | $ 165,088,323 23.15% 13.00% 10.15% 12.12% 22.27% 21.35% Fixed 96%
|Beaumont Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active | 12/31/2018 | $ 18,605,194 18.93% 15.13% 3.80% 16.37% 20.17% 15.50% Fixed 7%
IBig Spring Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active | 12/31/2018 | $ 4,030,000 15.84% 13.00% 2.84% 11.47% 14.31% 15.72% Fixed 110%
IBrazos River Authority Retirement Plan (6) Frozen | 2/28/2019 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A Actuarial 100%
IBrownwood Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active | 12/31/2018 | $ 1,912,275 14.77% 8.00% 6.77% 14.96% 21.73% 20.24% Fixed 93%
CPS Energy Pension Plan Active | 12/31/2018 | $ 270,313,692 15.98% 5.00% 10.98% 12.09% 23.07% 21.34% Actuarial 93%
Capital MTA Bargaining (6) Frozen | 12/31/2018 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A Actuarial 161%
Citizens Medical Center Active 2/28/2018 | $ 58,274,773 8.67% 3.93% 4.74% 0.05% 4.79% 4.98% Actuarial 104%
City of El Paso Employees Retirement Trust Active 8/31/2018 | $ 161,026,109 12.19% 8.95% 3.24% 7.17% 10.41% 15.93% Fixed 153%
Cleburne Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active | 12/31/2018 | $ 4,507,461 19.90% 14.00% 5.90% 16.10% 22.00% 22.06% Other 100%
Colorado River Municipal Water Dist. Active | 12/31/2018 | $ 3,680,075 10.12% 0.00% 10.12% 4.98% 15.10% 14.38% Actuarial 95%
Conroe Fire Fighters' Retirement Fund Active | 12/31/2018 | $ 9,018,331 19.57% 13.24% 6.33% 9.91% 16.24% 15.00% Fixed 92%
Corpus Christi Fire Fighters' Retirement System Active | 12/31/2018 | $ 31,298,070 15.91% 13.10% 2.81% 17.97% 20.78% 20.78% Fixed 100%
Corpus Christi Regional Transportation Authority Active | 12/31/2018 | $ 10,677,430 9.99% 0.00% 9.99% 1.17% 11.16% 13.35% Actuarial 120%
Corsicana Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active | 12/31/2018 | $ 4,187,264 15.73% 14.00% 1.73% 12.27% 14.00% 16.56% Fixed 118%
IDART Employees Closed | 9/30/2018 | $ 14,333,000 7.35% 0.02% 7.33% 37.65% 44.98% 69.77% Actuarial 155%
IDFW Airport Board Active | 12/31/2018 | $ 54,095,000 17.90% 0.00% 17.90% 19.77% 37.67% 41.58% Actuarial 110%
IDFW Airport Board DPS Active | 12/31/2018 | $ 30,006,000 | 23.63% 7.00% 16.63% 13.97% 30.60% 33.51% Actuarial 110%
IDaIIas Co. Hospital Dist. Retirement Income Plan Active | 12/31/2018 | $ 659,891,000 7.53% 6.20% 1.33% 3.23% 4.56% 6.06% Actuarial 133%
IDaIIas Employees' Retirement Fund Active | 12/31/2018 | $ 423,803,000 21.40% 13.32% 8.08% 11.72% 19.80% 14.38% Other 73%
IDaIIas Police & Fire Pension System-Combined Plan Active | 12/31/2018 | $ 346,037,000 17.89% 13.50% 4.39% 41.01% 45.40% 43.16% Other 95%
IDaIIas Police & Fire Pension System-Supplemental Active | 12/31/2018 | $ 916,000 32.23% 13.98% 18.25% 218.38% 236.63% 216.08% Actuarial 91%

This report is a compilation of pension data reported by retirement systems to the PRB in their most recently published Annual Financial Report and Actuarial Valuations.

1




Contribution Report

February 6, 2020

(a) (b) (¢)=(a)-(b) (d) (e)=(c) +(d) ® 1)
ER Normal Actual
Plan Total NC EE Cont Cost Amort Pmt | ER Rec Cont| ER Cont Percent of
Status | Fiscal Year Covered (% of Pay) | (% of Pay) | (% of Pay) (% of Pay) (% of Pay) (% of Pay) | Actual ER | Rec Cont

Plan Name (1) End Payroll (). @) (©)) (©)} (©)} ©ONC) ®) Cont Type Paid

IDenison Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active | 12/31/2018 | $ 3,365,460 14.19% 12.00% 2.19% 12.81% 15.00% 15.00% Fixed 100%
IDenton Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active | 12/31/2018 | $ 18,562,198 | 21.77% 12.60% 9.17% 9.33% 18.50% 18.50% Other 100%
IEI Paso Firemen & Policemen's Pension Staff Plan Active | 12/31/2018 | $ 734,360 10.24% 5.00% 5.24% -0.39% 4.85% 7.47% Fixed 154%
IEI Paso Firemen's Pension Fund Active | 12/31/2018 | $ 65,506,552 22.17% 18.00% 4.17% 14.33% 18.50% 18.73% Fixed 101%
IEI Paso Police Pension Fund Active | 12/31/2018 | $ 89,173,129 21.23% 18.00% 3.23% 16.59% 19.82% 18.00% Fixed 91%
IEmponees Retirement System of Texas (7) Active 8/31/2019 | $ 6,947,624,737 13.86% 9.50% 4.36% 9.26% 13.62% 11.74% Fixed 86%
Employees of Brownsville Navigation District Active | 12/31/2018 | $ 4,368,477 8.38% 4.00% 4.38% 5.87% 10.25% 12.01% Fixed 117%

IFort Worth Employees' Retirement Fund Active 9/30/2018 | $ 467,754,197 13.32% 8.06% 5.26% 22.91% 28.17% 19.99% Fixed 71%
IFort Worth Employees' Retirement Fund Staff Plan Active 9/30/2018 | $ 1,588,685 18.65% 8.25% 10.40% 4.99% 15.39% 15.74% Fixed 102%
Galveston Employees' Retirement Fund Active | 12/31/2018 | $ 26,308,178 9.33% 6.00% 3.33% 5.67% 9.00% 9.00% Fixed 100%

Galveston Employees' Retirement Plan for Police Active | 12/31/2018 | $ 11,808,927 12.05% 12.00% 0.05% 22.62% 22.67% 14.51% Actuarial 64%

Galveston Firefighter's Relief & Retirement Fund Active | 12/31/2018 | $ 8,273,793 19.50% 18.00% 1.50% 15.50% 17.00% 28.64% Fixed 168%

Galveston Wharves Pension Plan Closed | 12/31/2018 | $ 2,017,084 6.91% 0.00% 6.91% 14.19% 21.10% 28.51% Actuarial 135%

Greenville Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active | 12/31/2018 | $ 4,094,242 16.71% 16.30% 0.41% 21.14% 21.55% 17.82% Fixed 83%

Guadalupe Regional Medical Center Active | 12/31/2018 | $ 25,355,241 9.12% 4.00% 5.12% 0.68% 5.80% 7.57% Other 131%

Guadalupe-Blanco River Authority Frozen | 12/31/2018 | $ 5,826,719 5.02% 0.00% 5.02% 11.10% 16.12% 19.36% Other 120%

[Harlingen Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active 9/30/2018 | $ 6,423,120 18.74% 15.00% 3.74% 14.57% 18.31% 15.00% Fixed 82%
IHarris County Hospital District Pension Plan Closed | 12/31/2018 | $ 169,885,000 4.87% 0.00% 4.87% 13.37% 18.24% 18.24% Actuarial 100%
IHouston Firefighters' Relief & Retirement Fund Active | 6/30/2018 | $ 260,345,000 | 27.60% 10.50% 17.10% 19.70% 36.80% 31.88% Actuarial 87%
IHouston MTA Non-Union Pension Plan Closed | 12/31/2018 | $ 41,769,919 7.85% 0.00% 7.85% 18.63% 26.48% 26.51% Actuarial 100%
IHouston MTA Workers Union Pension Plan Closed | 12/31/2018 | $ 97,250,761 4.16% 0.00% 4.16% 12.44% 16.60% 16.12% Actuarial 97%
IHouston Municipal Employees Pension System Active 6/30/2018 | $ 611,493,104 11.17% 3.00% 8.17% 19.67% 27.84% 68.94% Actuarial 248%
IHouston Police Officers' Pension System Active 6/30/2019 | $ 444,871,000 24.35% 10.50% 13.85% 17.89% 31.74% 32.02% Actuarial 101%
Irving Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active | 12/31/2018 | $ 33,831,773 21.22% 13.00% 8.22% 13.80% 22.02% 16.75% Fixed 76%

Irving Supplemental Benefit Plan Active | 12/31/2018 | $ 107,628,647 3.34% 2.50% 0.84% 1.27% 2.11% 2.07% Other 98%

JPS - Tarrant County Hospital District Active 9/30/2018 | $ 256,365,871 5.51% 1.00% 4.51% 2.24% 6.75% 6.75% Other 100%

Judicial Retirement System of Texas Plan Two Active 8/31/2019 | $ 79,710,813 20.83% 7.46% 13.37% 3.01% 16.38% 16.43% Fixed 100%

IKilleen Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active 9/30/2018 | $ 13,983,445 16.00% 11.00% 5.00% 8.55% 13.55% 13.00% Fixed 96%
ILaredo Firefighters Retirement System Active 9/30/2018 | $ 36,107,647 19.96% 15.00% 4.96% 17.46% 22.42% 20.13% Fixed 90%

This report is a compilation of pension data reported by retirement systems to the PRB in their most recently published Annual Financial Report and Actuarial Valuations.

2




Contribution Report

February 6, 2020

(a) (b) (¢)=(a)-(b) (d) (e)=(c) +(d) ® 1)
ER Normal Actual
Plan Total NC EE Cont Cost Amort Pmt | ER Rec Cont| ER Cont Percent of
Status | Fiscal Year Covered (% of Pay) | (% of Pay) | (% of Pay) (% of Pay) (% of Pay) (% of Pay) | Actual ER | Rec Cont
Plan Name (1) End Payroll (). @) 3 (©)} (©)} ©ONC) ®) Cont Type Paid
ILaW Enforcement & Custodial Off Sup. Ret. Fund Active 8/31/2019 | $ 1,682,633,066 2.09% 0.50% 1.59% 1.67% 3.26% 1.54% Other 47%
ILongview Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active | 12/31/2018 | $ 12,887,040 | 15.14% 16.81% -1.67% 23.44% 21.77% 18.29% Fixed 84%
ILower Colorado River Authority Retirement Plan Closed | 12/31/2018 | $ 108,601,000 5.48% 0.00% 5.48% 11.93% 17.41% 22.00% Actuarial 126%
ILubbock Fire Pension Fund Active | 12/31/2018 | $ 33,080,326 22.20% 12.43% 9.77% 12.78% 22.55% 21.81% Other 97%
ILufkin Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active | 12/31/2018 | $ 5,135,838 16.85% 14.20% 2.65% 21.26% 23.91% 23.00% Fixed 96%
IMarShaII Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active | 12/31/2018 | $ 2,770,350 16.39% 14.00% 2.39% 22.00% 24.39% 19.05% Fixed 78%
IMcAIIen Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active 9/30/2018 | $ 11,901,023 15.53% 11.00% 4.53% 9.95% 14.48% 13.00% Fixed 90%
IMidIand Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active | 12/31/2018 | $ 17,568,234 25.98% 14.20% 11.78% 20.08% 31.86% 22.20% Fixed 70%
INacogdoches County Hospital District Active 6/30/2016 | $ 30,057,297 4.56% 2.91% 1.65% 2.66% 4.31% 5.66% Other 131%
INortheast Medical Center Hospital Retirement Plan (6) Frozen | 6/30/2017 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A Actuarial 100%
INorthwest Texas Healthcare System Retirement Plan (6) Frozen | 9/30/2018 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A Other 244%
Odessa Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active | 12/31/2018 | $ 12,183,628 14.93% 18.00% -3.07% 28.24% 25.17% 20.21% Fixed 80%
Orange Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active | 12/31/2018 | $ 2,396,549 12.76% 12.00% 0.76% 18.49% 19.25% 14.31% Fixed 74%
JParis Firefighters' Relief & Retirement Fund Active | 12/31/2018 | $ 2,695,608 9.54% 15.00% -5.46% 20.43% 14.97% 12.50% Fixed 84%
IPIainvieW Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active | 12/31/2018 | $ 2,010,853 15.23% 15.00% 0.23% 29.38% 29.61% 27.20% Fixed 92%
IPIano Retirement Security Plan Active | 12/31/2018 | $ 149,344,120 3.56% 0.00% 3.56% 0.06% 3.62% 3.62% Actuarial 100%
IPort Arthur Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active | 12/31/2018 | $ 9,194,408 16.10% 13.50% 2.60% 11.45% 14.05% 14.27% Other 102%
IPort of Houston Authority Retirement Plan Closed 7/31/2018 | $ 29,960,300 13.86% 0.00% 13.86% 2.85% 16.71% 17.55% Actuarial 105%
IRefugio County Memorial Hospital Frozen | 10/31/2017 | $ 3,234,547 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 1.85% Actuarial N/A
San Angelo Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active | 12/31/2018 | $ 11,759,292 21.58% 16.45% 5.13% 15.42% 20.55% 20.20% Fixed 98%
San Antonio Fire & Police Pension Fund Active | 12/31/2018 | $ 318,038,000 23.86% 12.32% 11.54% 5.92% 17.46% 24.62% Fixed 141%
San Antonio Metropolitan Transit Retirement Plan Active 9/30/2018 | $ 65,166,072 7.58% 4.23% 3.35% 9.09% 12.44% 19.15% Actuarial 154%
San Benito Firemen Relief & Retirement Fund Active 9/30/2018 | $ 1,424,217 13.90% 12.00% 1.90% 8.20% 10.10% 12.00% Fixed 119%
Sweeny Community Hospital Closed | 12/31/2018 | $ 985,300 7.35% 0.00% 7.35% 5.40% 12.75% 12.75% Actuarial 100%
Sweetwater Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active | 12/31/2018 | $ 1,624,778 21.86% 17.00% 4.86% 13.14% 18.00% 18.00% Fixed 100%
Teacher Retirement System of Texas Active 8/31/2018 | $ 43,646,405,156 10.06% 7.70% 2.36% 5.49% 7.85% 7.92% Fixed 101%
Temple Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active 9/30/2018 | $ 8,623,033 20.57% 15.00% 5.57% 9.37% 14.94% 15.27% Fixed 102%
Texarkana Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active | 12/31/2018 | $ 4,306,156 21.60% 13.50% 8.10% 7.44% 15.54% 19.47% Fixed 125%
Texas City Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active | 12/31/2017 | $ 5,107,869 12.77% 16.00% -3.23% 18.59% 15.36% 16.00% Fixed 104%
Texas County & District Retirement System Active | 12/31/2018 | $ 6,921,029,795 13.53% 6.77% 6.76% 4.98% 11.74% 12.57% Actuarial 107%
Texas Emergency Services Retirement System (6) Active 8/31/2018 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A Other 115%

This report is a compilation of pension data reported by retirement systems to the PRB in their most recently published Annual Financial Report and Actuarial Valuations.

3




Contribution Report
February 6, 2020

(a) (b) (¢)=(a)-(b) (d) (e)=(c) +(d) ® 1)
ER Normal Actual
Plan Total NC EE Cont Cost Amort Pmt | ER Rec Cont| ER Cont Percent of
Status | Fiscal Year Covered (% of Pay) | (% of Pay) | (% of Pay) (% of Pay) (% of Pay) (% of Pay) | Actual ER | Rec Cont
JPlan Name (1) End Payroll (). @) (©)) (©)} (©)} ©ONC) ®) Cont Type Paid
Texas Municipal Retirement System Active | 12/31/2018 | $ 6,444,177,866 15.04% 6.63% 8.41% 4.86% 13.27% 13.68% Actuarial 103%
The Woodlands Firefighters' Retirement System Active | 12/31/2018 | $ 11,482,958 22.66% 12.00% 10.66% 0.00% 10.66% 12.18% Fixed 114%
Travis County ESD #6 FRRF Active | 12/31/2018 | $ 6,074,844 24.11% 20.00% 4.11% 15.09% 19.20% 19.20% Fixed 100%
Tyler Firefighters' Relief & Retirement Fund Active | 12/31/2018 | $ 11,620,007 21.10% 13.50% 7.60% 11.90% 19.50% 20.92% Fixed 107%
University Health System Pension Plan Active | 12/31/2018 | $ 354,486,512 4.09% 2.00% 2.09% 4.59% 6.68% 6.80% Actuarial 102%
JUniversity Park Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Closed | 12/31/2018 | $ 3,011,825 18.13% 10.48% 7.65% 22.05% 29.70% 56.87% Fixed 191%
Waxahachie Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active 9/30/2018 | $ 4,437,733 18.19% 12.00% 6.19% 8.36% 14.55% 15.51% Other 107%
Weslaco Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active 9/30/2018 | $ 4,249,692 13.65% 12.00% 1.65% 6.31% 7.96% 12.16% Fixed 153%
Wichita Falls Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active | 12/31/2018 | $ 11,348,015 14.63% 13.00% 1.63% 13.76% 15.39% 12.83% Other 83%
Notes

(1) Plan status indicates whether a plan is active (admitting new hires), closed to new hires (but still accruing benefits), or frozen (not accruing benefits).
(2) Normal Cost includes any explicit provisions for administrative expenses.

(3) Values may differ from that reported by the system due to differences in timing and/or rounding. For systems that do not indicate the fiscal year associated with this value (or the requisite valuation has not been provided to
the PRB), they are based on the most recently reported valuation date on or before the beginning of the fiscal year.

(4) Recommended Contribution needed for the system to achieve and maintain an amortization period that does not exceed 30 years, in accordance with Texas Code §802.101(a).

(5) Actual contribution rate is determined as the employer contributions made to the plan during the fiscal year divided by the covered payroll shown. This may differ from the plan's stated contribution rate due to differences
between actual and assumed covered payroll.

(6) Covered payroll is not reported for this plan.
(7) Plan calculates a recommended contribution based on a 31-year amortization period.

This report is a compilation of pension data reported by retirement systems to the PRB in their most recently published Annual Financial Report and Actuarial Valuations.

4



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK



Texas Discount Rates - All Plans

8%

7% LOOOONHHHHHHHOO
Averages:
National

)(H'K} Texas

Statewide Only
Municipal Only

+HH District / Supplemental Only
Local Firefighter Only

6%

Texas Average ¥ Statewide Plans A Municipal Plans

+ District / Supplemental Plans < Local Firefighter Plans

5% =+

7.27%
7.29%
7.46%
7.31%
6.96%
7.52%



Texas Discount Rates - Statewide
8%

X
XK
X
7%
Averages:
National 7.27%
X Texas 7.29%
Statewide Only 7.46%

6%

Texas Average ¥ Statewide Plans

5%



8%

7%

6%

5%

Texas Discount Rates - Municipal

Texas Average

XA
A
Averages:
National 7.27%
Texas 7.29%
Municipal Only 7.31%

A Municipal Plans



Texas Discount Rates - District / Supplemental
8%

+
+H+H
HHHH
7% +HHHHH
Averages:
National 7.27%
+H Texas 7.29%
District / Supplemental Only 6.96%
+HH
+
+
6%
Texas Average + District / Supplemental Plans

5% =+



Texas Discount Rates - Local Firefighters
8%

SO0
(S 3323323323328 94
<><>
8O
7% SO
Averages:
National 7.27%
0 Texas 7.29%
Local Firefighter Only 7.52%

6%

Texas Average ¢ Local Firefighter Plans

5%



Texas Discount Rates

Plan Classification Plan Name Discount Rate Market Value of Assets

Statewide Texas Municipal Retirement System 6.75%| S 27,683,629,439
Statewide Teacher Retirement System of Texas 7.25%| S 157,978,199,075
Statewide Employees Retirement System of Texas 7.50%]| S 27,351,224,157
Statewide Judicial Retirement System of Texas Plan Two 7.50%| $ 456,192,249
Statewide Law Enforcement & Custodial Off Sup. Ret. Fund 7.50%]| S 943,622,645
Statewide Texas Emergency Services Retirement System 7.75%| S 115,863,894
Statewide Texas County & District Retirement System 8.00%| S 29,260,546,258
Municipal Fort Worth Employees' Retirement Fund 7.00%| S 2,147,041,319
Municipal Fort Worth Employees' Retirement Fund Staff Plan 7.00%]| S 4,916,880
Municipal Galveston Employees' Retirement Plan for Police 7.00%| S 17,856,397
Municipal Houston Firefighters' Relief & Retirement Fund 7.00%]| S 4,170,354,000
Municipal Houston Municipal Employees Pension System 7.00%| S 2,988,864,000
Municipal Houston Police Officers' Pension System 7.00%]| S 5,674,647,000
Municipal Austin Police Retirement System 7.25%| S 718,519,641
Municipal Dallas Police & Fire Pension System-Combined Plan 7.25%| S 2,041,914,130
Municipal Dallas Police & Fire Pension System-Supplemental 7.25%| S 18,317,893
Municipal Galveston Employees' Retirement Fund 7.25%| S 48,514,328
Municipal San Antonio Fire & Police Pension Fund 7.25%| S 3,015,158,660
Municipal Austin Employees' Retirement System 7.50%| S 2,461,383,436
Municipal City of El Paso Employees Retirement Trust 7.50%| S 820,416,288
Municipal Austin Fire Fighters Relief & Retirement Fund 7.70%| S 909,117,796
Municipal Dallas Employees' Retirement Fund 7.75%| S 3,265,402,000
Municipal El Paso Firemen's Pension Fund 7.75%| S 601,790,721
Municipal El Paso Police Pension Fund 7.75%| 870,658,507
District / Supplemental Arlington Employees Deferred Income Plan 5.00%| S 2,999,905
District / Supplemental Employees of Brownsville Navigation District 6.15%| S 5,082,503
District / Supplemental Colorado River Municipal Water Dist. 6.25%| S 9,251,681
District / Supplemental Brazos River Authority Retirement Plan 6.50%| S 19,851,827
District / Supplemental Houston MTA Non-Union Pension Plan 6.50%| S 162,565,041
District / Supplemental Houston MTA Workers Union Pension Plan 6.50%| S 254,400,189
District / Supplemental Port of Houston Authority Retirement Plan 6.50%| S 184,407,686
District / Supplemental Capital MTA Admin Employees 6.75%| S 29,770,966
District / Supplemental DART Employees 6.75%| S 186,844,635
District / Supplemental Irving Supplemental Benefit Plan 6.75%| S 58,112,359
District / Supplemental Capital MTA Bargaining 7.00%| S 29,894,535
District / Supplemental Citizens Medical Center 7.00%| $ 108,407,575
District / Supplemental Dallas Co. Hospital Dist. Retirement Income Plan 7.00%| S 948,034,161
District / Supplemental Guadalupe Regional Medical Center 7.00%| S 67,977,745
District / Supplemental Guadalupe-Blanco River Authority 7.00%]| S 30,638,650
District / Supplemental Harris County Hospital District Pension Plan 7.00%| S 635,273,806
District / Supplemental Plano Retirement Security Plan 7.00%]| S 148,516,307
District / Supplemental Refugio County Memorial Hospital 7.00%| S 1,834,666
District / Supplemental Sweeny Community Hospital 7.00%| S 3,023,456
District / Supplemental University Health System Pension Plan 7.00%| S 363,779,588
District / Supplemental CPS Energy Pension Plan 7.25%| S 1,627,840,308
District / Supplemental DFW Airport Board 7.25%| S 493,301,369
District / Supplemental DFW Airport Board DPS 7.25%| S 188,058,481
District / Supplemental Galveston Wharves Pension Plan 7.25%| S 12,411,631
District / Supplemental JPS - Tarrant County Hospital District 7.25%| S 257,037,806
District / Supplemental Lower Colorado River Authority Retirement Plan 7.25%| $ 388,300,639




Texas Discount Rates

Plan Classification Plan Name Discount Rate Market Value of Assets

District / Supplemental Nacogdoches County Hospital District 7.25%| S 46,841,434
District / Supplemental Corpus Christi Regional Transportation Authority 7.40%| S 33,900,179
District / Supplemental Anson General Hospital 7.50%]| S 1,930,866
District / Supplemental Northeast Medical Center Hospital Retirement Plan 7.50%| S 9,503,069
District / Supplemental Northwest Texas Healthcare System Retirement Plan 7.50%| S 21,800,110
District / Supplemental San Antonio Metropolitan Transit Retirement Plan 7.50%| $ 246,002,425
District / Supplemental El Paso Firemen & Policemen's Pension Staff Plan 7.75%| S 419,843
Local Firefighter Denton Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 6.75%| 85,388,283
Local Firefighter Corsicana Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 7.00%]| S 8,344,317
Local Firefighter The Woodlands Firefighters' Retirement System 7.00%| S 32,836,586
Local Firefighter Travis County ESD #6 FRRF 7.00%| S 19,688,064
Local Firefighter Waxahachie Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 7.00%| S 17,428,039
Local Firefighter Brownwood Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 7.25%| S 4,158,090
Local Firefighter Paris Firefighters' Relief & Retirement Fund 7.25%| S 4,152,310
Local Firefighter Weslaco Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 7.25%| S 11,577,179
Local Firefighter Cleburne Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 7.35%| S 19,362,808
Local Firefighter Atlanta Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 7.40%| S 3,801,042
Local Firefighter Amarillo Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 7.50%| $ 171,845,402
Local Firefighter Beaumont Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 7.50%]| S 105,769,426
Local Firefighter Conroe Fire Fighters' Retirement Fund 7.50%| S 24,501,501
Local Firefighter Corpus Christi Fire Fighters' Retirement System 7.50%| S 139,811,086
Local Firefighter Denison Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 7.50%| $ 17,725,070
Local Firefighter Irving Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 7.50%]| S 213,960,011
Local Firefighter Killeen Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 7.50%| $ 43,947,221
Local Firefighter Laredo Firefighters Retirement System 7.50%]| S 154,813,837
Local Firefighter Lufkin Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 7.50%| $ 15,659,035
Local Firefighter Marshall Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 7.50%]| S 7,278,840
Local Firefighter Plainview Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 7.50%| $ 6,154,425
Local Firefighter Port Arthur Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 7.50%]| S 49,890,603
Local Firefighter San Benito Firemen Relief & Retirement Fund 7.50%| $ 3,503,753
Local Firefighter Texas City Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 7.50%]| S 14,389,108
Local Firefighter Tyler Firefighters' Relief & Retirement Fund 7.50%| S 70,141,881
Local Firefighter University Park Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 7.50%]| S 9,448,371
Local Firefighter Big Spring Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 7.75%| S 10,902,959
Local Firefighter Galveston Firefighter's Relief & Retirement Fund 7.75%]| S 44,651,640
Local Firefighter Greenville Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 7.75%| S 12,254,104
Local Firefighter Harlingen Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 7.75%]| S 31,224,379
Local Firefighter Longview Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 7.75%| S 41,560,527
Local Firefighter Lubbock Fire Pension Fund 7.75%]| S 186,484,535
Local Firefighter McAllen Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 7.75%| S 44,759,055
Local Firefighter Midland Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 7.75%]| S 89,023,115
Local Firefighter Odessa Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 7.75%| S 39,242,821
Local Firefighter Orange Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 7.75%]| S 7,961,733
Local Firefighter Temple Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 7.75%| S 44,243,769
Local Firefighter Texarkana Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 7.75%]| S 34,819,005
Local Firefighter Wichita Falls Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 7.75%| S 51,317,643
Local Firefighter San Angelo Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 7.90%| S 66,618,737
Local Firefighter Abilene Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 8.00%| S 57,456,309
Local Firefighter Sweetwater Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 8.00%| S 7,826,879




TAB 3B



%)

TEXAS PENSION
REVIEW BOARD

Summary of Reporting Requirements for Texas Public Retirement Systems

Public retirement systems shall adhere to the various reporting requirement provisions of the Texas Government Code as summarized below.

Annual Reports

Annual Financial Report: Defined benefit plans must file an annual financial report, including the financial statements and
schedules examined in the most recent audit performed in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, a statement
of opinion by the CPA stating whether or not the statements are presented fairly and in accordance with GAAP, and effective
June 2019, the names of all investment managers engaged by the retirement system and a listing of all direct and indirect

Actuarial/Financial Reporting Requirements

Due within 210 days after
end of previous fiscal year

commissions and fees paid during the previous fiscal year for sale, purchase, or management of assets. See Gov’t Code §802.102 | e

& §802.103.

Membership Report: Defined benefit plans must file an annual report of total membership of active employees and persons

receiving a benefit. See Gov’'t Code §802.104 and 40 TAC, Chapter 605, Form PRB-200.

Investment Returns and Assumptions Report: Defined benefit plans must file a report containing investment returns and

Financial Report
Membership Report

Investment Returns
and Assumptions
Report

actuarial assumptions. See Gov’'t Code §802.108 and 40 TAC, Chapter 605, Form PRB-1000 Instructions & Form PRB-1000.

FISCAL YEAR 2019 DUE DATE CALENDAR FOR ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT, MEMBERSHIP REPORT, AND INVESTMENT RETURNS & ASSUMPTIONS REPORT

Plans receive reminders and enforcement notices on the 1st and 15th of applicable months. If the 1st and 15th fall on a state holiday or weekend, then they are sent on the following business
day. The non-compliance date is the day on which the PRB is required to include the system's name on the list of non-compliant public retirement systems posted on the PRB website.

FY End Date

Due Date

60-Day Reminder

15-Day Reminder

15-Day Enforcement

45-Day Enforcement

Non-Compliance

February 28, 2019

September 27, 2019

August 1, 2019

September 15, 2019

October 15, 2019

November 15, 2019

December 1, 2019

March 31, 2019

October 28, 2019

September 1, 2019

October 15, 2019

November 15, 2019

December 15, 2019

January 1, 2020

June 30, 2019 January 27, 2020 December 1, 2019 January 15, 2020 February 15, 2020 March 15, 2020 April 1, 2020
July 31, 2019 February 27, 2020 January 1, 2020 February 15, 2020 March 15, 2020 April 15, 2020 May 1, 2020
August 31, 2019 March 29, 2020 February 1, 2020 March 15, 2020 April 15, 2020 May 15, 2020 June 1, 2020
September 30, 2019 April 28, 2020 March 1, 2020 April 15, 2020 May 15, 2020 June 15, 2020 July 1, 2020
October 31, 2019 May 29, 2020 April 1, 2020 May 15, 2020 June 15, 2020 July 15, 2020 August 1, 2020
December 31, 2019 July 29, 2020 June 1, 2020 July 15, 2020 August 15, 2020 September 15, 2020 October 1, 2020

1



https://statutes.capitol.texas.gov/Docs/GV/htm/GV.802.htm#802.102
https://statutes.capitol.texas.gov/Docs/GV/htm/GV.802.htm#802.103
https://statutes.capitol.texas.gov/Docs/GV/htm/GV.802.htm#802.104
https://www.prb.state.tx.us/txpen/wp-content/uploads/2018/05/PRB_200-Form.pdf
https://statutes.capitol.texas.gov/Docs/GV/htm/GV.802.htm#802.108
https://www.prb.state.tx.us/txpen/wp-content/uploads/2018/10/PRB_1000-Instructions.pdf
https://www.prb.state.tx.us/txpen/wp-content/uploads/2016/07/PRB_1000-Form.pdf

Summary of Reporting Requirements for Texas Public Retirement Systems

Other Reports

Actuarial Valuation: Defined benefit plans must have an actuarial valuation prepared by a certified actuary, at least once every
three years, which includes a recommended contribution rate needed for the system to achieve and maintain an amortization
period that does not exceed 30 years. See Gov’t Code §802.101.

Actuarial Experience Study: Defined benefit plans with an asset value of at least $100 million must conduct an actuarial
experience study once every five years. See Gov’t Code §802.1014.

Audits by Governmental Entity: Defined benefit plans with an asset value of at least $100 million must allow the governmental
entity to conduct an audit by an independent actuary every five years of the actuarial valuations, studies, and reports of a public
retirement system most recently prepared for the retirement system as required by Section §802.101 or other law under Title
8 of the Gov’t Code or under Title 109, Revised Statutes. See Gov’t Code §802.1012.}

Funding Soundness Restoration Plan (FSRP): If a defined benefit plan’s amortization period exceeds 40 years over a few
valuations, the public retirement system and its associated governmental entity shall formulate a Funding Soundness
Restoration Plan. The FSRP must be completed within 6 months of the adoption of the valuation which triggered the
requirement.? The system shall report any updates of progress made by the entities toward improved actuarial soundness to
the PRB every two years. See Gov’'t Code §802.2015 and §802.2016.3

Funding Policy: Defined benefit plans are required to adopt a written funding policy detailing the governing body’s plan for
achieving a funded ratio that is equal to or greater than 100% and provide the PRB with subsequently adopted changes within
31 days. See Gov’t Code §802.2011 and PRB Informal Guidance.

Investment Practices and Performance Report: Defined benefit plans are required to select an independent firm to evaluate
their investment practices and performance and make recommendations for improvement. The evaluation must be completed
once every 3 years if the retirement system holds assets totaling at least $100 million or more; or once every 6 years if the
retirement system holds assets totaling at least $30 million but less than $100 million. Retirement systems holding assets less
than $30 million are not required to perform the evaluation. See Gov’t Code §802.109 and PRB Informal Guidance.

Due upon adoption
by the system

Due within 30 days of
adoption by the system

Due within 30 days of
receipt by the
governmental entity

Due within 31 days of
adoption/receipt by the
system

FSRP

Funding Policy (First
policy due to the PRB
by Feb. 1, 2020).

Investment Practices
and Performance Report
(First report due to the
PRB by June 1, 2020).

1The Employees Retirement System of Texas, Judicial Retirement System of Texas Plan Two, Teacher Retirement System of Texas, Texas County and District Retirement System, and the Texas

Municipal Retirement System are exempt from this report.
2 Representative Dennis Paul’s clarification letter: https://www.prb.state.tx.us/txpen/wp-content/uploads/2016/10/Rep-Paul-Letter-FSRP.pdf

3 The Employees Retirement System of Texas, Judicial Retirement System of Texas Plan Two, Teacher Retirement System of Texas, Texas County and District Retirement System, and the Texas

Municipal Retirement System are exempt from this report.
2


https://statutes.capitol.texas.gov/Docs/GV/htm/GV.802.htm#802.101
https://statutes.capitol.texas.gov/Docs/GV/htm/GV.802.htm#802.1014
https://statutes.capitol.texas.gov/Docs/GV/htm/GV.802.htm#802.1012
https://statutes.capitol.texas.gov/Docs/GV/htm/GV.802.htm#802.2015
https://statutes.capitol.texas.gov/Docs/GV/htm/GV.802.htm#802.2016
https://statutes.capitol.texas.gov/Docs/GV/htm/GV.802.htm#802.2011
https://www.prb.texas.gov/txpen/wp-content/uploads/2019/11/Guidance-for-Systems-Developing-a-Funding-Policy.pdf
https://statutes.capitol.texas.gov/Docs/GV/htm/GV.802.htm#802.109
https://www.prb.texas.gov/txpen/wp-content/uploads/2019/10/Investment-Practices-and-Performance-Reports-Guidelines.pdf
https://www.prb.state.tx.us/txpen/wp-content/uploads/2016/10/Rep-Paul-Letter-FSRP.pdf

Summary of Reporting Requirements for Texas Public Retirement Systems

Investment Policy: Defined benefit plans are required to develop and adopt a written investment policy and maintain a copy of

Due within 90 days of
the policy for review at its main office. See Gov’t Code §802.202(d). Y

adoption/amendment

Summary Plan Description: All public retirement systems are required to file and maintain a copy of the system’s summary plan Report any changes within
description. See Gov’t Code §802.106 and 40 TAC, Chapter 605, Form PRB-200. 30 days

Registration: All public retirement systems are required to register with the PRB within 90 days after the plan’s creation date. See Gov’t Code §802.105 and 40
TAC, Chapter 605, Form PRB-100.

Minimum Educational Training (MET) Program Reporting Requirements

Required Reports

Trustee and System Administrator Information: Defined benefit plans must provide the PRB with basic information regarding Report any changes within
their trustees and system administrator at the plan’s creation; and report any changes thereafter. See 40 TAC, Chapter 607, 30 days

Form PRB-150.

Minimum Education Training Program Form: Defined benefit plans must provide the PRB with a report of Due September 1
training completed by trustees and system administrator. See 40 TAC, Chapter 607, Form PRB-2000. Training completed between Aug. 1 of the
previous year and July 31 of the current year.

Optional Forms for Certain Systems

Exemption for Certain System Administrators: Systems may apply for an exemption from the system administrator training requirement if the system has
designated an outside entity (bank or financial institution) as the system administrator, or if the system does not have an administrator that meets the statutory
definition and affirms that a trustee performs this role and will be subject to the training. In both cases, submit a certification letter for exemption of certain system
administrators. See Gov’t Code §801.001(3) and §802.001(4) and 40 TAC, Chapter 607, Form Certification Letter for Exemption of Certain System Administrators.

Sponsor Accreditation: Systems may apply to become an accredited sponsor, using the sponsor approval application, to be able to offer credit for in-house training,
often provided by staff or outside consultants. The in-house training must meet the same standards as training offered by all sponsors. See 40 TAC, Chapter 607,
Form Sponsor Accreditation Application.

Individual Course Approval: The individual course approval application may be used by a system trustee or administrator who wishes to attend an MET activity
from an unaccredited sponsor. The application must be submitted at least 30 days in advance of the activity. The application may also be used by a system that is
not an accredited sponsor but seeks MET credit for in-house training provided to its trustees and/or administrator. See 40 TAC, Chapter 607, Form Individual
Course Approval Application.



https://statutes.capitol.texas.gov/Docs/GV/htm/GV.802.htm#802.202
https://statutes.capitol.texas.gov/Docs/GV/htm/GV.802.htm#802.106
https://www.prb.state.tx.us/txpen/wp-content/uploads/2018/05/PRB_200-Form.pdf
https://statutes.capitol.texas.gov/Docs/GV/htm/GV.802.htm#802.105
https://www.prb.state.tx.us/txpen/wp-content/uploads/2018/05/PRB_100-Form.pdf
https://www.prb.state.tx.us/txpen/wp-content/uploads/2018/03/PRB_150-MET-Program-Form.pdf
https://www.prb.state.tx.us/txpen/wp-content/uploads/2016/08/PRB_2000-Form.pdf
https://statutes.capitol.texas.gov/Docs/GV/htm/GV.801.htm#801.001
https://statutes.capitol.texas.gov/Docs/GV/htm/GV.802.htm#802.001
https://texreg.sos.state.tx.us/public/readtac$ext.ViewTAC?tac_view=5&ti=40&pt=17&ch=607&sch=C&rl=Y
https://www.prb.state.tx.us/txpen/wp-content/uploads/2016/05/MET-Exempt-Form.pdf
https://texreg.sos.state.tx.us/public/readtac$ext.ViewTAC?tac_view=5&ti=40&pt=17&ch=607&sch=C&rl=Y
https://www.prb.state.tx.us/txpen/wp-content/uploads/2018/03/MET-Sponsor-Accreditation-Application.pdf
https://texreg.sos.state.tx.us/public/readtac$ext.ViewTAC?tac_view=5&ti=40&pt=17&ch=607&sch=C&rl=Y
https://www.prb.state.tx.us/txpen/wp-content/uploads/2018/03/MET-Individual-Course-Approval-Application.pdf
https://www.prb.state.tx.us/txpen/wp-content/uploads/2018/03/MET-Individual-Course-Approval-Application.pdf

Summary of Reporting Requirements for Texas Public Retirement Systems

Other Reporting Requirements

Internet Posting of Reports and Information

If a retirement system maintains its own website, the system shall prominently post on its website its system administrator’s contact information and reports and
registration information submitted to the PRB. If a system does not have its own website, it has the option to post the information on its sponsoring entity’s
website or on a state agency website, such as the PRB. The PRB will help systems without a website comply with these requirements through its agency website.
See Gov’'t Code §802.107.

Exemptions

Plans exempt from reporting to the Pension Review Board: Volunteer firefighter retirement systems organized under the Texas Local Fire Fighter’s Retirement
Act (TLFFRA) and defined contribution plans are only subject to the registration, summary plan description, and internet posting requirements of the Government
Code. These systems are exempt from all the other reporting requirements. See Gov’'t Code §802.002 (c) & (d).

Plans exempt from registering and reporting to the Pension Review Board: Plans offering only worker’s compensation; plans administered by the federal
government; Individual Retirement Account (IRA); plans claiming 401(d), 403(b), or 457(b) tax status under the Internal Revenue Code; and plans administered by
life insurance companies. See Gov’t Code §802.001.

To obtain the various PRB Reporting Forms referenced in this document; informal guidance, and memorandums outlining updated reporting requirements for
retirement systems please click here.

With questions or for additional information, please feel free to contact the PRB at 512-463-1736/800-213-9425 or prb@prb.texas.gov.

DISCLAIMER: Every care is taken to make sure the content and information in this document is accurate and up to date. However, this document should not be treated as a legal reference or a
complete statement of the laws or administrative rules of the Pension Review Board. In any conflict between the information contained in this document and Texas Laws or administrative rules,
the laws and administrative rules shall prevail.


https://statutes.capitol.texas.gov/Docs/GV/htm/GV.802.htm#802.107
https://statutes.capitol.texas.gov/Docs/GV/htm/GV.802.htm#802.002
https://statutes.capitol.texas.gov/Docs/GV/htm/GV.802.htm#802.001
http://www.prb.state.tx.us/resource-center/trustees-administrators/plan-reporting-information/
mailto:PRB@prb.state.tx.us

TAB 3C



Pension Review Board
February 6, 2020

Public Retirement System Compliance and Reporting

As of January 24, 2020

Compliance

Current Board Meeting

Previous Board Meeting

Non-Compliant Plans 4 13
Compliant Plans 95 86
Total Plans Registered 99 99

Summary of Plans Non-Compliant over 60 Days

Plan Type

Current Board Meeting

Previous Board Meeting

Defined Benefit

4

3

Plans Non-Compliant over 60 Days

In accordance with 801.209(b) of the Texas Government Code, this list includes all plans who have not
submitted one or more of the following reports to the Texas Pension Review Board by the 60" day after
the date the reports are due: annual financial, membership, and investment returns and assumptions
report (PRB-1000).

Fiscal Year Retirement System Due Date
2017/2018 Nacogdoches County Hospital District Retirement Plan 1/27/2019
2018 Northeast Medical Center Hospital Retirement Plan 1/27/2019
2018 Refugio County Memorial Hospital District Retirement Plan 5/30/2019
2018 Texas City Firemen’s Relief & Retirement Fund 7/30/2019

Total Net Assets (Based on most recent financial reports)

Previous Board Meeting
$279,055,151,510

Current Board Meeting
$282,212,504,492

Total Net Assets




THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK



R B
Texas
Pension
Review
Board

Stephanie V. Leibe
Chair

Keith Brainard
Vice Chair

Marcia Dush
Rossy Farifa-Strauss
Ernest Richards, Esq.

Shari Shivers

Anumeha “Anu” Kumar
Executive Director

Mailing Address:
P.O. Box 13498
Austin Texas 78711-3498

Telephone:
(512) 463-1736
(800) 213-9425

Fax: .
{612) 463-1882

Web Site:
www.prb.state.tx.us

Email: -
prb@prb.texas.gov

November 12, 2019

ATTN: City Commission
City of Texas City
1801 9th Avenue North

‘Texas City, TX 77592

This letter is in regard to the non-compliance of Texas City Firemen’s Relief & Retirement
Fund with State reporting requirements under Chapter 802 of the Texas Government Code.

The Pension Review Board (PRB) has previously notified the plan that the 2018 annual
financial report, membership report, and Investment Returns and Assumptions Report (Form
PRB-1000) for Texas City Firemen’s Relief & Retirement Fund were due on 7/30/2019.
Chapter 802 of the Texas Government Code requires that annual plan reports are due to the
PRB no later than 210 days after the end of your fiscal year.

Texas City Firemen’s Relief & Retirement Fund’s abovementioned reports are overdue by 60
days; hence, in accordance with Section 801.209(b) of the Texas Government Code, the plan
has been included on the List of Plans Non-Compliant Over 60 Days posted on the PRB
website.

Continued failure to submit these required reports to the PRB could result in Texas City
Firemen’s Relief & Retirement Fund being placed on an upcoming Board agenda for formal
discussion as a non-compliant plan. Additionally, the Board has the right under Chapter 802
of the Texas Government Code to issue subpoenas to those non-compliant plans who do not
file their reports in a timely manner.

Once the plan submits the reports and becomes compliant, the PRB will remove its name
from the non-compliant list and we will send a compliance letter to the plan.

The PRB appreciates your attention to this matter. If you have any questions regarding this
letter or would like to appear before the Board, please let me know.

Sincerely,

MK.

Anumeha Kumar

Executive Director

Texas Pension Review Board
(800) 213-9425

(512) 463-1736

cc: Texas City Firemen’s Relief & Retirement Fund



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK



STATE PENSION REVIEW BOARD OF TEXAS

Total Net Assets

List of the total net assets of all active plans based on the most recent financial report received.

Plan Name

Teacher Retirement System of Texas

Texas County & District Retirement System
Texas Municipal Retirement System
Employees Retirement System of Texas
Houston Police Officers' Pension System
Houston Firefighters' Relief & Retirement Fund
Dallas Employees' Retirement Fund

San Antonio Fire & Police Pension Fund
Houston Municipal Employees Pension System
Austin Employees' Retirement System

Fort Worth Employees' Retirement Fund

Dallas Police & Fire Pension System-Combined Plan

CPS Energy Pension Plan

Dallas County Hospital District Retirement Income Plan

Law Enforcement & Custodial Officer Supplemental Retirement Fund

Austin Fire Fighters Relief & Retirement Fund
City of El Paso Employees Retirement Trust
El Paso Police Pension Fund

Austin Police Retirement System

Harris County Hospital District Pension Plan

El Paso Firemen's Pension Fund

Dallas/Fort Worth Airport Board Retirement Plan

Judicial Retirement System of Texas Plan Two

Lower Colorado River Authority Retirement Plan

Monday, January 27, 2020

Report Date
8/31/2019
12/31/2018
12/31/2018
8/31/2019
6/30/2019
6/30/2019
12/31/2018
12/31/2018
6/30/2018
12/31/2018
9/30/2018
12/31/2018
12/31/2018
12/31/2018
8/31/2019
12/31/2018
8/31/2018
12/31/2018
12/31/2018
12/31/2018
12/31/2018
12/31/2018
8/31/2019

12/31/2018

Net Assets
$157,978,199,075
$29,260,546,258
$27,683,629,439
$27,351,224,157
$5,674,647,000
$4,237,692,080
$3,282,313,000
$3,015,157,000
$2,988,864,278
$2,461,383,437
$2,324,335,575
$2,041,914,130
$1,522,045,827
$947,679,000
$943,622,645
$909,117,796
$819,966,288
$798,668,082
$718,519,641
$634,715,986
$550,808,171
$493,301,000
$456,192,249

$382,638,000

Page 1 of 4



Plan Name

University Health System Pension Plan

San Antonio Metropolitan Transit Retirement Plan
JPS Pension Plan - Tarrant County Hospital District
Houston MTA Workers Union Pension Plan

Irving Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund

Dallas/Fort Worth Airport Board DPS Retirement Plan

DART Employees' Defined Benefit Retirement Plan & Trust

Lubbock Fire Pension Fund

Port of Houston Authority Retirement Plan
Amarillo Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund
Houston MTA Non-Union Pension Plan

Laredo Firefighters Retirement System

Plano Retirement Security Plan

Corpus Christi Fire Fighters' Retirement System
Texas Emergency Services Retirement System
Beaumont Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund
Retirement Plan for Citizens Medical Center
Denton Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund
Midland Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund
Retirement Plan for Guadalupe Regional Medical Center
Tyler Firefighters' Relief & Retirement Fund

San Angelo Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund
Irving Supplemental Benefit Plan

Abilene Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund
McAllen Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund
Galveston Employees' Retirement Fund

Wichita Falls Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund
Port Arthur Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund
Temple Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund
Killeen Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund
Nacogdoches County Hospital District Retirement Plan

Galveston Firefighter's Relief & Retirement Fund

Monday, January 27, 2020

Report Date
12/31/2018
9/30/2018
9/30/2018
12/31/2018
12/31/2018
12/31/2018
9/30/2018
12/31/2018
7/31/2018
12/31/2018
12/31/2018
9/30/2018
12/31/2018
12/31/2018
8/31/2019
12/31/2018
2/28/2018
12/31/2018
12/31/2018
12/31/2018
12/31/2018
12/31/2018
12/31/2018
9/30/2018
9/30/2018
12/31/2018
12/31/2018
12/31/2018
9/30/2018
9/30/2018
6/30/2016

12/31/2018

Net Assets
$360,796,823
$298,393,797
$292,597,099
$254,400,189
$195,301,301
$188,059,000
$186,845,000
$186,484,535
$184,287,781
$162,766,406
$162,565,041
$154,813,837
$139,932,167
$139,811,086
$115,155,476
$105,769,426
$105,541,328
$86,834,224
$80,013,420
$67,977,745
$64,599,095
$61,210,766
$58,112,359
$57,127,453
$52,675,409
$48,514,329
$46,695,574
$44,767,145
$44,243,769
$43,947,221
$43,662,691

$42,488,301

Page 2 of 4



Plan Name

Longview Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund

Odessa Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund

Corpus Christi Regional Transportation Authority

The Woodlands Firefighters' Retirement System

Harlingen Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund

Texarkana Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund

Capital MTA Retirement Plan for Bargaining Unit Employees
Capital MTA Retirement Plan for Administrative Employees
Guadalupe-Blanco River Authority

Conroe Fire Fighters' Retirement Fund

Northwest Texas Healthcare System Retirement Plan
Travis County ESD #6 Firefighter's Relief & Retirement Fund
Brazos River Authority Retirement Plan

Cleburne Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund

Dallas Police & Fire Pension System-Supplemental
Galveston Employees' Retirement Plan for Police
Waxahachie Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund

Denison Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund

Texas City Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund

Lufkin Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund

Galveston Wharves Pension Plan

Greenville Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund

Weslaco Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund

Big Spring Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund

Northeast Medical Center Hospital Retirement Plan

University Park Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund

Colorado River Municipal Water District Defined Benefit Retirement P

Corsicana Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund
Orange Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund
Sweetwater Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund
Marshall Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund

Plainview Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund

Monday, January 27, 2020

Report Date
12/31/2018
12/31/2018
12/31/2018
12/31/2018
9/30/2018

12/31/2018
12/31/2018
12/31/2018
12/31/2018
12/31/2018
9/30/2018

12/31/2018
2/28/2019

12/31/2018
12/31/2018
12/31/2018
9/30/2018

12/31/2018
12/31/2017
12/31/2018
12/31/2018
12/31/2018
9/30/2018

12/31/2018
6/30/2017

12/31/2018
12/31/2018
12/31/2018
12/31/2018
12/31/2018
12/31/2018

12/31/2018

Net Assets

$41,560,527
$39,242,633
$33,900,178
$32,950,794
$32,903,824
$31,355,515
$29,894,536
$29,770,966
$28,731,703
$24,501,501
$23,368,205
$20,894,159
$19,851,827
$19,362,807
$18,317,893
$17,856,397
$17,428,039
$16,588,602
$16,117,766
$15,659,035
$12,500,685
$12,254,104
$11,577,179
$10,895,730
$9,578,580

$9,447,674

$9,251,681

$8,563,597

$7,961,733

$7,760,982

$7,278,840

$5,436,791

Page 3 of 4



Plan Name

Fort Worth Employees' Retirement Fund Staff Plan

Retirement Plan for Employees of Brownsville Navigation District

Paris Firefighters' Relief & Retirement Fund

Brownwood Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund

San Benito Firemen Relief & Retirement Fund

Atlanta Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund

Retirement Plan for Sweeny Community Hospital
Arlington Employees Deferred Income Plan

Refugio County Memorial Hospital District Retirement Plan
Retirement Plan for Anson General Hospital

El Paso Firemen & Policemen's Pension Staff Plan and Trust

TOTAL $282,212,504,492

Monday, January 27, 2020

Report Date
9/30/2018
12/31/2018
12/31/2018
12/31/2018
9/30/2018
12/31/2018
12/31/2018
6/30/2018
10/31/2017
6/30/2018

12/31/2018

Net Assets
$5,167,655
$4,890,148
$4,152,311
$3,834,051
$3,824,045
$3,801,043
$3,023,456
$2,819,601
$2,227,940
$1,948,662

$481,190

Page 4 of 4



TAB 3D



Pension Review Board
February 6, 2020

Updates on the Intensive Actuarial Reviews of the Odessa Firemen’s Relief & Retirement

Fund (Odessa Fire) and Paris Firefighters’ Relief & Retirement Fund (Paris Fire)

Odessa Fire:

The City of Odessa and the Odessa Firemen’s Relief & Retirement Fund have made the following changes
since the PRB’s actuarial intensive review last October:

1.

2.
3.

The City of Odessa has agreed to increase its contribution rate from 20% to 26%, effective as of
January 1, 2020. The plan members voted favorably to decrease their contribution rate from 18%
to 16% in December. Together, the changes amount to a total contribution increase of 4%. The
City and Odessa Fire will continue to monitor the contribution changes, and noted that further
changes were possible if future economic conditions are favorable.

Odessa Fire has lowered the assumed rate of return from 7.75% to 7.50%.

The City has agreed to build a new fire station which is expected to increase the active
membership significantly. Active membership has already increased from 160 as of 12/31/2018,
to 204 as of 12/20/2019. The initial timeline for increases in the active membership predicted 180
by 1/1/2020 and 210 by 1/1/2022, so roughly 90% of the final expected total active members
have already been realized.

Paris Fire:

Staff was informed by the plan that no changes have been made since the October intensive review.

Minimum Educational Training update since the intensive review:

Two additional board members have completed the Core and are now compliant with MET
requirements.

In summary, of 7 trustees, Paris Fire now has 3 who are compliant with MET requirements and
4 who are non-compliant. Three trustees have still not completed their initial 7-hour Core.



TAB 3E



February 6, 2020

TEXAS

%

PENSION
REVIEw BOARD

Summary of Funding Soundness Restoration Plans (FSRPs) Submitted Since the Prior PRB Meeting

Texas Government Code Section 802.2015(e) requires FSRPs to be developed by the public retirement system and its associated governmental entity in
accordance with the system's governing statute; and be designed to achieve a contribution rate that will be sufficient to amortize the unfunded actuarial accrued
liability within 40 years not later than the 10" anniversary of the date on which the final version of an FSRP is agreed to. The following table summarizes the
FSRPs received by the PRB since the last board meeting.

Retirement System

FSRP Trigger
Amortization

Period

Employee
Contributions

Employer

Contributions

Plan Changes ‘

Other

Odessa Firefighters’ Relief & Retirement
Fund — Revised FSRP?

77.5 years

Before: 18.00%
After: 16.00%

Before: 20.00%
After: 26.00%

e Lowered the assumed rate of investment return
from 7.75% to 7.50%

Wichita Falls Firemen's Relief &
Retirement Fund — Revised FSRP?!

Infinite

N/A

N/A

e Added a cap on the maximum accrued benefit of
$100,000 per year
e Changed the final average salary period from 3
years to 5 years for all members
o Amended the normal form of annuity payment
from a 66 2/3% Joint & Survivor Annuity to a Life
Only Annuity
e Contingency plans to lower amortization period
below 40 years if future valuations show
amortization periods greater than 40 years

1Texas Government Code Section 802.2015(d) requires systems to formulate a revised FSRP if the system conducts an actuarial valuation showing that the system's amortization

period exceeds 40 years, and the previously formulated FSRP has not been adhered to.



Pension Review Board
February 6, 2020

Systems Immediately Subject to FSRP Formulation Requirement

The FSRP requirement is triggered for retirement systems that have had amortization periods over 40 years for three consecutive annual actuarial valuations,
or two consecutive actuarial valuations if the systems conduct the valuations every two or three years.

Systems Immediately Subject to FSRP Formulation Requirement

Retirement System

University Park Firemen’s Relief & Retirement Fund

Date of AV

Am

Period

Date of AV

Am
Period

Date of AV

FSRP
Due Date

— Revised FSRP 81.3 12/31/2012 53.7 1/1/2015 Infinite 12/31/2016 10/23/2018
Irving Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund -

_ Revised FSRP* 63.4 1/1/2014 46.5 12/31/2015 Infinite 12/31/2017 4/17/2019
Midland Firemen’s Relief & Retirement Fund -

— Revised FSRP 59.1 1/1/2014 447 12/31/2015 Infinite 12/31/2017 8/21/2019
Longview Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 50.7 12/31/2016 40.2 12/31/2017 Infinite 12/31/2018 2/12/2020
Orange Firemen’s Relief & Retirement Fund . .

— Second Revised FSRP! 58.2 1/1/2015 69.3 1/1/2017 Infinite 1/1/2019 4/18/2020
Marshall Firemen’s Relief & Retirement Fund

— Revised FSRP 43.2 12/31/2014 56.4 12/31/2016 59.0 12/31/2018 5/5/2020

Beaumont Firemen’s Relief & Retirement Fund 39.1 12/31/2014 104.0 12/31/2016 Infinite 12/31/2018 7/17/2020

1Texas Government Code Section 802.2015(d) requires systems to formulate a revised FSRP if the system conducts an actuarial valuation showing that the system's amortization
period exceeds 40 years, and the previously formulated FSRP has not been adhered to.




Pension Review Board
February 6, 2020

Systems at Risk of FSRP Formulation Requirement

These at-risk systems' most recent actuarial valuation shows an amortization period that exceeds 40 years but does not yet trigger the FSRP requirement.

Systems at Risk of FSRP - Not Yet Subject to FSRP Requirement

Retirement System

Am
Period

Date of AV

Am
Period

Date of AV

Am
Period

Date of AV

FSRP
Due Date

McAllen Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 43.9 9/30/2012 29.0 10/1/2014 41.4 10/1/2016 N/A
Amarillo Firemen’s Relief & Retirement Fund 28.8 1/1/2014 34,5 12/31/2015 435 12/31/2017 N/A
Plainview Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 31.4 12/31/2013 31.6 12/31/2015 44.8 12/31/2017 N/A
Laredo Firefighters Retirement System 29.8 9/30/2014 28.0 9/30/2016 43.0 9/30/2018 N/A
Atlanta Firemen’s Relief & Retirement Fund 36.2 12/31/2014 28.4 12/31/2016 Infinite 12/31/2018 N/A
Austin Police Retirement System 27.3 12/31/2016 35.0 12/31/2017 Infinite 12/31/2018 N/A
Cleburne Firemen’s Relief & Retirement Fund 27.3 12/31/2014 28.8 12/31/2016 48.6 12/31/2018 N/A
Conroe Fire Fighter’s Retirement Fund 31.4 12/31/2015 39.0 12/31/2017 Infinite 12/31/2018 N/A




Pension Review Board
February 6, 2020

Progress Report on Previously Submitted FSRPs

The following systems have previously formulated an FSRP. The table below outlines their progress towards the FSRP requirement.

Systems Still Working Towards Meeting the 40-Year Amortization Period Requirement

FSRP Trigger ‘ Current Progress’
Am Am Update
Retirement System Period Date Period Date Required
Fort Worth Employees’ Retirement Fund Infinite 12/31/2016 44.0 12/31/2018 2026 5/2021
Harlingen Firemen’s Relief & Retirement Fund — Revised FSRP 59.1 9/30/2017 30.03 9/30/2017 2026 6/2021
Dallas Employees’ Retirement Fund Infinite 12/31/2015 46.0 12/31/2018 2026 7/2021
Wichita Falls Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund — Revised FSRP Infinite 1/1/2018 <47 1/1/2018 2026 8/2021
Greenville Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund — Revised FSRP 55.0 12/31/2016 40.7 12/31/2018 2026 9/2021
Odessa Firefighters’ Relief & Retirement Fund — Revised FSRP 77.5 1/1/2019 <48 1/1/2019 2026 12/2022
Systems that Have Submitted Post-FSRP Actuarial Valuations Showing Amortization Period Below 40 Years
Dallas Police & Fire Pension System (Combined Plan) 44.0 1/1/2017 38.0* 1/1/2019 2027 N/A

1 Based on the most recent valuation or FSRP.

2The year in which a system must reach an amortization period of 40 years or less.

3 The amortization period reflects estimates of actions that occurred after the valuation date. The system will be removed from the list if a subsequent valuation reflects an
amortization period of 40 years or less.

4 The amortization period reflects a payroll projection based upon the City of Dallas’ Hiring Plan which has yet to materialize, a concern that was noted by the system’s actuary in
its latest actuarial valuation.



Pension Review Board
February 6, 2020

Previously Completed FSRP Requirement Systems

The following table contains all systems that have formulated an FSRP which has lowered their amortization period below 40 years in a subsequent actuarial
valuation.

Systems that Have Submitted Post-FSRP Actuarial Valuations Showing Amortization Period Below 40 Years

FSRP Trigger Completed Progress’
Am
Retirement System Am Period Date Period Date Goal Year?
Galveston Employees' Retirement Plan for Police 55.1 1/1/2014 35.3 1/1/2018 2026
Galveston Firefighter's Relief & Retirement Fund — REVISED FSRP Infinite 12/31/2016 26.8 12/31/2017 2026
Lufkin Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 40.6 12/31/2014 33.1 12/31/2016 2026
Sweetwater Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 58.8 12/31/2014 27.5 12/31/2016 2026

1 Based on the valuation in which the system completed its FSRP requirement.
2The year in which a system was expected to reach an amortization period of 40 years or less.




THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK



December 19, 2019

VIA EMAIL

Texas Pension Review Board
P.O. Box 13498
Austin, TX 78711-3498

Re: Odessa Firefighters’ Relief and Retirement Fund
Funding Soundness Restoration Plan (Updated)

To Whom It May Concern:

As required under Sections 802.2015 and 802.2016 of the Texas Government Code, a public retirement
system is required to formulate a Funding Soundness Restoration Plan (FSRP) in accordance with the
system’s governing statute if:

- As of their most recent valuation, a system has had three (3) consecutive annual valuations which
show that the system’s amortization period exceeds 40 years, or

- As of their most recent valuation, a system has had two (2) consecutive valuations if the system
conducts actuarial valuations every two or three years, which show that the system’s amortization
period exceeds 40 years

Based on these requirements, the Odessa Firefighters’ Relief and Retirement Fund (Fund) formulated a
Funding Soundness Restoration Plan which was submitted to the Texas Pension Review Board (PRB) in
2016. The original FSRP detailed the significant changes that were implemented by the Fund to improve
the actuarial soundness and comply with the requirements of the referenced sections of the Texas
Government Code.

Following completion of the January 1, 2019 actuarial valuation, the actuary determined that the
amortization period of the Fund was equal to 77.5 years. Based on these results, the PRB deemed that the
Fund was out of compliance with its original FSRP, as the Fund was no longer expected to achieve an
amortization period of 40 years or fewer by 2026.

Fund representatives attended the September 19, 2019 PRB meeting to discuss the intensive actuarial
review that was performed by the PRB and its staff. While the PRB commended the Fund for all of the
steps that were taken in 2016 to improve the actuarial soundness of the fund, it was discussed that further
changes were needed for the Fund to remain in FSRP compliance. Following that meeting, many
discussions have taken place with the City, the Board, and the Board’s actuary to reformulate a funding
soundness restoration plan.

Fund Changes to be Implemented in 2020

Effective January 1, 2020, the City Council (via unanimous vote) approved to increase the City’s annual
contribution rate to the Fund from 20.00% to 26.00% of pensionable compensation. Also, following a
secret ballot vote which closed on December 12, 2019, the membership (via majority vote) approved
reducing the member contribution rate from 18.00% to 16.00% of pensionable compensation. Please also
note the Board approved lowering the assumed rate of investment return from 7.75% to 7.50%. net of all
expenses.



Texas Pension Review Board
Page 2
December 19, 2019

As detailed in Foster & Foster’s response to the PRB’s intensive actuarial review, and further discussed
with the PRB at the September 19" meeting, the City has agreed to add another fire station, and the
department size is expected to grow significantly over the next few years.

Based on these parameters, along with an estimated actual investment return (net of expenses) in calendar
2019 of 13% based on return information provided by the Fund’s investment consultant, the City
requested that Foster & Foster perform a projection analysis to estimate the amortization period in the
coming years. The table below summarizes the estimated amortization period for the years 2019-2028, as
shown in the projection analysis. As you can see, it is estimated that the Fund’s amortization period will
decrease steadily in the coming years.

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028
47.9 41.6 41.1 323 31.8 30.5 29.5 28.4 27.2 26.1

Amortization
Period

As detailed in this letter. the Fund and the City have gone through further measures to improve and
restore actuarial soundness and long-term sustainability to the Fund. We believe that the changes, as
presented, will achieve the objective of having a contribution rate that will yield an amortization period at
or below 40 years no later than the year 2026, indicating that the Fund is in compliance with the FSRP
requirements.

Please note the contents of this letter have been reviewed by the Fund’s actuary.
If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact us.

Respectfully submitted,

A /

i Boles, C ity Comptroller / Pension Board Trustee



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK



August 21, 2019
VIA EMAIL

Texas Pension Review Board
P.O. Box 13498
Austin, TX 78711-3498

Re: Wichita Falls Firemen’s Relief and Retirement Fund
Funding Soundness Restoration Plan (Updated)

To Whom It May Concern:

As required under Sections 802.2015 and 802.2016 of the Texas Government Code, a public retirement
system is required to formulate a Funding Soundness Restoration Plan (FSRP) in accordance with the
system’s governing statute if:

- As of their most recent valuation, a system has had three (3) consecutive annual valuations which
show that the system’s amortization period exceeds 40 years, or

- As of their most recent valuation, a system has had two (2) consecutive valuations if the system
conducts actuarial valuations every two or three years, which show that the system’s amortization
period exceeds 40 years

Based on these requirements, the Wichita Falls Firemen’s Relief and Retirement Fund (Fund) formulated
a Funding Soundness Restoration Plan which was submitted to the Texas Pension Review Board (PRB) in
2016. The details of the original FSRP included steps that would be implemented based on the
calculation amortization at certain future valuation dates. Below shows the plan that was included in the
FSRP based on the January 1, 2018 actuarial valuation.

1/1/2018 Amortization Period (MV Basis) Planned Action to Implement
<50 Years None
50-74 Years Amend benefits to return amortization period
below 50 years
75-100 Years Amend benefits to return amortization period
below 50 years
100+ Years Amend benefits to return amortization period

below 75 years

Following the completion of the January 1, 2018 actuarial valuation, the actuary determined that the
amortization period of the Fund was at an infinite level. Based on the above table, this meant that in order
to remain in compliance with the FSRP, the Fund needed to increase contributions or amend benefits such
that the amortization period would be below 75 years.

Following a number of analyses performed by the actuary and discussions with the plan membership, the
participants of the plan entered into a ballot vote that included two options for plan amendments which
would result in an amortization period, determined as of January 1, 2018, that would result in an
amortization period below 75 years. As a result of that vote, the following benefit amendments are set to
implemented into the Fund, effective September 1, 2019 for all active participants:



Texas Pension Review Board
Page 2
August 21, 2019

- A maximum accrued benefit cap of $100,000 per year
- The average final compensation period was increased from 3 years to 5 years

- The normal form of annuity payment was amended from a 66 2/3% Joint & Survivor Annuity to a
Life Only Annuity

Based on the analysis performed by the actuary, the combination of the changes listed above would result
in an amortization period that is below 50 years, determined as of January 1, 2018.

It is important to point out that these changes were implemented in order to remain in compliance with the
original FSRP that was submitted to the PRB in 2016. Future changes to the Fund will depend on future
actuarial valuation results, as outlined in the original FSRP and stated below.

1/1/2022 Amortization Period (MV Basis) Planned Action to Implement
<40 Years None
40-49 Years Amend benefits to return amortization period
below 40 years
50-74 Years Amend benefits to return amortization period
below 40 years
75-100 Years Amend benefits to return amortization period
below 50 years
100+ Years Amend benefits to return amortization period

below 75 years

1/1/2026 Amortization Period (MV Basis) Planned Action to Implement
<40 Years None
40+ Years Amend benefits to return amortization period

below 40 years

Please note the contents of this letter have been reviewed by the Fund’s actuary. We believe the details
presented, along with the alternatives that will be considered based on future valuation results, will
improve the actuarial soundness of the Fund and assist in the objective of achieving and maintaining an
amortization period that is below 40 years.



Texas Pension Review Board
Page 3
August 21, 2019

If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact us.

Respectfully submitted,

2

Ray ¥/ 0od, Pension Board C

O Ldineon>

Chris Duncan, Pension Plan Administrator

¢ y’ [d‘(./-“;’k/\/‘
Jessica Williams, City Finance Director

/‘L/'A' .




TAB 4



Pension Review Board
February 6, 2020

Minimum Educational Training (MET) Program
Public Retirement System Reporting as of January 28, 2020

Below is a summary of systems’ reporting compliance with the Minimum Educational Training (MET)
Program. The MET Program has two compliance requirements: (1) system administrators and trustees
must complete the required training hours and (2) systems must report their trustees' and administrator's
completed hours of training. The following report shows only the systems' submission of required MET
reporting.

Minimum Educational Training Program Form (PRB-2000)

Current Board Meeting

Previous Board Meeting

Compliant Systems 86 59
Non-Compliant Systems 2 29
Total Systems 88 88

Summary of Plans Non-Compliant over 60 Days

Current Board Meeting

Previous Board Meeting

| PRB-2000

2

1

Plans Non-Compliant over 60 Days: Minimum Educational Training Program

In accordance with 801.209(b) of the Texas Government Code, this list includes all plans which have not
submitted the required Minimum Educational Training Program Form (PRB-2000) to the State Pension
Review Board by the 60" day after the date the report is due.

Year Retirement System Due Date
2019 Dallas County Hospital District Retirement Income Plan 10/1/2019
2019 Refugio County Memorial Hospital District Retirement Plan 10/1/2019




TAB 5



Pension Review Board
February 6, 2020

2020 TLFFRA Report Outline

1) Introduction

a.

d
e.
f

g.

About the PRB

o Board Composition

o Primary Duties

Texas Local Fire Fighters Retirement Act
o Background Summary

o Volunteer TLFFRA Systems Summary
PRB Duties for TLFFRA Systems

o TLFFRA Training

o TLFFRA Appeals to SOAH

o TLFFRA Specialists

PRB Pension Funding Guidelines

PRB Principles of Retirement Plan Design
Executive Summary

Executive Letter

2) Financial (as of most recently submitted financial audit)

a.

TLFFRA Aggregate Financial Snapshot

o Revenue (Contributions, Investment Income, Other Income)

o Disbursements (Benefits Paid, Contributions Withdrawn, Expenses)
o Financial Liabilities (Payables, Securities Lending Obligations)

o Net Total Assets

Market Value of Assets (MVA) Breakdown by Plan

Combined Revenue

Combined Disbursements

Total (Gross) Assets

Total Financial Liabilities

o O O O O

Total Net Assets

Number of Plans by MVA Group (Current vs. Previous) — Bar Chart
GASB 67 Disclosures

o Total Pension Liability (TPL)

Fiduciary Net Position (FNP)

Net Pension Liability (NPL = TPL - FNP)

FNP as a Percentage of TPL (% Funded)

Preliminary Discount Rate

o O O O



Pension Review Board 2020 TLFFRA Report Outline
February 6, 2020
o TPL Discount Rate
o NPL at Discount Rate -1%
o NPL at Discount Rate +1%
e. DROP Balance as a Percent of Assets
o DROP Balance
o Fiduciary Net Position (FNP)
o DROP Balance as a Percentage of FNP
f. Net Investment Rates of Return by Plan
o 1-Year Returns
o 3-Year Returns
o 10-Year Returns
o 30-Year/Oldest Available Returns
o Assumed Rate of Return
g. Asset Allocation (2008 vs. 2018) — Bar Chart
3) Actuarial (as of most recently reviewed actuarial valuation, unless otherwise noted)
a. Assumptions and Methods by Plan
o Actuarial Cost Method
o Asset Valuation Method
o Assumed Investment Rate of Return
o Assumed Inflation Rate
o Assumed Payroll Growth Rate
b. Latest AV Summary by Plan
Actuary
Valuation Date
Actuarial Value of Assets (AVA)
Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL)
Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability (UAAL)
Funded Ratio
Covered Payroll
UAAL/Payroll Ratio

Amortization Period

o O O O O O O o O

Number of Plans by AVA Group (Current vs. Previous) — Bar Chart

Number of Plans by Discount Rate Group (Current vs. Previous) — Bar Chart
Amortization Period Groupings (Current vs. Previous) — Bar Chart
Amortization Periods by Plan — Bar Chart

Funded Ratio by Plan — Bar Chart

> @ ™~ 0 o o

Schedule of Funding Progress



Pension Review Board
February 6, 2020

o O O O O O o o

Valuation Dates (Latest Three Valuations per Plan)
Actuarial Value of Assets (AVA)

Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL)

Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability (UAAL)
Funded Ratio

Covered Payroll

UAAL/Payroll Ratio

Amortization Period

i. Plan Contributions

@)

O

Plan Status (Active or Closed)

Fiscal Year End

Covered Payroll

Total Normal Cost (Percent of Payroll)
Employee Contribution (Percent of Payroll)
Employer Normal Cost (Percent of Payroll)

Amortization Payment (Percent of Payroll)

Employer Recommended Contribution (Percent of Payroll)

Actual Employer Contribution (Percent of Payroll)

2020 TLFFRA Report Outline

Actual Employer Contribution Type (Fixed, Actuarial or Other)

Percent of Recommended Contribution Paid

j. Plan Membership (as of most recently received membership report)

o O O O O

Active Members

Total Annuitants (Retirees and Beneficiaries)
Terminated Members

Total Members

Ratio of Active Members to Annuitants

k. Aggregate AVA vs. AAL (time series graph of aggregate TLFFRA data from PRB Actuarial
Valuation Reports since 2013)

O

O

O

O

Actuarial Value of Assets (AVA)
Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL)
Funded Ratio

2013 & 2019 UAAL

4) Benefits

a. Benefit Summaries

e}

O

Tier (if applicable)
Eligible Members

o Normal Retirement Eligibility Requirements (Age/Years of Credited Service)



Pension Review Board 2020 TLFFRA Report Outline
February 6, 2020

o O O O O

Benefit Formula

Final Average Salary

Cost of Living Adjustment (COLA)

Retirement Benefit Options (DROP, Partial Lump Sum Option)

Social Security Participation (Yes/No)

b. DROP-specific table

O

O O O O

@)

O

Type of DROP (Forward, Retro, Reverse or Immediate)

Interest Credit

Maximum Duration

COLA Credited (Yes/No)

Employee Contributions Credited (Yes/No)

Ability of the Spouse to Continue After Death of Member (Yes/No)

Withdrawal Options (How Often, Minimum/Maximum)

5) Directory
a. Plan Contacts (Paid/Part-Paid & Volunteer Plans)

@)

@)

O

@)

Chairperson
Address

Phone Number
Website

b. Plan Contractor Information (Paid/Part-Paid Plans)

o O O O O O

O

Accountant

Actuary

Attorney

Auditor

Investment Consultant
Investment Custodian / Bank

Investment Manager(s)

6) Glossary of Included Pension Terms



TAB 6



METHOD OF FINANCING
General Revenue
Contigency Rider for SB 322

Total Method of Financing

OBJECT OF EXPENSE
Exempt Salaries
Classified Salaries
Other Personal Exp / Longevity Pay
Retirement Deduction .5% Salary
Benefit Replacement Pay
Non-Overnight Meals

Sub-Total Salaries & Wages

Professional Fees and Services
Consumable Supplies

Travel

Rent-Building (Record Storage)
Rent-Machine & Other (Copier/Software)

Operating Costs (Miscellaneous)
Telecommunication Services
Education and Training
Postage
Printing
Subscription/Publications
PHC Deduction 1% Salary
Hardware & Software

Sub-Total Operating Cost

Total Object of Expense

LBB
Ob;j.
Code

1001A
1001B
1002A
1002B
1004

1001C

2001
2003
2005A
2006
2007

2009A
2009D
2009B
2009C
2009E
2009G
2009H
2009F

»

TExAS PENSION
REVIEW BOARD

OPERATING BUDGET
FISCAL YEAR 2020
As of December 31, 2019

GAA ADJUSTED TOTAL TOTAL PERCENT REMAINING PERCENT
BUDGETED BUDGETED BUDGETED EXPENDED ENCUMBRANCES EXPENDED BALANCE REMAINING
$1,053,749.00 $1,053,749.00

$75,000.00 $75,000.00

$0.00 $0.00

$1,128,749.00 $0.00 $1,128,749.00
$126,730.00 $126,730.00 $42,243.32 33.33% $84,486.68 66.67%
$899,228.00 $899,228.00 $236,022.39 26.25% $663,205.61 73.75%
$14,600.00 $14,600.00 $2,220.00 15.21% $12,380.00 84.79%
$5,000.00 $5,000.00 $1,383.80 27.68% $3,616.20 72.32%
$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $0.00 100.00%
$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $0.00 100.00%
$1,045,558.00 $0.00 $1,045,558.00 $281,869.51 $0.00 26.96% $763,688.49 73.04%

$12,500.00 $12,500.00 $825.86 $0.00 6.61% $11,674.14 93.39%

$3,500.00 $3,500.00 $23.35 $0.00 0.67% $3,476.65 99.33%

$26,000.00 $26,000.00 $4,368.84 $0.00 16.80% $21,631.16 83.20%

$1,000.00 $1,000.00 $367.56 $0.00 36.76% $632.44 63.24%

$15,000.00 $15,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $15,000.00 100.00%

$6,214.25 $6,214.25 $3,283.38 $0.00 52.84% $2,930.87 47.16%

$2,000.00 $2,000.00 $995.36 $0.00 49.77% $1,004.64 50.23%

$2,500.00 $2,500.00 $505.00 $0.00 20.20% $1,995.00 79.80%

$500.00 $500.00 $109.75 $0.00 21.95% $390.25 78.05%

$1,000.00 $1,000.00 $345.44 $0.00 34.54% $654.56 65.46%

$2,000.00 $2,000.00 $116.97 $0.00 5.85% $1,883.03 94.15%

$8,476.75 $8,476.75 $2,444.96 28.84% $6,031.79 71.16%

$2,500.00 $2,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $2,500.00 100.00%

$25,191.00 $0.00 $25,191.00 $7,800.86 $0.00 30.97% $17,390.14 69.03%
$1,128,749.00 $0.00 $1,128,749.00 $295,255.98 $0.00 26.16% $833,493.02 73.84%




	1227prop.pdf
	Structure Bookmarks
	Document
	Part
	Sect
	Sect
	Figure
	TITLE 1. ADMINISTRATION PART 2. TEXAS ETHICS COMMISSION CHAPTER 12. SWORN COMPLAINTS SUBCHAPTER D. PRELIMINARY REVIEW HEARING 1 TAC §12.86 The Texas Ethics Commission (the Commission) proposes new Texas Ethics Commission Rules §12.86, regarding Motions for Continuance, of Chapter 12, Subchapter C, of Title 1, Part 2, of the Texas Administrative Code. On occasion, a respondent to a sworn complaint requests a post-ponement of a preliminary review hearing, in some cases within a week or less before the hearing
	TITLE 1. ADMINISTRATION PART 2. TEXAS ETHICS COMMISSION CHAPTER 12. SWORN COMPLAINTS SUBCHAPTER D. PRELIMINARY REVIEW HEARING 1 TAC §12.86 The Texas Ethics Commission (the Commission) proposes new Texas Ethics Commission Rules §12.86, regarding Motions for Continuance, of Chapter 12, Subchapter C, of Title 1, Part 2, of the Texas Administrative Code. On occasion, a respondent to a sworn complaint requests a post-ponement of a preliminary review hearing, in some cases within a week or less before the hearing



	The rule creates a new procedural regulation by providing clear guidelines for a person requesting a continuance of a preliminary review hearing. The Commission invites comments on the proposed new rule from any member of the public. A written statement should be emailed to public_comment@ethics.state.tx.us, or mailed or de-livered to Anne Temple Peters, Executive Director, Texas Ethics Commission, P.O. Box 12070, Austin, Texas 78711-2070. A per-son who wants to offer spoken comments to the Commission conce
	The rule creates a new procedural regulation by providing clear guidelines for a person requesting a continuance of a preliminary review hearing. The Commission invites comments on the proposed new rule from any member of the public. A written statement should be emailed to public_comment@ethics.state.tx.us, or mailed or de-livered to Anne Temple Peters, Executive Director, Texas Ethics Commission, P.O. Box 12070, Austin, Texas 78711-2070. A per-son who wants to offer spoken comments to the Commission conce
	The rule creates a new procedural regulation by providing clear guidelines for a person requesting a continuance of a preliminary review hearing. The Commission invites comments on the proposed new rule from any member of the public. A written statement should be emailed to public_comment@ethics.state.tx.us, or mailed or de-livered to Anne Temple Peters, Executive Director, Texas Ethics Commission, P.O. Box 12070, Austin, Texas 78711-2070. A per-son who wants to offer spoken comments to the Commission conce
	The rule creates a new procedural regulation by providing clear guidelines for a person requesting a continuance of a preliminary review hearing. The Commission invites comments on the proposed new rule from any member of the public. A written statement should be emailed to public_comment@ethics.state.tx.us, or mailed or de-livered to Anne Temple Peters, Executive Director, Texas Ethics Commission, P.O. Box 12070, Austin, Texas 78711-2070. A per-son who wants to offer spoken comments to the Commission conce
	P
	Link
	Link


	Filed with the Office of the Secretary of State on December 12, 2019. TRD-201904724 Ian Steusloff General Counsel Texas Ethics Commission Earliest possible date of adoption: January 26, 2020 For further information, please call: (512) 463-5800 ♦ ♦ ♦ SUBCHAPTER E. FORMAL HEARING DIVISION 7. DISPOSITION OF FORMAL HEARING 1 TAC §12.174 The Texas Ethics Commission (the Commission) proposes new Texas Ethics Commission Rules §12.174, regarding Summary Disposition, of Chapter 12, Subchapter E, Division 7, of Title

	Sect
	P
	ParagraphSpan
	Link

	Commission, P.O. Box 12070, Austin, Texas 78711-2070. A per-son who wants to offer spoken comments to the Commission concerning the proposed new rule may do so at any Commission meeting during the agenda item relating to the proposed new rule. Information concerning the date, time, and location of Com-mission meetings is available by telephoning (512) 463-5800 or on the Commission's website at www.ethics.state.tx.us. The new rule is proposed under Texas Government Code Sec-tion 571.062, which authorizes the
	ParagraphSpan
	Link


	(1) Summary disposition evidence may include deposition transcripts; interrogatory answers and other discovery responses; pleadings; admissions; affidavits; materials obtained by discovery; matters officially noticed; stipulations; authenticated or certified pub-lic, business, or medical records; and other admissible evidence. No oral testimony shall be received at a hearing on a motion for summary disposition. (2) Summary disposition may be based on uncontroverted written testimonial evidence of an interes
	(1) Summary disposition evidence may include deposition transcripts; interrogatory answers and other discovery responses; pleadings; admissions; affidavits; materials obtained by discovery; matters officially noticed; stipulations; authenticated or certified pub-lic, business, or medical records; and other admissible evidence. No oral testimony shall be received at a hearing on a motion for summary disposition. (2) Summary disposition may be based on uncontroverted written testimonial evidence of an interes
	(1) Summary disposition evidence may include deposition transcripts; interrogatory answers and other discovery responses; pleadings; admissions; affidavits; materials obtained by discovery; matters officially noticed; stipulations; authenticated or certified pub-lic, business, or medical records; and other admissible evidence. No oral testimony shall be received at a hearing on a motion for summary disposition. (2) Summary disposition may be based on uncontroverted written testimonial evidence of an interes
	(1) Summary disposition evidence may include deposition transcripts; interrogatory answers and other discovery responses; pleadings; admissions; affidavits; materials obtained by discovery; matters officially noticed; stipulations; authenticated or certified pub-lic, business, or medical records; and other admissible evidence. No oral testimony shall be received at a hearing on a motion for summary disposition. (2) Summary disposition may be based on uncontroverted written testimonial evidence of an interes
	(1) Summary disposition evidence may include deposition transcripts; interrogatory answers and other discovery responses; pleadings; admissions; affidavits; materials obtained by discovery; matters officially noticed; stipulations; authenticated or certified pub-lic, business, or medical records; and other admissible evidence. No oral testimony shall be received at a hearing on a motion for summary disposition. (2) Summary disposition may be based on uncontroverted written testimonial evidence of an interes
	(1) Summary disposition evidence may include deposition transcripts; interrogatory answers and other discovery responses; pleadings; admissions; affidavits; materials obtained by discovery; matters officially noticed; stipulations; authenticated or certified pub-lic, business, or medical records; and other admissible evidence. No oral testimony shall be received at a hearing on a motion for summary disposition. (2) Summary disposition may be based on uncontroverted written testimonial evidence of an interes



	Ian Steusloff General Counsel Texas Ethics Commission Earliest possible date of adoption: January 26, 2020 For further information, please call: (512) 463-5800 ♦ ♦ ♦ CHAPTER 18. GENERAL RULES CONCERNING REPORTS 1 TAC §§18.9 -18.11 The Texas Ethics Commission (the Commission) proposes an amendment to Texas Ethics Commission Rules §18.9, regarding Corrected/Amended Reports, and new Texas Ethics Commission Rules §18.10, regarding Guidelines for Substantial Compliance for a Corrected/Amended 8-day Pre-election 
	Ian Steusloff General Counsel Texas Ethics Commission Earliest possible date of adoption: January 26, 2020 For further information, please call: (512) 463-5800 ♦ ♦ ♦ CHAPTER 18. GENERAL RULES CONCERNING REPORTS 1 TAC §§18.9 -18.11 The Texas Ethics Commission (the Commission) proposes an amendment to Texas Ethics Commission Rules §18.9, regarding Corrected/Amended Reports, and new Texas Ethics Commission Rules §18.10, regarding Guidelines for Substantial Compliance for a Corrected/Amended 8-day Pre-election 




	Sect
	Sect
	P
	Link


	tor, Texas Ethics Commission, P.O. Box 12070, Austin, Texas 78711-2070. A person who wants to offer spoken comments to the Commission concerning the proposed amended and new rules may do so at any Commission meeting during the agenda item relating to the proposed amended and new rules. Infor-mation concerning the date, time, and location of Commission meetings is available by telephoning (512) 463-5800 or on the Commission's website at www.ethics.state.tx.us. The amended and new rules are proposed under Tex
	P
	Link

	Substantial Compliance for a Corrected/Amended 8-day Pre-election Report). (g) [(e)] Except as provided by subsections (b) and (c) of this section, this section does not apply to a civil penalty assessed through the [corrected/amended report filed under §571.069, Government Code, or a corrected/amended report filed in response to a] sworn complaint or facial compliance review process. §18.10. Guidelines for Substantial Compliance for a Cor-rected/Amended 8-day Pre-election Report. (a) A corrected/amended 8-
	Substantial Compliance for a Corrected/Amended 8-day Pre-election Report). (g) [(e)] Except as provided by subsections (b) and (c) of this section, this section does not apply to a civil penalty assessed through the [corrected/amended report filed under §571.069, Government Code, or a corrected/amended report filed in response to a] sworn complaint or facial compliance review process. §18.10. Guidelines for Substantial Compliance for a Cor-rected/Amended 8-day Pre-election Report. (a) A corrected/amended 8-

	tee, respectively) and §§254.064(c), 254.124(c), or 254.154(c) of the Election Code (relating to a candidate, a specific-purpose committee, or a general-purpose committee, respectively). §18.11. Guidelines for Waiver or Reduction of a Late Fine for a Cor-rected/Amended 8-day Pre-election Report. (a) A filer who has filed a corrected/amended 8-day pre-elec-tion report may request the executive director to waive or reduce a late fine assessed under §18.9 of this title (relating to Corrected/Amended Reports) b
	tee, respectively) and §§254.064(c), 254.124(c), or 254.154(c) of the Election Code (relating to a candidate, a specific-purpose committee, or a general-purpose committee, respectively). §18.11. Guidelines for Waiver or Reduction of a Late Fine for a Cor-rected/Amended 8-day Pre-election Report. (a) A filer who has filed a corrected/amended 8-day pre-elec-tion report may request the executive director to waive or reduce a late fine assessed under §18.9 of this title (relating to Corrected/Amended Reports) b
	tee, respectively) and §§254.064(c), 254.124(c), or 254.154(c) of the Election Code (relating to a candidate, a specific-purpose committee, or a general-purpose committee, respectively). §18.11. Guidelines for Waiver or Reduction of a Late Fine for a Cor-rected/Amended 8-day Pre-election Report. (a) A filer who has filed a corrected/amended 8-day pre-elec-tion report may request the executive director to waive or reduce a late fine assessed under §18.9 of this title (relating to Corrected/Amended Reports) b
	tee, respectively) and §§254.064(c), 254.124(c), or 254.154(c) of the Election Code (relating to a candidate, a specific-purpose committee, or a general-purpose committee, respectively). §18.11. Guidelines for Waiver or Reduction of a Late Fine for a Cor-rected/Amended 8-day Pre-election Report. (a) A filer who has filed a corrected/amended 8-day pre-elec-tion report may request the executive director to waive or reduce a late fine assessed under §18.9 of this title (relating to Corrected/Amended Reports) b

	support the request, and state whether the filer would like the oppor-tunity to appear before the commission and offer testimony regarding the appeal. (2) After hearing a request for appeal, the commission may affirm the determination made under this section or make a new deter-mination based on facts presented in the appeal. (f) This section does not apply to a civil penalty assessed through the sworn complaint process or facial compliance review process. The agency certifies that legal counsel has reviewe
	support the request, and state whether the filer would like the oppor-tunity to appear before the commission and offer testimony regarding the appeal. (2) After hearing a request for appeal, the commission may affirm the determination made under this section or make a new deter-mination based on facts presented in the appeal. (f) This section does not apply to a civil penalty assessed through the sworn complaint process or facial compliance review process. The agency certifies that legal counsel has reviewe




	regulation; increase or decrease the number of individuals sub-ject to the rules' applicability; or positively or adversely affect this state's economy. The rule repeals existing regulations defining certain terms, as detailed above. The Commission invites comments on the proposed amendment from any member of the public. A written statement should be emailed to public_comment@ethics.state.tx.us, or mailed or de-livered to Anne Temple Peters, Executive Director, Texas Ethics Commission, P.O. Box 12070, Austi
	regulation; increase or decrease the number of individuals sub-ject to the rules' applicability; or positively or adversely affect this state's economy. The rule repeals existing regulations defining certain terms, as detailed above. The Commission invites comments on the proposed amendment from any member of the public. A written statement should be emailed to public_comment@ethics.state.tx.us, or mailed or de-livered to Anne Temple Peters, Executive Director, Texas Ethics Commission, P.O. Box 12070, Austi
	P
	Link
	Link

	the 12 months immediately preceding the making of a political ex-penditure by the committee inside Texas (other than an expenditure made in connection with a campaign for a federal office or made for a federal officeholder), makes 80% or more of the committee's total political expenditures in any combination of elections outside this state and federal offices not voted on in this state. Section 20.13 of this title (relating to Out-of-State Committees) explains the practical application of this definition. (
	(15) [(18)] Specific-purpose committee--A political com-mittee that does not meet the definition of general-purpose committee and that has among its principal purposes: (A) supporting or opposing one or more: (i) candidates, all of whom are identified and are seeking offices that are known; or (ii) measures, all of which are identified; (B) assisting one or more officeholders, all of whom are identified; or (C) supporting or opposing only one candidate who is unidentified or who is seeking an office that is
	(15) [(18)] Specific-purpose committee--A political com-mittee that does not meet the definition of general-purpose committee and that has among its principal purposes: (A) supporting or opposing one or more: (i) candidates, all of whom are identified and are seeking offices that are known; or (ii) measures, all of which are identified; (B) assisting one or more officeholders, all of whom are identified; or (C) supporting or opposing only one candidate who is unidentified or who is seeking an office that is
	(15) [(18)] Specific-purpose committee--A political com-mittee that does not meet the definition of general-purpose committee and that has among its principal purposes: (A) supporting or opposing one or more: (i) candidates, all of whom are identified and are seeking offices that are known; or (ii) measures, all of which are identified; (B) assisting one or more officeholders, all of whom are identified; or (C) supporting or opposing only one candidate who is unidentified or who is seeking an office that is
	(15) [(18)] Specific-purpose committee--A political com-mittee that does not meet the definition of general-purpose committee and that has among its principal purposes: (A) supporting or opposing one or more: (i) candidates, all of whom are identified and are seeking offices that are known; or (ii) measures, all of which are identified; (B) assisting one or more officeholders, all of whom are identified; or (C) supporting or opposing only one candidate who is unidentified or who is seeking an office that is
	(15) [(18)] Specific-purpose committee--A political com-mittee that does not meet the definition of general-purpose committee and that has among its principal purposes: (A) supporting or opposing one or more: (i) candidates, all of whom are identified and are seeking offices that are known; or (ii) measures, all of which are identified; (B) assisting one or more officeholders, all of whom are identified; or (C) supporting or opposing only one candidate who is unidentified or who is seeking an office that is
	(15) [(18)] Specific-purpose committee--A political com-mittee that does not meet the definition of general-purpose committee and that has among its principal purposes: (A) supporting or opposing one or more: (i) candidates, all of whom are identified and are seeking offices that are known; or (ii) measures, all of which are identified; (B) assisting one or more officeholders, all of whom are identified; or (C) supporting or opposing only one candidate who is unidentified or who is seeking an office that is
	(15) [(18)] Specific-purpose committee--A political com-mittee that does not meet the definition of general-purpose committee and that has among its principal purposes: (A) supporting or opposing one or more: (i) candidates, all of whom are identified and are seeking offices that are known; or (ii) measures, all of which are identified; (B) assisting one or more officeholders, all of whom are identified; or (C) supporting or opposing only one candidate who is unidentified or who is seeking an office that is




	attributable to political expenditures would be 33%.) Administrative expenses include: (I) fees for services to non-employees; (II) advertising and promotion; (III) office expenses; (IV) information technology; (V) occupancy; (VI) travel expenses; (VII) interest; and (VIII) insurance. (E) The group may maintain specific evidence of ad-ministrative expenses related only to political expenditures or only to nonpolitical expenditures. Specifically identified administrative ex-penses shall not be included in th
	attributable to political expenditures would be 33%.) Administrative expenses include: (I) fees for services to non-employees; (II) advertising and promotion; (III) office expenses; (IV) information technology; (V) occupancy; (VI) travel expenses; (VII) interest; and (VIII) insurance. (E) The group may maintain specific evidence of ad-ministrative expenses related only to political expenditures or only to nonpolitical expenditures. Specifically identified administrative ex-penses shall not be included in th


	(i) made for a communication that expressly advo-cates the passage or defeat of a clearly identified measure by using such words as "vote for," "support," "vote against," "defeat," "reject," or "cast your ballot for;" (ii) made for a communication broadcast by radio, television, cable, or satellite or distributed by print or electronic media, including any print publication, mailing, Internet website, electronic mail, or automated phone bank, that: (I) refers to a clearly identified measure; (II) is distrib
	(i) made for a communication that expressly advo-cates the passage or defeat of a clearly identified measure by using such words as "vote for," "support," "vote against," "defeat," "reject," or "cast your ballot for;" (ii) made for a communication broadcast by radio, television, cable, or satellite or distributed by print or electronic media, including any print publication, mailing, Internet website, electronic mail, or automated phone bank, that: (I) refers to a clearly identified measure; (II) is distrib
	(i) made for a communication that expressly advo-cates the passage or defeat of a clearly identified measure by using such words as "vote for," "support," "vote against," "defeat," "reject," or "cast your ballot for;" (ii) made for a communication broadcast by radio, television, cable, or satellite or distributed by print or electronic media, including any print publication, mailing, Internet website, electronic mail, or automated phone bank, that: (I) refers to a clearly identified measure; (II) is distrib


	The agency certifies that legal counsel has reviewed the pro-posal and found it to be within the state agency's legal authority to adopt. Filed with the Office of the Secretary of State on December 12, 2019. TRD-201904727 Ian Steusloff General Counsel Texas Ethics Commission Earliest possible date of adoption: January 26, 2020 For further information, please call: (512) 463-5800 ♦ ♦ ♦ CHAPTER 22. RESTRICTIONS ON CONTRIBUTIONS AND EXPENDITURES 1 TAC §22.5 The Texas Ethics Commission (the Commission) proposes
	P
	Link


	mation concerning the date, time, and location of Commission meetings is available by telephoning (512) 463-5800 or on the Commission's website at www.ethics.state.tx.us. The repeal is proposed under Texas Government Code Section 571.062, which authorizes the Commission to adopt rules to ad-minister Title 15 of the Election Code. The proposed repeal affects Title 15 of the Election Code. §22.5. Contributions to Direct Campaign Expenditure Only Commit-tees. The agency certifies that legal counsel has reviewe
	mation concerning the date, time, and location of Commission meetings is available by telephoning (512) 463-5800 or on the Commission's website at www.ethics.state.tx.us. The repeal is proposed under Texas Government Code Section 571.062, which authorizes the Commission to adopt rules to ad-minister Title 15 of the Election Code. The proposed repeal affects Title 15 of the Election Code. §22.5. Contributions to Direct Campaign Expenditure Only Commit-tees. The agency certifies that legal counsel has reviewe
	mation concerning the date, time, and location of Commission meetings is available by telephoning (512) 463-5800 or on the Commission's website at www.ethics.state.tx.us. The repeal is proposed under Texas Government Code Section 571.062, which authorizes the Commission to adopt rules to ad-minister Title 15 of the Election Code. The proposed repeal affects Title 15 of the Election Code. §22.5. Contributions to Direct Campaign Expenditure Only Commit-tees. The agency certifies that legal counsel has reviewe
	P
	Link




	Sect
	Sect
	P
	ParagraphSpan
	Link
	emailed to public_comment@ethics.state.tx.us, or mailed or de-livered to Anne Temple Peters, Executive Director, Texas Ethics Commission, P.O. Box 12070, Austin, Texas 78711-2070. A per-son who wants to offer spoken comments to the Commission concerning the proposed amendment may do so at any Com-mission meeting during the agenda item relating to the proposed amendment. Information concerning the date, time, and location of Commission meetings is available by telephoning (512) 463-5800 or on the Commission'
	Link




	diture limits under the Judicial Campaign Fairness Act ("JCFA"), of Chapter 22 of Title 1, Part 2, of the Texas Administrative Code. The JCFA previously imposed expenditure limits on judicial can-didates and officeholders, located in Chapter 253 of the Election Code. The law required a judicial candidate to file a declaration stating whether the candidate intended to comply with those lim-its. Rule 22.33 was adopted to clarify when a declaration was required and how long it remained effective. However, the 
	diture limits under the Judicial Campaign Fairness Act ("JCFA"), of Chapter 22 of Title 1, Part 2, of the Texas Administrative Code. The JCFA previously imposed expenditure limits on judicial can-didates and officeholders, located in Chapter 253 of the Election Code. The law required a judicial candidate to file a declaration stating whether the candidate intended to comply with those lim-its. Rule 22.33 was adopted to clarify when a declaration was required and how long it remained effective. However, the 
	P
	Link
	Link

	Ian Steusloff General Counsel Texas Ethics Commission Earliest possible date of adoption: January 26, 2020 For further information, please call: (512) 463-5800 ♦ ♦ ♦ CHAPTER 27. JUDICIAL CAMPAIGN FAIRNESS ACT The Texas Ethics Commission (the Commission) proposes the repeal of Texas Ethics Commission Rules §27.1, regarding Ap-plicability, of Chapter 27, Subchapter A of Title 1, Part 2, of the Texas Administrative Code; and §27.101, regarding When a Declaration of Compliance or Declaration of Intent is Requir
	Ian Steusloff General Counsel Texas Ethics Commission Earliest possible date of adoption: January 26, 2020 For further information, please call: (512) 463-5800 ♦ ♦ ♦ CHAPTER 27. JUDICIAL CAMPAIGN FAIRNESS ACT The Texas Ethics Commission (the Commission) proposes the repeal of Texas Ethics Commission Rules §27.1, regarding Ap-plicability, of Chapter 27, Subchapter A of Title 1, Part 2, of the Texas Administrative Code; and §27.101, regarding When a Declaration of Compliance or Declaration of Intent is Requir

	P
	Link

	sion meetings is available by telephoning (512) 463-5800 or on the Commission's website at www.ethics.state.tx.us. SUBCHAPTER A. GENERAL RULES 1 TAC §27.1 The repeal is proposed under Texas Government Code Section 571.062, which authorizes the Commission to adopt rules to ad-minister Title 15 of the Election Code. The proposed repeal affects Title 15 of the Election Code. §27.1. Applicability. The agency certifies that legal counsel has reviewed the pro-posal and found it to be within the state agency's leg
	sion meetings is available by telephoning (512) 463-5800 or on the Commission's website at www.ethics.state.tx.us. SUBCHAPTER A. GENERAL RULES 1 TAC §27.1 The repeal is proposed under Texas Government Code Section 571.062, which authorizes the Commission to adopt rules to ad-minister Title 15 of the Election Code. The proposed repeal affects Title 15 of the Election Code. §27.1. Applicability. The agency certifies that legal counsel has reviewed the pro-posal and found it to be within the state agency's leg
	sion meetings is available by telephoning (512) 463-5800 or on the Commission's website at www.ethics.state.tx.us. SUBCHAPTER A. GENERAL RULES 1 TAC §27.1 The repeal is proposed under Texas Government Code Section 571.062, which authorizes the Commission to adopt rules to ad-minister Title 15 of the Election Code. The proposed repeal affects Title 15 of the Election Code. §27.1. Applicability. The agency certifies that legal counsel has reviewed the pro-posal and found it to be within the state agency's leg
	P
	Link





	DIVISION 3. ADMINISTRATION OF PROGRAM FUNDS The Texas Department of Agriculture (Department) proposes the repeal of Title 4, Part 1, Chapter 30, Subchapter A, Division 3, §30.50, relating to the Community Development Fund, and new Subchapter A, Division 3, §30.50, relating to the Community De-velopment Fund. The Department has determined that due to the extensive changes to the Community Development Fund program, repeal of the entire section and replacement with a new rule is more efficient than proposing n
	DIVISION 3. ADMINISTRATION OF PROGRAM FUNDS The Texas Department of Agriculture (Department) proposes the repeal of Title 4, Part 1, Chapter 30, Subchapter A, Division 3, §30.50, relating to the Community Development Fund, and new Subchapter A, Division 3, §30.50, relating to the Community De-velopment Fund. The Department has determined that due to the extensive changes to the Community Development Fund program, repeal of the entire section and replacement with a new rule is more efficient than proposing n
	DIVISION 3. ADMINISTRATION OF PROGRAM FUNDS The Texas Department of Agriculture (Department) proposes the repeal of Title 4, Part 1, Chapter 30, Subchapter A, Division 3, §30.50, relating to the Community Development Fund, and new Subchapter A, Division 3, §30.50, relating to the Community De-velopment Fund. The Department has determined that due to the extensive changes to the Community Development Fund program, repeal of the entire section and replacement with a new rule is more efficient than proposing n
	DIVISION 3. ADMINISTRATION OF PROGRAM FUNDS The Texas Department of Agriculture (Department) proposes the repeal of Title 4, Part 1, Chapter 30, Subchapter A, Division 3, §30.50, relating to the Community Development Fund, and new Subchapter A, Division 3, §30.50, relating to the Community De-velopment Fund. The Department has determined that due to the extensive changes to the Community Development Fund program, repeal of the entire section and replacement with a new rule is more efficient than proposing n

	P
	Link


	The proposal is made under Texas Government Code §487.051, which designates the Department as the agency to administer the federal community development block grant non-entitlement program, and §487.052, which provides authority for the Depart-ment to adopt rules as necessary to implement Chapter 487. The code affected by the proposal is Texas Government Code, Chapter 487. §30.50. Community Development (CD) Fund. The agency certifies that legal counsel has reviewed the pro-posal and found it to be within th
	The proposal is made under Texas Government Code §487.051, which designates the Department as the agency to administer the federal community development block grant non-entitlement program, and §487.052, which provides authority for the Depart-ment to adopt rules as necessary to implement Chapter 487. The code affected by the proposal is Texas Government Code, Chapter 487. §30.50. Community Development (CD) Fund. The agency certifies that legal counsel has reviewed the pro-posal and found it to be within th

	(3) Awards. After the department determines the final rankings of applications, awards are made based on each region's allo-cation and awarded until funds allocated to the region are depleted. If the program year allocation is insufficient to completely fund the next highest ranked application in the region, projects may be funded using TxCDBG deobligated funds or other funds, to the extent available. The department may also pool the remaining funds from each region to maximize the total number of applicati
	(3) Awards. After the department determines the final rankings of applications, awards are made based on each region's allo-cation and awarded until funds allocated to the region are depleted. If the program year allocation is insufficient to completely fund the next highest ranked application in the region, projects may be funded using TxCDBG deobligated funds or other funds, to the extent available. The department may also pool the remaining funds from each region to maximize the total number of applicati
	(3) Awards. After the department determines the final rankings of applications, awards are made based on each region's allo-cation and awarded until funds allocated to the region are depleted. If the program year allocation is insufficient to completely fund the next highest ranked application in the region, projects may be funded using TxCDBG deobligated funds or other funds, to the extent available. The department may also pool the remaining funds from each region to maximize the total number of applicati
	(3) Awards. After the department determines the final rankings of applications, awards are made based on each region's allo-cation and awarded until funds allocated to the region are depleted. If the program year allocation is insufficient to completely fund the next highest ranked application in the region, projects may be funded using TxCDBG deobligated funds or other funds, to the extent available. The department may also pool the remaining funds from each region to maximize the total number of applicati
	(3) Awards. After the department determines the final rankings of applications, awards are made based on each region's allo-cation and awarded until funds allocated to the region are depleted. If the program year allocation is insufficient to completely fund the next highest ranked application in the region, projects may be funded using TxCDBG deobligated funds or other funds, to the extent available. The department may also pool the remaining funds from each region to maximize the total number of applicati
	(3) Awards. After the department determines the final rankings of applications, awards are made based on each region's allo-cation and awarded until funds allocated to the region are depleted. If the program year allocation is insufficient to completely fund the next highest ranked application in the region, projects may be funded using TxCDBG deobligated funds or other funds, to the extent available. The department may also pool the remaining funds from each region to maximize the total number of applicati




	(ii) submission of environmental review require-ments within prescribed deadlines; (iii) submission of the required close-out documents within the period prescribed for such submission; and (iv) maximum utilization of grant funds awarded. (B) other programmatic priorities--the department may establish other scoring criteria to meet programmatic goals, so long as the application cycle allows sufficient time after the publication of such scoring criteria for communities to take action to maximize their score.
	(ii) submission of environmental review require-ments within prescribed deadlines; (iii) submission of the required close-out documents within the period prescribed for such submission; and (iv) maximum utilization of grant funds awarded. (B) other programmatic priorities--the department may establish other scoring criteria to meet programmatic goals, so long as the application cycle allows sufficient time after the publication of such scoring criteria for communities to take action to maximize their score.
	(ii) submission of environmental review require-ments within prescribed deadlines; (iii) submission of the required close-out documents within the period prescribed for such submission; and (iv) maximum utilization of grant funds awarded. (B) other programmatic priorities--the department may establish other scoring criteria to meet programmatic goals, so long as the application cycle allows sufficient time after the publication of such scoring criteria for communities to take action to maximize their score.
	(ii) submission of environmental review require-ments within prescribed deadlines; (iii) submission of the required close-out documents within the period prescribed for such submission; and (iv) maximum utilization of grant funds awarded. (B) other programmatic priorities--the department may establish other scoring criteria to meet programmatic goals, so long as the application cycle allows sufficient time after the publication of such scoring criteria for communities to take action to maximize their score.

	also provide an opportunity for USC members, communities, and other stakeholders to submit additional scoring criteria to the department to be reviewed for compliance prior to the public hearing. (iii) The USC may not adopt scoring factors that di-rectly negate or offset the department's scoring factors. (D) Final selection of scoring criteria. (i) The final selection of the scoring criteria is the responsibility of the USC and must be consistent with the requirements of the current TxCDBG Action Plan. (ii)
	also provide an opportunity for USC members, communities, and other stakeholders to submit additional scoring criteria to the department to be reviewed for compliance prior to the public hearing. (iii) The USC may not adopt scoring factors that di-rectly negate or offset the department's scoring factors. (D) Final selection of scoring criteria. (i) The final selection of the scoring criteria is the responsibility of the USC and must be consistent with the requirements of the current TxCDBG Action Plan. (ii)





	PART 2. TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF BANKING CHAPTER 33. MONEY SERVICES BUSINESSES 7 TAC §33.54 The Finance Commission of Texas (the commission), on behalf of the Texas Department of Banking (the department), proposes new §33.54, concerning an exemption for registered securities dealers and agents of securities dealers (securities agents). The new rule is proposed to exempt securities dealers and securities agents from money transmission licensing if they are registered and in good standing with the Texas State Secu
	PART 2. TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF BANKING CHAPTER 33. MONEY SERVICES BUSINESSES 7 TAC §33.54 The Finance Commission of Texas (the commission), on behalf of the Texas Department of Banking (the department), proposes new §33.54, concerning an exemption for registered securities dealers and agents of securities dealers (securities agents). The new rule is proposed to exempt securities dealers and securities agents from money transmission licensing if they are registered and in good standing with the Texas State Secu
	for state government or for local government as a result of en-forcing or administering the rule. Mr. Reese has also determined that, for each year of the first five years the rule as proposed is in effect, the public benefit an-ticipated as a result of enforcing the rule is potentially decreased administrative costs for securities dealers and securities agents, that may be passed down to Texas consumers doing business with securities dealers and securities agents, as well as to Tex-ans employed by, or doin
	for state government or for local government as a result of en-forcing or administering the rule. Mr. Reese has also determined that, for each year of the first five years the rule as proposed is in effect, the public benefit an-ticipated as a result of enforcing the rule is potentially decreased administrative costs for securities dealers and securities agents, that may be passed down to Texas consumers doing business with securities dealers and securities agents, as well as to Tex-ans employed by, or doin
	for state government or for local government as a result of en-forcing or administering the rule. Mr. Reese has also determined that, for each year of the first five years the rule as proposed is in effect, the public benefit an-ticipated as a result of enforcing the rule is potentially decreased administrative costs for securities dealers and securities agents, that may be passed down to Texas consumers doing business with securities dealers and securities agents, as well as to Tex-ans employed by, or doin

	P
	Link

	Texas Finance Code, §151.301(b)(4) and §151.302(a) are af-fected by the proposed new rule. §33.54. Exemption for Registered Securities Dealers and Agents. (a) For purposes of this section, the terms "agent," "dealer," and "securities" have the meanings assigned by the Texas Securities Act. (b) A dealer or dealer agent who, in the course of providing dealer or dealer agent services as to securities, receives or has control over a customer's money or monetary value, need not obtain a money transmission licens
	Texas Finance Code, §151.301(b)(4) and §151.302(a) are af-fected by the proposed new rule. §33.54. Exemption for Registered Securities Dealers and Agents. (a) For purposes of this section, the terms "agent," "dealer," and "securities" have the meanings assigned by the Texas Securities Act. (b) A dealer or dealer agent who, in the course of providing dealer or dealer agent services as to securities, receives or has control over a customer's money or monetary value, need not obtain a money transmission licens
	Texas Finance Code, §151.301(b)(4) and §151.302(a) are af-fected by the proposed new rule. §33.54. Exemption for Registered Securities Dealers and Agents. (a) For purposes of this section, the terms "agent," "dealer," and "securities" have the meanings assigned by the Texas Securities Act. (b) A dealer or dealer agent who, in the course of providing dealer or dealer agent services as to securities, receives or has control over a customer's money or monetary value, need not obtain a money transmission licens




	by reference the 2020 SLIHP, as required by Tex. Gov't Code 2306.0723. 2. The proposed repeal does not require a change in work that would require the creation of new employee positions, nor is the proposed repeal significant enough to reduce work load to a de-gree that any existing employee positions are eliminated. 3. The proposed repeal does not require additional future leg-islative appropriations. 4. The proposed repeal does not result in an increase in fees paid to the Department nor in a decrease in 
	by reference the 2020 SLIHP, as required by Tex. Gov't Code 2306.0723. 2. The proposed repeal does not require a change in work that would require the creation of new employee positions, nor is the proposed repeal significant enough to reduce work load to a de-gree that any existing employee positions are eliminated. 3. The proposed repeal does not require additional future leg-islative appropriations. 4. The proposed repeal does not result in an increase in fees paid to the Department nor in a decrease in 
	by reference the 2020 SLIHP, as required by Tex. Gov't Code 2306.0723. 2. The proposed repeal does not require a change in work that would require the creation of new employee positions, nor is the proposed repeal significant enough to reduce work load to a de-gree that any existing employee positions are eliminated. 3. The proposed repeal does not require additional future leg-islative appropriations. 4. The proposed repeal does not result in an increase in fees paid to the Department nor in a decrease in 
	by reference the 2020 SLIHP, as required by Tex. Gov't Code 2306.0723. 2. The proposed repeal does not require a change in work that would require the creation of new employee positions, nor is the proposed repeal significant enough to reduce work load to a de-gree that any existing employee positions are eliminated. 3. The proposed repeal does not require additional future leg-islative appropriations. 4. The proposed repeal does not result in an increase in fees paid to the Department nor in a decrease in 
	by reference the 2020 SLIHP, as required by Tex. Gov't Code 2306.0723. 2. The proposed repeal does not require a change in work that would require the creation of new employee positions, nor is the proposed repeal significant enough to reduce work load to a de-gree that any existing employee positions are eliminated. 3. The proposed repeal does not require additional future leg-islative appropriations. 4. The proposed repeal does not result in an increase in fees paid to the Department nor in a decrease in 


	of Housing and Community Affairs, Attn: Elizabeth Yevich, Rule Comments, P.O. Box 13941, Austin, Texas 78711-3941, by fax to (512) 475-0070, or email info@tdhca.state.tx.us. ALL COM-MENTS MUST BE RECEIVED BY 5:00 p.m., Austin local time, WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 15, 2020. STATUTORY AUTHORITY. The proposed repeal is made pur-suant to Tex. Gov't Code, §2306.053, which authorizes the De-partment to adopt rules. Except as described herein the proposed repealed section af-fects no other code, article, or statute. §1.2
	P
	Link


	1. The proposed new rule does not create or eliminate a govern-ment program, but relates to the adoption, by reference, of the 2020 SLIHP, as required by Tex. Gov't Code 2306.0723. 2. The proposed new rule does not require a change in work that would require the creation of new employee positions, nor are the rule changes significant enough to reduce work load to a degree that eliminates any existing employee positions. 3. The proposed new rule changes do not require additional future legislative appropriat
	1. The proposed new rule does not create or eliminate a govern-ment program, but relates to the adoption, by reference, of the 2020 SLIHP, as required by Tex. Gov't Code 2306.0723. 2. The proposed new rule does not require a change in work that would require the creation of new employee positions, nor are the rule changes significant enough to reduce work load to a degree that eliminates any existing employee positions. 3. The proposed new rule changes do not require additional future legislative appropriat
	1. The proposed new rule does not create or eliminate a govern-ment program, but relates to the adoption, by reference, of the 2020 SLIHP, as required by Tex. Gov't Code 2306.0723. 2. The proposed new rule does not require a change in work that would require the creation of new employee positions, nor are the rule changes significant enough to reduce work load to a degree that eliminates any existing employee positions. 3. The proposed new rule changes do not require additional future legislative appropriat
	1. The proposed new rule does not create or eliminate a govern-ment program, but relates to the adoption, by reference, of the 2020 SLIHP, as required by Tex. Gov't Code 2306.0723. 2. The proposed new rule does not require a change in work that would require the creation of new employee positions, nor are the rule changes significant enough to reduce work load to a degree that eliminates any existing employee positions. 3. The proposed new rule changes do not require additional future legislative appropriat


	e. PUBLIC BENEFIT/COST NOTE REQUIRED BY TEX. GOV'T CODE §2001.024(a)(5). Mr. Wilkinson has determined that, for each year of the first five years the new section is in effect, the public benefit anticipated as a result of the new section will be an updated and more germane rule that will adopt by reference the 2020 SLIHP, as required by Tex. Gov't Code §2306.0723. There will not be any economic cost to any individuals required to comply with the new section because the adoption by refer-ence of prior year S
	e. PUBLIC BENEFIT/COST NOTE REQUIRED BY TEX. GOV'T CODE §2001.024(a)(5). Mr. Wilkinson has determined that, for each year of the first five years the new section is in effect, the public benefit anticipated as a result of the new section will be an updated and more germane rule that will adopt by reference the 2020 SLIHP, as required by Tex. Gov't Code §2306.0723. There will not be any economic cost to any individuals required to comply with the new section because the adoption by refer-ence of prior year S
	e. PUBLIC BENEFIT/COST NOTE REQUIRED BY TEX. GOV'T CODE §2001.024(a)(5). Mr. Wilkinson has determined that, for each year of the first five years the new section is in effect, the public benefit anticipated as a result of the new section will be an updated and more germane rule that will adopt by reference the 2020 SLIHP, as required by Tex. Gov't Code §2306.0723. There will not be any economic cost to any individuals required to comply with the new section because the adoption by refer-ence of prior year S
	e. PUBLIC BENEFIT/COST NOTE REQUIRED BY TEX. GOV'T CODE §2001.024(a)(5). Mr. Wilkinson has determined that, for each year of the first five years the new section is in effect, the public benefit anticipated as a result of the new section will be an updated and more germane rule that will adopt by reference the 2020 SLIHP, as required by Tex. Gov't Code §2306.0723. There will not be any economic cost to any individuals required to comply with the new section because the adoption by refer-ence of prior year S
	e. PUBLIC BENEFIT/COST NOTE REQUIRED BY TEX. GOV'T CODE §2001.024(a)(5). Mr. Wilkinson has determined that, for each year of the first five years the new section is in effect, the public benefit anticipated as a result of the new section will be an updated and more germane rule that will adopt by reference the 2020 SLIHP, as required by Tex. Gov't Code §2306.0723. There will not be any economic cost to any individuals required to comply with the new section because the adoption by refer-ence of prior year S


	P
	Link

	P
	StyleSpan
	Link





	tenant selection and screening. The purpose of this amendment is to correct a citation referenced in the rule. Tex. Gov't Code §2001.0045(b) does apply to the amendment being proposed and no exceptions are applicable. However, the rule already exists and the correction is only administrative in na-ture. There are no costs associated with this rule action, there-fore no costs or impacts warrant a need to be offset. The Department has analyzed this proposed rulemaking and the analysis is described below for e
	tenant selection and screening. The purpose of this amendment is to correct a citation referenced in the rule. Tex. Gov't Code §2001.0045(b) does apply to the amendment being proposed and no exceptions are applicable. However, the rule already exists and the correction is only administrative in na-ture. There are no costs associated with this rule action, there-fore no costs or impacts warrant a need to be offset. The Department has analyzed this proposed rulemaking and the analysis is described below for e
	tenant selection and screening. The purpose of this amendment is to correct a citation referenced in the rule. Tex. Gov't Code §2001.0045(b) does apply to the amendment being proposed and no exceptions are applicable. However, the rule already exists and the correction is only administrative in na-ture. There are no costs associated with this rule action, there-fore no costs or impacts warrant a need to be offset. The Department has analyzed this proposed rulemaking and the analysis is described below for e
	tenant selection and screening. The purpose of this amendment is to correct a citation referenced in the rule. Tex. Gov't Code §2001.0045(b) does apply to the amendment being proposed and no exceptions are applicable. However, the rule already exists and the correction is only administrative in na-ture. There are no costs associated with this rule action, there-fore no costs or impacts warrant a need to be offset. The Department has analyzed this proposed rulemaking and the analysis is described below for e


	section would be clarity in requirements. There will not be eco-nomic costs to individuals required to comply with the amended section. f. FISCAL NOTE REQUIRED BY TEX. GOV'T CODE §2001.024(a)(4). Mr. Wilkinson also has determined that for each year of the first five years the proposed amendment is in effect, enforcing or administering the amendment does not have any foreseeable implications related to costs or revenues of the state or local governments. REQUEST FOR PUBLIC COMMENT. The public comment period 
	P
	Link

	(6) H 2017-05, Violence Against Women Act (VAWA) Reauthorization Act of 2013, Additional Guidance for Multifamily Owners and Management Agents. (e) Use Agreements. The Owner must execute the Use Agree-ment, as found in Exhibit 10 of the Cooperative Agreement, before the execution of the RAC and comply with the following: (1) Use Agreement should be properly recorded according to local laws in the official public records on the Eligible Multifamily Property. The Owner shall provide to TDHCA within 30 days of
	(6) H 2017-05, Violence Against Women Act (VAWA) Reauthorization Act of 2013, Additional Guidance for Multifamily Owners and Management Agents. (e) Use Agreements. The Owner must execute the Use Agree-ment, as found in Exhibit 10 of the Cooperative Agreement, before the execution of the RAC and comply with the following: (1) Use Agreement should be properly recorded according to local laws in the official public records on the Eligible Multifamily Property. The Owner shall provide to TDHCA within 30 days of
	(6) H 2017-05, Violence Against Women Act (VAWA) Reauthorization Act of 2013, Additional Guidance for Multifamily Owners and Management Agents. (e) Use Agreements. The Owner must execute the Use Agree-ment, as found in Exhibit 10 of the Cooperative Agreement, before the execution of the RAC and comply with the following: (1) Use Agreement should be properly recorded according to local laws in the official public records on the Eligible Multifamily Property. The Owner shall provide to TDHCA within 30 days of


	HUD Handbook 4350.3. The results of the dispute must be sent to the Eligible Tenant and TDHCA in writing. (B) The Owner is responsible for determining age of the qualifying member of the Eligible Families. Eligible Family member must be at least 18 years of age and under the age of 62. (C) The Owner is responsible for criminal background screening as required by HUD Handbook 4350.3. (D) Verification of Income. The Owner is responsible for determining income of Eligible Families. The Owner shall verify incom
	HUD Handbook 4350.3. The results of the dispute must be sent to the Eligible Tenant and TDHCA in writing. (B) The Owner is responsible for determining age of the qualifying member of the Eligible Families. Eligible Family member must be at least 18 years of age and under the age of 62. (C) The Owner is responsible for criminal background screening as required by HUD Handbook 4350.3. (D) Verification of Income. The Owner is responsible for determining income of Eligible Families. The Owner shall verify incom
	HUD Handbook 4350.3. The results of the dispute must be sent to the Eligible Tenant and TDHCA in writing. (B) The Owner is responsible for determining age of the qualifying member of the Eligible Families. Eligible Family member must be at least 18 years of age and under the age of 62. (C) The Owner is responsible for criminal background screening as required by HUD Handbook 4350.3. (D) Verification of Income. The Owner is responsible for determining income of Eligible Families. The Owner shall verify incom
	are changes to the Utility Allowance calculation methodology being used. (10) Termination. Although TDHCA has discretion to ter-minate a RAC due to good cause, an Owner cannot opt-out of a RAC. The RAC survives a foreclosure, assignment, sale in lieu of foreclo-sure, or sale of the Eligible Multifamily Property to the extent allowed by law. (11) Foreclosure of Eligible Multifamily Property. Upon foreclosure, assignment, sale in lieu of foreclosure, or sale of the Eli-gible Multifamily Property to the extent

	or Owner-designated agent regarding applications, notifications, evic-tions, complaints, non-renewals and move outs. (4) Lease Renewals and Changes. The Owner must notify TDHCA of renewals of leases with Eligible Families and any changes to the terms of the lease. (k) Rent. (1) Tenant Rent Payment. The Owner is responsible for remitting any Tenant Rent payment due to the Eligible Tenant if the Utility Allowance exceeds the Total Tenant Payment. The Owner will determine the Tenant Rent payment of the Eligibl
	three business days from when the notice is received by the Depart-ment stating whether or not TDHCA will be accepting the available Unit, and making a subsequent referral for the Unit. If the qualify-ing Eligible Tenant vacates the Assisted Unit, TDHCA will determine if the remaining family members are eligible for continued assistance from the Program. (5) Vacancy Payment. An Owner of an Eligible Multifam-ily Property that is not under a RAC may not receive a vacancy pay-ment. TDHCA may make vacancy payme

	(n) Owner Training. The Owner is obligated to train all prop-erty management staff on the requirements of the Program. The Owner will ensure that any new property management staff who is involved in serving Eligible Families review training materials found on the Pro-gram's webpage including webinars, manuals and checklists. (o) Reporting Requirements. Owner shall submit to TDHCA such reports on the operation and performance of the Program as re-quired by the Participation Agreement and as may be required b
	(n) Owner Training. The Owner is obligated to train all prop-erty management staff on the requirements of the Program. The Owner will ensure that any new property management staff who is involved in serving Eligible Families review training materials found on the Pro-gram's webpage including webinars, manuals and checklists. (o) Reporting Requirements. Owner shall submit to TDHCA such reports on the operation and performance of the Program as re-quired by the Participation Agreement and as may be required b
	(n) Owner Training. The Owner is obligated to train all prop-erty management staff on the requirements of the Program. The Owner will ensure that any new property management staff who is involved in serving Eligible Families review training materials found on the Pro-gram's webpage including webinars, manuals and checklists. (o) Reporting Requirements. Owner shall submit to TDHCA such reports on the operation and performance of the Program as re-quired by the Participation Agreement and as may be required b
	(n) Owner Training. The Owner is obligated to train all prop-erty management staff on the requirements of the Program. The Owner will ensure that any new property management staff who is involved in serving Eligible Families review training materials found on the Pro-gram's webpage including webinars, manuals and checklists. (o) Reporting Requirements. Owner shall submit to TDHCA such reports on the operation and performance of the Program as re-quired by the Participation Agreement and as may be required b
	(n) Owner Training. The Owner is obligated to train all prop-erty management staff on the requirements of the Program. The Owner will ensure that any new property management staff who is involved in serving Eligible Families review training materials found on the Pro-gram's webpage including webinars, manuals and checklists. (o) Reporting Requirements. Owner shall submit to TDHCA such reports on the operation and performance of the Program as re-quired by the Participation Agreement and as may be required b


	regulations, rules, guidelines, and standards, as amended from time to time. (2) Environmental Review. The environmental effects of each activity carried out with funds provided under this Agreement must be assessed in accordance with the provisions of the Program Requirements, National Environmental Policy Act of 1969 (NEPA) (42 U.S.C. §432 et seq.). Each such activity must have an environmental review completed and support documentation prepared in accordance with 10 TAC §10.305 complying with the NEPA, i

	(t) Procurement of Recovered Materials. Owner, its subrecip-ients, and its contractors must comply with Section 6002 of the Solid Waste Disposal Act, as amended by the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act. The requirements of Section 6002 include procuring only items designated in guidelines of the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) at 40 CFR Part 247 that contain the highest percent-age of recovered materials practicable, consistent with maintaining a satisfactory level of competition, where the purch
	(t) Procurement of Recovered Materials. Owner, its subrecip-ients, and its contractors must comply with Section 6002 of the Solid Waste Disposal Act, as amended by the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act. The requirements of Section 6002 include procuring only items designated in guidelines of the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) at 40 CFR Part 247 that contain the highest percent-age of recovered materials practicable, consistent with maintaining a satisfactory level of competition, where the purch
	(t) Procurement of Recovered Materials. Owner, its subrecip-ients, and its contractors must comply with Section 6002 of the Solid Waste Disposal Act, as amended by the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act. The requirements of Section 6002 include procuring only items designated in guidelines of the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) at 40 CFR Part 247 that contain the highest percent-age of recovered materials practicable, consistent with maintaining a satisfactory level of competition, where the purch

	LI
	LBody
	Link



	(1) Systems Confidentiality Protocols. Owner must under-take customary and industry standard efforts to ensure that the systems developed and utilized under this Agreement protect the confidentiality of every Eligible Applicant's and Eligible Tenant's personal and finan-cial information, both electronic and paper, including credit reports, whether the information is received from the Eligible Applicants, Ten-ants or from another source. Owner must undertake customary and industry standard efforts so that ne
	(1) Systems Confidentiality Protocols. Owner must under-take customary and industry standard efforts to ensure that the systems developed and utilized under this Agreement protect the confidentiality of every Eligible Applicant's and Eligible Tenant's personal and finan-cial information, both electronic and paper, including credit reports, whether the information is received from the Eligible Applicants, Ten-ants or from another source. Owner must undertake customary and industry standard efforts so that ne
	(1) Systems Confidentiality Protocols. Owner must under-take customary and industry standard efforts to ensure that the systems developed and utilized under this Agreement protect the confidentiality of every Eligible Applicant's and Eligible Tenant's personal and finan-cial information, both electronic and paper, including credit reports, whether the information is received from the Eligible Applicants, Ten-ants or from another source. Owner must undertake customary and industry standard efforts so that ne



	(2) Agreement Disputes. In accordance with Tex. Gov't Code 2306.082, it is TDHCA's policy to encourage the use of appro-priate alternative dispute resolution procedures (ADR) under the Gov-ernmental Dispute Resolution Act and the Negotiated Rulemaking Act (Chapters 2009 and 2006 respectively, Tex. Gov't Code), to assist in the fair and expeditious resolution of internal and external disputes in-volving the TDHCA and the use of negotiated rulemaking procedures for the adoption of TDHCA rules. As described in
	(2) Agreement Disputes. In accordance with Tex. Gov't Code 2306.082, it is TDHCA's policy to encourage the use of appro-priate alternative dispute resolution procedures (ADR) under the Gov-ernmental Dispute Resolution Act and the Negotiated Rulemaking Act (Chapters 2009 and 2006 respectively, Tex. Gov't Code), to assist in the fair and expeditious resolution of internal and external disputes in-volving the TDHCA and the use of negotiated rulemaking procedures for the adoption of TDHCA rules. As described in
	(2) Agreement Disputes. In accordance with Tex. Gov't Code 2306.082, it is TDHCA's policy to encourage the use of appro-priate alternative dispute resolution procedures (ADR) under the Gov-ernmental Dispute Resolution Act and the Negotiated Rulemaking Act (Chapters 2009 and 2006 respectively, Tex. Gov't Code), to assist in the fair and expeditious resolution of internal and external disputes in-volving the TDHCA and the use of negotiated rulemaking procedures for the adoption of TDHCA rules. As described in
	(2) Agreement Disputes. In accordance with Tex. Gov't Code 2306.082, it is TDHCA's policy to encourage the use of appro-priate alternative dispute resolution procedures (ADR) under the Gov-ernmental Dispute Resolution Act and the Negotiated Rulemaking Act (Chapters 2009 and 2006 respectively, Tex. Gov't Code), to assist in the fair and expeditious resolution of internal and external disputes in-volving the TDHCA and the use of negotiated rulemaking procedures for the adoption of TDHCA rules. As described in
	(2) Agreement Disputes. In accordance with Tex. Gov't Code 2306.082, it is TDHCA's policy to encourage the use of appro-priate alternative dispute resolution procedures (ADR) under the Gov-ernmental Dispute Resolution Act and the Negotiated Rulemaking Act (Chapters 2009 and 2006 respectively, Tex. Gov't Code), to assist in the fair and expeditious resolution of internal and external disputes in-volving the TDHCA and the use of negotiated rulemaking procedures for the adoption of TDHCA rules. As described in





	and Rent Limit Violations; §10.623 Monitoring Procedures for Housing Tax Credit Properties After the Compliance Period; §10.624 Compliance Requirements for Developments with 811 PRA Units; and Figure §10.625. The amendments clarify the requirements of the Section 811 PRA program, delete unnec-essary requirements, delete requirements related to written policies and procedures and refer readers to the new section of the TAC where that information is being relocated, require the application used by owners scre
	and Rent Limit Violations; §10.623 Monitoring Procedures for Housing Tax Credit Properties After the Compliance Period; §10.624 Compliance Requirements for Developments with 811 PRA Units; and Figure §10.625. The amendments clarify the requirements of the Section 811 PRA program, delete unnec-essary requirements, delete requirements related to written policies and procedures and refer readers to the new section of the TAC where that information is being relocated, require the application used by owners scre
	and Rent Limit Violations; §10.623 Monitoring Procedures for Housing Tax Credit Properties After the Compliance Period; §10.624 Compliance Requirements for Developments with 811 PRA Units; and Figure §10.625. The amendments clarify the requirements of the Section 811 PRA program, delete unnec-essary requirements, delete requirements related to written policies and procedures and refer readers to the new section of the TAC where that information is being relocated, require the application used by owners scre
	and Rent Limit Violations; §10.623 Monitoring Procedures for Housing Tax Credit Properties After the Compliance Period; §10.624 Compliance Requirements for Developments with 811 PRA Units; and Figure §10.625. The amendments clarify the requirements of the Section 811 PRA program, delete unnec-essary requirements, delete requirements related to written policies and procedures and refer readers to the new section of the TAC where that information is being relocated, require the application used by owners scre


	d. LOCAL EMPLOYMENT IMPACT STATEMENTS REQUIRED BY TEX. GOV'T CODE §2001.024(a)(6). The Department has evaluated the proposed amendments as to their possible effects on local economies and has determined that for the first five years the proposed amendments would be in effect there would be no economic effect on local employment; therefore, no local employment impact statement is required to be prepared for the rule. e. PUBLIC BENEFIT/COST NOTE REQUIRED BY TEX. GOV'T CODE §2001.024(a)(5). Mr. Wilkinson has d
	P
	Link

	L
	LI
	LBody
	StyleSpan
	Link




	tion Period that addresses each finding, but does not fully address all findings, the Department will give the Owner written notice and an ad-ditional 10 calendar day period to submit evidence of full corrective action. References in this subchapter to the Corrective Action Period include this additional 10 calendar day period. (c) If any communication to the Owner under this section is re-turned to the Department as refused, unclaimed, or undeliverable, the Development may be considered not in compliance w
	(d) Until and unless the Internal Revenue Service or the Trea-sury Department issues conflicting or additional guidance, the Depart-ment will examine the actual gross rent and income of all households to determine if a Project [projects] that elected the average income test are at or below the federal minimum of 60% AMI. §10.607. Reporting Requirements. (a) The Department requires reports to be submitted electron-ically through CMTS [the Department's web-based Compliance Mon-itoring and Tracking System (CMT
	(d) Until and unless the Internal Revenue Service or the Trea-sury Department issues conflicting or additional guidance, the Depart-ment will examine the actual gross rent and income of all households to determine if a Project [projects] that elected the average income test are at or below the federal minimum of 60% AMI. §10.607. Reporting Requirements. (a) The Department requires reports to be submitted electron-ically through CMTS [the Department's web-based Compliance Mon-itoring and Tracking System (CMT
	(d) Until and unless the Internal Revenue Service or the Trea-sury Department issues conflicting or additional guidance, the Depart-ment will examine the actual gross rent and income of all households to determine if a Project [projects] that elected the average income test are at or below the federal minimum of 60% AMI. §10.607. Reporting Requirements. (a) The Department requires reports to be submitted electron-ically through CMTS [the Department's web-based Compliance Mon-itoring and Tracking System (CMT
	L
	LI
	LBody
	StyleSpan
	Link




	(1) "Annual Owner's Financial Certification" (formerly Part D of the AOCR). Developments funded by the Department must annually provide and certify to the data requested in the Annual Owner's Financial Certification (AOFC). (2) Developments funded with Exchange or TCAP must also submit a "Quarterly Owner's Financial Certification" and these must be submitted in January, April, July, and October on the 15th busi-ness day of the month. (e) Parts A, B, C, and D of the AOCR and the Annual Owner's Financial Cert
	(1) "Annual Owner's Financial Certification" (formerly Part D of the AOCR). Developments funded by the Department must annually provide and certify to the data requested in the Annual Owner's Financial Certification (AOFC). (2) Developments funded with Exchange or TCAP must also submit a "Quarterly Owner's Financial Certification" and these must be submitted in January, April, July, and October on the 15th busi-ness day of the month. (e) Parts A, B, C, and D of the AOCR and the Annual Owner's Financial Cert
	(1) "Annual Owner's Financial Certification" (formerly Part D of the AOCR). Developments funded by the Department must annually provide and certify to the data requested in the Annual Owner's Financial Certification (AOFC). (2) Developments funded with Exchange or TCAP must also submit a "Quarterly Owner's Financial Certification" and these must be submitted in January, April, July, and October on the 15th busi-ness day of the month. (e) Parts A, B, C, and D of the AOCR and the Annual Owner's Financial Cert



	losses) or Notice of Disaster Casualty Loss (specific to loss as a result of a Presidentially Declared Disaster); (3) Owners of Bond Developments shall notify the Depart-ment of the date on which 10% of the Units are occupied and the date on which 50% of the Units are occupied, and notice must occur within 90 days of each such date; (4) Within 30 days after a foreclosure, the Department must be provided with documentation evidencing the foreclosure and a rent roll establishing occupancy on the day of the fo
	[(b) Tenant Selection Criteria. Owners must maintain written Tenant Selection Criteria. The criteria under which an applicant was screened must be included in the household's file.] [(1) The criteria must be reasonably related to the appli-cant's ability to perform under the lease and include: [(A) Requirements that determine an applicant's basic eligibility for the property, including any preferences, restrictions, and any other tenancy requirements. The tenant selection criteria must specifically list:] [
	[(b) Tenant Selection Criteria. Owners must maintain written Tenant Selection Criteria. The criteria under which an applicant was screened must be included in the household's file.] [(1) The criteria must be reasonably related to the appli-cant's ability to perform under the lease and include: [(A) Requirements that determine an applicant's basic eligibility for the property, including any preferences, restrictions, and any other tenancy requirements. The tenant selection criteria must specifically list:] [


	[(3) If the Development is funded with HOME, TCAP RF, NHTF, or NSP funds, in accordance with 24 CFR §93.356 and 24 CFR §92.359, the criteria may have a preference for persons who have expe-rienced domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking.] [(c) Reasonable Accommodations Policy. Owners must main-tain a written Reasonable Accommodations policy. The policy must be maintained at the Development. Owners are responsible for ensuring that their employees and contracted third party management
	[(3) If the Development is funded with HOME, TCAP RF, NHTF, or NSP funds, in accordance with 24 CFR §93.356 and 24 CFR §92.359, the criteria may have a preference for persons who have expe-rienced domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking.] [(c) Reasonable Accommodations Policy. Owners must main-tain a written Reasonable Accommodations policy. The policy must be maintained at the Development. Owners are responsible for ensuring that their employees and contracted third party management
	[(3) If the Development is funded with HOME, TCAP RF, NHTF, or NSP funds, in accordance with 24 CFR §93.356 and 24 CFR §92.359, the criteria may have a preference for persons who have expe-rienced domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking.] [(c) Reasonable Accommodations Policy. Owners must main-tain a written Reasonable Accommodations policy. The policy must be maintained at the Development. Owners are responsible for ensuring that their employees and contracted third party management
	[(3) If the Development is funded with HOME, TCAP RF, NHTF, or NSP funds, in accordance with 24 CFR §93.356 and 24 CFR §92.359, the criteria may have a preference for persons who have expe-rienced domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking.] [(c) Reasonable Accommodations Policy. Owners must main-tain a written Reasonable Accommodations policy. The policy must be maintained at the Development. Owners are responsible for ensuring that their employees and contracted third party management

	have written policies regarding changes in income that address the op-tions available in §10.615 of this subchapter.] [(f) Denied Application Policies. Owners must maintain a written policy regarding procedures for denying applications and notifying denied applicants of their rights.] [(1) The policy must address the manner by which rejec-tions of applications will be handled, including timeframes and appeal procedures, if any.] [(2) Within seven days after the determination is made to deny an application, 
	have written policies regarding changes in income that address the op-tions available in §10.615 of this subchapter.] [(f) Denied Application Policies. Owners must maintain a written policy regarding procedures for denying applications and notifying denied applicants of their rights.] [(1) The policy must address the manner by which rejec-tions of applications will be handled, including timeframes and appeal procedures, if any.] [(2) Within seven days after the determination is made to deny an application, 
	have written policies regarding changes in income that address the op-tions available in §10.615 of this subchapter.] [(f) Denied Application Policies. Owners must maintain a written policy regarding procedures for denying applications and notifying denied applicants of their rights.] [(1) The policy must address the manner by which rejec-tions of applications will be handled, including timeframes and appeal procedures, if any.] [(2) Within seven days after the determination is made to deny an application, 



	[(B) Include the TDHCA form based on HUD form 5380 "Notice of Occupancy Rights under the Violence Against Women Act" and the HUD form 5382 "Certification of Domestic Violence, Dating Violence, Sexual Assault, or Stalking and Alternate Documentation." To avoid providing applicants and residents with duplicate information, TDHCA administered Developments layered with other federal funds are permitted to amend the TDHCA VAWA forms to incorporate requirements of other funders. However, none of the information i
	[(B) Include the TDHCA form based on HUD form 5380 "Notice of Occupancy Rights under the Violence Against Women Act" and the HUD form 5382 "Certification of Domestic Violence, Dating Violence, Sexual Assault, or Stalking and Alternate Documentation." To avoid providing applicants and residents with duplicate information, TDHCA administered Developments layered with other federal funds are permitted to amend the TDHCA VAWA forms to incorporate requirements of other funders. However, none of the information i

	P
	ParagraphSpan
	StyleSpan
	Link


	Department, Owners may make non-substantive changes to their poli-cies. Significant changes to reviewed policies without Department ap-proval may result in findings of noncompliance.] [(m) Development Owners must allow applicants to submit applications via mail and at the Development site or leasing office; if the Development is electronically equipped, the Development may also allow applications to be submitted via email, website form, or fax. The Development's tenant selection criteria must state availabl
	Department, Owners may make non-substantive changes to their poli-cies. Significant changes to reviewed policies without Department ap-proval may result in findings of noncompliance.] [(m) Development Owners must allow applicants to submit applications via mail and at the Development site or leasing office; if the Development is electronically equipped, the Development may also allow applications to be submitted via email, website form, or fax. The Development's tenant selection criteria must state availabl



	household income. In general, all low-income households must be certified prior to move in. The Department requires the use of the TD-HCA Income Certification form, unless the Development [property] also participates in the Rural Development or a Project Based HUD Program, in which case, the other program's Income Certification form will be accepted; (2) Documentation to support the Income Certification form including, but not limited to, applications, first hand or third party verification of income and as
	household income. In general, all low-income households must be certified prior to move in. The Department requires the use of the TD-HCA Income Certification form, unless the Development [property] also participates in the Rural Development or a Project Based HUD Program, in which case, the other program's Income Certification form will be accepted; (2) Documentation to support the Income Certification form including, but not limited to, applications, first hand or third party verification of income and as
	household income. In general, all low-income households must be certified prior to move in. The Department requires the use of the TD-HCA Income Certification form, unless the Development [property] also participates in the Rural Development or a Project Based HUD Program, in which case, the other program's Income Certification form will be accepted; (2) Documentation to support the Income Certification form including, but not limited to, applications, first hand or third party verification of income and as
	L
	LI
	LBody
	StyleSpan
	Link




	nually the income of each low-income household using a Department approved Income Certification form and documentation to support the Income Certification (see subsection (a)(1) -(2) of this section): (A) Mixed income Housing Tax Credit, TCAP and Ex-change projects (as defined by line 8(b) of IRS Form(s) 8609 and ac-companying statements, if any) that have not completed the 15 year Compliance Period. (B) All Bond Developments [developments] with less than 100% of the units set aside for households with an i

	household's written statement failed to completely and accurately pro-vide information about the household's characteristics and/or income, then an annual income recertification with verifications is required. (d) Tenant File requirements for Section 811 PRA Units [units]. Files for households assisted under the Section 811 program must document the household's eligibility for the program, the deduc-tions for which the household qualifies and the following HUD forms: (1) Section 811 Project Rental Assistanc
	Transitional Housing [transitional housing] (if applicable), or for other good cause. It must be specifically stated in the lease or in an addendum attached to the lease that evictions or non-renewal of leases for other than good cause are prohibited (24 CFR §92.253 and 24 CFR §93.303). Owners must also comply with all other lease requirements and prohibitions stated in 24 CFR §92.253 or 24 CFR §93.303, as applicable. To terminate or refuse to renew tenancy in HOME, TCAP RF, and NSP Developments, the Owner 
	Transitional Housing [transitional housing] (if applicable), or for other good cause. It must be specifically stated in the lease or in an addendum attached to the lease that evictions or non-renewal of leases for other than good cause are prohibited (24 CFR §92.253 and 24 CFR §93.303). Owners must also comply with all other lease requirements and prohibitions stated in 24 CFR §92.253 or 24 CFR §93.303, as applicable. To terminate or refuse to renew tenancy in HOME, TCAP RF, and NSP Developments, the Owner 


	(i) Leasing of HOME, [NSP or] TCAP RF, or NHTF Units [units] to an organization that, in turn, rents those Units [units] to in-dividuals is not permissible for Developments with contracts dated on or after August 23, 2013. Leases must be between the Development and an eligible household. NSP Developments may only utilize Mas-ter Leases if specifically allowed in the Development's LURA. (j) Housing Tax Credit Units [units] leased to an organization through a supportive housing program where the [Owner] recei
	(i) Leasing of HOME, [NSP or] TCAP RF, or NHTF Units [units] to an organization that, in turn, rents those Units [units] to in-dividuals is not permissible for Developments with contracts dated on or after August 23, 2013. Leases must be between the Development and an eligible household. NSP Developments may only utilize Mas-ter Leases if specifically allowed in the Development's LURA. (j) Housing Tax Credit Units [units] leased to an organization through a supportive housing program where the [Owner] recei
	(i) Leasing of HOME, [NSP or] TCAP RF, or NHTF Units [units] to an organization that, in turn, rents those Units [units] to in-dividuals is not permissible for Developments with contracts dated on or after August 23, 2013. Leases must be between the Development and an eligible household. NSP Developments may only utilize Mas-ter Leases if specifically allowed in the Development's LURA. (j) Housing Tax Credit Units [units] leased to an organization through a supportive housing program where the [Owner] recei
	(i) Leasing of HOME, [NSP or] TCAP RF, or NHTF Units [units] to an organization that, in turn, rents those Units [units] to in-dividuals is not permissible for Developments with contracts dated on or after August 23, 2013. Leases must be between the Development and an eligible household. NSP Developments may only utilize Mas-ter Leases if specifically allowed in the Development's LURA. (j) Housing Tax Credit Units [units] leased to an organization through a supportive housing program where the [Owner] recei
	(i) Leasing of HOME, [NSP or] TCAP RF, or NHTF Units [units] to an organization that, in turn, rents those Units [units] to in-dividuals is not permissible for Developments with contracts dated on or after August 23, 2013. Leases must be between the Development and an eligible household. NSP Developments may only utilize Mas-ter Leases if specifically allowed in the Development's LURA. (j) Housing Tax Credit Units [units] leased to an organization through a supportive housing program where the [Owner] recei


	L
	LI
	LBody
	Link


	LI
	LBody
	Link
	Link



	of residential service directly with the Utility Provider. If the Utility Provider is not listed as a provider of residential service in the Devel-opment's ZIP code for an area that is deregulated, the request will not be approved. (3) Component Charges. The actual cost associated with the billing of a residential utility. Each Utility Provider may publish specific utility service information in varying formats depending on the service area. Such costs include, but are not limited to: (A) Rate(s). The cost 
	L
	LI
	LBody
	Link




	(8) Utility Provider. The company that provides residential utility service (e.g., electric, gas, water, wastewater, and/or trash) to the buildings. (c) Methods. The following options are available to establish a Utility Allowance for all programs except Developments funded with MFDL funds, which are addressed in subsection (d) of this section. (1) Rural Housing Services (RHS) buildings or buildings with RHS assisted residents. The applicable Utility Allowance for the Development will be determined under th
	(8) Utility Provider. The company that provides residential utility service (e.g., electric, gas, water, wastewater, and/or trash) to the buildings. (c) Methods. The following options are available to establish a Utility Allowance for all programs except Developments funded with MFDL funds, which are addressed in subsection (d) of this section. (1) Rural Housing Services (RHS) buildings or buildings with RHS assisted residents. The applicable Utility Allowance for the Development will be determined under th
	(8) Utility Provider. The company that provides residential utility service (e.g., electric, gas, water, wastewater, and/or trash) to the buildings. (c) Methods. The following options are available to establish a Utility Allowance for all programs except Developments funded with MFDL funds, which are addressed in subsection (d) of this section. (1) Rural Housing Services (RHS) buildings or buildings with RHS assisted residents. The applicable Utility Allowance for the Development will be determined under th


	(vi) If the Development is located in an area that does not have a municipal, county, or regional housing authority that publishes a Utility Allowance schedule for the Housing Choice Voucher Program, Owners must select an alternative methodology, unless the building(s) is located in the published Housing Choice Voucher service area of: (I) A Council of Government created under Texas Local Government Code, Chapter 303, that operates a Housing Choice Voucher Program; (II) The Department's Housing Choice Vouch
	(vi) If the Development is located in an area that does not have a municipal, county, or regional housing authority that publishes a Utility Allowance schedule for the Housing Choice Voucher Program, Owners must select an alternative methodology, unless the building(s) is located in the published Housing Choice Voucher service area of: (I) A Council of Government created under Texas Local Government Code, Chapter 303, that operates a Housing Choice Voucher Program; (II) The Department's Housing Choice Vouch
	(vi) If the Development is located in an area that does not have a municipal, county, or regional housing authority that publishes a Utility Allowance schedule for the Housing Choice Voucher Program, Owners must select an alternative methodology, unless the building(s) is located in the published Housing Choice Voucher service area of: (I) A Council of Government created under Texas Local Government Code, Chapter 303, that operates a Housing Choice Voucher Program; (II) The Department's Housing Choice Vouch


	L
	LI
	LBody
	Link


	LI
	LBody
	Link




	billing cycle. When calculating the allowance, disregard these types costs or credits. (v) In deregulated areas, the rate plan used to calcu-late the allowance must have a term of at least 12 months. (D) Energy Consumption Model. The model must be calculated by a properly licensed mechanical engineer. The individ-ual must not be related to the Owner within the meaning of §267(b) or §707(b) of the Code. The utility consumption estimate must, at mini-mum, take into consideration specific factors that include,
	billing cycle. When calculating the allowance, disregard these types costs or credits. (v) In deregulated areas, the rate plan used to calcu-late the allowance must have a term of at least 12 months. (D) Energy Consumption Model. The model must be calculated by a properly licensed mechanical engineer. The individ-ual must not be related to the Owner within the meaning of §267(b) or §707(b) of the Code. The utility consumption estimate must, at mini-mum, take into consideration specific factors that include,
	billing cycle. When calculating the allowance, disregard these types costs or credits. (v) In deregulated areas, the rate plan used to calcu-late the allowance must have a term of at least 12 months. (D) Energy Consumption Model. The model must be calculated by a properly licensed mechanical engineer. The individ-ual must not be related to the Owner within the meaning of §267(b) or §707(b) of the Code. The utility consumption estimate must, at mini-mum, take into consideration specific factors that include,
	(II) If more than 12 months of data is provided for any Unit, only the data for the most current 12 will be averaged; (III) The allowance will be calculated by multi-plying the average units of measure for the applicable utility (i.e., kilo-watts over the last 12 months by the current rate) for all Unit Types within that bedroom size. For example, if sufficient data is supplied for 18 two bedroom/one bath Units, and 12 two bedroom/two bath Units, the data for all 30 Units will be averaged to calculate the a

	(E) The Department will notify the Owner contact in CMTS of the new allowance and provide the backup for how the al-lowance was calculated. The Owner [owner] will be provided a five day period to review the Department's calculation and note any errors. Only errors related to the physical characteristics of the building(s) and utilities paid by the residents will be reconsidered; the utility plan and Utility Provider selected by the Department and Component Charges used in calculating the allowance will not 
	(E) The Department will notify the Owner contact in CMTS of the new allowance and provide the backup for how the al-lowance was calculated. The Owner [owner] will be provided a five day period to review the Department's calculation and note any errors. Only errors related to the physical characteristics of the building(s) and utilities paid by the residents will be reconsidered; the utility plan and Utility Provider selected by the Department and Component Charges used in calculating the allowance will not 
	(E) The Department will notify the Owner contact in CMTS of the new allowance and provide the backup for how the al-lowance was calculated. The Owner [owner] will be provided a five day period to review the Department's calculation and note any errors. Only errors related to the physical characteristics of the building(s) and utilities paid by the residents will be reconsidered; the utility plan and Utility Provider selected by the Department and Component Charges used in calculating the allowance will not 


	July 5, 2014, and the notice to the residents was posted in the leas-ing office on July 5, 2014. However, the Owner failed to submit the request to the Department for review until September 15, 2014. Al-though the Notice to the Residents was dated the date of the letter from the utility provider, the Department was not provided the full 90 days for review. As a result, the allowance cannot be implemented by the Owner [owner] until approved by the Department. (3) Effective dates. If the Owner uses the method

	(i) Combining Methods. In general, Owners may combine any methodology described in this section for each utility service type paid directly by the resident and not by or through the Owner of the build-ing (e.g., electric, gas). For example, if residents are responsible for electricity and gas, an Owner may use the appropriate PHA allowance to determine the gas portion of the allowance and use the Actual Use Method to determine the electric portion of the allowance. RHS and certain HUD-Regulated buildings (e
	(i) Combining Methods. In general, Owners may combine any methodology described in this section for each utility service type paid directly by the resident and not by or through the Owner of the build-ing (e.g., electric, gas). For example, if residents are responsible for electricity and gas, an Owner may use the appropriate PHA allowance to determine the gas portion of the allowance and use the Actual Use Method to determine the electric portion of the allowance. RHS and certain HUD-Regulated buildings (e
	(i) Combining Methods. In general, Owners may combine any methodology described in this section for each utility service type paid directly by the resident and not by or through the Owner of the build-ing (e.g., electric, gas). For example, if residents are responsible for electricity and gas, an Owner may use the appropriate PHA allowance to determine the gas portion of the allowance and use the Actual Use Method to determine the electric portion of the allowance. RHS and certain HUD-Regulated buildings (e
	(i) Combining Methods. In general, Owners may combine any methodology described in this section for each utility service type paid directly by the resident and not by or through the Owner of the build-ing (e.g., electric, gas). For example, if residents are responsible for electricity and gas, an Owner may use the appropriate PHA allowance to determine the gas portion of the allowance and use the Actual Use Method to determine the electric portion of the allowance. RHS and certain HUD-Regulated buildings (e
	(i) Combining Methods. In general, Owners may combine any methodology described in this section for each utility service type paid directly by the resident and not by or through the Owner of the build-ing (e.g., electric, gas). For example, if residents are responsible for electricity and gas, an Owner may use the appropriate PHA allowance to determine the gas portion of the allowance and use the Actual Use Method to determine the electric portion of the allowance. RHS and certain HUD-Regulated buildings (e


	(6) All Utility Allowance requests related to applications of funding must: (A) Be submitted directly to ua_application@td-hca.state.tx.us. Requests not submitted to this email address will not be recognized. (B) Include the "Utility Allowance Questionnaire for Applications" along with all required back up based on the method. (l) If Owners want to change to a utility allowance other than what was used for underwriting the Owner must submit Utility Al-lowance documentation for Department approval, at minimu
	(6) All Utility Allowance requests related to applications of funding must: (A) Be submitted directly to ua_application@td-hca.state.tx.us. Requests not submitted to this email address will not be recognized. (B) Include the "Utility Allowance Questionnaire for Applications" along with all required back up based on the method. (l) If Owners want to change to a utility allowance other than what was used for underwriting the Owner must submit Utility Al-lowance documentation for Department approval, at minimu
	(6) All Utility Allowance requests related to applications of funding must: (A) Be submitted directly to ua_application@td-hca.state.tx.us. Requests not submitted to this email address will not be recognized. (B) Include the "Utility Allowance Questionnaire for Applications" along with all required back up based on the method. (l) If Owners want to change to a utility allowance other than what was used for underwriting the Owner must submit Utility Al-lowance documentation for Department approval, at minimu

	LI
	LBody
	Link




	[(c) One hundred percent HTC Developments (developments with no Market Rate units) with additional rent and occupancy restric-tions are neither required nor prohibited from completing annual in-come recertifications. The Development's written policies and proce-dures must specify the Development's choice.] [(1) If a 100% low income development that elects the 20/50 or 40/60 test under IRC §42(g) chooses to perform annual income recertifications, all households designated as meeting the ad-ditional rent and 
	[(c) One hundred percent HTC Developments (developments with no Market Rate units) with additional rent and occupancy restric-tions are neither required nor prohibited from completing annual in-come recertifications. The Development's written policies and proce-dures must specify the Development's choice.] [(1) If a 100% low income development that elects the 20/50 or 40/60 test under IRC §42(g) chooses to perform annual income recertifications, all households designated as meeting the ad-ditional rent and 

	designation, and simultaneously lower the rent for another household that has been on the Development's waiting list for a 30% Unit; or] [(C) If the household's income exceeds 140% of the highest income tier established by the minimum set-aside, the house-hold must be redesignated as over income and the Next Available Unit Rule must be followed.] [(e) HTC Developments that elect income averaging test and have market rate units must have written policies and procedures that address changes in income at recer
	designation, and simultaneously lower the rent for another household that has been on the Development's waiting list for a 30% Unit; or] [(C) If the household's income exceeds 140% of the highest income tier established by the minimum set-aside, the house-hold must be redesignated as over income and the Next Available Unit Rule must be followed.] [(e) HTC Developments that elect income averaging test and have market rate units must have written policies and procedures that address changes in income at recer
	designation, and simultaneously lower the rent for another household that has been on the Development's waiting list for a 30% Unit; or] [(C) If the household's income exceeds 140% of the highest income tier established by the minimum set-aside, the house-hold must be redesignated as over income and the Next Available Unit Rule must be followed.] [(e) HTC Developments that elect income averaging test and have market rate units must have written policies and procedures that address changes in income at recer



	ignates more households than required under the additional rent and occupancy restrictions, they may only decrease to the minimum num-ber through attrition and new move ins, not by removing designations. §10.616. Household Unit Transfer Requirements for All Programs. (a) The requirements and restrictions regarding household transfers for HTC, Exchange, and TCAP Developments are based on whether the tax credit project is 100% low-income or mixed income and if the Owner [owner] elected to treat buildings in t
	ignates more households than required under the additional rent and occupancy restrictions, they may only decrease to the minimum num-ber through attrition and new move ins, not by removing designations. §10.616. Household Unit Transfer Requirements for All Programs. (a) The requirements and restrictions regarding household transfers for HTC, Exchange, and TCAP Developments are based on whether the tax credit project is 100% low-income or mixed income and if the Owner [owner] elected to treat buildings in t
	ignates more households than required under the additional rent and occupancy restrictions, they may only decrease to the minimum num-ber through attrition and new move ins, not by removing designations. §10.616. Household Unit Transfer Requirements for All Programs. (a) The requirements and restrictions regarding household transfers for HTC, Exchange, and TCAP Developments are based on whether the tax credit project is 100% low-income or mixed income and if the Owner [owner] elected to treat buildings in t
	(d) Household Transfers in the Same Building for the HTC Programs. A Household may transfer to a new Unit within the same building (for the HTC program within the meaning of IRS Notice 88-91). The Unit [unit] designations will swap status. [(e) Household transfers for the Section 811 PRA must be ap-proved by the Department in writing.] §10.617. Affirmative Marketing Requirements. Affirmative Marketing Requirements are a requirement of the Depart-ment on monitored Developments as provided for in more specifi

	[(f) Record keeping. Owners must maintain records of each Affirmative Marketing Plan and specific outreach efforts completed for the greater of three years or the recordkeeping requirement identified in the LURA.] [(g) Exception to Affirmative Marketing. If the Development has closed its waiting list, Affirmative Marketing is not required. Af-firmative Marketing is required as long as the Owner is accepting ap-plications, has an open waiting list, or is marketing prior to placement in service as required un
	[(f) Record keeping. Owners must maintain records of each Affirmative Marketing Plan and specific outreach efforts completed for the greater of three years or the recordkeeping requirement identified in the LURA.] [(g) Exception to Affirmative Marketing. If the Development has closed its waiting list, Affirmative Marketing is not required. Af-firmative Marketing is required as long as the Owner is accepting ap-plications, has an open waiting list, or is marketing prior to placement in service as required un

	(1) Example 612(2). A TCAP RF LURA requires eight low-income units with the following Unit mix: (A) Three one bedroom, one bath units with a Net Rentable Area (NRA) of 770 sq ft; (B) One two bedroom one bath units with a NRA of 900 sq ft; and (C) Four three bedroom two bath units with a NRA of 1000 sq ft. (2) If during the onsite review the Development has eight units designated as TCAP RF, but is not exactly the Units and square footage mix shown in subparagraphs (A) -(C) of this paragraph in Example 612(2
	(1) Example 612(2). A TCAP RF LURA requires eight low-income units with the following Unit mix: (A) Three one bedroom, one bath units with a Net Rentable Area (NRA) of 770 sq ft; (B) One two bedroom one bath units with a NRA of 900 sq ft; and (C) Four three bedroom two bath units with a NRA of 1000 sq ft. (2) If during the onsite review the Development has eight units designated as TCAP RF, but is not exactly the Units and square footage mix shown in subparagraphs (A) -(C) of this paragraph in Example 612(2
	(1) Example 612(2). A TCAP RF LURA requires eight low-income units with the following Unit mix: (A) Three one bedroom, one bath units with a Net Rentable Area (NRA) of 770 sq ft; (B) One two bedroom one bath units with a NRA of 900 sq ft; and (C) Four three bedroom two bath units with a NRA of 1000 sq ft. (2) If during the onsite review the Development has eight units designated as TCAP RF, but is not exactly the Units and square footage mix shown in subparagraphs (A) -(C) of this paragraph in Example 612(2
	(1) Example 612(2). A TCAP RF LURA requires eight low-income units with the following Unit mix: (A) Three one bedroom, one bath units with a Net Rentable Area (NRA) of 770 sq ft; (B) One two bedroom one bath units with a NRA of 900 sq ft; and (C) Four three bedroom two bath units with a NRA of 1000 sq ft. (2) If during the onsite review the Development has eight units designated as TCAP RF, but is not exactly the Units and square footage mix shown in subparagraphs (A) -(C) of this paragraph in Example 612(2




	credit to amounts owed the Development) any excess rents to a suffi-cient number of households to meet the set aside. (c) Rent Violations of the maximum allowable limit due to ap-plication fees or application deposits not promptly converted into a security deposit under the HTC program. Under the HTC program, Owners may not charge tenants any overhead costs as part of the ap-plication fee. Owners must only charge the actual cost for application fees as supported by invoices from the screening company the Ow
	credit to amounts owed the Development) any excess rents to a suffi-cient number of households to meet the set aside. (c) Rent Violations of the maximum allowable limit due to ap-plication fees or application deposits not promptly converted into a security deposit under the HTC program. Under the HTC program, Owners may not charge tenants any overhead costs as part of the ap-plication fee. Owners must only charge the actual cost for application fees as supported by invoices from the screening company the Ow
	credit to amounts owed the Development) any excess rents to a suffi-cient number of households to meet the set aside. (c) Rent Violations of the maximum allowable limit due to ap-plication fees or application deposits not promptly converted into a security deposit under the HTC program. Under the HTC program, Owners may not charge tenants any overhead costs as part of the ap-plication fee. Owners must only charge the actual cost for application fees as supported by invoices from the screening company the Ow
	(1) 100% HOME/TCAP-RF assisted Developments. If a household's income exceeds 80% at recertification, the Owner [owner] must charge rent equal to 30% of the household's adjusted income; (2) HOME/TCAP-RF Developments with any Market Rate units. If a household's income exceeds 80% at recertification, the Owner [owner] must charge rent equal to the lesser of 30% of the household's adjusted income or the comparable Market rent; and (3) HOME/TCAP-RF Developments layered with other Department affordable housing pr
	(1) 100% HOME/TCAP-RF assisted Developments. If a household's income exceeds 80% at recertification, the Owner [owner] must charge rent equal to 30% of the household's adjusted income; (2) HOME/TCAP-RF Developments with any Market Rate units. If a household's income exceeds 80% at recertification, the Owner [owner] must charge rent equal to the lesser of 30% of the household's adjusted income or the comparable Market rent; and (3) HOME/TCAP-RF Developments layered with other Department affordable housing pr
	(1) 100% HOME/TCAP-RF assisted Developments. If a household's income exceeds 80% at recertification, the Owner [owner] must charge rent equal to 30% of the household's adjusted income; (2) HOME/TCAP-RF Developments with any Market Rate units. If a household's income exceeds 80% at recertification, the Owner [owner] must charge rent equal to the lesser of 30% of the household's adjusted income or the comparable Market rent; and (3) HOME/TCAP-RF Developments layered with other Department affordable housing pr



	(4) Reports to the Department must be submitted electron-ically as required in §10.607 of this subchapter (relating to Reporting Requirements); (5) Compliance monitoring fees will continue to be sub-mitted to the Department annually in the amount stated in the LURA; (6) All HTC households must be income qualified upon ini-tial occupancy of any Low Income [Low-Income] Unit. Proper verifi-cations of income are required, and the Department's Income Certifi-cation form must be completed unless the Development p
	(4) Reports to the Department must be submitted electron-ically as required in §10.607 of this subchapter (relating to Reporting Requirements); (5) Compliance monitoring fees will continue to be sub-mitted to the Department annually in the amount stated in the LURA; (6) All HTC households must be income qualified upon ini-tial occupancy of any Low Income [Low-Income] Unit. Proper verifi-cations of income are required, and the Department's Income Certifi-cation form must be completed unless the Development p
	(4) Reports to the Department must be submitted electron-ically as required in §10.607 of this subchapter (relating to Reporting Requirements); (5) Compliance monitoring fees will continue to be sub-mitted to the Department annually in the amount stated in the LURA; (6) All HTC households must be income qualified upon ini-tial occupancy of any Low Income [Low-Income] Unit. Proper verifi-cations of income are required, and the Department's Income Certifi-cation form must be completed unless the Development p


	(4) Mixed income Developments are not required to con-duct annual income recertifications. However, Owners must continue to collect and report data in accordance with subsection (b)(13) of this section. (d) While the requirements of the LURA may provide addi-tional requirements, right and remedies to the Department or the ten-ants, the Department will monitor post year 15 in accordance with this section as amended. (e) Unless specifically noted in this section, all requirements of this chapter, the LURA and
	(4) Mixed income Developments are not required to con-duct annual income recertifications. However, Owners must continue to collect and report data in accordance with subsection (b)(13) of this section. (d) While the requirements of the LURA may provide addi-tional requirements, right and remedies to the Department or the ten-ants, the Department will monitor post year 15 in accordance with this section as amended. (e) Unless specifically noted in this section, all requirements of this chapter, the LURA and
	(4) Mixed income Developments are not required to con-duct annual income recertifications. However, Owners must continue to collect and report data in accordance with subsection (b)(13) of this section. (d) While the requirements of the LURA may provide addi-tional requirements, right and remedies to the Department or the ten-ants, the Department will monitor post year 15 in accordance with this section as amended. (e) Unless specifically noted in this section, all requirements of this chapter, the LURA and



	par. 3-13B, as modified by the September 21, 2016, Federal Register Notice 5969-N-01. (d) Noncompliance will be cited if the Development: (1) Leased [Leases] a Unit to a household that is not qualified for the 811 PRA program [eligible] in accordance with the requirements of subsection (c)(1) -(4) of this section; (2) Fails to Use the Enterprise Income Verification system for documenting the household's income; (3) Fails to properly document and calculate deductions in order to determine adjusted income (de
	par. 3-13B, as modified by the September 21, 2016, Federal Register Notice 5969-N-01. (d) Noncompliance will be cited if the Development: (1) Leased [Leases] a Unit to a household that is not qualified for the 811 PRA program [eligible] in accordance with the requirements of subsection (c)(1) -(4) of this section; (2) Fails to Use the Enterprise Income Verification system for documenting the household's income; (3) Fails to properly document and calculate deductions in order to determine adjusted income (de
	par. 3-13B, as modified by the September 21, 2016, Federal Register Notice 5969-N-01. (d) Noncompliance will be cited if the Development: (1) Leased [Leases] a Unit to a household that is not qualified for the 811 PRA program [eligible] in accordance with the requirements of subsection (c)(1) -(4) of this section; (2) Fails to Use the Enterprise Income Verification system for documenting the household's income; (3) Fails to properly document and calculate deductions in order to determine adjusted income (de
	(Spanish), and in other languages as required by Limited English Pro-ficiency Requirements. §10.625. Events of Noncompliance. Figure: 10 TAC §10.625 lists events for which a multifamily rental Development [development] may be found to be in noncompliance for compliance monitoring purposes. This list is not an exclusive list of events and issues for which an Owner may be subject to an administra-tive penalty, debarment,or other enforcement action. The first column of the chart identifies the noncompliance ev
	(Spanish), and in other languages as required by Limited English Pro-ficiency Requirements. §10.625. Events of Noncompliance. Figure: 10 TAC §10.625 lists events for which a multifamily rental Development [development] may be found to be in noncompliance for compliance monitoring purposes. This list is not an exclusive list of events and issues for which an Owner may be subject to an administra-tive penalty, debarment,or other enforcement action. The first column of the chart identifies the noncompliance ev




	requirements relating to Affirmative Marketing and Written Poli-cies and Procedures for Multifamily Activities are clearly relayed to participating properties in the Department's portfolio. 2. The proposed new rule does not require a change in work that would require the creation of new employee positions, nor are the rule changes significant enough to reduce work load to a degree that eliminates any existing employee positions. 3. The proposed rule changes do not require additional future legislative appro
	requirements relating to Affirmative Marketing and Written Poli-cies and Procedures for Multifamily Activities are clearly relayed to participating properties in the Department's portfolio. 2. The proposed new rule does not require a change in work that would require the creation of new employee positions, nor are the rule changes significant enough to reduce work load to a degree that eliminates any existing employee positions. 3. The proposed rule changes do not require additional future legislative appro
	to a process which has already been in effect for existing multi-family properties in the Department's portfolio; therefore, no local employment impact statement is required to be prepared for the rule. Tex. Gov't Code §2001.022(a) states that this "impact state-ment must describe in detail the probable effect of the rule on employment in each geographic region affected by this rule..." Considering that this new rule only administratively consolidates an existing set of rules relating to Fair Housing requir
	to a process which has already been in effect for existing multi-family properties in the Department's portfolio; therefore, no local employment impact statement is required to be prepared for the rule. Tex. Gov't Code §2001.022(a) states that this "impact state-ment must describe in detail the probable effect of the rule on employment in each geographic region affected by this rule..." Considering that this new rule only administratively consolidates an existing set of rules relating to Fair Housing requir

	P
	Link
	Link

	choice for prospective tenants, regardless of race, color, religion, sex, national origin, familial status, or disability and must develop and carry out an Affirmative Fair Housing Marketing Plan (or Affirmative Mar-keting Plan) to provide for marketing strategies and documentation of outreach efforts to prospective applicants identified as "least likely to apply." To determine the "least likely to apply" populations, a Develop-ment Owner is encouraged to use Worksheet 1 of HUD Form 935.2A, but at a minimum
	choice for prospective tenants, regardless of race, color, religion, sex, national origin, familial status, or disability and must develop and carry out an Affirmative Fair Housing Marketing Plan (or Affirmative Mar-keting Plan) to provide for marketing strategies and documentation of outreach efforts to prospective applicants identified as "least likely to apply." To determine the "least likely to apply" populations, a Develop-ment Owner is encouraged to use Worksheet 1 of HUD Form 935.2A, but at a minimum
	choice for prospective tenants, regardless of race, color, religion, sex, national origin, familial status, or disability and must develop and carry out an Affirmative Fair Housing Marketing Plan (or Affirmative Mar-keting Plan) to provide for marketing strategies and documentation of outreach efforts to prospective applicants identified as "least likely to apply." To determine the "least likely to apply" populations, a Develop-ment Owner is encouraged to use Worksheet 1 of HUD Form 935.2A, but at a minimum
	choice for prospective tenants, regardless of race, color, religion, sex, national origin, familial status, or disability and must develop and carry out an Affirmative Fair Housing Marketing Plan (or Affirmative Mar-keting Plan) to provide for marketing strategies and documentation of outreach efforts to prospective applicants identified as "least likely to apply." To determine the "least likely to apply" populations, a Develop-ment Owner is encouraged to use Worksheet 1 of HUD Form 935.2A, but at a minimum

	such written policies and procedures, or fails to follow their written policies and procedures it will be handled as an Event of Noncom-pliance as further provided in §10.803 of this subchapter (relating to Compliance and Events of Noncompliance). (1) Owners must inform applicants/tenants in writing, at the time of application, or at the time of other actions described in this section, that such policies/procedures as described in this section are available, and that the Owner will provide copies upon reque
	such written policies and procedures, or fails to follow their written policies and procedures it will be handled as an Event of Noncom-pliance as further provided in §10.803 of this subchapter (relating to Compliance and Events of Noncompliance). (1) Owners must inform applicants/tenants in writing, at the time of application, or at the time of other actions described in this section, that such policies/procedures as described in this section are available, and that the Owner will provide copies upon reque
	such written policies and procedures, or fails to follow their written policies and procedures it will be handled as an Event of Noncom-pliance as further provided in §10.803 of this subchapter (relating to Compliance and Events of Noncompliance). (1) Owners must inform applicants/tenants in writing, at the time of application, or at the time of other actions described in this section, that such policies/procedures as described in this section are available, and that the Owner will provide copies upon reque



	sons Act of 1995 as amended (HOPA), or the age related eligibly cri-teria required by its use of federal funds. (2) The criteria must not: (A) Include preferences for admission, unless it is in a recorded LURA which has been approved by the Department (prefer-ences are required to be in a LURA when a Development has MFDL funding, except for the preference allowed by paragraph (3) of this sub-section), is required by a program in which the Owner is participating which requires the preference, or is allowed b
	sons Act of 1995 as amended (HOPA), or the age related eligibly cri-teria required by its use of federal funds. (2) The criteria must not: (A) Include preferences for admission, unless it is in a recorded LURA which has been approved by the Department (prefer-ences are required to be in a LURA when a Development has MFDL funding, except for the preference allowed by paragraph (3) of this sub-section), is required by a program in which the Owner is participating which requires the preference, or is allowed b

	that their employees and contracted third party management companies are aware of and comply with the reasonable accommodation policy. (1) The policy must provide: (A) Information on how an applicant or current resident with a disability may request a reasonable accommodation; (B) How transfers related to a reasonable accommoda-tion will be addressed; and (C) A timeframe in which the Owner will respond to a request that is compliant with §1.204(b)(3) and (d) of this title (relating to Reasonable Accommodati
	that their employees and contracted third party management companies are aware of and comply with the reasonable accommodation policy. (1) The policy must provide: (A) Information on how an applicant or current resident with a disability may request a reasonable accommodation; (B) How transfers related to a reasonable accommoda-tion will be addressed; and (C) A timeframe in which the Owner will respond to a request that is compliant with §1.204(b)(3) and (d) of this title (relating to Reasonable Accommodati


	(B) Contact information for any third parties that pro-vided the information on which the rejection was based and informa-tion on the appeals process, if one is used by the Development. An ap-peals procedure is required for HOME Developments that are owned by Community Housing Development Organizations, and Units at De-velopments that lease Units under the Department's Section 811 PRA program. The appeals process must provide a 14-day period for the applicant to contest the reason for the denial, and comply
	(B) Contact information for any third parties that pro-vided the information on which the rejection was based and informa-tion on the appeals process, if one is used by the Development. An ap-peals procedure is required for HOME Developments that are owned by Community Housing Development Organizations, and Units at De-velopments that lease Units under the Department's Section 811 PRA program. The appeals process must provide a 14-day period for the applicant to contest the reason for the denial, and comply
	(B) Contact information for any third parties that pro-vided the information on which the rejection was based and informa-tion on the appeals process, if one is used by the Development. An ap-peals procedure is required for HOME Developments that are owned by Community Housing Development Organizations, and Units at De-velopments that lease Units under the Department's Section 811 PRA program. The appeals process must provide a 14-day period for the applicant to contest the reason for the denial, and comply
	(B) Contact information for any third parties that pro-vided the information on which the rejection was based and informa-tion on the appeals process, if one is used by the Development. An ap-peals procedure is required for HOME Developments that are owned by Community Housing Development Organizations, and Units at De-velopments that lease Units under the Department's Section 811 PRA program. The appeals process must provide a 14-day period for the applicant to contest the reason for the denial, and comply
	(B) Contact information for any third parties that pro-vided the information on which the rejection was based and informa-tion on the appeals process, if one is used by the Development. An ap-peals procedure is required for HOME Developments that are owned by Community Housing Development Organizations, and Units at De-velopments that lease Units under the Department's Section 811 PRA program. The appeals process must provide a 14-day period for the applicant to contest the reason for the denial, and comply
	(B) Contact information for any third parties that pro-vided the information on which the rejection was based and informa-tion on the appeals process, if one is used by the Development. An ap-peals procedure is required for HOME Developments that are owned by Community Housing Development Organizations, and Units at De-velopments that lease Units under the Department's Section 811 PRA program. The appeals process must provide a 14-day period for the applicant to contest the reason for the denial, and comply



	administered Developments layered with other federal funds are per-mitted to amend the TDHCA VAWA forms to incorporate requirements of other funders. However, none of the information included in the TD-HCA created form may be omitted. (i) Policies and procedures will be reviewed periodically by the Department's Fair Housing staff, as a result of complaints, or through an owner initiated written policies and procedures review. Owners may request a review of the written policies and procedures for a portfolio
	administered Developments layered with other federal funds are per-mitted to amend the TDHCA VAWA forms to incorporate requirements of other funders. However, none of the information included in the TD-HCA created form may be omitted. (i) Policies and procedures will be reviewed periodically by the Department's Fair Housing staff, as a result of complaints, or through an owner initiated written policies and procedures review. Owners may request a review of the written policies and procedures for a portfolio

	L
	LI
	LBody
	StyleSpan
	Link




	L
	LI
	LBody
	StyleSpan
	Link





	(e) Events of Noncompliance identified in the evaluation of the requirements of this subchapter will be those specified in §10.625 of this title (relating to Events of Noncompliance). The agency certifies that legal counsel has reviewed the pro-posal and found it to be within the state agency's legal authority to adopt. Filed with the Office of the Secretary of State on December 13, 2019. TRD-201904813 Bobby Wilkinson Executive Director Texas Department of Housing and Community Affairs Earliest possible dat
	(e) Events of Noncompliance identified in the evaluation of the requirements of this subchapter will be those specified in §10.625 of this title (relating to Events of Noncompliance). The agency certifies that legal counsel has reviewed the pro-posal and found it to be within the state agency's legal authority to adopt. Filed with the Office of the Secretary of State on December 13, 2019. TRD-201904813 Bobby Wilkinson Executive Director Texas Department of Housing and Community Affairs Earliest possible dat

	7. The proposed amendment will not increase nor decrease the number of individuals subject to the rule's applicability. 8. The proposed amendment will not negatively nor positively affect this state's economy. b. ADVERSE ECONOMIC IMPACT ON SMALL OR MI-CRO-BUSINESSES OR RURAL COMMUNITIES AND REG-ULATORY FLEXIBILITY REQUIRED BY TEX. GOV'T CODE §2006.002. The Department has evaluated this proposed amendment and determined that the proposed amendment will not create an eco-nomic effect on small or micro-busines
	7. The proposed amendment will not increase nor decrease the number of individuals subject to the rule's applicability. 8. The proposed amendment will not negatively nor positively affect this state's economy. b. ADVERSE ECONOMIC IMPACT ON SMALL OR MI-CRO-BUSINESSES OR RURAL COMMUNITIES AND REG-ULATORY FLEXIBILITY REQUIRED BY TEX. GOV'T CODE §2006.002. The Department has evaluated this proposed amendment and determined that the proposed amendment will not create an eco-nomic effect on small or micro-busines
	7. The proposed amendment will not increase nor decrease the number of individuals subject to the rule's applicability. 8. The proposed amendment will not negatively nor positively affect this state's economy. b. ADVERSE ECONOMIC IMPACT ON SMALL OR MI-CRO-BUSINESSES OR RURAL COMMUNITIES AND REG-ULATORY FLEXIBILITY REQUIRED BY TEX. GOV'T CODE §2006.002. The Department has evaluated this proposed amendment and determined that the proposed amendment will not create an eco-nomic effect on small or micro-busines


	P
	Link


	(c) Households certifying to zero income must also complete a questionnaire which includes a series of questions regarding how basic hygiene, dietary, transportation, and other living needs are met. (d) The minimum Household contribution toward gross monthly rent must be ten percent of the Household's gross monthly income. (e) Activity funds are limited to: (1) rental subsidy: Each rental subsidy term is limited to no more than twenty-four (24) months. Total lifetime assistance to a Household may not exceed
	(c) Households certifying to zero income must also complete a questionnaire which includes a series of questions regarding how basic hygiene, dietary, transportation, and other living needs are met. (d) The minimum Household contribution toward gross monthly rent must be ten percent of the Household's gross monthly income. (e) Activity funds are limited to: (1) rental subsidy: Each rental subsidy term is limited to no more than twenty-four (24) months. Total lifetime assistance to a Household may not exceed
	(c) Households certifying to zero income must also complete a questionnaire which includes a series of questions regarding how basic hygiene, dietary, transportation, and other living needs are met. (d) The minimum Household contribution toward gross monthly rent must be ten percent of the Household's gross monthly income. (e) Activity funds are limited to: (1) rental subsidy: Each rental subsidy term is limited to no more than twenty-four (24) months. Total lifetime assistance to a Household may not exceed
	(c) Households certifying to zero income must also complete a questionnaire which includes a series of questions regarding how basic hygiene, dietary, transportation, and other living needs are met. (d) The minimum Household contribution toward gross monthly rent must be ten percent of the Household's gross monthly income. (e) Activity funds are limited to: (1) rental subsidy: Each rental subsidy term is limited to no more than twenty-four (24) months. Total lifetime assistance to a Household may not exceed
	(c) Households certifying to zero income must also complete a questionnaire which includes a series of questions regarding how basic hygiene, dietary, transportation, and other living needs are met. (d) The minimum Household contribution toward gross monthly rent must be ten percent of the Household's gross monthly income. (e) Activity funds are limited to: (1) rental subsidy: Each rental subsidy term is limited to no more than twenty-four (24) months. Total lifetime assistance to a Household may not exceed


	(g) Administrators must select the method under which funds for administrative costs and Activity soft costs may be reimbursed prior to execution of an RSP agreement or at Application for an award of funds. Administrators of an existing RSP Agreement may request an amendment to an existing Agreement in accordance with Section 23.1 of this Chapter. Applicants and Administrators may choose from one of the following options, and in any case funds for Administrative costs may be increased by an additional 1 per
	(g) Administrators must select the method under which funds for administrative costs and Activity soft costs may be reimbursed prior to execution of an RSP agreement or at Application for an award of funds. Administrators of an existing RSP Agreement may request an amendment to an existing Agreement in accordance with Section 23.1 of this Chapter. Applicants and Administrators may choose from one of the following options, and in any case funds for Administrative costs may be increased by an additional 1 per
	(g) Administrators must select the method under which funds for administrative costs and Activity soft costs may be reimbursed prior to execution of an RSP agreement or at Application for an award of funds. Administrators of an existing RSP Agreement may request an amendment to an existing Agreement in accordance with Section 23.1 of this Chapter. Applicants and Administrators may choose from one of the following options, and in any case funds for Administrative costs may be increased by an additional 1 per



	olence, Dating Violence, Sexual Assault, or Stalking and/or alternate documentation to Administrator and must submit a plan to Depart-ment for continuation or termination of assistance to affected House-hold members. (3) Notwithstanding any restrictions on admission, occu-pancy, or terminations of occupancy or assistance, or any Federal, State or local law to the contrary, Administrator may "bifurcate" a rental coupon contract, or otherwise remove a Household member from a rental coupon contract, without re



	The commission provides the following governmental growth im-pact statement for the proposed amendments, as required by Texas Government Code §2001.0221. The commission has de-termined that for each year of the first five years that the amend-ments are in effect, the following statements will apply: (1) the proposed rule will not create a government program and will not eliminate a government program; (2) implementation of the proposed amendments will not require the creation of new employee positions and w
	The commission provides the following governmental growth im-pact statement for the proposed amendments, as required by Texas Government Code §2001.0221. The commission has de-termined that for each year of the first five years that the amend-ments are in effect, the following statements will apply: (1) the proposed rule will not create a government program and will not eliminate a government program; (2) implementation of the proposed amendments will not require the creation of new employee positions and w
	fore, no local employment impact statement is required under Texas Government Code §2001.022. Costs to Regulated Persons Texas Government Code §2001.0045(b) does not apply to this rulemaking because the commission is expressly excluded un-der subsection §2001.0045(c)(7). Public Hearing The commission staff will conduct a public hearing on this rulemaking, if requested in accordance with Texas Government Code §2001.029, at the commission's offices located in the William B. Travis Building, 1701 North Congres
	fore, no local employment impact statement is required under Texas Government Code §2001.022. Costs to Regulated Persons Texas Government Code §2001.0045(b) does not apply to this rulemaking because the commission is expressly excluded un-der subsection §2001.0045(c)(7). Public Hearing The commission staff will conduct a public hearing on this rulemaking, if requested in accordance with Texas Government Code §2001.029, at the commission's offices located in the William B. Travis Building, 1701 North Congres
	fore, no local employment impact statement is required under Texas Government Code §2001.022. Costs to Regulated Persons Texas Government Code §2001.0045(b) does not apply to this rulemaking because the commission is expressly excluded un-der subsection §2001.0045(c)(7). Public Hearing The commission staff will conduct a public hearing on this rulemaking, if requested in accordance with Texas Government Code §2001.029, at the commission's offices located in the William B. Travis Building, 1701 North Congres

	grants the commission the authority to adopt rules governing the contents of an application to change rates and the authority to suspend the effective date of a proposed rate change; TWC §13.1872, which requires the commission to adopt rules estab-lishing procedures to allow a Class D utility to receive an annual rate adjustment; TWC §13.1873, which requires the commission to adopt rules that allow a Class B utility to file a less burden-some application than the application for a Class A utility, and a Cla
	grants the commission the authority to adopt rules governing the contents of an application to change rates and the authority to suspend the effective date of a proposed rate change; TWC §13.1872, which requires the commission to adopt rules estab-lishing procedures to allow a Class D utility to receive an annual rate adjustment; TWC §13.1873, which requires the commission to adopt rules that allow a Class B utility to file a less burden-some application than the application for a Class A utility, and a Cla
	grants the commission the authority to adopt rules governing the contents of an application to change rates and the authority to suspend the effective date of a proposed rate change; TWC §13.1872, which requires the commission to adopt rules estab-lishing procedures to allow a Class D utility to receive an annual rate adjustment; TWC §13.1873, which requires the commission to adopt rules that allow a Class B utility to file a less burden-some application than the application for a Class A utility, and a Cla
	grants the commission the authority to adopt rules governing the contents of an application to change rates and the authority to suspend the effective date of a proposed rate change; TWC §13.1872, which requires the commission to adopt rules estab-lishing procedures to allow a Class D utility to receive an annual rate adjustment; TWC §13.1873, which requires the commission to adopt rules that allow a Class B utility to file a less burden-some application than the application for a Class A utility, and a Cla
	grants the commission the authority to adopt rules governing the contents of an application to change rates and the authority to suspend the effective date of a proposed rate change; TWC §13.1872, which requires the commission to adopt rules estab-lishing procedures to allow a Class D utility to receive an annual rate adjustment; TWC §13.1873, which requires the commission to adopt rules that allow a Class B utility to file a less burden-some application than the application for a Class A utility, and a Cla


	ment of Insurance Division of Workers' Compensation, and institu-tions for higher education) which makes rules or determines contested cases.] [(8) Allocations--For all retail public utilities, the division of plant, revenues, expenses, taxes, and reserves between municipali-ties, or between municipalities and unincorporated areas, where such items are used for providing water or sewer utility service in a munic-ipality or for a municipality and unincorporated areas. A non-munic-ipal allocation is the divis
	ment of Insurance Division of Workers' Compensation, and institu-tions for higher education) which makes rules or determines contested cases.] [(8) Allocations--For all retail public utilities, the division of plant, revenues, expenses, taxes, and reserves between municipali-ties, or between municipalities and unincorporated areas, where such items are used for providing water or sewer utility service in a munic-ipality or for a municipality and unincorporated areas. A non-munic-ipal allocation is the divis

	(10) [(19)] Corporation--Any corporation, joint-stock company, or association, domestic or foreign, and its lessees, as-signees, trustees, receivers, or other successors in interest, having any of the powers or [and] privileges of corporations not possessed by individuals or partnerships, but does [shall] not include municipal corporations unless expressly provided [otherwise] in TWC Chapter 13. [the TWC.] (11) [(20)] Customer--Any person, firm, partnership, corporation, municipality, cooperative, organizat
	(10) [(19)] Corporation--Any corporation, joint-stock company, or association, domestic or foreign, and its lessees, as-signees, trustees, receivers, or other successors in interest, having any of the powers or [and] privileges of corporations not possessed by individuals or partnerships, but does [shall] not include municipal corporations unless expressly provided [otherwise] in TWC Chapter 13. [the TWC.] (11) [(20)] Customer--Any person, firm, partnership, corporation, municipality, cooperative, organizat




	shown on the appraisal roll of the appraisal district established for each county in which the property is located. [(34) License--The whole or part of any commission per-mit, certificate, registration, or similar form of permission required by law.] [(35) Licensing--The commission process respecting the granting, denial, renewal, revocation, suspension, annulment, with-drawal, or amendment of a license, certificates of convenience and necessity, or any other authorization granted by the commission in accor
	shown on the appraisal roll of the appraisal district established for each county in which the property is located. [(34) License--The whole or part of any commission per-mit, certificate, registration, or similar form of permission required by law.] [(35) Licensing--The commission process respecting the granting, denial, renewal, revocation, suspension, annulment, with-drawal, or amendment of a license, certificates of convenience and necessity, or any other authorization granted by the commission in accor
	shown on the appraisal roll of the appraisal district established for each county in which the property is located. [(34) License--The whole or part of any commission per-mit, certificate, registration, or similar form of permission required by law.] [(35) Licensing--The commission process respecting the granting, denial, renewal, revocation, suspension, annulment, with-drawal, or amendment of a license, certificates of convenience and necessity, or any other authorization granted by the commission in accor
	(23) [(44)] Nonfunctioning system or utility--A system that is operating as a retail public utility and (A) [that] is required to have a CCN and is operating without a CCN; or (B) is [a retail public utility] under supervision in ac-cordance with §24.353 of this title (relating to Supervision of Certain Utilities); or (C) is [a retail public utility] under the supervision of a receiver, temporary manager, or [that] has been referred for the appoint-ment of a temporary manager or receiver, in accordance with
	(23) [(44)] Nonfunctioning system or utility--A system that is operating as a retail public utility and (A) [that] is required to have a CCN and is operating without a CCN; or (B) is [a retail public utility] under supervision in ac-cordance with §24.353 of this title (relating to Supervision of Certain Utilities); or (C) is [a retail public utility] under the supervision of a receiver, temporary manager, or [that] has been referred for the appoint-ment of a temporary manager or receiver, in accordance with
	(23) [(44)] Nonfunctioning system or utility--A system that is operating as a retail public utility and (A) [that] is required to have a CCN and is operating without a CCN; or (B) is [a retail public utility] under supervision in ac-cordance with §24.353 of this title (relating to Supervision of Certain Utilities); or (C) is [a retail public utility] under the supervision of a receiver, temporary manager, or [that] has been referred for the appoint-ment of a temporary manager or receiver, in accordance with
	(23) [(44)] Nonfunctioning system or utility--A system that is operating as a retail public utility and (A) [that] is required to have a CCN and is operating without a CCN; or (B) is [a retail public utility] under supervision in ac-cordance with §24.353 of this title (relating to Supervision of Certain Utilities); or (C) is [a retail public utility] under the supervision of a receiver, temporary manager, or [that] has been referred for the appoint-ment of a temporary manager or receiver, in accordance with




	restore service after disconnection for reasons listed in §24.167 of this title (relating to Discontinuance of Service) or to restore service after disconnection at the customer's request.] (29) [(58)] Requested area--The area that a petitioner or ap-plicant seeks to obtain, add to, or remove from a retail public utility's certificated service area. (30) [(59)] Retail public utility--Any person, corporation, public utility, water supply or sewer service corporation, municipality, political subdivision or ag
	restore service after disconnection for reasons listed in §24.167 of this title (relating to Discontinuance of Service) or to restore service after disconnection at the customer's request.] (29) [(58)] Requested area--The area that a petitioner or ap-plicant seeks to obtain, add to, or remove from a retail public utility's certificated service area. (30) [(59)] Retail public utility--Any person, corporation, public utility, water supply or sewer service corporation, municipality, political subdivision or ag

	public utility stated separately by type or kind of service and the cus-tomer class.] [(69) TCEQ--Texas Commission on Environmental Qual-ity.] (35) [(70)] Temporary rate for services provided for a non-functioning system--A rate charged under TWC §13.046 to the cus-tomers of a nonfunctioning system by a [A temporary rate for a] retail public utility that takes over the provision of service for a nonfunction-ing retail public water or sewer utility service provider. [(71) Temporary water rate provision for m
	public utility stated separately by type or kind of service and the cus-tomer class.] [(69) TCEQ--Texas Commission on Environmental Qual-ity.] (35) [(70)] Temporary rate for services provided for a non-functioning system--A rate charged under TWC §13.046 to the cus-tomers of a nonfunctioning system by a [A temporary rate for a] retail public utility that takes over the provision of service for a nonfunction-ing retail public water or sewer utility service provider. [(71) Temporary water rate provision for m
	public utility stated separately by type or kind of service and the cus-tomer class.] [(69) TCEQ--Texas Commission on Environmental Qual-ity.] (35) [(70)] Temporary rate for services provided for a non-functioning system--A rate charged under TWC §13.046 to the cus-tomers of a nonfunctioning system by a [A temporary rate for a] retail public utility that takes over the provision of service for a nonfunction-ing retail public water or sewer utility service provider. [(71) Temporary water rate provision for m



	may be required provided that all members have paid or are required to pay the membership fee effective at the time service is requested.] [(B) Each member is entitled to only one vote regard-less of the number of memberships owned by that member.] [(C) A majority of the directors and officers of the cor-poration must be members of the corporation.] [(D) The corporation's bylaws include language indi-cating that the factors specified in subparagraphs (A) -(C) of this para-graph are in effect.] [(78) Water u
	may be required provided that all members have paid or are required to pay the membership fee effective at the time service is requested.] [(B) Each member is entitled to only one vote regard-less of the number of memberships owned by that member.] [(C) A majority of the directors and officers of the cor-poration must be members of the corporation.] [(D) The corporation's bylaws include language indi-cating that the factors specified in subparagraphs (A) -(C) of this para-graph are in effect.] [(78) Water u
	may be required provided that all members have paid or are required to pay the membership fee effective at the time service is requested.] [(B) Each member is entitled to only one vote regard-less of the number of memberships owned by that member.] [(C) A majority of the directors and officers of the cor-poration must be members of the corporation.] [(D) The corporation's bylaws include language indi-cating that the factors specified in subparagraphs (A) -(C) of this para-graph are in effect.] [(78) Water u
	may be required provided that all members have paid or are required to pay the membership fee effective at the time service is requested.] [(B) Each member is entitled to only one vote regard-less of the number of memberships owned by that member.] [(C) A majority of the directors and officers of the cor-poration must be members of the corporation.] [(D) The corporation's bylaws include language indi-cating that the factors specified in subparagraphs (A) -(C) of this para-graph are in effect.] [(78) Water u

	(I) (No change.) (II) for a proposed or new utility, start up infor-mation and five years of pro forma projections including a balance sheet, income statement and expense statement or evidence that the utility will be moving toward proper accountability and transparency during the first five years of operations. All assumptions must be clearly defined and the utility must [shall] provide all documents supporting projected lot sales or customer growth. (C) (No change.) (5) If the applicant is proposing servi

	(5) to establish, on an expedited basis, in response to a request by the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ), reasonable compensation for the temporary service required under TWC §13.041(h)(2) and to allow the retail public utility receiving the service to make a temporary adjustment to its rate structure to ensure proper payment; (6) [(5)] to compel a retail public utility to make specified improvements and repairs to a [the] water or sewer system [system(s)] owned or operated by the utility u
	(5) to establish, on an expedited basis, in response to a request by the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ), reasonable compensation for the temporary service required under TWC §13.041(h)(2) and to allow the retail public utility receiving the service to make a temporary adjustment to its rate structure to ensure proper payment; (6) [(5)] to compel a retail public utility to make specified improvements and repairs to a [the] water or sewer system [system(s)] owned or operated by the utility u
	(5) to establish, on an expedited basis, in response to a request by the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ), reasonable compensation for the temporary service required under TWC §13.041(h)(2) and to allow the retail public utility receiving the service to make a temporary adjustment to its rate structure to ensure proper payment; (6) [(5)] to compel a retail public utility to make specified improvements and repairs to a [the] water or sewer system [system(s)] owned or operated by the utility u
	(5) to establish, on an expedited basis, in response to a request by the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ), reasonable compensation for the temporary service required under TWC §13.041(h)(2) and to allow the retail public utility receiving the service to make a temporary adjustment to its rate structure to ensure proper payment; (6) [(5)] to compel a retail public utility to make specified improvements and repairs to a [the] water or sewer system [system(s)] owned or operated by the utility u



	Statutory Authority The amendments are proposed under Texas Water Code (TWC) §13.041(b), which provides the commission with the authority to make and enforce rules reasonably required in the exercise of its powers and jurisdiction; TWC §13.041(d), which grants the commission the authority to issue emergency orders to compel a retail public utility to provide continuous and adequate service if discontinuance of service is imminent or has occurred because of the retail public utility's actions or inactions; T
	Statutory Authority The amendments are proposed under Texas Water Code (TWC) §13.041(b), which provides the commission with the authority to make and enforce rules reasonably required in the exercise of its powers and jurisdiction; TWC §13.041(d), which grants the commission the authority to issue emergency orders to compel a retail public utility to provide continuous and adequate service if discontinuance of service is imminent or has occurred because of the retail public utility's actions or inactions; T
	Statutory Authority The amendments are proposed under Texas Water Code (TWC) §13.041(b), which provides the commission with the authority to make and enforce rules reasonably required in the exercise of its powers and jurisdiction; TWC §13.041(d), which grants the commission the authority to issue emergency orders to compel a retail public utility to provide continuous and adequate service if discontinuance of service is imminent or has occurred because of the retail public utility's actions or inactions; T



	portunity include a notation on its tariff that it has entered into such an agreement. (4) A utility may enter into a contract with a county to col-lect solid waste disposal fees and include those fees on the same bill with its water or sewer charges and must [shall] at the earliest oppor-tunity include a notation on its tariff that it has entered into such an agreement. (b) Requirements as to size, form, identification, minor changes, and filing of tariffs. (1) Tariffs filed with applications for CCNs. (A)
	portunity include a notation on its tariff that it has entered into such an agreement. (4) A utility may enter into a contract with a county to col-lect solid waste disposal fees and include those fees on the same bill with its water or sewer charges and must [shall] at the earliest oppor-tunity include a notation on its tariff that it has entered into such an agreement. (b) Requirements as to size, form, identification, minor changes, and filing of tariffs. (1) Tariffs filed with applications for CCNs. (A)
	portunity include a notation on its tariff that it has entered into such an agreement. (4) A utility may enter into a contract with a county to col-lect solid waste disposal fees and include those fees on the same bill with its water or sewer charges and must [shall] at the earliest oppor-tunity include a notation on its tariff that it has entered into such an agreement. (b) Requirements as to size, form, identification, minor changes, and filing of tariffs. (1) Tariffs filed with applications for CCNs. (A)
	any fees charged by affiliates, the [affiliates. The] addition of a new ex-tension policy to a tariff, or modification of an existing extension pol-icy are [is] not [a] minor tariff changes. [change.] An affected county may change rates for retail water or sewer service without commission approval, but must [shall] file a copy of the revised tariff with the com-mission within 30 days after the effective date of the rate change. (A) The commission, or regulatory authority, as appro-priate, may approve the fo

	tariffed retail water rates and the reduced rates established by this subparagraph. (iii) The minimal level of retail water service re-quested by the utility must not exceed [shall be no more than] 3,000 gallons per month per connection. Additional gallons used must [shall] be billed at the utility's tariffed rates. (iv) (No change.) (C) If a utility has provided [proper] notice as required in subparagraph (F) of this paragraph, the commission may approve a pass-through provision as a minor tariff change, e

	(I) each [the] affected CCN number; [number(s);] (II) a list of each [the] affected subdivision [subdivision(s),] public water system (including name [name(s)] and corresponding number [number(s)] issued by the TCEQ),[TCEQ,] and [the] water quality system (including name [name(s)] and correspond-ing number [number(s)] issued by the TCEQ), if applicable; (III) -(VIII) (No change.) (ii) (No change.) (G) The following provisions apply to surcharges: (i) -(ii) (No change.) (iii) A utility must [shall] use the r
	(I) each [the] affected CCN number; [number(s);] (II) a list of each [the] affected subdivision [subdivision(s),] public water system (including name [name(s)] and corresponding number [number(s)] issued by the TCEQ),[TCEQ,] and [the] water quality system (including name [name(s)] and correspond-ing number [number(s)] issued by the TCEQ), if applicable; (III) -(VIII) (No change.) (ii) (No change.) (G) The following provisions apply to surcharges: (i) -(ii) (No change.) (iii) A utility must [shall] use the r
	to persons requesting information and afford these persons an oppor-tunity to examine any such tariffs upon request. The utility must also [shall] provide copies of any portion of the tariffs at a reasonable cost to a requesting party. (f) Rejection. Any tariff filed with the commission and found not to be in compliance with this section must [shall] be returned to the utility with a brief explanation of the reasons for rejection. (g) Change by other regulatory authorities. Each utility oper-ating within th
	to persons requesting information and afford these persons an oppor-tunity to examine any such tariffs upon request. The utility must also [shall] provide copies of any portion of the tariffs at a reasonable cost to a requesting party. (f) Rejection. Any tariff filed with the commission and found not to be in compliance with this section must [shall] be returned to the utility with a brief explanation of the reasons for rejection. (g) Change by other regulatory authorities. Each utility oper-ating within th
	ulatory authority, the time frame for protests, and any other informa-tion that is required by the regulatory authority. The utility's existing rates are not subject to review in this proceeding and the utility is only required to support the need for the temporary rate. A request for a temporary water rate provision for mandatory water use reduction un-der this paragraph is not considered a statement of intent to increase rates subject to the 12-month limitation in §24.29 of this title (relating to Time Be

	(1) (No change.) (2) A utility that requests the inclusion of an energy cost adjustment clause in its tariff must [shall] file a request with the com-mission. The utility must [shall] also give notice of the proposed energy cost adjustment clause by mail, either separately or accompanying cus-tomer billings, by e-mail, [e-mail] or by hand delivery to all affected utility customers at least 60 days prior to the proposed effective date. Proof of notice in the form of an affidavit stating that proper notice wa
	(1) (No change.) (2) A utility that requests the inclusion of an energy cost adjustment clause in its tariff must [shall] file a request with the com-mission. The utility must [shall] also give notice of the proposed energy cost adjustment clause by mail, either separately or accompanying cus-tomer billings, by e-mail, [e-mail] or by hand delivery to all affected utility customers at least 60 days prior to the proposed effective date. Proof of notice in the form of an affidavit stating that proper notice wa

	(1) The application must [shall] include the commission's rate filing package form and include all required schedules. (2) The application must [shall] be based on a test year as defined in §24.3(36) [§24.3(72)] of this title (relating to Definitions of Terms). (3) For an application filed by a Class A utility, [pursuant to TWC §13.187,] the rate filing package, including each schedule, must [shall] be supported by pre-filed direct testimony. The pre-filed direct testimony must [shall] be filed at the same 
	(1) The application must [shall] include the commission's rate filing package form and include all required schedules. (2) The application must [shall] be based on a test year as defined in §24.3(36) [§24.3(72)] of this title (relating to Definitions of Terms). (3) For an application filed by a Class A utility, [pursuant to TWC §13.187,] the rate filing package, including each schedule, must [shall] be supported by pre-filed direct testimony. The pre-filed direct testimony must [shall] be filed at the same 
	(1) The application must [shall] include the commission's rate filing package form and include all required schedules. (2) The application must [shall] be based on a test year as defined in §24.3(36) [§24.3(72)] of this title (relating to Definitions of Terms). (3) For an application filed by a Class A utility, [pursuant to TWC §13.187,] the rate filing package, including each schedule, must [shall] be supported by pre-filed direct testimony. The pre-filed direct testimony must [shall] be filed at the same 



	by the proposed rate change, [change and] to the appropriate offices of each municipality affected by the proposed rate change, and to the Office of Public Utility Counsel. (B) Notice must [shall] be provided using the com-mission-approved form and must [shall] include a description of the process by which a ratepayer may file a protest under [pursuant to] TWC §13.1871(i). (C) The [For Class B utilities the] notice must [shall] state the docket number assigned to the rate application. Prior to pro-viding no
	by the proposed rate change, [change and] to the appropriate offices of each municipality affected by the proposed rate change, and to the Office of Public Utility Counsel. (B) Notice must [shall] be provided using the com-mission-approved form and must [shall] include a description of the process by which a ratepayer may file a protest under [pursuant to] TWC §13.1871(i). (C) The [For Class B utilities the] notice must [shall] state the docket number assigned to the rate application. Prior to pro-viding no
	by the proposed rate change, [change and] to the appropriate offices of each municipality affected by the proposed rate change, and to the Office of Public Utility Counsel. (B) Notice must [shall] be provided using the com-mission-approved form and must [shall] include a description of the process by which a ratepayer may file a protest under [pursuant to] TWC §13.1871(i). (C) The [For Class B utilities the] notice must [shall] state the docket number assigned to the rate application. Prior to pro-viding no
	all [of] the requirements of the Texas Water Development Board regarding [in regard to] financial assistance from the Safe Drinking Water Revolving Fund. §24.29. Time Between Filings. (a) Application. The following provisions are applicable to utilities, including those with consolidated or regional tariffs, under common control or ownership with any utility that has filed a statement of intent to increase rates under [pursuant to] TWC §§13.187, 13.1871, or 13.18715. [§13.187 or §13.1871.] (b) A utility, [u

	(e) If the commission does not make a final determination on the proposed rate before the expiration of the suspension period de-scribed by subsections (a) and (d) of this section, the proposed rate will [shall] be considered approved. This approval is subject to the au-thority of the commission thereafter to continue a hearing in progress. (f) -(g) (No change.) §24.35. Processing and Hearing Requirements for an Application to Change Rates. [Filed Pursuant to Texas Water Code §13.187 or §13.1871.] (a) Purpo
	the rates to be charged by the utility and will [shall] fix the rates by or-der served on the utility. (e) The utility may begin charging the proposed rates on the proposed effective date, unless the proposed rate change is suspended by the commission under [pursuant to] §24.33 of this title (relating to Suspension of the Effective Date of Rates) or interim rates are set by the presiding officer under [pursuant to] §24.37 of this title (relating to In-terim Rates). Rates charged under a proposed rate during

	[(g) Establishing the price index. The commission must, on or before December 1 of each year, establish a price index as required by TWC §13.1872(b) based on the following criteria. The price index will be established in an informal project to be initiated by commission staff. The price index must be equal to the water and sewerage mainte-nance expenditure category of the Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers for the prior 12 months ending on September 30, unless the commission finds that good cause 
	[(g) Establishing the price index. The commission must, on or before December 1 of each year, establish a price index as required by TWC §13.1872(b) based on the following criteria. The price index will be established in an informal project to be initiated by commission staff. The price index must be equal to the water and sewerage mainte-nance expenditure category of the Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers for the prior 12 months ending on September 30, unless the commission finds that good cause 
	[(g) Establishing the price index. The commission must, on or before December 1 of each year, establish a price index as required by TWC §13.1872(b) based on the following criteria. The price index will be established in an informal project to be initiated by commission staff. The price index must be equal to the water and sewerage mainte-nance expenditure category of the Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers for the prior 12 months ending on September 30, unless the commission finds that good cause 
	[(g) Establishing the price index. The commission must, on or before December 1 of each year, establish a price index as required by TWC §13.1872(b) based on the following criteria. The price index will be established in an informal project to be initiated by commission staff. The price index must be equal to the water and sewerage mainte-nance expenditure category of the Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers for the prior 12 months ending on September 30, unless the commission finds that good cause 


	Class C or D utility to file a less burdensome application than the applications for a Class A or B utility; and TWC §13.246, which authorizes the commission to grant or amend a certificate of con-venience and necessity. Cross Reference to Statutes: Texas Water Code §§13.041, 13.046, 13.131, 13.136(b), 13.181(b), 13.1871, 13.1872, 13.1873, 13.246. §24.127. Financial Records and Reports--Uniform System of Ac-counts. Each [Every] public utility, except a utility operated by an affected county, must [shall] ke
	Class C or D utility to file a less burdensome application than the applications for a Class A or B utility; and TWC §13.246, which authorizes the commission to grant or amend a certificate of con-venience and necessity. Cross Reference to Statutes: Texas Water Code §§13.041, 13.046, 13.131, 13.136(b), 13.181(b), 13.1871, 13.1872, 13.1873, 13.246. §24.127. Financial Records and Reports--Uniform System of Ac-counts. Each [Every] public utility, except a utility operated by an affected county, must [shall] ke
	Class C or D utility to file a less burdensome application than the applications for a Class A or B utility; and TWC §13.246, which authorizes the commission to grant or amend a certificate of con-venience and necessity. Cross Reference to Statutes: Texas Water Code §§13.041, 13.046, 13.131, 13.136(b), 13.181(b), 13.1871, 13.1872, 13.1873, 13.246. §24.127. Financial Records and Reports--Uniform System of Ac-counts. Each [Every] public utility, except a utility operated by an affected county, must [shall] ke
	Class C or D utility to file a less burdensome application than the applications for a Class A or B utility; and TWC §13.246, which authorizes the commission to grant or amend a certificate of con-venience and necessity. Cross Reference to Statutes: Texas Water Code §§13.041, 13.046, 13.131, 13.136(b), 13.181(b), 13.1871, 13.1872, 13.1873, 13.246. §24.127. Financial Records and Reports--Uniform System of Ac-counts. Each [Every] public utility, except a utility operated by an affected county, must [shall] ke
	Class C or D utility to file a less burdensome application than the applications for a Class A or B utility; and TWC §13.246, which authorizes the commission to grant or amend a certificate of con-venience and necessity. Cross Reference to Statutes: Texas Water Code §§13.041, 13.046, 13.131, 13.136(b), 13.181(b), 13.1871, 13.1872, 13.1873, 13.246. §24.127. Financial Records and Reports--Uniform System of Ac-counts. Each [Every] public utility, except a utility operated by an affected county, must [shall] ke


	Filed with the Office of the Secretary of State on December 13, 2019. TRD-201904802 Andrea Gonzalez Rules Coordinator Public Utility Commission of Texas Earliest possible date of adoption: January 26, 2020 For further information, please call: (512) 936-7244 ♦ ♦ ♦ SUBCHAPTER H. CERTIFICATES OF CONVENIENCE AND NECESSITY 16 TAC §24.227 Statutory Authority The amendments are proposed under Texas Water Code (TWC) §13.041(b), which provides the commission with the authority to make and enforce rules reasonably r

	that the applicant possesses the financial, managerial, and technical ca-pability to provide continuous and adequate service. (1) For retail water utility service, the commission will [shall] ensure that the applicant has: (A) a [TCEQ-approved] public water system approved by the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ) that is ca-pable of providing drinking water that meets the requirements of Texas Health and Safety Code, chapter 341, TCEQ rules, and the TWC; and (B) (No change.) (2) For retail se
	that the applicant possesses the financial, managerial, and technical ca-pability to provide continuous and adequate service. (1) For retail water utility service, the commission will [shall] ensure that the applicant has: (A) a [TCEQ-approved] public water system approved by the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ) that is ca-pable of providing drinking water that meets the requirements of Texas Health and Safety Code, chapter 341, TCEQ rules, and the TWC; and (B) (No change.) (2) For retail se
	that the applicant possesses the financial, managerial, and technical ca-pability to provide continuous and adequate service. (1) For retail water utility service, the commission will [shall] ensure that the applicant has: (A) a [TCEQ-approved] public water system approved by the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ) that is ca-pable of providing drinking water that meets the requirements of Texas Health and Safety Code, chapter 341, TCEQ rules, and the TWC; and (B) (No change.) (2) For retail se




	ing who will provide service. The assessment will [shall] be conducted considering the following information: (1) all criteria from subsections (a) -(g) [(a)-(f)] of this sec-tion; (2) -(11) (No change.) (i) [(h)] Except as provided by subsection (j) [(i)] of this sec-tion, a landowner who owns a tract of land that is at least 25 acres and that is wholly or partially located within the requested area may elect to exclude some or all of the landowner's property from the requested area by providing written no
	ing who will provide service. The assessment will [shall] be conducted considering the following information: (1) all criteria from subsections (a) -(g) [(a)-(f)] of this sec-tion; (2) -(11) (No change.) (i) [(h)] Except as provided by subsection (j) [(i)] of this sec-tion, a landowner who owns a tract of land that is at least 25 acres and that is wholly or partially located within the requested area may elect to exclude some or all of the landowner's property from the requested area by providing written no
	ing who will provide service. The assessment will [shall] be conducted considering the following information: (1) all criteria from subsections (a) -(g) [(a)-(f)] of this sec-tion; (2) -(11) (No change.) (i) [(h)] Except as provided by subsection (j) [(i)] of this sec-tion, a landowner who owns a tract of land that is at least 25 acres and that is wholly or partially located within the requested area may elect to exclude some or all of the landowner's property from the requested area by providing written no
	Andrea Gonzalez Rules Coordinator Public Utility Commission of Texas Earliest possible date of adoption: January 26, 2020 For further information, please call: (512) 936-7244 ♦ ♦ ♦ SUBCHAPTER K. ENFORCEMENT, SUPERVISION, AND RECEIVERSHIP 16 TAC §24.363 Statutory Authority The amendments are proposed under Texas Water Code (TWC) §13.041(b), which provides the commission with the authority to make and enforce rules reasonably required in the exercise of its powers and jurisdiction; TWC §13.041(d), which grant
	Andrea Gonzalez Rules Coordinator Public Utility Commission of Texas Earliest possible date of adoption: January 26, 2020 For further information, please call: (512) 936-7244 ♦ ♦ ♦ SUBCHAPTER K. ENFORCEMENT, SUPERVISION, AND RECEIVERSHIP 16 TAC §24.363 Statutory Authority The amendments are proposed under Texas Water Code (TWC) §13.041(b), which provides the commission with the authority to make and enforce rules reasonably required in the exercise of its powers and jurisdiction; TWC §13.041(d), which grant


	(1) determine the duration of the temporary rates to the re-tail public utility, which must be for a reasonable period; and (2) rule on the reasonableness of the temporary rates under subsection (a) of this section if the commission did not make a ruling before the application was filed under TWC §13.301. The agency certifies that legal counsel has reviewed the pro-posal and found it to be within the state agency's legal authority to adopt. Filed with the Office of the Secretary of State on December 13, 201
	(1) determine the duration of the temporary rates to the re-tail public utility, which must be for a reasonable period; and (2) rule on the reasonableness of the temporary rates under subsection (a) of this section if the commission did not make a ruling before the application was filed under TWC §13.301. The agency certifies that legal counsel has reviewed the pro-posal and found it to be within the state agency's legal authority to adopt. Filed with the Office of the Secretary of State on December 13, 201
	(1) determine the duration of the temporary rates to the re-tail public utility, which must be for a reasonable period; and (2) rule on the reasonableness of the temporary rates under subsection (a) of this section if the commission did not make a ruling before the application was filed under TWC §13.301. The agency certifies that legal counsel has reviewed the pro-posal and found it to be within the state agency's legal authority to adopt. Filed with the Office of the Secretary of State on December 13, 201
	(1) determine the duration of the temporary rates to the re-tail public utility, which must be for a reasonable period; and (2) rule on the reasonableness of the temporary rates under subsection (a) of this section if the commission did not make a ruling before the application was filed under TWC §13.301. The agency certifies that legal counsel has reviewed the pro-posal and found it to be within the state agency's legal authority to adopt. Filed with the Office of the Secretary of State on December 13, 201
	(1) determine the duration of the temporary rates to the re-tail public utility, which must be for a reasonable period; and (2) rule on the reasonableness of the temporary rates under subsection (a) of this section if the commission did not make a ruling before the application was filed under TWC §13.301. The agency certifies that legal counsel has reviewed the pro-posal and found it to be within the state agency's legal authority to adopt. Filed with the Office of the Secretary of State on December 13, 201




	(4) the proposed rule will not require an increase and will not require a decrease in fees paid to the agency; (5) the proposed rule will not create a new regulation; (6) the proposed rule will not expand an existing regulation; (7) the proposed rule will not change the number of individuals subject to the rule's applicability; and (8) the proposed rule will not affect this state's economy. Fiscal Impact on Small and Micro-Businesses and Rural Com-munities There is no adverse economic effect anticipated for
	(4) the proposed rule will not require an increase and will not require a decrease in fees paid to the agency; (5) the proposed rule will not create a new regulation; (6) the proposed rule will not expand an existing regulation; (7) the proposed rule will not change the number of individuals subject to the rule's applicability; and (8) the proposed rule will not affect this state's economy. Fiscal Impact on Small and Micro-Businesses and Rural Com-munities There is no adverse economic effect anticipated for
	(4) the proposed rule will not require an increase and will not require a decrease in fees paid to the agency; (5) the proposed rule will not create a new regulation; (6) the proposed rule will not expand an existing regulation; (7) the proposed rule will not change the number of individuals subject to the rule's applicability; and (8) the proposed rule will not affect this state's economy. Fiscal Impact on Small and Micro-Businesses and Rural Com-munities There is no adverse economic effect anticipated for
	(4) the proposed rule will not require an increase and will not require a decrease in fees paid to the agency; (5) the proposed rule will not create a new regulation; (6) the proposed rule will not expand an existing regulation; (7) the proposed rule will not change the number of individuals subject to the rule's applicability; and (8) the proposed rule will not affect this state's economy. Fiscal Impact on Small and Micro-Businesses and Rural Com-munities There is no adverse economic effect anticipated for




	Texas Government Code §2001.0045(b) does not apply to this rulemaking, because the Public Utility Commission is expressly excluded under subsection §2001.0045(c)(7). Public Hearing The commission staff will conduct a public hearing on this rulemaking, if requested in accordance with Texas Government Code §2001.029, at the commission's offices located in the William B. Travis Building, 1701 North Congress Avenue, Austin, Texas 78701 on March 4, 2020, at 9:00 a.m. The request for a public hearing must be rece
	Texas Government Code §2001.0045(b) does not apply to this rulemaking, because the Public Utility Commission is expressly excluded under subsection §2001.0045(c)(7). Public Hearing The commission staff will conduct a public hearing on this rulemaking, if requested in accordance with Texas Government Code §2001.029, at the commission's offices located in the William B. Travis Building, 1701 North Congress Avenue, Austin, Texas 78701 on March 4, 2020, at 9:00 a.m. The request for a public hearing must be rece
	Texas Government Code §2001.0045(b) does not apply to this rulemaking, because the Public Utility Commission is expressly excluded under subsection §2001.0045(c)(7). Public Hearing The commission staff will conduct a public hearing on this rulemaking, if requested in accordance with Texas Government Code §2001.029, at the commission's offices located in the William B. Travis Building, 1701 North Congress Avenue, Austin, Texas 78701 on March 4, 2020, at 9:00 a.m. The request for a public hearing must be rece
	(2) Cybersecurity coordination program --The program es-tablished by the commission to monitor the cybersecurity efforts of all electric utilities, municipally owned utilities, and electric cooperatives in the state of Texas. (3) Cybersecurity monitor program --The comprehensive outreach program for monitored utilities managed by the CSM. (4) Monitored utility --A transmission and distribution utility; a corporation described in PURA §32.053; a municipally owned utility or electric cooperative that owns or 
	(2) Cybersecurity coordination program --The program es-tablished by the commission to monitor the cybersecurity efforts of all electric utilities, municipally owned utilities, and electric cooperatives in the state of Texas. (3) Cybersecurity monitor program --The comprehensive outreach program for monitored utilities managed by the CSM. (4) Monitored utility --A transmission and distribution utility; a corporation described in PURA §32.053; a municipally owned utility or electric cooperative that owns or 
	(2) Cybersecurity coordination program --The program es-tablished by the commission to monitor the cybersecurity efforts of all electric utilities, municipally owned utilities, and electric cooperatives in the state of Texas. (3) Cybersecurity monitor program --The comprehensive outreach program for monitored utilities managed by the CSM. (4) Monitored utility --A transmission and distribution utility; a corporation described in PURA §32.053; a municipally owned utility or electric cooperative that owns or 
	(2) Cybersecurity coordination program --The program es-tablished by the commission to monitor the cybersecurity efforts of all electric utilities, municipally owned utilities, and electric cooperatives in the state of Texas. (3) Cybersecurity monitor program --The comprehensive outreach program for monitored utilities managed by the CSM. (4) Monitored utility --A transmission and distribution utility; a corporation described in PURA §32.053; a municipally owned utility or electric cooperative that owns or 




	(ii) vendor risk management and procurement con-trols, including notification by a vendor of incidents related to the ven-dor's products and services; and (iii) vendor remote access. (2) Cybersecurity Monitor Program. The cybersecurity monitor program is available to all monitored utilities. The cybersecu-rity monitor program must include the functions of the cybersecurity coordination program listed in paragraph (1) of this subsection and the following functions: (A) holding regular meetings with monitored
	(ii) vendor risk management and procurement con-trols, including notification by a vendor of incidents related to the ven-dor's products and services; and (iii) vendor remote access. (2) Cybersecurity Monitor Program. The cybersecurity monitor program is available to all monitored utilities. The cybersecu-rity monitor program must include the functions of the cybersecurity coordination program listed in paragraph (1) of this subsection and the following functions: (A) holding regular meetings with monitored
	(ii) vendor risk management and procurement con-trols, including notification by a vendor of incidents related to the ven-dor's products and services; and (iii) vendor remote access. (2) Cybersecurity Monitor Program. The cybersecurity monitor program is available to all monitored utilities. The cybersecu-rity monitor program must include the functions of the cybersecurity coordination program listed in paragraph (1) of this subsection and the following functions: (A) holding regular meetings with monitored
	(ii) vendor risk management and procurement con-trols, including notification by a vendor of incidents related to the ven-dor's products and services; and (iii) vendor remote access. (2) Cybersecurity Monitor Program. The cybersecurity monitor program is available to all monitored utilities. The cybersecu-rity monitor program must include the functions of the cybersecurity coordination program listed in paragraph (1) of this subsection and the following functions: (A) holding regular meetings with monitored
	(ii) vendor risk management and procurement con-trols, including notification by a vendor of incidents related to the ven-dor's products and services; and (iii) vendor remote access. (2) Cybersecurity Monitor Program. The cybersecurity monitor program is available to all monitored utilities. The cybersecu-rity monitor program must include the functions of the cybersecurity coordination program listed in paragraph (1) of this subsection and the following functions: (A) holding regular meetings with monitored




	(3) The commission may impose post-employment restric-tions for the CSM and its staff. (i) Confidentiality standards. The CSM and commission staff must protect confidential information and data in accordance with the confidentiality standards established in PURA, the ERCOT protocols, commission rules, and other applicable laws. The requirements related to the level of protection to be afforded information protected by these laws and rules are incorporated in this section. (j) Reporting requirement. All repo
	(3) The commission may impose post-employment restric-tions for the CSM and its staff. (i) Confidentiality standards. The CSM and commission staff must protect confidential information and data in accordance with the confidentiality standards established in PURA, the ERCOT protocols, commission rules, and other applicable laws. The requirements related to the level of protection to be afforded information protected by these laws and rules are incorporated in this section. (j) Reporting requirement. All repo
	(3) The commission may impose post-employment restric-tions for the CSM and its staff. (i) Confidentiality standards. The CSM and commission staff must protect confidential information and data in accordance with the confidentiality standards established in PURA, the ERCOT protocols, commission rules, and other applicable laws. The requirements related to the level of protection to be afforded information protected by these laws and rules are incorporated in this section. (j) Reporting requirement. All repo
	(3) The commission may impose post-employment restric-tions for the CSM and its staff. (i) Confidentiality standards. The CSM and commission staff must protect confidential information and data in accordance with the confidentiality standards established in PURA, the ERCOT protocols, commission rules, and other applicable laws. The requirements related to the level of protection to be afforded information protected by these laws and rules are incorporated in this section. (j) Reporting requirement. All repo




	solely outside the ERCOT power region that elects to participate in the cybersecurity monitoring program is a monitored utility. (A) An electric utility, municipally owned utility, or electric cooperative that elects to participate in the cybersecurity monitor program must annually: (i) file with the commission its intent to participate in the program and to contribute to the costs of the CSM's activities in the project established by commission staff for this purpose; and (ii) complete and submit to ERCOT 
	solely outside the ERCOT power region that elects to participate in the cybersecurity monitoring program is a monitored utility. (A) An electric utility, municipally owned utility, or electric cooperative that elects to participate in the cybersecurity monitor program must annually: (i) file with the commission its intent to participate in the program and to contribute to the costs of the CSM's activities in the project established by commission staff for this purpose; and (ii) complete and submit to ERCOT 
	solely outside the ERCOT power region that elects to participate in the cybersecurity monitoring program is a monitored utility. (A) An electric utility, municipally owned utility, or electric cooperative that elects to participate in the cybersecurity monitor program must annually: (i) file with the commission its intent to participate in the program and to contribute to the costs of the CSM's activities in the project established by commission staff for this purpose; and (ii) complete and submit to ERCOT 
	solely outside the ERCOT power region that elects to participate in the cybersecurity monitoring program is a monitored utility. (A) An electric utility, municipally owned utility, or electric cooperative that elects to participate in the cybersecurity monitor program must annually: (i) file with the commission its intent to participate in the program and to contribute to the costs of the CSM's activities in the project established by commission staff for this purpose; and (ii) complete and submit to ERCOT 

	The agency certifies that legal counsel has reviewed the pro-posal and found it to be within the state agency's legal authority to adopt. Filed with the Office of the Secretary of State on December 13, 2019. TRD-201904794 Andrea Gonzalez Rules Coordinator Public Utility Commission of Texas Earliest possible date of adoption: January 26, 2020 For further information, please call: (512) 936-7244 ♦ ♦ ♦ TITLE 19. EDUCATION PART 2. TEXAS EDUCATION AGENCY CHAPTER 97. PLANNING AND ACCOUNTABILITY SUBCHAPTER EE. ACC



	scribed in TEC, §11.174, and prevent confusion in operation between the district and the operating partner. Paragraph (2) would specify that the operator has initial, final, and sole author-ity over curriculum decisions (subparagraph (A)), educational programs for specific student groups (subparagraph (B)), cal-endar and daily schedule (subparagraph (C)), use of assess-ments (subparagraph (D)), and campus budget (subparagraphs (E) and (F)). Subparagraph (E) would further clarify that deci-sions for budget a
	scribed in TEC, §11.174, and prevent confusion in operation between the district and the operating partner. Paragraph (2) would specify that the operator has initial, final, and sole author-ity over curriculum decisions (subparagraph (A)), educational programs for specific student groups (subparagraph (B)), cal-endar and daily schedule (subparagraph (C)), use of assess-ments (subparagraph (D)), and campus budget (subparagraphs (E) and (F)). Subparagraph (E) would further clarify that deci-sions for budget a
	scribed in TEC, §11.174, and prevent confusion in operation between the district and the operating partner. Paragraph (2) would specify that the operator has initial, final, and sole author-ity over curriculum decisions (subparagraph (A)), educational programs for specific student groups (subparagraph (B)), cal-endar and daily schedule (subparagraph (C)), use of assess-ments (subparagraph (D)), and campus budget (subparagraphs (E) and (F)). Subparagraph (E) would further clarify that deci-sions for budget a
	New subsection (h) would be established to allow existing lan-guage related to performance ratings to be in a separate sub-section. The language is currently included in the subsection on monitoring. Subsection (j) would be amended to make conforming changes to cross references. FISCAL IMPACT: Joe Siedlecki, associate commissioner for charters and innovation, has determined that for the first five-year period the proposal is in effect there are no additional costs to state or local government, including sch
	PRINCIPAL AND CLASSROOM TEACHER PAPERWORK REQUIREMENTS: The TEA has determined that the proposal would not require a written report or other paperwork to be completed by a principal or classroom teacher. PUBLIC COMMENTS: The public comment period on the proposal begins December 27, 2019, and ends January 27, 2020. A public hearing on the proposal will be held at 8:30 a.m. on January 10, 2020, in Room 1-100, William B. Travis Building, 1701 North Congress Avenue, Austin, Texas 78701. Anyone wishing to testif
	PRINCIPAL AND CLASSROOM TEACHER PAPERWORK REQUIREMENTS: The TEA has determined that the proposal would not require a written report or other paperwork to be completed by a principal or classroom teacher. PUBLIC COMMENTS: The public comment period on the proposal begins December 27, 2019, and ends January 27, 2020. A public hearing on the proposal will be held at 8:30 a.m. on January 10, 2020, in Room 1-100, William B. Travis Building, 1701 North Congress Avenue, Austin, Texas 78701. Anyone wishing to testif
	PRINCIPAL AND CLASSROOM TEACHER PAPERWORK REQUIREMENTS: The TEA has determined that the proposal would not require a written report or other paperwork to be completed by a principal or classroom teacher. PUBLIC COMMENTS: The public comment period on the proposal begins December 27, 2019, and ends January 27, 2020. A public hearing on the proposal will be held at 8:30 a.m. on January 10, 2020, in Room 1-100, William B. Travis Building, 1701 North Congress Avenue, Austin, Texas 78701. Anyone wishing to testif
	P
	Link

	(A) The operating partner must have authority to em-ploy and manage the campus chief operating officer, including initial and final non-delegable authority to hire, supervise, manage, assign, evaluate, develop, advance, compensate, continue employment, and establish any other terms of employment. (B) The operating partner must have authority over the employees of the operating partner, including initial and final non-del-egable authority for the operating partner to employ and/or manage all of the operating
	(A) The operating partner must have authority to em-ploy and manage the campus chief operating officer, including initial and final non-delegable authority to hire, supervise, manage, assign, evaluate, develop, advance, compensate, continue employment, and establish any other terms of employment. (B) The operating partner must have authority over the employees of the operating partner, including initial and final non-del-egable authority for the operating partner to employ and/or manage all of the operating
	(A) The operating partner must have authority to em-ploy and manage the campus chief operating officer, including initial and final non-delegable authority to hire, supervise, manage, assign, evaluate, develop, advance, compensate, continue employment, and establish any other terms of employment. (B) The operating partner must have authority over the employees of the operating partner, including initial and final non-del-egable authority for the operating partner to employ and/or manage all of the operating



	(d) Performance contract. To contract to partner to operate un-der TEC, §11.174, the independent school district's board of trustees must grant the operating partner a campus charter under TEC, Chap-ter 12, Subchapter C. The charter must include performance expec-tations memorialized in a performance contract, as required by TEC, §12.0531. The contract may not be contingent on any rating issued by the TEA. This performance contract must include, at a minimum, the following provisions: (1) a clear and unambi
	(d) Performance contract. To contract to partner to operate un-der TEC, §11.174, the independent school district's board of trustees must grant the operating partner a campus charter under TEC, Chap-ter 12, Subchapter C. The charter must include performance expec-tations memorialized in a performance contract, as required by TEC, §12.0531. The contract may not be contingent on any rating issued by the TEA. This performance contract must include, at a minimum, the following provisions: (1) a clear and unambi
	(d) Performance contract. To contract to partner to operate un-der TEC, §11.174, the independent school district's board of trustees must grant the operating partner a campus charter under TEC, Chap-ter 12, Subchapter C. The charter must include performance expec-tations memorialized in a performance contract, as required by TEC, §12.0531. The contract may not be contingent on any rating issued by the TEA. This performance contract must include, at a minimum, the following provisions: (1) a clear and unambi


	be paid to the operating partner for managing the campus or campuses each year; (B) the total budget for the first year of operation; and (C) the authority of the partner over the entire campus budget; (8) [(7)] service-level agreements that list the [describe and allocate shared] resources and services the operating partner intends to purchase from the district and the specific costs of such services by pupil, square foot, campus, or the percentage of the total district budget for the specific resource or 
	be paid to the operating partner for managing the campus or campuses each year; (B) the total budget for the first year of operation; and (C) the authority of the partner over the entire campus budget; (8) [(7)] service-level agreements that list the [describe and allocate shared] resources and services the operating partner intends to purchase from the district and the specific costs of such services by pupil, square foot, campus, or the percentage of the total district budget for the specific resource or 


	(j) [(h)] Continued eligibility. To receive benefits under TEC, §11.174(f) and (g) and §48.252 [§42.2511] , the district must continu-ously meet the requirements in subsections (c)-(i) [(c)-(g)] of this sec-tion. (k) [(i)] Decision finality. A decision of the commissioner made under this section is a final administrative decision and is not subject to appeal under TEC, §7.057. The agency certifies that legal counsel has reviewed the pro-posal and found it to be within the state agency's legal authority to a
	(j) [(h)] Continued eligibility. To receive benefits under TEC, §11.174(f) and (g) and §48.252 [§42.2511] , the district must continu-ously meet the requirements in subsections (c)-(i) [(c)-(g)] of this sec-tion. (k) [(i)] Decision finality. A decision of the commissioner made under this section is a final administrative decision and is not subject to appeal under TEC, §7.057. The agency certifies that legal counsel has reviewed the pro-posal and found it to be within the state agency's legal authority to a
	(j) [(h)] Continued eligibility. To receive benefits under TEC, §11.174(f) and (g) and §48.252 [§42.2511] , the district must continu-ously meet the requirements in subsections (c)-(i) [(c)-(g)] of this sec-tion. (k) [(i)] Decision finality. A decision of the commissioner made under this section is a final administrative decision and is not subject to appeal under TEC, §7.057. The agency certifies that legal counsel has reviewed the pro-posal and found it to be within the state agency's legal authority to a
	(j) [(h)] Continued eligibility. To receive benefits under TEC, §11.174(f) and (g) and §48.252 [§42.2511] , the district must continu-ously meet the requirements in subsections (c)-(i) [(c)-(g)] of this sec-tion. (k) [(i)] Decision finality. A decision of the commissioner made under this section is a final administrative decision and is not subject to appeal under TEC, §7.057. The agency certifies that legal counsel has reviewed the pro-posal and found it to be within the state agency's legal authority to a
	(j) [(h)] Continued eligibility. To receive benefits under TEC, §11.174(f) and (g) and §48.252 [§42.2511] , the district must continu-ously meet the requirements in subsections (c)-(i) [(c)-(g)] of this sec-tion. (k) [(i)] Decision finality. A decision of the commissioner made under this section is a final administrative decision and is not subject to appeal under TEC, §7.057. The agency certifies that legal counsel has reviewed the pro-posal and found it to be within the state agency's legal authority to a
	(j) [(h)] Continued eligibility. To receive benefits under TEC, §11.174(f) and (g) and §48.252 [§42.2511] , the district must continu-ously meet the requirements in subsections (c)-(i) [(c)-(g)] of this sec-tion. (k) [(i)] Decision finality. A decision of the commissioner made under this section is a final administrative decision and is not subject to appeal under TEC, §7.057. The agency certifies that legal counsel has reviewed the pro-posal and found it to be within the state agency's legal authority to a






	Subsection (e)(7) would be amended to clarify the agency review process by specifying that the agency may request additional information and/or interviews with districts or operating partners. This would allow staff to have more information before approving an application package. New subsection (e)(8) would be added using existing rule lan-guage that states that no recommendation, ranking, or other type of endorsement by a member or members of the review panel is binding on the commissioner. Renumbered sub
	Subsection (e)(7) would be amended to clarify the agency review process by specifying that the agency may request additional information and/or interviews with districts or operating partners. This would allow staff to have more information before approving an application package. New subsection (e)(8) would be added using existing rule lan-guage that states that no recommendation, ranking, or other type of endorsement by a member or members of the review panel is binding on the commissioner. Renumbered sub
	Subsection (e)(7) would be amended to clarify the agency review process by specifying that the agency may request additional information and/or interviews with districts or operating partners. This would allow staff to have more information before approving an application package. New subsection (e)(8) would be added using existing rule lan-guage that states that no recommendation, ranking, or other type of endorsement by a member or members of the review panel is binding on the commissioner. Renumbered sub

	to the submission of the application to the district, that the oper-ating partner has sufficient staff dedicated to the management of the campus or campuses, that the operating partner's staff has experience managing schools or programs, that the operating partner has reasonable funding to manage the campus or cam-puses, and that the governing board of the operating partner will participate in board governance training within a year of the ben-efits application approval. New subsection (e)(9)(C)(iv) would b
	COST INCREASE TO REGULATED PERSONS: The proposal does not impose a cost on regulated persons, another state agency, a special district, or a local government and, therefore, is not subject to Texas Government Code, §2001.0045. TAKINGS IMPACT ASSESSMENT: The proposal does not im-pose a burden on private real property and, therefore, does not constitute a taking under Texas Government Code, §2007.043. GOVERNMENT GROWTH IMPACT: TEA staff prepared a Gov-ernment Growth Impact Statement assessment for this propos
	P
	Link

	TEC, §48.252, which entitles districts to receive increased fund-ing for students at campuses contracting with TEC, Chapter 12, Subchapter C or D, charter operators. CROSS REFERENCE TO STATUTE. The amendment imple-ments Texas Education Code, §11.174 and §48.252. §97.1079. Determination Processes and Criteria for Eligible Entity Approval under Texas Education Code, §11.174. (a) Applicability. This section applies only to indepen-dent school districts that intend to contract to partner to operate a campus and
	TEC, §48.252, which entitles districts to receive increased fund-ing for students at campuses contracting with TEC, Chapter 12, Subchapter C or D, charter operators. CROSS REFERENCE TO STATUTE. The amendment imple-ments Texas Education Code, §11.174 and §48.252. §97.1079. Determination Processes and Criteria for Eligible Entity Approval under Texas Education Code, §11.174. (a) Applicability. This section applies only to indepen-dent school districts that intend to contract to partner to operate a campus and
	TEC, §48.252, which entitles districts to receive increased fund-ing for students at campuses contracting with TEC, Chapter 12, Subchapter C or D, charter operators. CROSS REFERENCE TO STATUTE. The amendment imple-ments Texas Education Code, §11.174 and §48.252. §97.1079. Determination Processes and Criteria for Eligible Entity Approval under Texas Education Code, §11.174. (a) Applicability. This section applies only to indepen-dent school districts that intend to contract to partner to operate a campus and
	(E) [(C)] eligibility approval criteria, including the min-imum score necessary for approval. (2) The Texas Education Agency (TEA) shall review application packages [eligibility approval requests] submitted under this section. If the TEA determines that an application package [eligibility approval request] is not complete and/or the applicant does not meet the eligibility criteria in TEC, §11.174, the TEA shall notify the applicant and allow ten business days for the applicant to submit any missing or expla
	(E) [(C)] eligibility approval criteria, including the min-imum score necessary for approval. (2) The Texas Education Agency (TEA) shall review application packages [eligibility approval requests] submitted under this section. If the TEA determines that an application package [eligibility approval request] is not complete and/or the applicant does not meet the eligibility criteria in TEC, §11.174, the TEA shall notify the applicant and allow ten business days for the applicant to submit any missing or expla
	(E) [(C)] eligibility approval criteria, including the min-imum score necessary for approval. (2) The Texas Education Agency (TEA) shall review application packages [eligibility approval requests] submitted under this section. If the TEA determines that an application package [eligibility approval request] is not complete and/or the applicant does not meet the eligibility criteria in TEC, §11.174, the TEA shall notify the applicant and allow ten business days for the applicant to submit any missing or expla
	(E) [(C)] eligibility approval criteria, including the min-imum score necessary for approval. (2) The Texas Education Agency (TEA) shall review application packages [eligibility approval requests] submitted under this section. If the TEA determines that an application package [eligibility approval request] is not complete and/or the applicant does not meet the eligibility criteria in TEC, §11.174, the TEA shall notify the applicant and allow ten business days for the applicant to submit any missing or expla




	prospective students, and/or letters of support from potential charter school parents and/or students; and (E) any other information or documentation that cannot be released in accordance with Texas Government Code, Chapter 552. (5) TEA will remove from review any application pack-ages that: (A) include plagiarisms; (B) are from districts that did not submit a letter of in-tent by the TEA published deadline; (C) are from districts that did not participate in TEA required trainings; (D) are from districts wh
	(i) Each applicant must demonstrate evidence of the district's adoption and implementation of the TEA model authorizing policy or a similar policy approved by TEA. (I) For application packages submitted for bene-fits that begin in the 2021-2022 school year, districts not using the TEA model policy must have the local authorizing policy approved prior to the application review. (II) TEA will release the authorizing policy ap-proval timeline and process annually. (III) TEA approval of local authorizing polici
	(i) Each applicant must demonstrate evidence of the district's adoption and implementation of the TEA model authorizing policy or a similar policy approved by TEA. (I) For application packages submitted for bene-fits that begin in the 2021-2022 school year, districts not using the TEA model policy must have the local authorizing policy approved prior to the application review. (II) TEA will release the authorizing policy ap-proval timeline and process annually. (III) TEA approval of local authorizing polici
	(i) Each applicant must demonstrate evidence of the district's adoption and implementation of the TEA model authorizing policy or a similar policy approved by TEA. (I) For application packages submitted for bene-fits that begin in the 2021-2022 school year, districts not using the TEA model policy must have the local authorizing policy approved prior to the application review. (II) TEA will release the authorizing policy ap-proval timeline and process annually. (III) TEA approval of local authorizing polici
	(i) Each applicant must demonstrate evidence of the district's adoption and implementation of the TEA model authorizing policy or a similar policy approved by TEA. (I) For application packages submitted for bene-fits that begin in the 2021-2022 school year, districts not using the TEA model policy must have the local authorizing policy approved prior to the application review. (II) TEA will release the authorizing policy ap-proval timeline and process annually. (III) TEA approval of local authorizing polici




	(-c-) TEA approval of a local campus appli-cation and scoring rubric expires if the district changes the authorizing policy or if related sections of the TAC or TEC change; and [(-a-) the qualifications, backgrounds, and histories of individuals and entities who will be involved in the governance, management, and educational leadership of the proposed operating partner; and] [(-b-) any operating and academic perfor-mance history of the proposed operator; and] (III) evidence that, at a minimum, the district:
	(-c-) TEA approval of a local campus appli-cation and scoring rubric expires if the district changes the authorizing policy or if related sections of the TAC or TEC change; and [(-a-) the qualifications, backgrounds, and histories of individuals and entities who will be involved in the governance, management, and educational leadership of the proposed operating partner; and] [(-b-) any operating and academic perfor-mance history of the proposed operator; and] (III) evidence that, at a minimum, the district:
	(-c-) TEA approval of a local campus appli-cation and scoring rubric expires if the district changes the authorizing policy or if related sections of the TAC or TEC change; and [(-a-) the qualifications, backgrounds, and histories of individuals and entities who will be involved in the governance, management, and educational leadership of the proposed operating partner; and] [(-b-) any operating and academic perfor-mance history of the proposed operator; and] (III) evidence that, at a minimum, the district:
	(-c-) TEA approval of a local campus appli-cation and scoring rubric expires if the district changes the authorizing policy or if related sections of the TAC or TEC change; and [(-a-) the qualifications, backgrounds, and histories of individuals and entities who will be involved in the governance, management, and educational leadership of the proposed operating partner; and] [(-b-) any operating and academic perfor-mance history of the proposed operator; and] (III) evidence that, at a minimum, the district:

	(v) [(ii)] evidence that the applicant and proposed operating partner meet the requirements to contract to partner to op-erate, as outlined in §97.1075 of this title [(relating to Contracting to Partner to Operate a Campus under Texas Education Code, §11.174)] ; [and] (vi) [(iii)] an assurance that the governing body of the operating partner shall remain independent of the independent school district. This may include the following: (I) an assurance that the governing body of the operating partner is not an
	(v) [(ii)] evidence that the applicant and proposed operating partner meet the requirements to contract to partner to op-erate, as outlined in §97.1075 of this title [(relating to Contracting to Partner to Operate a Campus under Texas Education Code, §11.174)] ; [and] (vi) [(iii)] an assurance that the governing body of the operating partner shall remain independent of the independent school district. This may include the following: (I) an assurance that the governing body of the operating partner is not an
	(v) [(ii)] evidence that the applicant and proposed operating partner meet the requirements to contract to partner to op-erate, as outlined in §97.1075 of this title [(relating to Contracting to Partner to Operate a Campus under Texas Education Code, §11.174)] ; [and] (vi) [(iii)] an assurance that the governing body of the operating partner shall remain independent of the independent school district. This may include the following: (I) an assurance that the governing body of the operating partner is not an
	(v) [(ii)] evidence that the applicant and proposed operating partner meet the requirements to contract to partner to op-erate, as outlined in §97.1075 of this title [(relating to Contracting to Partner to Operate a Campus under Texas Education Code, §11.174)] ; [and] (vi) [(iii)] an assurance that the governing body of the operating partner shall remain independent of the independent school district. This may include the following: (I) an assurance that the governing body of the operating partner is not an




	[(i) evidence that the proposed operating partner has the capacity to operate the campus, including the following:] [(I) an education plan;] [(II) the capacity of the operating partner's board and leadership team; and] [(III) if applicable, the operating partner's previ-ous history operating campuses; and] [(ii) evidence or an assurance that the operating partner has or will have dedicated staff capacity to operate or oversee the operation of a campus.] (E) In order to qualify for ongoing benefits, subseque
	[(i) evidence that the proposed operating partner has the capacity to operate the campus, including the following:] [(I) an education plan;] [(II) the capacity of the operating partner's board and leadership team; and] [(III) if applicable, the operating partner's previ-ous history operating campuses; and] [(ii) evidence or an assurance that the operating partner has or will have dedicated staff capacity to operate or oversee the operation of a campus.] (E) In order to qualify for ongoing benefits, subseque




	The Executive Commissioner of the Texas Health and Human Services Commission (HHSC) proposes in Title 26, Texas Administrative Code, Chapter 748, Minimum Standards for General Residential Operations, the repeal of §748.301, con-cerning What is a serious incident; new §748.301, concerning What do certain terms mean in this subchapter; amendments to §748.303, concerning When must I report and document a serious incident, and §748.313, concerning What additional documentation must I include with a written seri
	The Executive Commissioner of the Texas Health and Human Services Commission (HHSC) proposes in Title 26, Texas Administrative Code, Chapter 748, Minimum Standards for General Residential Operations, the repeal of §748.301, con-cerning What is a serious incident; new §748.301, concerning What do certain terms mean in this subchapter; amendments to §748.303, concerning When must I report and document a serious incident, and §748.313, concerning What additional documentation must I include with a written seri
	The Executive Commissioner of the Texas Health and Human Services Commission (HHSC) proposes in Title 26, Texas Administrative Code, Chapter 748, Minimum Standards for General Residential Operations, the repeal of §748.301, con-cerning What is a serious incident; new §748.301, concerning What do certain terms mean in this subchapter; amendments to §748.303, concerning When must I report and document a serious incident, and §748.313, concerning What additional documentation must I include with a written seri
	report to finalize the documentation requirements if the child re-turns to the operation after 24 hours. Proposed new §748.451 describes the additional requirements the operation must conduct related to the unauthorized ab-sences of a child from an operation. This rule summarizes the requirements described in the remaining rules in proposed new Division 6. Proposed new §748.453 requires the operation to maintain an annual summary log of each time a child has an unauthorized absence, document certain informa
	report to finalize the documentation requirements if the child re-turns to the operation after 24 hours. Proposed new §748.451 describes the additional requirements the operation must conduct related to the unauthorized ab-sences of a child from an operation. This rule summarizes the requirements described in the remaining rules in proposed new Division 6. Proposed new §748.453 requires the operation to maintain an annual summary log of each time a child has an unauthorized absence, document certain informa
	report to finalize the documentation requirements if the child re-turns to the operation after 24 hours. Proposed new §748.451 describes the additional requirements the operation must conduct related to the unauthorized ab-sences of a child from an operation. This rule summarizes the requirements described in the remaining rules in proposed new Division 6. Proposed new §748.453 requires the operation to maintain an annual summary log of each time a child has an unauthorized absence, document certain informa
	(3) implementation of the proposed rules will result in no as-sumed change in future legislative appropriations; (4) the proposed rules will not affect fees paid to HHSC; (5) the proposed rules will create new rules; (6) the proposed rules will expand existing rules; (7) the proposed rules will not change the number of individuals subject to the rules; and (8) the proposed rules will not affect the state's economy. SMALL BUSINESS, MICRO-BUSINESS, AND RURAL COM-MUNITY IMPACT ANALYSIS Greta Rymal has determin
	(3) implementation of the proposed rules will result in no as-sumed change in future legislative appropriations; (4) the proposed rules will not affect fees paid to HHSC; (5) the proposed rules will create new rules; (6) the proposed rules will expand existing rules; (7) the proposed rules will not change the number of individuals subject to the rules; and (8) the proposed rules will not affect the state's economy. SMALL BUSINESS, MICRO-BUSINESS, AND RURAL COM-MUNITY IMPACT ANALYSIS Greta Rymal has determin
	(3) implementation of the proposed rules will result in no as-sumed change in future legislative appropriations; (4) the proposed rules will not affect fees paid to HHSC; (5) the proposed rules will create new rules; (6) the proposed rules will expand existing rules; (7) the proposed rules will not change the number of individuals subject to the rules; and (8) the proposed rules will not affect the state's economy. SMALL BUSINESS, MICRO-BUSINESS, AND RURAL COM-MUNITY IMPACT ANALYSIS Greta Rymal has determin


	P
	Link
	Link


	salary for a CPS administrator/director is $5,547.83 per month or $32.00 per hour ($5,547.83 ÷ 173.33 hours per month). Fiscal impact relating to §748.303 and §748.453 for docu-menting unauthorized absences in a child's record and in an annual summary log for unauthorized absences: This fiscal impact results from the amendment in §748.303, which adds subsection (c) that requires documentation of unauthorized absences that do not meet the reporting requirements defined in §748.303 (a)(7) -(9). This fiscal im
	P
	Link
	Link

	Greta Rymal has also determined that for the first five years the rules are in effect, persons who are required to comply with the proposed rules may incur economic costs, as previously ex-plained under the section entitled Small Businesses, Micro-Busi-nesses, and Rural Community Impact Analysis. TAKINGS IMPACT ASSESSMENT HHSC has determined that the proposal does not restrict or limit an owner's right to his or her property that would otherwise exist in the absence of government action and, therefore, does
	P
	Link

	P
	Link


	STATUTORY AUTHORITY The new rule and amendments are authorized by Texas Govern-ment Code §531.0055, which provides that the Executive Com-missioner of HHSC shall adopt rules for the operation and pro-vision of services by the health and human services agencies. The new rule and amendments affect Texas Government Code §531.0055 and Human Resources Code §42.042. §748.301. What do certain terms mean in this subchapter? These terms have the following meanings in this subchapter: (1) Serious incident--A non-rout
	STATUTORY AUTHORITY The new rule and amendments are authorized by Texas Govern-ment Code §531.0055, which provides that the Executive Com-missioner of HHSC shall adopt rules for the operation and pro-vision of services by the health and human services agencies. The new rule and amendments affect Texas Government Code §531.0055 and Human Resources Code §42.042. §748.301. What do certain terms mean in this subchapter? These terms have the following meanings in this subchapter: (1) Serious incident--A non-rout
	STATUTORY AUTHORITY The new rule and amendments are authorized by Texas Govern-ment Code §531.0055, which provides that the Executive Com-missioner of HHSC shall adopt rules for the operation and pro-vision of services by the health and human services agencies. The new rule and amendments affect Texas Government Code §531.0055 and Human Resources Code §42.042. §748.301. What do certain terms mean in this subchapter? These terms have the following meanings in this subchapter: (1) Serious incident--A non-rout
	Figure: 26 TAC §748.303(e) [Figure: 26 TAC §748.303(d)] §748.313. What additional documentation must I include with a writ-ten serious incident report? You must include the following additional documentation with a writ-ten serious incident report, as applicable: Figure: 26 TAC §748.313 [Figure: 26 TAC §748.313] The agency certifies that legal counsel has reviewed the pro-posal and found it to be within the state agency's legal authority to adopt. Filed with the Office of the Secretary of State on December 
	Figure: 26 TAC §748.303(e) [Figure: 26 TAC §748.303(d)] §748.313. What additional documentation must I include with a writ-ten serious incident report? You must include the following additional documentation with a writ-ten serious incident report, as applicable: Figure: 26 TAC §748.313 [Figure: 26 TAC §748.313] The agency certifies that legal counsel has reviewed the pro-posal and found it to be within the state agency's legal authority to adopt. Filed with the Office of the Secretary of State on December 


	(2) The time and date the unauthorized absence was dis-covered; (3) How long the child was gone or if the child did not return; (4) The name of the caregiver responsible for the child at the time the child's absence was discovered; and (5) Whether law enforcement was contacted, including the name of any law enforcement agency that was contacted, if applicable. (b) You must maintain each annual summary log for five years. (c) You must make the annual summary logs available to Li-censing for review and reprod
	(2) The time and date the unauthorized absence was dis-covered; (3) How long the child was gone or if the child did not return; (4) The name of the caregiver responsible for the child at the time the child's absence was discovered; and (5) Whether law enforcement was contacted, including the name of any law enforcement agency that was contacted, if applicable. (b) You must maintain each annual summary log for five years. (c) You must make the annual summary logs available to Li-censing for review and reprod
	(2) The time and date the unauthorized absence was dis-covered; (3) How long the child was gone or if the child did not return; (4) The name of the caregiver responsible for the child at the time the child's absence was discovered; and (5) Whether law enforcement was contacted, including the name of any law enforcement agency that was contacted, if applicable. (b) You must maintain each annual summary log for five years. (c) You must make the annual summary logs available to Li-censing for review and reprod
	(2) The time and date the unauthorized absence was dis-covered; (3) How long the child was gone or if the child did not return; (4) The name of the caregiver responsible for the child at the time the child's absence was discovered; and (5) Whether law enforcement was contacted, including the name of any law enforcement agency that was contacted, if applicable. (b) You must maintain each annual summary log for five years. (c) You must make the annual summary logs available to Li-censing for review and reprod
	(2) The time and date the unauthorized absence was dis-covered; (3) How long the child was gone or if the child did not return; (4) The name of the caregiver responsible for the child at the time the child's absence was discovered; and (5) Whether law enforcement was contacted, including the name of any law enforcement agency that was contacted, if applicable. (b) You must maintain each annual summary log for five years. (c) You must make the annual summary logs available to Li-censing for review and reprod



	§748.707 of this chapter (relating to Who makes the decision regarding a foster child's participation in childhood activities?); and (3) The child's case manager. (b) You must notify the child's parent at least two weeks before the triggered review of a child's unauthorized absences, so the parent will have an opportunity to participate in the review. §748.461. What must a triggered review of a child's unauthorized absences include? A triggered review of a child's unauthorized absences must include the foll
	§748.707 of this chapter (relating to Who makes the decision regarding a foster child's participation in childhood activities?); and (3) The child's case manager. (b) You must notify the child's parent at least two weeks before the triggered review of a child's unauthorized absences, so the parent will have an opportunity to participate in the review. §748.461. What must a triggered review of a child's unauthorized absences include? A triggered review of a child's unauthorized absences must include the foll



	CHAPTER 749. MINIMUM STANDARDS FOR CHILD-PLACING AGENCIES SUBCHAPTER D. REPORTS AND RECORD KEEPING The Executive Commissioner of the Texas Health and Human Services Commission (HHSC) proposes in Title 26, Texas Ad-ministrative Code, Chapter 749, Minimum Standards for Child-Placing Agencies, the repeal of §749.501 concerning What is a serious incident; new §749.501 concerning What do certain terms mean in this subchapter; amendments to §749.503, con-cerning When must I report and document a serious incident,
	CHAPTER 749. MINIMUM STANDARDS FOR CHILD-PLACING AGENCIES SUBCHAPTER D. REPORTS AND RECORD KEEPING The Executive Commissioner of the Texas Health and Human Services Commission (HHSC) proposes in Title 26, Texas Ad-ministrative Code, Chapter 749, Minimum Standards for Child-Placing Agencies, the repeal of §749.501 concerning What is a serious incident; new §749.501 concerning What do certain terms mean in this subchapter; amendments to §749.503, con-cerning When must I report and document a serious incident,
	CHAPTER 749. MINIMUM STANDARDS FOR CHILD-PLACING AGENCIES SUBCHAPTER D. REPORTS AND RECORD KEEPING The Executive Commissioner of the Texas Health and Human Services Commission (HHSC) proposes in Title 26, Texas Ad-ministrative Code, Chapter 749, Minimum Standards for Child-Placing Agencies, the repeal of §749.501 concerning What is a serious incident; new §749.501 concerning What do certain terms mean in this subchapter; amendments to §749.503, con-cerning When must I report and document a serious incident,
	mation when documenting the unauthorized absence of a child, including whether the child has returned to the foster home, how long the child was gone, and completing an addendum to the se-rious incident report to finalize the documentation requirements if the child returns to the foster home after 24 hours. Proposed new §749.590 describes the additional requirements the agency must conduct related to the unauthorized absence of a child from a foster home. This rule summarizes the require-ments described in 
	mation when documenting the unauthorized absence of a child, including whether the child has returned to the foster home, how long the child was gone, and completing an addendum to the se-rious incident report to finalize the documentation requirements if the child returns to the foster home after 24 hours. Proposed new §749.590 describes the additional requirements the agency must conduct related to the unauthorized absence of a child from a foster home. This rule summarizes the require-ments described in 


	HHSC has determined that during the first five years that the rules will be in effect: (1) the proposed rules will not create or eliminate a government program; (2) implementation of the proposed rules will not affect the num-ber of HHSC employee positions; (3) implementation of the proposed rules will result in no as-sumed change in future legislative appropriations; (4) the proposed rules will not affect fees paid to HHSC; (5) the proposed rules will create new rules; (6) the proposed rules will expand ex
	60-day timeframe, and conducting overall agency evaluations every six months for those agencies that have any unauthorized absences. Child Care Licensing also does not know the work-load of current CPA child placement staff and administrators, which presumably varies with each CPA. In many instances, the staff may be able to incorporate these additional requirements into their current workload. The staff time required to comply with these changes will impact CPA child placement staff and administrators. To 
	60-day timeframe, and conducting overall agency evaluations every six months for those agencies that have any unauthorized absences. Child Care Licensing also does not know the work-load of current CPA child placement staff and administrators, which presumably varies with each CPA. In many instances, the staff may be able to incorporate these additional requirements into their current workload. The staff time required to comply with these changes will impact CPA child placement staff and administrators. To 

	P
	Link
	Link

	P
	Link
	Link


	($25.19 X 2 hours X 3 child placement staff members) + ($32 X 6 hours) or ($25.19 X 2 hours X 3 child placement staff mem-bers) + ($32 X 8 hours) per evaluation, or $686.28 and $814.28 annually. HHSC determined that alternative methods to achieve the pur-pose of the proposed rules for small businesses and micro-busi-nesses would not be consistent with ensuring the health and safety of children in foster care. LOCAL EMPLOYMENT IMPACT The proposed rules will not affect a local economy. COSTS TO REGULATED PERS
	($25.19 X 2 hours X 3 child placement staff members) + ($32 X 6 hours) or ($25.19 X 2 hours X 3 child placement staff mem-bers) + ($32 X 8 hours) per evaluation, or $686.28 and $814.28 annually. HHSC determined that alternative methods to achieve the pur-pose of the proposed rules for small businesses and micro-busi-nesses would not be consistent with ensuring the health and safety of children in foster care. LOCAL EMPLOYMENT IMPACT The proposed rules will not affect a local economy. COSTS TO REGULATED PERS
	($25.19 X 2 hours X 3 child placement staff members) + ($32 X 6 hours) or ($25.19 X 2 hours X 3 child placement staff mem-bers) + ($32 X 8 hours) per evaluation, or $686.28 and $814.28 annually. HHSC determined that alternative methods to achieve the pur-pose of the proposed rules for small businesses and micro-busi-nesses would not be consistent with ensuring the health and safety of children in foster care. LOCAL EMPLOYMENT IMPACT The proposed rules will not affect a local economy. COSTS TO REGULATED PERS
	P
	Link

	P
	Link

	STATUTORY AUTHORITY The repeal is authorized by Texas Government Code §531.0055, which provides that the Executive Commissioner of HHSC shall adopt rules for the operation and provision of services by the health and human services agencies. The repeal affects Texas Government Code §531.0055 and Hu-man Resources Code §42.042. §749.501. What is a serious incident? The agency certifies that legal counsel has reviewed the pro-posal and found it to be within the state agency's legal authority to adopt. Filed wit
	STATUTORY AUTHORITY The repeal is authorized by Texas Government Code §531.0055, which provides that the Executive Commissioner of HHSC shall adopt rules for the operation and provision of services by the health and human services agencies. The repeal affects Texas Government Code §531.0055 and Hu-man Resources Code §42.042. §749.501. What is a serious incident? The agency certifies that legal counsel has reviewed the pro-posal and found it to be within the state agency's legal authority to adopt. Filed wit


	(c) You must document an unauthorized absence that does not meet the reporting time requirements defined in subsection (a)(7) -(9) of this section within 24 hours after you become aware of the unautho-rized absence. You must document the absence: (1) In the same manner as for a serious incident, as de-scribed in §749.511 of this division; and (2) Complete an addendum to the serious incident report to finalize the documentation requirements, if the child returns to a foster home after 24 hours. (d) [(c)] If 
	(c) You must document an unauthorized absence that does not meet the reporting time requirements defined in subsection (a)(7) -(9) of this section within 24 hours after you become aware of the unautho-rized absence. You must document the absence: (1) In the same manner as for a serious incident, as de-scribed in §749.511 of this division; and (2) Complete an addendum to the serious incident report to finalize the documentation requirements, if the child returns to a foster home after 24 hours. (d) [(c)] If 
	(c) You must document an unauthorized absence that does not meet the reporting time requirements defined in subsection (a)(7) -(9) of this section within 24 hours after you become aware of the unautho-rized absence. You must document the absence: (1) In the same manner as for a serious incident, as de-scribed in §749.511 of this division; and (2) Complete an addendum to the serious incident report to finalize the documentation requirements, if the child returns to a foster home after 24 hours. (d) [(c)] If 
	(c) You must document an unauthorized absence that does not meet the reporting time requirements defined in subsection (a)(7) -(9) of this section within 24 hours after you become aware of the unautho-rized absence. You must document the absence: (1) In the same manner as for a serious incident, as de-scribed in §749.511 of this division; and (2) Complete an addendum to the serious incident report to finalize the documentation requirements, if the child returns to a foster home after 24 hours. (d) [(c)] If 
	(c) You must document an unauthorized absence that does not meet the reporting time requirements defined in subsection (a)(7) -(9) of this section within 24 hours after you become aware of the unautho-rized absence. You must document the absence: (1) In the same manner as for a serious incident, as de-scribed in §749.511 of this division; and (2) Complete an addendum to the serious incident report to finalize the documentation requirements, if the child returns to a foster home after 24 hours. (d) [(c)] If 




	§749.590. What additional requirements are there for unauthorized absences of children from a foster home? (a) For each unauthorized absence of a child, you must: (1) Document the unauthorized absence in an annual sum-mary log, as required by §749.591 of this division (relating to What documentation must be included in an annual summary log for a child who has an unauthorized absence?); and (2) Debrief the child, as required by §749.592 of this divi-sion (relating to What are the requirements for debriefing
	§749.590. What additional requirements are there for unauthorized absences of children from a foster home? (a) For each unauthorized absence of a child, you must: (1) Document the unauthorized absence in an annual sum-mary log, as required by §749.591 of this division (relating to What documentation must be included in an annual summary log for a child who has an unauthorized absence?); and (2) Debrief the child, as required by §749.592 of this divi-sion (relating to What are the requirements for debriefing
	§749.590. What additional requirements are there for unauthorized absences of children from a foster home? (a) For each unauthorized absence of a child, you must: (1) Document the unauthorized absence in an annual sum-mary log, as required by §749.591 of this division (relating to What documentation must be included in an annual summary log for a child who has an unauthorized absence?); and (2) Debrief the child, as required by §749.592 of this divi-sion (relating to What are the requirements for debriefing



	would be inappropriate because of the child's condition following the unauthorized absence or something that occurred during the unautho-rized absence. (c) The debriefing must be documented in the child's record, including any routine activity that would be inappropriate for the child to return to and the explanation for why the activity is inappropriate. §749.593. When must a triggered review of a child's unauthorized absences occur? (a) A triggered review of a child's unauthorized absences must occur as s
	would be inappropriate because of the child's condition following the unauthorized absence or something that occurred during the unautho-rized absence. (c) The debriefing must be documented in the child's record, including any routine activity that would be inappropriate for the child to return to and the explanation for why the activity is inappropriate. §749.593. When must a triggered review of a child's unauthorized absences occur? (a) A triggered review of a child's unauthorized absences must occur as s
	would be inappropriate because of the child's condition following the unauthorized absence or something that occurred during the unautho-rized absence. (c) The debriefing must be documented in the child's record, including any routine activity that would be inappropriate for the child to return to and the explanation for why the activity is inappropriate. §749.593. When must a triggered review of a child's unauthorized absences occur? (a) A triggered review of a child's unauthorized absences must occur as s
	would be inappropriate because of the child's condition following the unauthorized absence or something that occurred during the unautho-rized absence. (c) The debriefing must be documented in the child's record, including any routine activity that would be inappropriate for the child to return to and the explanation for why the activity is inappropriate. §749.593. When must a triggered review of a child's unauthorized absences occur? (a) A triggered review of a child's unauthorized absences must occur as s

	(c) The evaluation must include: (1) The frequency and patterns of unauthorized absences of children in your agency; and (2) Specific strategies to reduce the number of unautho-rized absences in your agency. (d) You must maintain the results of each six-month overall agency evaluation for unauthorized absences for five years. (e) You must make the results of each overall agency evalua-tion for unauthorized absences available to Licensing for review and reproduction, upon request. The agency certifies that l
	(c) The evaluation must include: (1) The frequency and patterns of unauthorized absences of children in your agency; and (2) Specific strategies to reduce the number of unautho-rized absences in your agency. (d) You must maintain the results of each six-month overall agency evaluation for unauthorized absences for five years. (e) You must make the results of each overall agency evalua-tion for unauthorized absences available to Licensing for review and reproduction, upon request. The agency certifies that l





	The comptroller deletes subsection (e) concerning shipping requirements, since SB 21 repealed Health and Safety Code, §161.455 concerning the shipping requirements. The subse-quent subsections are re-lettered. Tom Currah, Chief Revenue Estimator, has determined that dur-ing the first five years that the proposed amendment is in effect, the amendment: will not create or eliminate a government pro-gram; will not require the creation or elimination of employee positions; will not require an increase or decreas
	The comptroller deletes subsection (e) concerning shipping requirements, since SB 21 repealed Health and Safety Code, §161.455 concerning the shipping requirements. The subse-quent subsections are re-lettered. Tom Currah, Chief Revenue Estimator, has determined that dur-ing the first five years that the proposed amendment is in effect, the amendment: will not create or eliminate a government pro-gram; will not require the creation or elimination of employee positions; will not require an increase or decreas
	The comptroller deletes subsection (e) concerning shipping requirements, since SB 21 repealed Health and Safety Code, §161.455 concerning the shipping requirements. The subse-quent subsections are re-lettered. Tom Currah, Chief Revenue Estimator, has determined that dur-ing the first five years that the proposed amendment is in effect, the amendment: will not create or eliminate a government pro-gram; will not require the creation or elimination of employee positions; will not require an increase or decreas
	(ii) by mail or any other delivery service; or (iii) through the Internet or other on-line service; or (B) in which the e-cigarettes are delivered by mail or other delivery service; (C) the term does not include a sale of e-cigarettes for resale to a person who is a wholesale dealer or a retail dealer. (2) Delivery service--A person, including the United States Postal Service, who is engaged in the commercial delivery of letters, packages, or other containers. (3) E-cigarette--An electronic cigarette or any
	(ii) by mail or any other delivery service; or (iii) through the Internet or other on-line service; or (B) in which the e-cigarettes are delivered by mail or other delivery service; (C) the term does not include a sale of e-cigarettes for resale to a person who is a wholesale dealer or a retail dealer. (2) Delivery service--A person, including the United States Postal Service, who is engaged in the commercial delivery of letters, packages, or other containers. (3) E-cigarette--An electronic cigarette or any

	For more information on sales and use tax collection responsibilities, refer to §3.286 of this title. (c) Notice to purchasers. A delivery sale of an e-cigarette must include a prominent and clearly legible statement that: (1) Texas law prohibits e-cigarette sales to minors [ indi-viduals younger than 18 years of age]; and (2) sales of e-cigarettes are restricted to individuals who can provide verifiable proof of age. (d) Age verification. A seller taking a delivery sale order must verify that the purchaser
	For more information on sales and use tax collection responsibilities, refer to §3.286 of this title. (c) Notice to purchasers. A delivery sale of an e-cigarette must include a prominent and clearly legible statement that: (1) Texas law prohibits e-cigarette sales to minors [ indi-viduals younger than 18 years of age]; and (2) sales of e-cigarettes are restricted to individuals who can provide verifiable proof of age. (d) Age verification. A seller taking a delivery sale order must verify that the purchaser
	For more information on sales and use tax collection responsibilities, refer to §3.286 of this title. (c) Notice to purchasers. A delivery sale of an e-cigarette must include a prominent and clearly legible statement that: (1) Texas law prohibits e-cigarette sales to minors [ indi-viduals younger than 18 years of age]; and (2) sales of e-cigarettes are restricted to individuals who can provide verifiable proof of age. (d) Age verification. A seller taking a delivery sale order must verify that the purchaser
	Delivery Sales Report. The report is available on the comptroller's website. (C) This filing is due on or before the 10th day of each month based on delivery sales made in the previous month. The first report is due November 10, 2015. (2) A person is exempt from the filing requirements in this subsection, if in the preceding two years from the date the report is due, the person is not in violation of the requirements under Health and Safety Code, Chapter 161, Subchapter R (Delivery Sales of Cigarettes and E

	William Hamner Special Counsel for Tax Administration Comptroller of Public Accounts Earliest possible date of adoption: January 26, 2020 For further information, please call: (512) 475-0387 ♦ ♦ ♦ TITLE 40. SOCIAL SERVICES AND ASSIS-TANCE PART 17. STATE PENSION REVIEW BOARD CHAPTER 601. GENERAL PROVISIONS 40 TAC §601.1 The State Pension Review Board (PRB) proposes amendments to §601.1 (relating to Purpose). BACKGROUND AND PURPOSE The rule changes are proposed as a result of the PRB's rule re-view, which was
	(7) the rule changes as proposed will not change the number of individuals subject to the rule; and (8) the rule changes as proposed will not positively or adversely affect the state's economy. ECONOMIC IMPACT STATEMENT AND REGULATORY FLEX-IBILITY ANALYSIS FOR SMALL BUSINESSES, MICROBUSI-NESSES, AND RURAL COMMUNITIES. Mr. Allen has also determined that there will be no impact on rural communities, small businesses, or microbusinesses as a result of implementing these rule changes as proposed because the rul
	(7) the rule changes as proposed will not change the number of individuals subject to the rule; and (8) the rule changes as proposed will not positively or adversely affect the state's economy. ECONOMIC IMPACT STATEMENT AND REGULATORY FLEX-IBILITY ANALYSIS FOR SMALL BUSINESSES, MICROBUSI-NESSES, AND RURAL COMMUNITIES. Mr. Allen has also determined that there will be no impact on rural communities, small businesses, or microbusinesses as a result of implementing these rule changes as proposed because the rul
	(7) the rule changes as proposed will not change the number of individuals subject to the rule; and (8) the rule changes as proposed will not positively or adversely affect the state's economy. ECONOMIC IMPACT STATEMENT AND REGULATORY FLEX-IBILITY ANALYSIS FOR SMALL BUSINESSES, MICROBUSI-NESSES, AND RURAL COMMUNITIES. Mr. Allen has also determined that there will be no impact on rural communities, small businesses, or microbusinesses as a result of implementing these rule changes as proposed because the rul


	P
	Link


	§801.211(e), which allows the Board to adopt rules to administer and provide educational training programs under §801.211. CROSS REFERENCE TO STATUTES AND CODES AF-FECTED The rule changes as proposed affect Texas Government Code, Chapters 801 and 802, specifically §801.201(c), §801.211(b), §801.202(1) and (2). §601.1. Purpose. The rules and regulations of the State Pension Review Board are set forth for the purpose of interpreting and implementing Texas [Vernon's Texas Codes Annotated,] Government Code, Tit
	§801.211(e), which allows the Board to adopt rules to administer and provide educational training programs under §801.211. CROSS REFERENCE TO STATUTES AND CODES AF-FECTED The rule changes as proposed affect Texas Government Code, Chapters 801 and 802, specifically §801.201(c), §801.211(b), §801.202(1) and (2). §601.1. Purpose. The rules and regulations of the State Pension Review Board are set forth for the purpose of interpreting and implementing Texas [Vernon's Texas Codes Annotated,] Government Code, Tit
	§801.211(e), which allows the Board to adopt rules to administer and provide educational training programs under §801.211. CROSS REFERENCE TO STATUTES AND CODES AF-FECTED The rule changes as proposed affect Texas Government Code, Chapters 801 and 802, specifically §801.201(c), §801.211(b), §801.202(1) and (2). §601.1. Purpose. The rules and regulations of the State Pension Review Board are set forth for the purpose of interpreting and implementing Texas [Vernon's Texas Codes Annotated,] Government Code, Tit

	The Board has determined that during the first five years that the rule changes as proposed will be in effect: (1) the rule changes as proposed will not create or eliminate a government program; (2) implementation of the rule changes as proposed will not affect the number of PRB employee positions; (3) implementation of the rule changes as proposed will result in no assumed change in future legislative appropriations; (4) the rule changes as proposed will not affect fees paid to PRB; (5) the rule changes as
	The Board has determined that during the first five years that the rule changes as proposed will be in effect: (1) the rule changes as proposed will not create or eliminate a government program; (2) implementation of the rule changes as proposed will not affect the number of PRB employee positions; (3) implementation of the rule changes as proposed will result in no assumed change in future legislative appropriations; (4) the rule changes as proposed will not affect fees paid to PRB; (5) the rule changes as
	The Board has determined that during the first five years that the rule changes as proposed will be in effect: (1) the rule changes as proposed will not create or eliminate a government program; (2) implementation of the rule changes as proposed will not affect the number of PRB employee positions; (3) implementation of the rule changes as proposed will result in no assumed change in future legislative appropriations; (4) the rule changes as proposed will not affect fees paid to PRB; (5) the rule changes as
	The Board has determined that during the first five years that the rule changes as proposed will be in effect: (1) the rule changes as proposed will not create or eliminate a government program; (2) implementation of the rule changes as proposed will not affect the number of PRB employee positions; (3) implementation of the rule changes as proposed will result in no assumed change in future legislative appropriations; (4) the rule changes as proposed will not affect fees paid to PRB; (5) the rule changes as


	PUBLIC COMMENT Written comments on the rule changes as proposed may be sub-mitted to Anumeha Kumar, Executive Director, State Pension Review Board, P.O. Box 13498, Austin, Texas 78711-3498 or by electronic mail to prb@prb.texas.gov. Commenters are en-couraged to include "rule comments" in the subject line of the electronic mail. Comments will be accepted until 5:00 p.m. on January 27, 2020, which is 31 days after publication in the Texas Register. STATUTORY AUTHORITY The rule changes as proposed are authori
	P
	Link

	P
	StyleSpan
	Link

	StyleSpan
	Link



	Westley Allen, Accountant, has determined that for each year of the first five-year period the rule changes as proposed would be in effect, there will be no foreseeable implications relating to cost or revenues of state or local governments, under Government Code §2001.024(a)(4), as a result of enforcing or administering these rules. PUBLIC BENEFIT/COST NOTE Mr. Allen has determined, under Government Code §2001.024(a)(5) that for each year of the first five-year period the rule changes as proposed are in ef
	Westley Allen, Accountant, has determined that for each year of the first five-year period the rule changes as proposed would be in effect, there will be no foreseeable implications relating to cost or revenues of state or local governments, under Government Code §2001.024(a)(4), as a result of enforcing or administering these rules. PUBLIC BENEFIT/COST NOTE Mr. Allen has determined, under Government Code §2001.024(a)(5) that for each year of the first five-year period the rule changes as proposed are in ef
	Westley Allen, Accountant, has determined that for each year of the first five-year period the rule changes as proposed would be in effect, there will be no foreseeable implications relating to cost or revenues of state or local governments, under Government Code §2001.024(a)(4), as a result of enforcing or administering these rules. PUBLIC BENEFIT/COST NOTE Mr. Allen has determined, under Government Code §2001.024(a)(5) that for each year of the first five-year period the rule changes as proposed are in ef



	persons under Government Code §2001.024, including another state agency, a special district, or a local government. TAKINGS IMPACT ASSESSMENT The Board has determined that no private real property inter-ests are affected by this proposal and the proposal does not re-strict or limit an owner's right to his or her property that would otherwise exist in the absence of government action and, there-fore, does not constitute a taking under Texas Government Code §2007.043. ENVIRONMENTAL RULE ANALYSIS The rule chan
	persons under Government Code §2001.024, including another state agency, a special district, or a local government. TAKINGS IMPACT ASSESSMENT The Board has determined that no private real property inter-ests are affected by this proposal and the proposal does not re-strict or limit an owner's right to his or her property that would otherwise exist in the absence of government action and, there-fore, does not constitute a taking under Texas Government Code §2007.043. ENVIRONMENTAL RULE ANALYSIS The rule chan
	persons under Government Code §2001.024, including another state agency, a special district, or a local government. TAKINGS IMPACT ASSESSMENT The Board has determined that no private real property inter-ests are affected by this proposal and the proposal does not re-strict or limit an owner's right to his or her property that would otherwise exist in the absence of government action and, there-fore, does not constitute a taking under Texas Government Code §2007.043. ENVIRONMENTAL RULE ANALYSIS The rule chan
	P
	Link

	TRD-201904775 Anumeha Kumar Executive Director State Pension Review Board Earliest possible date of adoption: January 26, 2020 For further information, please call: (512) 463-1736 ♦ ♦ ♦ CHAPTER 607. PUBLIC RETIREMENT SYSTEM MINIMUM EDUCATIONAL TRAINING PROGRAM SUBCHAPTER B. MINIMUM EDUCATIONAL TRAINING REQUIREMENTS FOR TRUSTEES AND SYSTEM ADMINISTRATORS 40 TAC §607.111 The State Pension Review Board (PRB) proposes the repeal of §607.111 (relating to Minimum Educational Training Require-ments for Current Tru

	(3) implementation of the rule changes as proposed will result in no assumed change in future legislative appropriations; (4) the rule changes as proposed rule will not affect fees paid to PRB; (5) the rule changes as proposed will not create a new regulation; (6) the rule changes as proposed will not expand or limit ex-isting regulations. The rule change as proposed would repeal §607.111 (relating to Minimum Educational Training Require-ments for Current Trustees and System Administrators) to remove expire
	(3) implementation of the rule changes as proposed will result in no assumed change in future legislative appropriations; (4) the rule changes as proposed rule will not affect fees paid to PRB; (5) the rule changes as proposed will not create a new regulation; (6) the rule changes as proposed will not expand or limit ex-isting regulations. The rule change as proposed would repeal §607.111 (relating to Minimum Educational Training Require-ments for Current Trustees and System Administrators) to remove expire
	(3) implementation of the rule changes as proposed will result in no assumed change in future legislative appropriations; (4) the rule changes as proposed rule will not affect fees paid to PRB; (5) the rule changes as proposed will not create a new regulation; (6) the rule changes as proposed will not expand or limit ex-isting regulations. The rule change as proposed would repeal §607.111 (relating to Minimum Educational Training Require-ments for Current Trustees and System Administrators) to remove expire
	(3) implementation of the rule changes as proposed will result in no assumed change in future legislative appropriations; (4) the rule changes as proposed rule will not affect fees paid to PRB; (5) the rule changes as proposed will not create a new regulation; (6) the rule changes as proposed will not expand or limit ex-isting regulations. The rule change as proposed would repeal §607.111 (relating to Minimum Educational Training Require-ments for Current Trustees and System Administrators) to remove expire


	Review Board, P.O. Box 13498, Austin, Texas 78711-3498 or by electronic mail to prb@prb.texas.gov. Commenters are en-couraged to include "rule comments" in the subject line of the electronic mail. Comments will be accepted until 5:00 p.m. on January 27, 2020, which is 31 days after publication in the Texas Register. STATUTORY AUTHORITY The repeal is proposed under the authority of Texas Government Code §801.201(a), which grants specific authority to the Board to adopt rules for the conduct of its business, 
	Review Board, P.O. Box 13498, Austin, Texas 78711-3498 or by electronic mail to prb@prb.texas.gov. Commenters are en-couraged to include "rule comments" in the subject line of the electronic mail. Comments will be accepted until 5:00 p.m. on January 27, 2020, which is 31 days after publication in the Texas Register. STATUTORY AUTHORITY The repeal is proposed under the authority of Texas Government Code §801.201(a), which grants specific authority to the Board to adopt rules for the conduct of its business, 
	ParagraphSpan
	Link




	was still in development. The update to the rule would reflect the categories in the standard forms that the public retirement systems are currently reporting to the PRB. FISCAL NOTE ON STATE AND LOCAL GOVERNMENTS Westley Allen, Accountant, has determined that for each year of the first five-year period the rule changes as proposed would be in effect, there will be no foreseeable implications relating to cost or revenues of state or local governments, under Government Code §2001.024(a)(4), as a result of en
	was still in development. The update to the rule would reflect the categories in the standard forms that the public retirement systems are currently reporting to the PRB. FISCAL NOTE ON STATE AND LOCAL GOVERNMENTS Westley Allen, Accountant, has determined that for each year of the first five-year period the rule changes as proposed would be in effect, there will be no foreseeable implications relating to cost or revenues of state or local governments, under Government Code §2001.024(a)(4), as a result of en
	was still in development. The update to the rule would reflect the categories in the standard forms that the public retirement systems are currently reporting to the PRB. FISCAL NOTE ON STATE AND LOCAL GOVERNMENTS Westley Allen, Accountant, has determined that for each year of the first five-year period the rule changes as proposed would be in effect, there will be no foreseeable implications relating to cost or revenues of state or local governments, under Government Code §2001.024(a)(4), as a result of en
	COST TO REGULATED PERSONS (COST-IN/COST-OUT) This rule proposal is not subject to Texas Government Code §2001.0045, concerning increasing costs to regulated persons, because, as described above in the public benefit and cost note, the proposed amendments do not impose a cost on regulated persons under Government Code §2001.024, including another state agency, a special district, or a local government. TAKINGS IMPACT ASSESSMENT The Board has determined that no private real property inter-ests are affected by
	P
	Link


	(1) For each trustee: the name, [occupation,] mailing ad-dress, phone number, e-mail, position (such as Chair, Vice-Chair, Sec-retary, etc.), trustee type (such as Active, Retired, Citizen, etc.), term start date, [date of assuming or re-assuming the trustee's position on the governing body,] the term length, and the term end date [expected last date of service]. (2) For a system administrator: the name, title, phone num-ber, e-mail, and date of hire. [business contact information, hiring date, and the last
	(1) For each trustee: the name, [occupation,] mailing ad-dress, phone number, e-mail, position (such as Chair, Vice-Chair, Sec-retary, etc.), trustee type (such as Active, Retired, Citizen, etc.), term start date, [date of assuming or re-assuming the trustee's position on the governing body,] the term length, and the term end date [expected last date of service]. (2) For a system administrator: the name, title, phone num-ber, e-mail, and date of hire. [business contact information, hiring date, and the last
	(1) For each trustee: the name, [occupation,] mailing ad-dress, phone number, e-mail, position (such as Chair, Vice-Chair, Sec-retary, etc.), trustee type (such as Active, Retired, Citizen, etc.), term start date, [date of assuming or re-assuming the trustee's position on the governing body,] the term length, and the term end date [expected last date of service]. (2) For a system administrator: the name, title, phone num-ber, e-mail, and date of hire. [business contact information, hiring date, and the last





	requirements. The regulation does not address future costs, as such costs are handled under applicable state and federal law. FISCAL NOTE Brian Ragland, Chief Financial Officer, has determined, in accor-dance with Government Code, §2001.024(a)(4), that for each of the first five years in which the proposed rules are in effect, there will be no fiscal implications for state or local governments as a result of enforcing or administering the rules. The funds at is-sue are appropriated for a specific purpose an
	requirements. The regulation does not address future costs, as such costs are handled under applicable state and federal law. FISCAL NOTE Brian Ragland, Chief Financial Officer, has determined, in accor-dance with Government Code, §2001.024(a)(4), that for each of the first five years in which the proposed rules are in effect, there will be no fiscal implications for state or local governments as a result of enforcing or administering the rules. The funds at is-sue are appropriated for a specific purpose an
	requirements. The regulation does not address future costs, as such costs are handled under applicable state and federal law. FISCAL NOTE Brian Ragland, Chief Financial Officer, has determined, in accor-dance with Government Code, §2001.024(a)(4), that for each of the first five years in which the proposed rules are in effect, there will be no fiscal implications for state or local governments as a result of enforcing or administering the rules. The funds at is-sue are appropriated for a specific purpose an

	(3) its implementation would not require an increase or decrease in future legislative appropriations to the agency; (4) it would not require an increase or decrease in fees paid to the agency; (5) it would not create a new regulation; (6) it would not expand, limit, or repeal an existing regulation; (7) it would not increase or decrease the number of individuals subject to its applicability; and (8) it would not positively or adversely affect this state's economy. TAKINGS IMPACT ASSESSMENT Mr. Espy has det
	(3) its implementation would not require an increase or decrease in future legislative appropriations to the agency; (4) it would not require an increase or decrease in fees paid to the agency; (5) it would not create a new regulation; (6) it would not expand, limit, or repeal an existing regulation; (7) it would not increase or decrease the number of individuals subject to its applicability; and (8) it would not positively or adversely affect this state's economy. TAKINGS IMPACT ASSESSMENT Mr. Espy has det
	(3) its implementation would not require an increase or decrease in future legislative appropriations to the agency; (4) it would not require an increase or decrease in fees paid to the agency; (5) it would not create a new regulation; (6) it would not expand, limit, or repeal an existing regulation; (7) it would not increase or decrease the number of individuals subject to its applicability; and (8) it would not positively or adversely affect this state's economy. TAKINGS IMPACT ASSESSMENT Mr. Espy has det
	(3) its implementation would not require an increase or decrease in future legislative appropriations to the agency; (4) it would not require an increase or decrease in fees paid to the agency; (5) it would not create a new regulation; (6) it would not expand, limit, or repeal an existing regulation; (7) it would not increase or decrease the number of individuals subject to its applicability; and (8) it would not positively or adversely affect this state's economy. TAKINGS IMPACT ASSESSMENT Mr. Espy has det
	(3) its implementation would not require an increase or decrease in future legislative appropriations to the agency; (4) it would not require an increase or decrease in fees paid to the agency; (5) it would not create a new regulation; (6) it would not expand, limit, or repeal an existing regulation; (7) it would not increase or decrease the number of individuals subject to its applicability; and (8) it would not positively or adversely affect this state's economy. TAKINGS IMPACT ASSESSMENT Mr. Espy has det


	P
	Link


	(i) commuter or other short-haul railroad passenger service in a metropolitan or suburban area; and (ii) high speed ground transportation systems that connect metropolitan areas, without regard to whether those systems use new technologies not associated with traditional railroads. (B) Railroad does not include rapid transit operations in an urban area that are not connected to the general railroad system of transportation. §7.32. Filing Requirements. (a) A railroad shall file with the department: (1) the n
	(i) commuter or other short-haul railroad passenger service in a metropolitan or suburban area; and (ii) high speed ground transportation systems that connect metropolitan areas, without regard to whether those systems use new technologies not associated with traditional railroads. (B) Railroad does not include rapid transit operations in an urban area that are not connected to the general railroad system of transportation. §7.32. Filing Requirements. (a) A railroad shall file with the department: (1) the n
	(i) commuter or other short-haul railroad passenger service in a metropolitan or suburban area; and (ii) high speed ground transportation systems that connect metropolitan areas, without regard to whether those systems use new technologies not associated with traditional railroads. (B) Railroad does not include rapid transit operations in an urban area that are not connected to the general railroad system of transportation. §7.32. Filing Requirements. (a) A railroad shall file with the department: (1) the n
	(i) commuter or other short-haul railroad passenger service in a metropolitan or suburban area; and (ii) high speed ground transportation systems that connect metropolitan areas, without regard to whether those systems use new technologies not associated with traditional railroads. (B) Railroad does not include rapid transit operations in an urban area that are not connected to the general railroad system of transportation. §7.32. Filing Requirements. (a) A railroad shall file with the department: (1) the n
	(i) commuter or other short-haul railroad passenger service in a metropolitan or suburban area; and (ii) high speed ground transportation systems that connect metropolitan areas, without regard to whether those systems use new technologies not associated with traditional railroads. (B) Railroad does not include rapid transit operations in an urban area that are not connected to the general railroad system of transportation. §7.32. Filing Requirements. (a) A railroad shall file with the department: (1) the n
	(i) commuter or other short-haul railroad passenger service in a metropolitan or suburban area; and (ii) high speed ground transportation systems that connect metropolitan areas, without regard to whether those systems use new technologies not associated with traditional railroads. (B) Railroad does not include rapid transit operations in an urban area that are not connected to the general railroad system of transportation. §7.32. Filing Requirements. (a) A railroad shall file with the department: (1) the n



	(B) result in the injury of two or more persons; (C) involve a fire or explosion; or (D) involve a passenger or commuter train. (b) Written reports. When the department makes a written re-quest, a railroad shall furnish the department with a copy of an acci-dent/incident report filed with the FRA under 49 C.F.R. Part 225, within 30 days after expiration of the month during which the accident/inci-dent occurred. Only copies of reports that concern accidents/incidents occurring in the state of Texas shall be 
	(B) result in the injury of two or more persons; (C) involve a fire or explosion; or (D) involve a passenger or commuter train. (b) Written reports. When the department makes a written re-quest, a railroad shall furnish the department with a copy of an acci-dent/incident report filed with the FRA under 49 C.F.R. Part 225, within 30 days after expiration of the month during which the accident/inci-dent occurred. Only copies of reports that concern accidents/incidents occurring in the state of Texas shall be 
	(B) result in the injury of two or more persons; (C) involve a fire or explosion; or (D) involve a passenger or commuter train. (b) Written reports. When the department makes a written re-quest, a railroad shall furnish the department with a copy of an acci-dent/incident report filed with the FRA under 49 C.F.R. Part 225, within 30 days after expiration of the month during which the accident/inci-dent occurred. Only copies of reports that concern accidents/incidents occurring in the state of Texas shall be 
	(B) result in the injury of two or more persons; (C) involve a fire or explosion; or (D) involve a passenger or commuter train. (b) Written reports. When the department makes a written re-quest, a railroad shall furnish the department with a copy of an acci-dent/incident report filed with the FRA under 49 C.F.R. Part 225, within 30 days after expiration of the month during which the accident/inci-dent occurred. Only copies of reports that concern accidents/incidents occurring in the state of Texas shall be 



	Filed with the Office of the Secretary of State on December 12, 2019. TRD-201904741 Becky Blewett Deputy General Counsel Texas Department of Transportation Earliest possible date of adoption: January 26, 2020 For further information, please call: (512) 463-8630 ♦ ♦ ♦ SUBCHAPTER F. RAILROAD GRADE CROSSINGS 43 TAC §7.105 STATUTORY AUTHORITY The amendments are proposed under Transportation Code, §201.101, which provides the Texas Transportation Commission (commission) with the authority to establish rules for 



	TRD-201904742 Becky Blewett Deputy General Counsel Texas Department of Transportation Earliest possible date of adoption: January 26, 2020 For further information, please call: (512) 463-8630 
	TRD-201904742 Becky Blewett Deputy General Counsel Texas Department of Transportation Earliest possible date of adoption: January 26, 2020 For further information, please call: (512) 463-8630 






	5. Discount Rate Graphs.pdf
	zall.pdf
	zb
	zc
	zd
	ze
	zf

	5. Discount Rate Graphs.pdf
	zall.pdf
	zb
	zc
	zd
	ze
	zf

	5. Discount Rate Graphs.pdf
	zall.pdf
	zb
	zc
	zd
	ze
	zf

	5. Discount Rate Graphs.pdf
	zall.pdf
	zb
	zc
	zd
	ze
	zf




